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BACKGROUND OF THE INVESTIGATION 

A humane method for compensating individuals for work-con­
nected injuries was first established in New Jersey by a 1911 act of 
the Legislatnre. The Workmen's Compensation system flowing 
from that act is designed to provide social protection through a 
strictly statutory formula for awarding compensation without 
regard to the fault of the employer or the contributory negligence 
of the employee. The cost of this social protection for· working 
people in New Jersey is passed along to the consuming public in 
the prices they pay for goods and services. 

It was the hope of the framers and supporters of the W or kmen's 
Compensation Act that the system would function largely in an 
administrative fashion with emphasis on adequate compensation 
being paid promptly to those suffering permanent disabilities from 
employment injuries. The act, however, recognized that compensa­
tion claims often would be subject to dispute, and it accordingly 
established the Workmen's Compensation Courts to provide a 
formal process for litigating claims .. 

THE GROWTH OF THE SYSTEM 

During its 63 years of existenCle, the Workmen's Compensation 
system has grown into a massive and complex monolith. The 
system now involves the payment of vast amounts of money 
annually. Employers pay in excess of $274 million per year in in­
surance premiums for Workmen's Compensation coverage in New 
Jersey. In addition to that figure is the cost of Workmen's Com­
pensation benefits paid by companies of sufficient size and fiscal 
resources to insure themselves. 

According to State Labor and Industry Department records, 
approximately $100 million is dispensed annually by the system as 
compensation awards to injured individuals. That figure repre­
sents substantially more than is processed annually by the civil 
courts in New Jersey. 

The Workmen's Compensation system has become quite complex 
because over the course of six decades it has established by statu­
tory interpretation, case law, and' regulatory and administrative 
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procedures, as well as custom and practice, its own individual and 
multi-faceted· procedures, processes, and standards for handling 
claims, making awards and establishing premium rates charged by 
insurance carriers. 

SURGES FOR REFORM 

During recent times, there has been almost once every decade a 
surge toward comprehensive overhaul and reform of the W ork­
men's Compensation system. Each time in the past the surges have 
been unable to generate sufficient consensus to achieve that goal. 
The r€sult has been piecemeal changes in the system from time to 
time. Some of the most frequent criticisms over the years have 
been that the system pays too much money overall for lesser in­
juries and not €nough for the more serious injuries and that too 
much money is siphoned off by the system in relation to the amount 
of money paid to injured workers. 

The latest 10-year surge toward reform has developed during 
the past several years. It has been spurred not only by the sam€ 
criticisms of the past but also by some new trends and some allega­
tions as to abusive practices. 

In the past decade, the resort to the formal process* involving 
resolution of compensation cases in the Workmen's Compensation 
Courts has increased vastly, while resort to the two administrative 
type processes for l'esolving cases has shown virtually no increase. 
Those two processes are direct settlement between the employer 
and the injured worker and the informal process" presided over by 
Referees of Compensation. Additionally, the injured worker as of 
1973 was receiving less than half of each dollar paid for Workmen's 
Compensation insurance premiums. 

* In the formal process for arriving at Workmen's Compensation awards in the Com­
pensation Courts, the injured worker (petitioner) undergoes competing medical exam­
inations and evaluations of the degree of his permanent disability by a petitioners' 
doctor and doctors for the employer or his insurance company (respondent). The 
competing evaluations are in the overwhelming majority of cases subject to settlement 
on a compromise figure at the pre-trial level, although some cases involving more 
complex disputes are given full trial-like hearings·. The fees for attorneys and doctors 
involved in the cases are assessed by the Court against petitioners and respondents. 
The maximum petitioners' attorney fee allowable in a formal case is 20 per cent of 
the amount awarded as compensation. 

** In the informal process, the injured worker is examined by a state-paid 'doctor who 
makes his evaluation of the degree of disability. The doctor's report is available to 
the Referee of Compensation who makes a detennination of the award based on the 
degree of disability. The maximum allowable petitioners' attorney fee at the informal 
level, is 10 per cent of the award. If the petitioner is dissatisfied with his award at 
the informal level, he may proceed to the formal level. 
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THE REQUEST FOR INVESTIGATION 

Besides statistical indications that the system may have gone 
awry, there were persistent reports and allegations that the atmo­
sphere in the Workmen's Oompensation Oourts had evolved to a 
point where inegularities, abuses and even illegalities were being 
ignored or tolerated. A series of newspaper articles in 1971 dwelled 
at length on some of the alleged abuses said to be flourishing in 
the system to the possible detriment of the system's primary goal, 
namely that it operate principally in the best interests of the in­
jured worker. 

As a result of the mounting hue and cry about the ills of the 
system, the then State Oommissioner of Labor and Industry, 
Ronald Heymann, appointed his then Executive Assistant, Mr. 
Oharles Rosen, to investigate the reports and allegations. Mr. 
Rosen's subsequent inquiry and report convinced Oommissioner 
Heymann that some of the alleg'ations should be referred to an 
investigative authority. After discussion between members of the 
State Labor and Industry Department and the Office of the State 
Attorney General, a decision was made to refer the matter to the 
State Commission of Investigation (S.O.I.). 

Preliminary inquiry by the S.O.I. into the Workmen's Oompensa­
tion system commenced in July, 1972. For the ensuing five months, 
some 100 interviews were conducted throughout the state by Oom­
mission personneL Additionally, s·everal subpamas were served. 
Among those interviewed were Judges of Oompensation, peti­
tioners' and respondents' attorneys and doctors, court reporters, 
various insurance company representatives, and several individuals 
who had been represented by a variety of attorneys from locations 
throughout the state. 

FULL INVESTIGATION IS AUTHORIZED 

By December, 1972 the Oommission's pr~liminary inquiries had 
determined the existence of improper, abusive and even illicit prac­
tices. Accordingly, the Oommission deemed it advisable to under­
take a thorough investigation into the Workmen's Oompensation 
system, an investigation which was authorized pursuant to a resolu­
tion of the Oommission. 

As the investigation progressed, facts were developed uncovering 
certain fraudulent bill padding practices among certain doctors and 
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attorneys in the liability or negligence area, as well as the com­
pensation field. Cons·equently, pursuant to another resolution of 
the Commission, the investigation was extended to include billing 
practices between doctors and attorneys in the negligence action 
area. 

By the Spring of 1973, the Commission was prepared to proceed 
with public hearings on the investigation after hearing in private 
session the testimony of 54 witnesses representing every level of. 
the Workmen's Compensation system, as well as negligence plain­
tiffs. The public hearings were held May 1, 2, 8, 9, 15 and 16 and 
June 13, 20 and 22 in the State Senate Chamber in Trenton. 

The subsequent pages of this report review and summarize in 
detail the testimony taken and exhibits marked at the public hear­
ings. Suffice it to state here that the hearings covered four principal 
areas: 

1. The pervasive atmosphere of the system 

2. Abuses and improprieties 

3. Fraud 

4. The insurance rate making prO(less 

RECOMMENDATIONS NOTED 

At the opening of the public hearings, the then Chairman of the 
Commission, John F. McCarthy, Jr., observed in a statement he 
read into the record that the more the Commission examined the 
Workmen's Compensation system, the more it became obvious 
that nothing less than a lengthy, comprehensive look at all aspects 
and components of the system would be sufficient to' attain the 
Commission's goal, namely to establish a basis for meaningful 
recommendations for legislative and administrative action to im­
prove the system for the benefit of an involved in it . 

• The Commission's final recommendations, which include more 
than a score of proposed legislative and administrative actions, 
logically appear in this report after the review of the public hear­
ings. The recommendations emphasi21e steps to halt further abusive 
practices and additionally suggest actions for improvements in the 
operation of the system. 

, The recommendations are summarized and presented in detail on 
pages 232 to 3;17 of this report. 
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Then Chairman McCarthy in his opening statement at the public 
hearings noted further that while the Commission originally 
had not anticipated undertaking an analysis of practices in the 
liability or negligen<le area, the Commission nonetheless intended 
to highlight publicly abuses uncovered in that area in hope of alert­
ing the bench, the bar, the medical profession and the general public 
to those situations and obtaining legislative and executive correc­
tion where possible. 

In concluding' his opening remarks, Chairman McCarthy said: 

Let me state that this investigation should in no way 
be interpreted as impugning the statutory intent of 
Workmen's Compensation in New Jersey. The Com­
mission recognizes the complete validity of and need 
for a humane system of compensation for work-con­
nected injuries. The system, however, has developed 
an atmosphere and mode of operation which appear 
to stray from the central concepts of the Workmen's 
Compensation Act of 19'11. The system needs an 
airing. Let us proceed with the investigation. 

The Commissioners wish to express publicly in this report their 
appl'eciation of the extensive effort and expertise brought to bear 
on this comprehensive investigation by the S.C.I. staff as a whole 
and in particular by Mr. Joseph Zeller, who as Research Analyst 
was instrumental in developing the final recommendations prec 

sented in this report. 

In keeping with the policies of the Commission and the pro­
visions of the State Code of Fair Procedure, the Commission issues 
a reminder 'that any person who feeJs the material contained in this 
report tends to defame or otherwise adversely affect his reputa­
tion has a right to appear before the Commission and testify as to 
matters relevant to the testimony or other evidenoe complained of, 
or ill the alternative to file a statement of facts under oath relating 
solely to matters relevant to the testimony or other evidence com­
plained of. 
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CHARTS AND STATISTICS 

The New Jersey State Department of Labor and Industry com­
piles and stores on computer memory banks a wealth of statistical 
data as to the type and amount of Workmen's Compensation claims 
filed, how and where those claims are processed, and the compensa­
tion awards made in each case. 

The Commission's public hearings commenced with the introduc­
tion of a series of charts based on statistics supplied by the Depart­
ment. Mr. Charles A. Rosen, the then Special Assistant to the State 
Commissioner of Labor and Industry, testified as to the data, and 
their import, on the charts which were designed to estab~ish 
graphically a factual setting for later testimony as to problems and 
abuses in the Workmen's Compensation system and as to sugges­
tions for curing the system's ills. 

Chart Number One (see page 323) shows that for the period 
1962-72 total dollars awarded in Workmen's Compensation cases 
rose from $52 million in 1969 to a peak of $111 million in 1971. The 
chart shows additionally that this growth in total dollars awarded 
was paralleled by a similar increas'e in the dollar value of awards 
dispensed in formal cases which are litigated through the Work­
men's Compensation Courts, and that the amount of dollars dis­
pensed via the two less costly processes for awarding Workmen's 
Compensation dollars showed virtually no increase in the same 
10-year period. Those two processes are the informal process 
supervised by state referees and the process of direct sett1ement 
between the employer or his respondent insurance company and the 
injured worker. 

Chart Number Two (see page 324) shows a similar picture of the 
sharp growth in formal cases, compared to a decline in informal 
cases and direct settlements, during 1962-72, but on this chart, the 
growth and decline are expressed in terms of the number of W ork-, 
men's Compensation cases processed annually during the 10-year 
period. The chart specifically shows the number of formal cases 
processed as rising from 22,500 in 1962 to a peak near 37,000 in 
1971. 

From Charts One and Two, Mr. Rosen was able to conclude that 
the informals and direct settlements reflect only a small percentage 
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of the compensation award dollar, while there has been a huge in­
crease in resort to the formal or litigated process which entails the 
added expenses of separate medical examinations by doctors for 
petitioning workers and by doctors for the employers of their 
respondent insurance companies, plus higher permissible awards 
of attorneys fees. 

Chart Nmnber Three (see page 325) shows data reflecting that 
for the years 1964-72, use of the Second Injury Fund has almost 
quintupled, with 69 new applicants having been placed on the fund 
in 1964, compared to 340 new applicants being so placed in 1971. 
Chart Number Four (see page 326) shows that the dollar value of 
allotted benefits from that fund has soared from $640,000 in 1964 
to $4 million by 1972. 

The Second Injury Fund is a system whereby a worker who has 
been disabled in a previous employment and then is totally dis­
abled in a subsequent employment is compensated by the last em­
ployer for the last disability but balance of the cost of the worker's 
total disability is paid from the fund. A principal purpose of the 
fund, which is supported by asseHsments against employers', is to 
encourage employers to hire partially disabled workers by assuring 
those employers they will not have to bear the total cost of total 
disability if the worker is reinjured on the job. 

Chart Number Five (see page 327) shows on a county area basis 
how the number of Workmen's Compensation cases alleging 
impairment from occupational diseases has increased dramatically 
in the period of 1970-72, with the greatest proportion-more 
than 1,200 cases in 1971 alone-being filed in Essex County. 

Chart Number Six (see page 328) presents a three-year statewide 
history of occupational disease cases in terms of the number of 
cases and compensation award dollars. The chart shows specifi­
cally that the number of occupational disease cases increased from 
2,985 to 5,062 and that the award dollars rose from $8.6 million to 
$12.4 million. 

Chart Number Seven (see page 329) showed a similar three~year 
statewide history for Workmen's Compensation cases involving 
muscle sprains. 
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EXPERT WI1NESSES 

The early phase of the public hearings was devoted to eliciting, 
of testimony from four witnesses who could, because of their 
experience and expertise, establish what are proper practices, pro­
cedur·es and standards for the Workmen's Compensation system 
and recommend steps for curing the system's ills. . 

Two of those witnesses are partners in two law firms handling 
substantial volumes of Workmen's Compensation cases. One is 
Matthew W. Parks, partner in the law firm of Tomar, Parks, 
Seliger, Simonoff and Adourian in Camden in Southern Nerw 
Jersey. The other is Jacob L. Balk, senior partner in the firm of 
Balk, Jacobs, Goldberg, Mandell and Selighson in Newark in 
Northern New Jersey. 

The other two expert witnesses are Judge Stanley Levine, Super" 
vising Judge of the Workmen's Compensation Courts in Elizabeth, 
and Judge Roger W. Kelly, who at the time of the hearings was 
Supervising Judge of the Workmen's Compensation Courts in 
Newark but who has since been assigned to Perth Amboy. 

TESTIMONY OF MATTHEW W. PARKS 

Mr. Parks' law firm handles about 400 Workmen's Compensation 
cases per year, most of them involving injuries of an orthopedic 
nature. He was asked to testify as to his practices and methods so 
that his testimony, when combined with that of Mr. Balk, would 
provide a yardstick as to the proper methods and practices followed 
by scrupulous attorneys for petitioners in compensation cases. 

, One abusive practice which, was a subject of the Commission's 
investigation involves the frequent reference by some attorneys of 
their clients to favored doctors for unauthorized heat treatments: 
In the Workmen's Compensation processes,an unauthorized tI'eat­
ment is one that has not been authorized by the respondent in­
surance company or self-insured employer. Mr. Parks was asked 
about his practices in this area: 

Q. Can you describe for me the circumstances 
itnder which your client would receive heat treat­
ment? 
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A. Only if the attending physician recommended it 
or if on his own he went to a doctor. 

Q. In other words, you don't make it a practice of 
sending the client to a treating doctor? 

A. No, sir, we don't practice medicine at all. If a 
client comes in and says they need treatment, we 
usuaIly tell them to go to their family doctor, either 
one, to go back to the company physician. If he says 
he, won't treat them any more, go to the family doctor 
and have him recommend somebody. 

Q. Would you consider it improper for an attorney 
to send a client to a doctor for treatrneni? 

A. Yes, I don't think it's within the attorney's pre­
rogative to recommend treatment or e'ven to make a 
determination that a client needs treatment. That's 
for a doctor to determine. 

Mr. Parks was asked to comment on certain medical reports 
(marked as Exhibits 0-8 through 0-10) making reference to the 
sending of clients by a New Jersey law firm to Dr. Harold E. 
Lippman, a heat treating doctor who at the timB of the corre­
spondence had offices in Newark but whose offices are now in 
Irvington. Mr. Parks testified as follows: 

Q. 1I1r. Parks, I have, first of all, sub'miiteito'you 
certain medical reports beginning with 0-8 through 
C-l0. Now, I have removed the name, any references 
to an attorney, although I have left in the name of the 
treating doctor. 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. But, in any event, I would like you to look at 
C-8, and you might see the language there about half­
way down the page which says, "Subsequent to the 
hospitalization he states he was sent to Dr. Lippman 
by his lawyer and this doctor treated him for eight 
months and the patient remained out of work for eight 
months"? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. I take it I would not find such a reference to a 
client of yours? 

A.N 0, sir. If a client comes into our office and says 
he needs treatment and we find out from a medical 
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doctor that he does in fact need treatment, we then 
make a motion for medical treatment with the carrier 
through the courts and make a telephone demand ou 
the carrier initially to go back to their own doctor. 

Q. Thank you, Mr. Parks. I would assume, then, 
that your answer would be the same with respect to 
C-9 where the language is, "He," meaning the peti­
tioner, "contacted the law offices of blank,who, 
according to the patient, arranged for him to see Dr. 
Harold Lippman of Elizabeth Avenue in Newark, New 
Jersey"? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. I would not expect to find that language in 
medical reports with reference to your clients, would 
I, sVr.~ 

A. No, sir. 

Q. And similarly with respect to C-lo., you will note 
the language in the mi.ddle of the page, "She," refe,-­
ring to the patient, "also saw Dr. Harold E. Lippman 
of Newark in February, 1971 heat treatments to her 
back and entire right side. She was treated by him for 
three months. She was sent to him by blank"? 

A. Again, if the blank is an attorney,--

Q. The attorney. 
A. No, we do not send our people for heat treat­

ments or any kind of treatment. 

Mr. Parks was also queried about a letter from the same New 
Jersey law firm requesting Dr. Lippman to give unauthorized heat 
treatments to a client: 

Q. wm you read what the letter says, please? 
A. It's addressed to the doctor, gives an in re with 

the patient's number, the file number of the law firm 
aud it says, "Dear Dr. Lippman: Will you kindly 
commence treating client for his back injury as the 
insurance company refuses to render any further 
treatment. I am enclosing herewith for your informa­
tion a copy of the hospital !'ecord in this matter. 
Very truly yours. " 
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Q. The date of the letter again was? 
A. JUly-January the 27th, 1969. 

Q. Now, will you look at the patient card? 
A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And you will notice that this patient received a 
series of diathermy treatments ending August 5th, 
1968 and then resuming some four months later, J a'f/JU­
ary 27, 1969. In other words, it looks like the doctor 
promptly followed the attorney's recomrnendation? 

A. He did receive treatment. The patient recei·ved 
treatment the same day as the letter, yes. 

Q. Is that letter proper as it's written? 
A. In my opinion, I would say, no. I would send my 

client there in order to asoertain whether or not he 
does, in fact, need treatment, not--

Q. But you wouldn't--
A. I don't tell the doctor to treat. We send a client 

to a doctor to s,ee if he '8 still temporarily disabled. 
If the doctor says he is, then we make a motion for 
temporary medical treatment. We don't tell the 
doctor to treat. 

Q. Isn't this letter an open invitation to the doctor 
to treat the patient whether he needs it or not? 

A. It's an instruction, start treating. 

Q. It's an instruction without any reference to 
necessity? 

A. That is correct. 

An explanation was given by Mr. Parks as to how unauthorized 
heat treatments can be a factor in increasing the amount of money 
dispensed in a Workmen's Compensation case: 

Q. Isn't it true that the issue of whether it was 
authorized or unauthorized is, first of all, an issue of 
fact which must be resolved at the settlement con­
ference or at the trial? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. And isn't it also true that the parties may com­
promise on the issue of whether it's authorized or un­
authorized, and what the respondent will say is, well, 
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I'll contribute so much toward Dr. Lippman's or Dr. 
so-and-so's bills, without getting into the question of 
whether it's authorized or unauthorized.W 

A. That has happened. The respondent will say, 
we'll pay $100, $200 toward unauthorized medical 
treatment, whether it be just physiotherapy or actual 
treatment, casting or what-have-you. 

Q. SO that it does become a factor, then, in the 
settlement fact? 

A. The amount. 

Q. The a.mount of the bill. 
A. It can be a factor, yes. 

Q. And the respondent many times will concede the 
issue of whether it's authorized or unauthorized and 
make a contribution towards the doctor's bill in order 
to dispose of the case? 

A. Yes. 

Another abuse which was a subject of the Commission's in­
vestigation entails the practice by some attorneys of automatically 
alleging neuropsychiatric injury in addition to the basic allegation 
of injury which is frequently a muscle sprain of the back complaint. 
Mr. Parks testmedas follows as to his practice in this area: 

Q. Mr. Parks, would you explain the circwmstances 
.mder which you would send your clie1~ts for a neuro­
psychiatric exam'ination? 

A. I would send a client for a neuropsychiatric ex, 
amination if the initial injury was to the head itself. 
If it were an injury to other parts of the body, I would 
send the client to the specialist in that field for 
evaluation, and if when I rece1ved that examining 
report back the doctor in there says that this man is 
emotionally involved in his complaints or he should be 
examined by a neuropsychiatrist, then we schedule an 
examination by the neuropsychiatrist. 

Q. Can, you, looking back over, let's say, your filed 
fo·rmal claims for the year 1972, can you give me some 
estimate as to how often you might have sent your 
clients fora neuropsychiatric examination? Maybe is 
it one Oibt of ten; one out of fifteen cases? 

A. I would say less than one out of ten. 
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One questionable practice which came to the Commission's 
attention was that of a law nrm providing a Workmen's Com­
pensation client with a medical-legal memorandum setting forth 
details he could recite to examining doctors about his injury and 
his complaints of pain or other ailments. This practice was not 
indulged in by Mr. Parks: 

Q. Now, do yo·u have any occasion to provide your 
client with what I referred to as a medical-legal 
memoranda which would accompany hint to the exam­
ining physician? 

A. No, sir. When a client comes in, we do give them 
an envelope that tells them to stick receipts for drugs 
and things like that so that they have it when they 
come into the office. But we give them no instructions 
or no statement as to how the accident happened or 
what their complaints are when we see them, although 
we do take that information ourselves. 

Q . .In other words, you do not memorialize his list 
of subjective complaints, give him the memorializa­
tion and tell him to cart it around with him from 
doctor to doctor? 

A. No, sir. 

, 
) 

Among the allegations received by the Commission as to abuses 
in the Workmen's Compensation system was one concerning the 
practice of some attorneys and doctors purchasing lunches for 
judges before whom they were appearing regularly. Mr. Parks 
gave the following comment on that practice: 

Q. I would like to ask you whether or not in your 
experience as a practitioner you have ever had 
occasion to purchase lunch for a judge of compensa­
tion. 

A. No, I have not. 

Q. And do you have an optnwn concerning that 
practice? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And what is that opinion? 
A. Idon't think that it should be done, and there is 

an administrative directive. 
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Q. I understand that there is, and that Canon 32 of 
the Canon of Judicial Ethics would prohibit it. 

A. Yes, sir. 

As graphically detailed by some of the charts marked as ex­
hibits at the outset of the hearings, the number of formal W ork­
men's Compensation cases has increased sharply in recent years. 
The formal process involves the filing of a claim petition in the 
Compensation Courts, with additional expenses for competing 
medical examinations and evaluations by doctors in private 
practice. Additionally, Judges of Compensation may award 
attorneys' fees of up to 20 per cent of the compensation award 
while Referees of Compensation are limited to a maximum 10 
per cent award of attorneys' fees in the informal process. Mr. 
Parks explained his views on what he considers to be some of the 
causes for the greater resort to the formal process: 

Q. Now, I believe that I asked you, Mr. Parks, if 
yOt~ cOt~ld enlighten me as to why Vn your judgment 
there has been an increasing tendency in the last 
decade toward the more expensive formal process, the 
formal cases. 

A. Yes, sir. One, inadequate awards at the in­
formal level. One figure that was not in your charts, 
called direct settlement reviews. You dealt with direct 
settlements, but the State of New Jersey has a pro­
gram called the diI'ect settlement review, and I 
believe that the last year that there was a direct 
settlement review the carriers or employers volun­
tarily paid ahnost $1 million in additional awards to 
injured workmen merely because the state listed it at 
an informal hearing and the man came in, was ex­
amined by a state doctor and received an award. 

Another reason, as I say, the examination is not a 
complete examination. Therefore, the evaluation is 
not enough. 

Another reason is the fact that the carriers are not 
paying temporary disability benefits and medical bills 
when they should. The people are being dunned. 
They have no money. They come in to an attorney 
and the quickest way of getting something done is by 
filing a formal petition and filing a motion for medical 
treatment, temporary disability benefits. 
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Q. Well, now, I know that when insurance com­
panies drag their feet on the payment of temporary 
or medical, that some cases the footdragging is not 
justified because, as you explained to me, there may 
be situations where the injured workM has been taken 
right from the plant to the hospital and there should 
be very little question that the injury -is work con­
nected? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. But may it also not reflect a natural suspicion 
on the part of the insurance companies as to whether 
or not it's justified? 

A. Yes, sir. If it's an unwitnessed back injury or 
something like that, they do have. They want to make 
a complete investigation. They are contesting most 
heart cases as being totally r-elated on the job . 

• • • * • 
Q. All right, Now, Mr. Parks, in the area of in­

formal, the informal settlement, yOi~ sa_y that gener­
ally a doctor is brought in and there might be a list of 
fifty or sixty? 

A. At an informal level the State hires a doctor. 
He's on the State payroll. I honestly don't know what 
that figure is now. Last year it was only 50-55. He 
got the same thing whether he lived in Pennsauken, 
whether he traveled to Oamden, it took him ten 
minutes, or whether he traveled to Atlantic Oity and 
it took him an hour and a half to get there and an 
hour and a half to get back. 

Q. But would it be common that he would have a 
list of fifty or so? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. SO you have to concede his examination, of 
necessity, would have to be superficial? 

A. Absolutely. 

Q. .And yOi~ stated it's not binding on either the 
petitione,' or respondent, correct? 

A.That's correct. 
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Q. So, in effect, these two impediments seriously 
jeopardize the effect of an infonnal hearing? 

A. Yes. 

Each expert witness was asked for opinions and suggestions for 
curing the ills, which beset the ,Workmen's Compensation system. 
Mr. Parks placed primary emphasis on the screening of potential 
judges before their being placed on the Compensation Bench: 

Q. Mr. Parks, what is your understanding of the 
manner in ,which judges of compensation are 
appointed? 

A. At the present time' 

Q. Yes, sir. 
A. They're appointed by the Governor with the 

adviee and consent of the senate. 

Q. Well, from whence, generally, if you know, 
~vould the Governor receive his, recommendations? 

A. Well, I'm not sure. In some instances I'm sure 
it's political recommendations. The State Bar Asso­
ciation did attempt to have all proposed judges sub­
mitted to them for recommendations, and we did get 
one or two names, but that is all. 

• * * • 
Q. I understand. I take it yOt, would certainly 

approve of a better screening of candidates? 
A. Absolutely. 

Q. And would you think thai such a screening 
should be the function of theS:tate Bar Assocation? 

A. I think it should be along the lines that the other 
judges, the judges Of the civil courts are appointed. 
These people are-some of the people who appear in 
compensation, this is their only time in court. You're 
dealing with a lot of money to these people, and I 
think they're entitled to have quaJiiied me:n sitting on 
the bench listening to the medical problems and other 
:problems that they have. 

Q. Well,that was one of the thrusts of my openin!! 
comments, that so many millions of dollars are dis­
posed of on such expeditious procedures that it does 
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take a well-qualified man to handle such a circum­
stance, if the system is to work expeditiously, that is, 

A. That is correct. 

Q. -and without perpetuat'ing some of the abuses 
that we have referred to. Would you agree with that, 
sir? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Mr. Parks was asked for and gave his opinion as to the qualificar 
tions of the Judges of Compensation who are well known to him: 

Q. All right. Now, about the judges? 
A. Of the judges, again speaking from Freehold, 

Toms River south, presently--

Q. Presently. 
A. -there was one judge I would say is not quali­

fied to sit on the bench. The others you would have 
to rate from fair to excellent. 

Q. How many judges are we talking about? 
A. About eight. 

Q. SO one out of those eight that you are thinking 
of you would rate as not qualified? 

A. Yes. 

Q. The other seven, fair to-­
A. Excellent. 

Q. -excellent? 
A. Yes, sir. 

Q. How many would you put in the excellent category? 
A. Two. 

Q. Two. So that leaves us with four who are 
qt!alified, one not qualified? 

A. The others are qualified. 

The importance of a strong Director of the State Division of 
Workmen's Compensation was stressed by Mr. Parks as a major 
step for improving the system: 

Q. Well, let me ask you more specifically. What 
'about a strong director? 

A. Strong director? 
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Q. Yes. 
A. The Division has been without a director for 

about a year, give or take. I believe it's of the utmost 
necessity that we get a strong director immediately, 
and I understand that that is in the process of occur­
ring and may occur within a week. 

Q. SO that you feel many of the problems that 
beset the system are administrative? 

A. Absolutely. I think that there are many tools 
within the framework of the present statute, if en­
forced, could move the so-called backlog, and I'm not· 
convinced that there is a backlog, but move the cases. 
Penalize attorneys who are not moving their cases, 
whether they're petitioners' attorneys or respon­
dents' attorneys, and a strong director could also move 
his judges around at will to different places. 

Q. Well, then, I take it you would advocate a 
system where no judge was permanently in one loca­
tion for any fixed period of time? 

A. No, I don't say that's a bad situation, no sir. I 
just say that if a judge is not conforming, isn't 
putting in his time, isn't doing the job that he was 
appointed to do, he can be moved to a vicinage that 
will take him a little while to get to, a little while to 
get back from, and maybe convince him that he should 
do the job for which he was appointed. 

Q. Well, this remedy that you suggest, I take it, 
is not being used presently? 

A. It has not been used, to my knowledge, no . 

. Q. In other words, the assignment of judges to 
locations where they might be encouraged to work a 
little harder? 

A. Not to my knowledge, it has not been used. Of 
course, we only have so many Belvideres you can send 
somebody. 

Q. So many what? 
A. Belvideres. 

Q. Is that sort of like duty in the Holland 
Tunnel? 

A. Well, it's all the way up where you have a lot of 
traveling, especially if you live in South Jersey. 
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Some suggestions were made by Mr. Parks which he believes 
would lead to greater use of the informal process for obtaining 
Workmen's Compensation awards: 

Q. As a professional in the field, what would be 
your recommendations in order to buttress or build 
up the credence to be given an informal award Or to 
dispose of cases at that level? 

A. The State Bar committee, on which I sat as a 
member, has recommended several things. First of 
all, that the amount of $450 be raised to $550, which 
is, in effect, 2lf2 of total. Now, the rule is that all 
fingers and toes must go. The recommendation was 
that hands and feet also must go to informal. 
Proper enforcement of the penalty if the attorney does 
not utiliz;e that informal level, and I would say a 
raise in pay to the state doctor to get some competent 
people in there. You have to remember that a state 
doctor, out of the fifty or seventy people he is going 
to examine, is probably a G.P. and he may be examin­
ing a hearing loss, a lung condition, an eye situation. 

Now, sometimes they will recommend,for my 
people in South Jersey, that they come all the way 
up to' Newark for an eye examination or a hearing 
examination and then come back and they've lost 
another day's pay for the trip up, another day back 
here. I think that if the amount was raised, including 
hauds and feet, and the judges and referees enforced 
the 5% fee rule, that you would see the informal 
utilized more as it should be. 

TESTIMONY OF JACOB L. BALK 

In 1972 a total of 209 Workmen's Compensation awards were 
made to clients of Jacob L. Balk's aforementioned law firm. The 
firm's compensation practice is conducted by Mr. Balk and three 
other attorneys, with the firm's specialty being occupational 
disease eases. Mr. Balk, like Mr. Parks" was asked about his 
firm's practices in Workmen's Compensation areas known to be 
subjected to abuses. He was first queried about his firm's practi<le 
relative to alleging neuropsychiatric injury in compensation cases: 
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Q. Now, Mr. Balk, would you explain for me the· 
circumstances under which your clients are sent for 
neuropsychiatric evaluation? 

A. Our clients are sent for neuropsychiatric 
evaluations in several different ways. In the first 
place, if a man comes in with a head injury, we send 
him initially to a neuropsychiatrist. That's the man 
we think of i=ediately. . 

If a man comes in with a serious injury, like an 
amputation or something of that nature, and he g~ves 
us complaints of nervousness and the fact that he's 
ashamed to go out, generally his wife comes along 
with him and she fills in some of the information that 
he refuses to go dancing, that he shuts himself up, 
he doesn't have anything to do with the children, we 
recognize that as a neuropsychiatric problem. . 

The additional way is when we send a man to a 
regnlar orthopedist or to an internist, a heartcattack 
case, and we get back a report from the doctor that 
this man should be seen by a neuropsY{lhiatrist, in 
which case we send him to a neuropsychiatrist. 

One other way, as long as I am, if we get the 
hospital record, which we generally do, and we see in 
the hospital record there is a diagnosis of a possible 
disc injury or radiculitis, then we feel it's a neuro­
logical problem and the man is entitled to be exam­
ined by a neurological. 

Q. I take it if a client came in with a low-back 
strain or fingertip amputation, you wouldn't send 
him directly to to neuropsychiatric physician? 

A. No, sir, never. 

Mr. Balk then told of his firm's practice relati'Ve to heat treat­
ments for clients and explained how the extent of treatment can 
be an influence in increasing the amount of a Workmen's Oom­
pensation award: 

Q. Now, can you tell me the circumstances, Mr. 
Balk, under which your clients might receive heat 
treatment? 

A. Well, to the best of my knowledge, again speak­
ing from my e:l(perience in the orthopedic field, but I . 
have spOKen to my associates, we have never had a 
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client who had heat treatments. They may have had 
it while they're in the hospital, but once out of the 
hospital we have never had a client who had heat 
treatments. 

Q. And certainly you have never directed a client 
to a doctor for heat treatment? -

A. N'ever. 

Q. Have you nevertheless, though, in your expedc 

ence found that a judge of compensation would be in­
fi'!kcncedin awarding disability, or, rather, let's put 
it this way, one of the factors that he would consider 
in an award of disability is the number of heat treat­
ments the patient has received? 

A. Well, not only the number of heat treatments, 
treatment. ' The judges do consider treatment as an 
element in their eriteria and the absence of treatment 
-as an element ill their criteria for evaluating dis­
ability. That is true. 

When shown examples of letters, marked as exhibits, from a 
New JBrsey law :firm to its clients listing the injury complaints of 
the clients, Mr. Balk agreed there was a dang'er that this' practice­
mightlMd to the clients' relying more on what their attorney 
has put on paper rather than on what the' client actually feels in 
the way of pain or-other ailments. ,Balkacknowledged that he was 
aware ,of the abusive practice of some attorneys ,in alleging in 
Workmen's Compensation cases involving occupational diseases a 
long string of injuries arising out of the same employment. He 
testilled that his firm does not engage in this practice as a rule. 
One exception, he said, was when the statute ,of limitations was 
about to expire. Tn those instances, he will make multiple allega­
tions but any allegation not supported by subsequent rnedi0al ex­
aminationis'dropped from the claim petition. , 

He was emphatic, however, in stating that his firm nevef' would 
automaticaHYallege, on'its own and without a supportive medical 
examination and/or medical data, injury to I'l-reasof the bo'dy. He 
testilled as follows: 

A. So, when, a mlm comes' in and tells me he's 
worked in the chromate industry as a :filter press 
'operator or inthe ro'astin'g department for ten, :fifteen 
years and he shows'methat he?s got the perforated 
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septum, and he tells me that his throat is sore all the 
time, and he tells me that his chest is sore and he 
coughs, I believe him because I know this is par for 
the course, and we'll include a claim for nasal perfora­
tion, for nose and throat and for the chest. That's 
about it. 

Q. You wouldn't presurne any other disabilities, 
would you? 

A. No, sir; no, sir. 

Q. You wouldn't add eyes and hearing and nervous 
systern? 

A. No, sir. 

Q. And would it be fair to state tha·t if you were 
to allege a hearing loss or irnpairrnent" of the eyes, i1n­
pairrnent to the eyes or to the nervous systern, that 
you would have had an exarnination by an internist or 
an EENT rnan? 

A. Absolutely, unless it was such a clearcut thing 
where the man comes in we order a hospital record 
and we see that he was treated in the hospital for 
chemical burns of the eye and that he was discharged 
with a severe conjunctivitis. I mBan, the proof is right 
there. But otherwise we have him examined first. 

It's very important sometimes in order to process 
a case properly that we have additional information 
before we send a man to the doctor, and that's the 
reason why we sometimes file a petition before we 
have him examined by Dr. Lieb, for example, by some 
of the doctors, Dr. Berney, because without certain 
information the doctor's examination would really be 
valueless. We have to provide him. 

We will get back a letter by Dr. Lieb, "I don't 
have enough information. What was the name of the 
chemical?" The people sometimes have bizarre ideas 
of what they were exposed to. 

Q. Yes. 
A. I had a man came in and claimed that he was 

exposed to asbestosis, to asbestos, and by the time 
we really found out what it was really all about, he 
never had been exposed to asbestos. He was exposed 
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to a cellulous product that was used as a substitute for 
asbestos. 

So, you cannot rely on the petitioner all the time 
and you have to get information, and you cannot get 
that information until you file your petition. 

Q. If I understand you c01-rectly, even in those 
cases which you think may be obvio~,s, you still might 
have an internist's examination? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. To pin it down? 
A. That's correct. 

Further testimony was given by Mr. Balk to the effect that he 
would never indulge in the practice, detailed in correspondence 
and claim petitions, marked as exbibits, wherein aNew Jersey law 
firm continued to allege an additional multiple allegation of a 
hearing loss even after the examining' physician found no appreci­
able hearing loss. The questioning of Mr. Balk on this matter by 
Special Counsel Ronald S. Diana concluded as follows: 

Q. Do you think that this correspondence, these 
claim petitions that we have shown you, is an example 
of the abuse that I have been describing concerning 
the multiple allegation 0 f unfounded claims in occupa­
tional diseases? 

A. Mr. Diana, I beg to be excused from character­
izing it, I will say that I would never do such a thing. 
I don't think-I don't think that these petitions should 
be filed in this way; that they should be handled in 
this way. 

Q. All right. Thank you, Mr. Balk. I'll 1no~e on 
to another subject. 

One of the Commission's concerns was tha.t the cost· of extra 
medical examinations prompted by unwarranted alleg'ations of 
multiple injuries in occupational disease cases was a factor in 
increasing the cost of Workmen's Compensation insurance cover­
age. Mr. Balk testified as to the costs involved in extra medical 
examinations and as to one way the abuse of unwarranted allega­
tions of injury might be impeded. The testiplOny makes reference 
to Exhibit C-22, a claim petition in which a New Jersey law firm 
alleges partial· permanent disability to chest, lungs, respiratory 
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system, internal organs, heart, nervous system, nose, throat, hear­
ing and complications arising therefrom. Mr. Balk testified as 
follows: 

Q. Mr. Balk I wmtld like to refet· you again to 
Exhibit C-22. 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And considering the nahwe of the i,npa'irments 
described in Paragraph 12, how many diffet'ent ex­
aminations would the respondent have to incur the 
cost of? 

A. Knowing how the respondents prepare for these 
things, they would have to have at least three and 
possibly fonr doctors. They would have to . have a 
chest man. They might have an internist who wonld 
do just the chest and the heart, but I myself, if I had 
a case like this, might probably come in with two 
internists, one who specialized in lung disease and one 
who specialized in cardiovascular disease. They'd 
need a neuropsychiatrist; they'd need an ear, nose 
and throat man or-well, that would be about it. They 
would need at least three, possibly four doctors. 

Q. Do YOt, know what the charge wonld be in the 
Newark area for such an examination by respondents' 
doctors? 

A. Only by reputation, so to speak. I understand 
some of the doctors, respondents' doctors, the in­
ternists, charge $100 and some charge $125, exclusive 
of any special tests that thElY might do. I think thEl 
orthoPEldists charge somewhat less, and the ear, nose 
and throat man would probably charge around $75; 
to $75. 

Q. 80 we are sometvhere in the neighborhood of 
$300 worth of medical examinations--

A. That's correct. 

Q. -that the respondent wattld have to incur the 
cost of as a resnlt of those allegations? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. Now, Mr .. Balk, I presnme that in YOt,r experi­
ence in the compensation conrts yon have had occasion 
to observe the marmer in which these cases involving 
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multiple allegations of disability are handled by re­
spondents at the settlement level. Now, is it your 
opinion that they're too quick to settle some of these 
cases, the respondents? 

A. That is my impression. As a matter of fact, I 
have gone on record with some of the respondents 
that I thought that if they would sit back on their 
haunches and fight some of these, that it wouldn't be 
necessary for them to make some of the complaints 
that they do make. 

Q. Yes. 
A. In other words, they're bearing-some of this 

trouble they're responsible for themselves. 

Q. SO that those petitioners' attorneys who might 
be prone to abuse the system through these multiple 
disability allegations might, YOi! feel, be discouraged 
from so doing if the respondents were going to make 
a fight of it. 

A. There's no question about it. That goes for 
some of these cases in which you have multiple peti­
tions filed, also. 

Like Mr. Parks, Mr. Balk was asked to give suggestions for 
possible ways to cure some of the ills of the Workmen's Com­
pensation system. He was first asked for his opinion of the caliber 
of present Judges of Compensation: 

Q. Mr. Balk, I would like to now move to another 
subject. the subject being judges of compensation. I 
would like to ask your opinion as to what percentage 
of the judges you feel are well qualified; what per­
centage you feel are qualified; what percentage you 
feel are not qualified. 

A. Well, Mr. Diana, it's a rough kind of opinion 
I'll have to give you. I believe I've appeared before 
every judge in the state except the two new ones who 
were just-one of the new ones who was just ap­
pointed. I did appear before the other one. But some 
of them, of course, I have appeared before to a much 
greater extent than others. 

I would say that there are five judges whom I 
consider erudite. I mean, you can really sit down and 
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discuss the law and the philosophy and they 'can' try 
a ease. Another five, I think, are quite well q\:uiliified. 
I would say roughly ten of them are average,and the 
balance, I don't know how many there are, I think I 
heard you mention thirty or somewhere. ' 

Q. Thirty or thirty-five. I'm not s"re. ' , 
A. Well, I would say that twenty of them rang~ 

from excellent to qualified and the balance are ,belo',;' 
average. There are some of them that I shudder wh~n 
I think that I might have to try a complicated cancer 
case before. And, as a matter of fact, very often I,'get 
into a situation lilre that andl work very hard to settle 
a case rather than run the gauntlet of getting a poor 
trial. 

Mr. Balk also was emphatic in calling for better screening of 
Workmen's Compensation judicial appointees as a way ofimprov­
ing the caliber of the Compensation Bench: 

, Q. Do yot, think that the caliber ot judges ot COTl!­
pen;~ation could be improved it they WC1"e screened 
by sonte responsible Bar Association 'committee? ' , 

A. Very definitely. I mean, Matty Parks mentioned 
:his experience when he was chairman. When I 'Was 
chairman I tried to--

Q. Chairman at the Workmen's Compepsation 
Section? ' 

A. Chairman of the Workmen's Compensation of 
the State Bar Association. 

I tried to get something like that going, and quite 
recently we actually at our meeting of the State Bar, 
the amiual meeting of the State Bar, passed a resolu­
tion to the effect that we felt that the 'Workmen's 
Compensation Section should be considered in' the 
appointment of workman's compensation' judges,­
I'm paraphrasing it-not to have the power to select 
them or to reject them, but to give our opinion as to 
their qualifications. ' 

Now, you know the way the State Bar works. W~ 
cannot take any unilateral action-a section cannot 
take unilateral action. We had to clearthat through 
the trustees of the State Bar. I'm sure Mr. Bertini 
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knows how it works. And we snbmitted this resolntion 
to them and we got back a reqnest from the trnstees, 
wonld ·we consider withdrawing the resolution. We 
were going to present this to the (ioor, because we 
have the right to present it to the (ioor. We got back 
a request from them, would we withdraw it on the 
representation of the trustees that they were in con' 
tact with the executive branch and that the under­
standing was that these appointments would be 
submitted to the State Bar and that we would have a 
chance to give our opinion. But right after that two 
judges were appointed, and I have nothing against 
either one of them, but the point is that we never got 
a chance to give our opinion as to whether we felt 
they were qualified or not. They just ignored us. 

Q. I may naively assume, per'haps, that after these 
hearings are completeel the recommenelation for 
screening may be given mO're weight. 

A. I should hope so. I think it's important for 
everybody. It's important for everybody. 

One of this witness's suggestions for enhancing the 'W orkmen 's 
Compensation Judiciary and its operations was to have those 
Judges of Compensation who preside over actual adversary trials 
placed in the judicial branch of government and be tr.eate.d like 
judges of the regular state courts: . ... . . 

Q. What elo you think abo·ut the suggestion that the 
juelges of compensation shoulel report to sorne au­
thority other than the elirector of the elivision? 

A. Well, you know, I've been involved in· what you 
might call the politics of workman's compensation 
for many, many years, and this is another one of my 
pet ideas. In fact, I think two years ago you will find 
I wrote a letter to the Law Journal in which I sum­
marized, really, what the duties of a judge of com­
pensation were and what a good judge of compensa­
tion was called upon to' do, and I recommended that 
they be made part of the judicial system, taken out 
of the Workman's Compensation Division altog'ether, 
and I've recommended that to the Governor's Study 
Commission, that the judicial-that part of work­
man's compensation which involves adversary trials 
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and the function of a judge as a judicial officer be 
taken out altogether and placed in the jUdiciary. 
That's my recommendation. I think it would be .a 
wonderful thing. But if you're going to do that, then 
you really have to treat them as judges. You've got 
to give them a salary which is commensurate and give 
them the emoluments that go with it-secretaries, and 
sergeants-at-arms so they can feel that they're judges 
-and in that way we can help to attract able and 
qualified men who will really be capable of performing 
the job. 

Workman's compensation is a very, very vital­
I personally think it's the most important court. 
I may be a little bit jealous of it because I make 
my living at it, but I personally think it's the most 
important court in the state. More people get their 
knowledge about the function of state government 
through workman's compensation than in any other 
branch of our government. And as you have pointed 
out, w€ payout an awful lot of money, and I think 
we should have very, very able men, and I don't think 
anybody has ever addressed himself to the problem 
of getting able, qualified men. 

The Commission was deeply concerned by reports that re­
spondent insurance companies often were slow in starting payment 
of temporary disability benefits to injured workers. Mr. Balk 
indicated in response to questions by Commissioner Thomas R. 
Farley that this abuse was quite commQn: 

Q. Mr. ParTes testified a little bit earlier on the 
point of temporary disability payments someti,nes· 
being neglected or caught in a bureaucratic mixup. 
Could you augment that at all, or have you run into 
that? 

A. All I can tell you is, it's true. Mr. Farley, I can 
send you documentation, letters of a man who had his 
foot amputated. Now, I'm not talking about a man 
who claimed he had a back injury and then decides 
he's not going to work or take it easy. Here's a man 
in July had his foot amputated and in January he gets 
a letter from the insurance company that they're 
denying liability, and this is another problem you 
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face; the illiteracy and the naivety of some of your 
petitioners. This man from July until January sat 
at home waiting to hear from the insurance company 
because an adjuster had called him up and told him 
that they were working on it. In fact, they had come 
to the hospital and taken a statement from him. In 
January they first wTote him a letter that they're 
denying liability. This man did not receive one single 
penny, not even from the state, and the first thing I did 
when he came to me, he was told finally by-he went 
to his counsellor at rehabilitation, who had fitted him 
with the prosthesis. He said, "Well, why don't you 
go see a la;wyer~" So, he went to a local lawyer in 
Paterson and he referred him to me. 

The first thing I did, I called the TDB Division in 
Trenton. I said, why hasn't this man been getting tem­
porary disability benefits from the state, because 
they're supposed to pick up. If the insurance carrier 
or the employer denies liability, the state is supposed 
to step in under their right of subrogation. They said, 
"Well, we can't do it unless the claim petition is 
filed. " 

I said, "Well, why wasn't the man told, at least, 
to go ahead and file ~" Well, of course they didn't 
have an answer. 

So, I went ahead and filed a claim petition for him 
and then I filed an affidavit guaranteeing reimburse­
ment, and in March, for the first time, he got a check 
from the state picking up all his temporary disability 
back to July. But in the meantime he had had to give 
up his apal"tment, he had moved in with his son, and 
that was it. 

Now, there are things like this happening all the 
time. We have cases. I had a man come into my office 
on a crutch with his leg in a walking cast. He had 
been out of the hospital for five weeks and he still 
hadn't gotten a penny of temporary disability from 
the carrier, although he had been taken right from the 
job to the hospital to have the cast put on, and this 
was right before Christmas and I called up the carrier. 
I said, "vVhy hasn't this man gotten his money~" 
Well, they didn't know. The investigator hadn't 
reported in. 
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I said-well, I told the man, "Here's what you do." 
I gave him a twenty dollar hill. I said, "Tomorrow 
morning you take your wife and the kids and you go 
up to that insurance company and you sit there, and 
when they ask you what you're doing there, you tell 
them that you're waiting for your temporary dis­
ability benefits and tell them to call me." 

Well, he went up there. He did just as I told him. 
The call came through and I said, "The man is going 
to sit there until he gets some money. It's before 
Ohristmas. " I said, " You've been waiting long 
enough." And as it happened, they did give him his 
money. 

Not only that, I said, "In order to make up your 
neglect, I think you ought to pay him at least four 
or eight weeks in advance," and they gave him four 
weeks in advance so he had a decent Ohristmas. This 
happens. 

Q. You're not talking about a similar instance, 
now. Is it much more prevalent than that? 

A. It's prevalent; it's prevalent. If we go through 
our files, we can show you any number of cases. 

Now, pleas'e, Mr. Farley and gentlemen, I'm not 
saying this is the policy of the insurance carrier or 
that it's policy of a self-insured, but it is neglect on 
somebody's part; a file gets misplaced and nobody 
gets around to it; an investigator dawdles about turn­
ing in his report, and it happens, it happens. 

Q. In concept, shouldn't the temporary disability 
payrnent have the same priority as a paycheclc? 

A. It should, absolutely. I think I would recom­
mend that it be made mandatory with penalties at­
tached that if a man is taken off the job to a hospital, 
or even if he's sent home sick, that there be a rebutable 
presumption, rebutable, I'm not saying mandatory, 
although Mr. Parks mentioned this gentleman from 
Oregon. In Oregon it's mandatory and even that they 
pay temporary, and if it turns out later on that they're 
not responsible, they don't get their money back. But 
I would say that there be a rebutable presumption 
that if a man is taken off the job to a hospital or a 
doctor, that there's a rebutable presumption that it's 
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work related, and the minnte that week is up he gets 
his temporary disability check just the way he would 
have gotteu his paycheck, aud that they keep paying 
him until-unless they deny liability or something else 
turns up. But that man should get his temporary 
disability, because as Dean Larsen pointed out when 
he appeared before the Ozzard Committee, many of 
these compensation claims, the filing of compensation 
claims have their genesis in the fact that the man did 
not get temporary disability benefits and he went 
behind the 8 ball and then he's looking around for 
a way to become whole again. Most of the people live 
up to their salaries; they have mortgages; they have 
payments on their cars; payments for their ap­
pliances. If they're without a paycheck for two or 
three or four weeks, they're in trouble and they never 
catch up, and then they look around for ways to get 
even, and this is what happens; they file a claim. 

CHRISTMAS GIFTS 

Before having the two aforementioned Judges of Compensation 
testify as . expert witnesses, the Commission heard testimony 
relative to the practice, despite state regulations to the contrary, 
of the offer of cash gifts by certain petitioners attorneys and 
doctors and the receipt of those gifts by personnel in the W ork­
men's Cgmpensation Offices in Newark at Christmas·time.Charles 
E. Waldron, Special Investigator for the State Commission of 
Investigation, testified that the size and frequency of the .cash gifts 
were determined by himself and other members of the· Commis­
sion's staff in interviews of Division personnel who included court 
i1ttendants, judges' seoretaries, investigators and assignment 
clerks. The interviews were recorded in statements signed and 
sworn to by the various personnel. Waldron testified as to the 
following facts relative to gift giving: 

• During the Christmas seasons of 1970 and 1971, 
there were between 18 and 20 petitioners attorneys 
who gave cash gifts to Workmen's Compensation 
Division personnel in Newark. In 1972, a time when 
the Commission's investigation was known to be in 
full swing, the number of gift-giving petitioners 
attorneys during the Yule season was 12. 
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• For Christmas 1970 and 1971, some six petitioners 
doctors gave cash gratuities to Workmen's Compensa­
tion personnel in Newark. Only one did so in 1972. 

• For :1970 and 1971, the total amonnt of cash gifts 
given to each employee ranged from $100 to $500. 
For 1972, that range was $25 to $200. 

• One law firm was in the habit of giving $50 to $60 
to each employee at Christmas time. The next highest 
amount by any firm on a per-gift basis was $25 to $30. 
The $50 to $60 gifts were being given to judges' 
secretaries and assignment clerks. 

• One court attendant tried to rationalize his accept­
ance of case gifts by the contention that he performed 
services above and beyond his regular duties. 

TESTIMONY OF JUDGE STANLEY LEVINE 

The first of the two Judges of Compensation to be called as 
expert witnesses was Judge Stanley Levine, the Supervising Judge 
of the Workmen's Compensation Courts in Elizabeth. Judge Levine 
was a Workmen's Compensation referee for one and a half years 
prior to becoming a judge 12 years ago. He served additionally 
as Supervising Judge of the Compensation Courts in Newark, 
Morristown and Paterson. 

The practice of gift giving at Christmas time was considered 
by the S.C.I. to be a symptom of the pel'vasive, clubhouse atmos­
phere which has existed in the Workmen's Compensation system. 
Indeed, so pervasive has been that atmosphere that some attorneys 
and doctors felt no inhibition against at least attempting to effect 
delivery of gifts to some judges before whom they regularly were 
appearing. Judge Levine told of an instance where he was offered 
a gift but discouraged the practice by promptly returning the gift 
to the donor: 

Q. And while yon were snpervising jndge in 
Newark was there an occasion when yon were offered 
a Christmas gift by a practitioner of compensation? 

A. No, sir, never, not a practitioner. 

Q. How abont a doctor? 
A. Once by a doctor. It was several days before 

Ohristmas, a gift package containing what, to the 
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best of my recollection, were three bottles of liquor 
was delivered to my house, and I operied it, saw what 
it was and who it was from. It was delivered 
physically, manually, within twenty minutes back to 
the sender's or donor's home; 

Q. You ret'Lwned the gift? 
A. Oh, yes. I had my next-door neighbor go with 

me, who was then a guidan0e counsellor in the school 
system. While I waited in the driveway, he brought 
the package into the house. 

Q. This is a doctor who appeared in compensation 
cO'Ltrt as a petitioner's evaluating physician; is that 
correct? 

A. Yes sir. 

Q. And he would have appeared before you and 
there would have been occasion for you to assess the 
amount of his lnedical fees? 

A. Oh, yes, quite regularly. 

Another symptom of the pervasive atmosphere in the Workmen's 
Compensation Courts was the reported practice of the buying of 
lunches of some judges by those professionals who were appearing 
I'egularly before those judges. Judge Levine told of his lunch time 
practice and of his opinion of the practice of purchasing the lunches 
of judges: 

Q. Judge Levine, have you ever had your lunch 
bought and paid for by any practitioner of compensa­
tion? 

A. Never. 

Q. And what is ymtr practice concerning lunch? 
A. Well, I don't necessarily recommend it to my 

colleagues or anyone else, but I generally bring lunch 
inside, a couple of thermos bottles, and I generally 
take out my newspaper at lunchtime and relax and 
eat in chambers. 

Q. And how would you view the practice of the 
regular purchase of lunch for a judge by practitioners 
at compensation? 

A. Well, I think it's unsupportable and unconscion­
able. 
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JudgeLevine was also critical, like the attorneys who preceded 
him, of the lack of a 'sufficient screening process in the selection 
of Judges of Compensation, voiced reservations as to the qualifica­
tions of some of the present judges, and urged the salaries of 
judges, now at $29,500 per year, be raised to the equal of those of 
County District Court Judge ($34,000 per year) : 

Q. Judge Levine, in your observation, how are 
judges of compensation appointed? 

A. Well, I can only speak for myself except from 
the general impression one gets that politics does 
enter into it. If you want to know how I received 
my appointment, I could tell you. 

Q. Well, how did yot~ receive your appointment? 
A. At the time I was serving my law clerkship in 

Trenton I was commuting from Newark to Trenton, 
and at the time Judge Franklin, nOw the county court 
judge in Bergen County, was then, I think, deputy 
attorney general assigned to the Division of Work­
men's Compensation, he later became director of the 
division, and we got to know each other somewhat in 
the commuting end of it, and one time I received a 
phone call from his offi(Je asking me if I cared to " 
join the division, and that was it. 

Q . . But I take it that there is no screening process 
by the Bar Association ot other agency concerning. . 
the employment ot j1,dges ot compenscdion? . 

A. There was none then and, to my knowledge, 
there is none now. At least, I'm not aware of it. 

Q. SO that the recommendations are more or less 
by word ot mouth to the appointing power? 

A. I would say so, yes. 

Q. What 1 would like to ask you now, Judge 
Levine, is it you could give me your evautation on a 
percentage basis, without mentioning names, as to the 
qualifications ot the present sitting judges of cOJn­
pensation. Specifically, would you give me your esti­
mate ot what percentage you believe to be well 
qualified, what percentage you believe to be qualified 
and what percentage you believe to be wnqualified? 

A. Well, it's difficult for us to pass a comment in 
general, but using that American Bar Association 
standard, I think--. 
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".Q .. yes. 
·,A. ,.-of exceptionally well qualified,qualified, et 

cetera, I suppose I would say that approximately 1.0 
to 2.0% are exceptionally ,well qualified; I'd say 
another 2.00/0 are well qualified and say most of the. 
rest are qualified, and I suppose there are a few who 
I would, if I had to pass judgment, say that were not 
ful~yqualified . 

. Q, Well, when you, appeared before the Commis­
sion in private session, you gave me your opinion that 
20% of the sitting judges were unqualified. Is that 
still your view? 
·A. Well, perhaps it's a bit high, but I would say 

at least 1.0%. . 

Q/At'leastl0%? . 
:A. In my opinion . 
. : A, 'And if I may make one last comment, and thiil' 
may be in the area of enlightened self-inter·est. You 
commented upon judges earlier. I would urge that 
maider to attract a.nd retain the best possible talent 
for the Division, that salaries should be upgraded 
very considerable and at least on a level with the 
county district court. I might note that the Federal 
Gqvernment has taken account of this. Its category 
of administrative judges get $36,.0.0.0 a year, which 
happens to be 9.0% of the Federal District Court 
salary .. But, so much for suggestions from me. 

The .,Qvet'whelming majority (Judge Levine placed it, at 9.0 to 
95 percent )..0£ "IN orkmen's Compensation cases are settled at the 
pre-trial leevef in the Compensation Courts. These cases are re­
ferred toa~ ,"streamliners" in Northern and Central New Jersey 
and "put throughs" in Southern New Jersey. In these cases, the 
only problem to be ironed out is to compromise on anaward figure 
in light of the competing medical evalmvtions of disabilities, always 
on the high; side for t\1e peti iioner's doctor and always on the low 
side for the respondent's doctor. Judge Levine testified about the 
"strealllliner" process: 

Q. Now, Judge Levine, I would like you to explain 
for ·the· record what is commonly ref erred to as a 
streamliner. Would you' give me your definition of 
that? 
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A. Well, it's a term used for a practice whereby 
before actual trial, or it's essentially a pretrial confer­
ence in which the attorneys on both sides, petitioner's 
and respondent's, are brought into the judge's cham­
bers. They are asked to submit their medical reports. 
Speaking for myself, I invariably, with very few ex­
ceptions, have the petitioner brought into chambers 
where I ask certain questions, essentially background, 
complaints, number of treatments, to determine to 
some extent, at least, credibility and the like, and then 
a suggestion is made as to the value of the case, and 
if the attorneys agree, then this procedure is then 
reflected in a formal judgment on a stenographic 
record in the court. 

Q. Now, these streamliners, then, we are talking 
about a,'e formal petitions wherein the amount of 
disability is agreed to, any contest over medical bills 
is agreed to beforehand, so that your basic function 
as a judge in those cirm,mstances is to malce a de­
termination if the agreed percentage of disability is a 
fair one with respect to the petitioner and to evaluate, 
if possible, his credibility as to his complaints? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And apropos of that, the parties convene in your 
chambers where you have evaluated the medical "e­
ports of both the petitioner's and respondent's 
doctors; you ask the petitioner some questions in an 
effort to determine his credibility concerning his 
present complaints. By the way, if he had no present 
complaints, there would be no basis to award him any 
permanent disability, would there? 

A. Except for cosmetic defects, scarring and things 
of that nature. 

Q. Yes. And then tollo"ving this, this process or 
agreement, if yo" will, is solemnified in open court? 

A. True. 

Q. How long do these processes generally take, in 
your experience? 

A. Well, it could vary from five minutes for a very 
simple matter to conferences as long as one or two 
hours in very difficult or serious ones. 
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Q. Yes. When YOM say it could be as little as five 
mintbtes, do you mean just the conference in your 
chambers? 

A. In chambers, yes. 

Q. And then maybe anothe,· five minutes~n open 
cOMrt? 

A. Five or ten minutes. 

Q. Five or ten minutes. In these-by the way, I 
don't think 1--

A. Excuse me. I might add,-I don't wish to 
interrupt. 

Q. Yes. 
A. The purpose of the stenographic recording is 

because by law the petitioner has the right to reopen 
his case within two years of the last payment of com­
pensation, and so there is a recorded testimony of his 
complaints and a record made on a comparative basis 
shonld the case be reopened. I think that's the 
principal reason for it. 

Q. Yes. In other words, after the matter has been 
discMssed informally in your chambers and there is 
agreement reached as to the percentage of disability, 
when it is recorded by the cOMrt reporter.@ 

A. Yes. 

Q. What would be the basis Mpon which the peti­
tioner cOMld reopen in two years? 

A. On the basis of an allegation that his disability 
has increased or worsened and the possibility that he 
might have medical treatment, surgery, the like. 

Q. Now, wOMld YOM say that the great percentage of 
formal cases are disposed of in the manner YOM jMSt 
described? 

A. Oh, yes, the overwhehuing percentage. I would 
say 90 to 95%. 

One point of inquiry in the Commission's investigation was the 
habit of one doctor, who had the largest practice in the State of 
orthopedic injury evaluations for petitioners in compensation 
cases, of omitting a diagnosis from his reports of his examina-
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tions. Judge Levine gave the following testimony relative to the 
value of diagnosis iri medical reports: 

Q. 80 the record is clear, I take it that what would 
happen is that the petitioner's doctor would hand in 
his report, which would include history and a list of 
the complaints and his evaluation of disability? 

A. His findings--

Q. His finding~? 
A. --and diagnosis, usually, and conclusions as 

to estimate of disability. 
Q. Yes. You say "diagnosis, t,suaUy." Is the 

diagnosis of an aid to a judge in arriving at a deter­
mination of disability? 

. A. I think it's most difficult to resolve a case with­
out knowing what the diagnosis in the situation 
happens to be, what the medical condition is~ 

Q. Well, isn't it not so that there is one doctor who 
invariably omits a diagnosis from his reports? .. 

A. It's been my experience that one doctor almost 
uniformly omits having a diagnosis of his own. He 
may quote a diagnosis from the hospital record··of 
treating doctor, hut it's been my experience that .his 
pwh diagnosis is generally absent. 

Q. Do you think that the absence of d'iagnosis in 
his reports was to create a rationale for him being 
called to testify? 

A. That's my impression. 

The Commission additionally was concerned with statistics, pre­
viously noted, which were supportive of allegations that the.Second 
Injury Fund, previously described, was being abusively ';sed by 
some petitioners attorneys. Judge Levine testified as follows 
about the fund: 

Q. In other words, it (the Second Injury Fund) 
was to enCOt,rage employers to take workers who had 
a pre-existing disability? 

A. Yes, the philosophy and rationale is that it en­
... j courage employers to hir·e disabled individuals, so 
·'that in case of a subsequent injury they would not' 

have to bear the total burden of a total disability 
' .. injury. 
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Q. Yes. That was the original, that was thehistol·­
ical purpose of the Fund? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And did they have a particular kind afdis., 
abled worker in mind? 

A. Well, I suppose classically they had in mind, of 
course, the variations and permutations and combina­
tions are endless, but somebody who lost a leg or arm 
in a non-work-related accident, or even work-related 
accident, and subsequently lost another major limb. 
Then that would make him eligible for total disability 
payments, that type of situation. 

Q. In recent years the application for Second In­
jury Fund, has it moved away from that pl<rpose as 
you stated it? 

A. I think more and more we are seeing applica­
tions for Second Injury Fund benefits from older 
workers who don't fit into this classic category, Many 
situations where they have been working for a 
foundry, let's say, for twenty or· thirty years,and 
rather extensive or serious pulmonary disability, were 
able to work until a certain period, maybe the plant 
moved out of the state or closed down or whatever the 
case might be, and at that point he might have 
acquired over the years a number of other disabilities 
and now alleges that as a result of his pulmonary dis­
ability and possibly hypertension, high blood pres" 
sure, ulcer or diabetes, things of that nature, he's now 
incapable of being employed. 

Q. Well, let me see if I can characterize what you 
have said in the form of a question. Is the Second 
Injury Fund being used to compensate disabilities 
which, in Y01<r opinion, are age related rather than 
employment related? 

A. I think there are attempts at so using it, yes. 

Q. SO that when this happens the Second Inju,·y 
Fund is really being used as a supplement to Social 
Security or pension, is it not? 

A. Quite often the application is for, I would say, 
that type of purpose. Many of these people are 
already on Social Security who have filed for Second 
Injury Fund benefits. . 
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Q. Now, in order to meet this problem, Judge 
Levine, do YOtt have any recommendations as to what 
can be done? 

A. I think it's easier to pinpoint the problem than 
to offer a solution. I think this is something that 
should come out of the legislative study, recommenda' 
tions of the director, things of that nature. 

Q. And I take it in this case it would be because it 
could very well be that you might have a sixty-five­
year-old individual who is perfectly capable of con­
tinued employment but for the disabling injury he has 
received at that age? 

A. True. You can't make a categorical, sweeping 
statement applying to all sixty-five-year-olds, or 
seventy-year-olds or fifty. Some are hail and hardy at 
age seventy and others are substantially disabled at 
age forty-five or fifty. So, each case has to be judged 
on its own merits. 

One of the most common injuries forming the basis of a W ork­
men's Compensation claim is low back sprain involving soft tissue 
injury where the subjective complaints of pain by the worker are 
the principal factors in evaluating the disability and where little 
or no lost time from work is involved. Judge Levine was of the 
opinion that awards in this area were really more for pain and 
suffering than for permanent disability and suggested a different 
mode of handling them: 

Q. And are these low-back cases, in your judgment, 
in many situations an example of a tort concept creep­
ing back into the application of the Workmen's Com­
pensation Act? 

A. I think for the relatively minor back strain case, 
and of course one could argue on a judgment value of . 
what is relatively minor, but given a little or no­
lost-time case with few treatments and complaints of 
pains and aches and that sort of thing, I think the tort 
concept has crept back. He's being paid to that extent 
for pain and suffering during the period that he has 
these pains. 

Q. Now, what do you find to be a basic distinction 
between the examina.tion report filed by a petitioner's 
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doctor in a low-back soft-tissue injury and the re­
spondent's doctor? 

A. Well, there are two. Aside from a natural 
disparity between partisan experts on opposite sides 
of the fence, I think the chief difference would be 
that the petitioner's doctor would give virtually total 
creden(le to the complaints of the petitioner, the sub­
jective complaints. 

Q. Subjective complaints, yes. 
A. vVhereas it is my impression that the .respond­

ent's doctor would generally rely largely, if not 
exclusively, on objective evidence of injury. 

Q. In your opinion, don't awards in these minor 
low"back cases where there is no lost time and rela­
tively few treatments really constitute awards for 
pain and suff ering.~ 

A. I would broadly agree with you, and I think it 
would really not be violative of the spirit or the intent 
of the Act if such cases were, generally spealring, not 
viewed within the category of permanent disability. I 
would enter only one caviat, and that is that where 
there is some lost time-two days, three days, a 
week-and presently the individual is not being com­
pensated for lost time under eight days, there is a 
waiting period up to seven days, as you know, I don't 
think the injured person, the injured workman ought 
to bear the burden of his lost wages for that work­
connected injury. So, in my opinion, he should receive 
at least his after-taxes salary or wage for the lost time 
that he had. 

Q. Well, let me see if I can paraphrase what you 
have told me, then. In your opinion, the inj"red 
worker isn't going to lose very much or society hasn't 
been damaged to any great extent if we eli,ninate tram 
the scheme of workmen's compensation recovery in 
minor low-back soft-tissue injury cases? 

A. I don't think it could be catastrophic to either 
society or to the individual himself providing this 
other suggestion. 

Q. Providing that any medical costs that he's in­
curred he's compensated for and lost time? 
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A .. Heshould be provided with necessary and com­
plete medical treatment and reimbursed for his lost 
time, yes. 

Among the most serious allegations sifted by the Commission in 
this investigation pertained to giving injured persons more heat 
tl'eatments than needed or going further and padding heat treat­
ment bills with phony treatment dates and charges. The incentive 
for overtreatment and/or fictitious treatment is, of course, to 
provide an ostensible basis for a higher compensation award than 
would be normally granted. As will be seen later in this report, a 
similarly strong incentive exists in: the negligence action field, since 
the medical bills or "specials" in those actions are used as a yard­
stick for settlement amounts. 

Judge Levine testified that the number of treatments can be a 
factor in increasing the amount awarded in Workmen's .compensa­
tion cases: 

Q. Now, as this system presently exists today, is 
one of the factors which influence your award or a 
judge's award in a low-back case the amount of heat 
treatment that the petitioner has received? 

A. Well, broadly speaking, you kno,w, the totality, 
all of the evidence that one takes into account in 
weighing the severity of an injury and the extent of 
disability, treatment becomes an important. factor. 
It's not a conclusive item because even that has to 
be--

Q. Evaluated? 
A. --evaluated within a context of whether the 

treatment was available in the plant and, you know, 
the difference between the heroes and the complainers 
and the like. But all things being equal, the numbe~· 
of treatments received will be an indication, at least, 
of the severity of the injury and the likelihood of 
permanent disability. 

Q. SO therefore, the nwmber of heat treatments is 
a factor which can influence the amo~!nt of award in a 
muscle'sprain case? 

A. Oh, yes, I would say so. 
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Another abuse which was brought to the Oommission'sattention 
involved. the proliferating practice of some law firms of making 
almost automatically allegations of neuropsychiatric injury, 
above and beyond the basic injury alleg'ed. The practice appeared 
to be most abusive when resorted to in relatively minor injury 
claims, especially low back sprain cases. Judge Levine testified as 
to this practice and possible I'emedial steps to halt it: 

Q. Now, I would like to have you explain for me, if 
yqjhwill, Judge Levin.e,the typical manner in which 
neurological overlays are alleged in these minor o,.tho­
pedic cases. 

A. Well, I assume you mean you are not referring 
to the fact that in a claim petition they alleged back 
sprain and neurological sequela, or are you 7 

Q.. Yes, I am. What is the petitioner saY'ing when 
he says that there is a neurological overlay? 
, ,A .. Well, he is saying, in effect, that he has some 
emotional or anxiety symptomatology as a sequ~la 
of the basically orthopedic accident, let us assume .. 

Q .. 1n other words, as a result of having strained hiB 
back, and I'm confining mYBelf again to the low-back 
Boft-tissue cases, he's ,saying as a result of having 
strained his back he's got some nervousness? 

A. Neurosis. 

Q , Some anxiety? 
A. Yes. In many cases that's what he is alleging. 

I might add, again, if we're talking about the rela­
tively minor back-strain case, again with quotation 
marks around "relatively minor," it would se8m to 
me that there is no necessity basically for the neuro­
logical claim and that an award for permanent dis­
ability for the basic orthopedic injury could be viewed 
as ,encompassing any associated anxiety or concern 
that the individual might have. But I don't want to 
leave the impression that there cannot be legitimate 
and oftentimes serious neurological injury or sequela 
as a result of a nonbasically neurological injury. 

Q. Oh, yes, I can well appreciate that in a serious 
case such as the one I saw in your courtroom the other 
day when the man's arm was caught in a roller,. I 
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could see myself in the courtroom several years after 
the event the neurological problem that that fellow 
had. 

A. He's got a permanent injury both ways, ortho-
pedic and neurologically, for the rest of his life. 

Q. No question about it, and I'm not a doctor. 
A. Neither am I. 

Q. Therefore it's fair to state, then, that there are 
some practitioners who are abusing the resort to 
neurological examination? 

A. I think so. 

Q. Now, Jttdge Levine, has it ever come to your: 
knowledge that there is again a pattern involving 
what I would consider to be minor low-back cases 
where the petitioner's attorney, especially one that is, 
you know, well versed in the field, would auto­
matically assert a neurological examination as 'well as 
an orthopedic? 

A. Yes, some law firms do it almost automatically. 
Some do not at all. . 

Q. I see. Then this impels the respondent's 
attorney to get two examinations, correct? 

A. Orthopedic and neurological. 

Q. And then there might be testimony in open 
court with respect to the neurologicals as well? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And again, all of this expense is being inputted 
into the rate structttre, ultimately; is that not so? 

A. Oh, yes, it would have to be. Somebody has to 
bear the expense. 

Q. And where this is almost done on an automatic 
basis, again without mentioning names, would you 
have any recommendation as to how this might be 
limited or certainly put into a perspective that is fair 
and reasonable to both petitioners and respondents? 

A. I would require, I think, or suggest that it might 
be required that the firm spell out with much more 
particular-with particularity and specificity the 
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reasons for its allegations of the other than basic 
injnry which was incurred. 

Q. 'What abotd this, Judge Levine: In the event 
that netwological was not a warranted allegation in a 
particular low-bacle case, would a cutting of a peti­
tioner's counsel fee act as a deterent? 

A. ,It might if it were uniformly applied by all 
jUdges. Where you don't have it uniformly applied, 
it loses its effectiveness. 

, Q. Would there be any possibility of letting the 
word go out that a neurological' that was culpably 
frivolous should involve some sanction? 

A. I think this would probably be a proper area for 
the director at his meetings with the judges of com­
pensation to make clear where he felt it to be an 
abuse of the basic practice and then appropriate 
response. 

The Commission's investigation was also concerned with another 
abusive practice whereby some attorneys make insincere and 
unwarranted allegations of multiple injnries in occupational 
disease cases. Judge Levine testified about the practice, the up­
ward effect of that practice on Workmen's Compensation case 
costs, and possible steps to stymie the practice: 

Q. Now, I would lilee to move to another subject, 
Judge Levine, and that is the subject of occupational 
disease. Are you familiar with the practice of the 
multiple allegation of disability arising out of an em­
ployment? 

A. Yes, sir, I am. 

Q. In other words, that would involve the allega­
tion of a disability involving the chest, lungs, nose, 
throat, hearing, heart, internal organs, and nervous 
system and complications arising therefrom? 

A. Everything but the kitchen sink. 

Q. "Everything but the leitchen sinle." Do you 
associate that practice with one particUlar law finn? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. And do you believe that in that case as a result 
of your experience those allegations are unwarranted 
and insincere? 
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A. Well, given the number of situations in which 
many of the allegations are resolved without any 
award for those alleged conditions, one must inevit­
ably come to the conclusion that they are done pro 
forma rather than after careful inV'estigation of each 
claim. 

Q. In other words, they're used as a settlement 
lever? 

A. I believe so. 

Q. And despite any lack of merit in those allega­
tions, the respondent would ,be required to incur the 
cost of the medical examination--

A. True. 

Q. --corresponding to the disability? 
A. Yes. 

Q. And those medical examinations that the re~ 
spondent must incur are costly, are they not? 

A. Well, we all know what medical costs are these ' 
",days. ' 

.,' , Q. They can be as mt~ch as $100 apiece? 
A. They can be, yes. 

Q. Do you think that perhaps one we,y to diminish 
that abuse-and I would take it you would consider 
it an abuse of the system to make these multiple alle­
gations without any foundation? 

A. Well, "abuse," of course, is a pejorative term; 
but I'll go along with it. 

Q. Do you think that one way to eliminate this 
a'buse might be to 1'equire examinations, medical 
examinations, to acco'Yitpany the claim petition? , 

A. I would say that my own approach to it would 
be this: If the basic disability were one in which there 
was a presumptive disability, let's say, an allegation 
of pulmonary disability, chronic bronchitis after 
exposure of many years in a foundry, I would say it 
would not or should not be necessary to submit a 
medical report along with the claim petition' at that 
time. But for other alleged injuries~eyes, ears, you 
name it-where it's not the basic allegation, then I 
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think quite possibly examinations should accompany, 
should be required by the petitioner before the 
respondent is forced to respond. 

A leading criticism of New Jersey's Workmen's Oompensati~n 
system has been that the very serious. injuries are insufficiently 
compensated. Judge Levine expressed his concern about this 
problem and offered a possible remedy for it. 

A. I would add one other comment, if I may. 

Q. Indeed. 
A. I think another area that could certainly stand 

some upgrading are the serious injury cases. One you 
mentioned of when you were in court the other day, 
the individual whose arm was useless. It wasn't 
amputated, but it was functionally useless. It seemed 
to me that situations such as that, amputation or 
seriously functionally-disabling injuries, should be 
paid at a rate equivalent to the total disability rate 
for the number of weeks for that injury. So if an 
accident, let's say, occurred in 1972 for an amputa­
tion of an arm, that individual would be able to 
receive 300 weeks at $101 a week, approximately 
$30,000, rather than 300 weeks at $40 per week total­
ing $12,000. 

Q. Which is the partial total rate, $40 a week.~ 
A. 40 is the maximum rate for permanent partial 

disability, and that's what they are presently being 
compensated for at the present time. 

TESTIMONY OF JUDGE ROGER KELLY 

Judge Kelly at the time of his appearance at the public hearings 
was Supervising Judge of the Workmen's Oompensation Oourts 
in Newark and had been so for three years. He has been a Judge 
of Compensation for 17 years and has a total of 25 years of expe­
rience in the Workmen's Oompensation system, including the 
private practice of law and employment by an insnrance company. 

As previously presented, the Commission's investigation con­
cerned itself with the practice of some petitioners attorneys and 
doctors giving sizeable cash gifts at Ohristmas time to employees 
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of the Workmen's Compensation Division. Judge Kelly testified 
as to the history of gift-giving in the Compensation Courts and 
expressed dismay that the cash gifts had reached such large 
proportions: 

Q. NOio, Judge, you were here this morning, were. 
you not, when Special Investigator Waldron testified 
concerning cash gifts to personnel of the btweau in 
Newark? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. Were YOtt surprised at the amount of cash gifts 
that hacd been received? 

A. Yes, I was. 

Q. Do you think that it was proper for those gifts 
to have been oD'ered and for the personnel to have 
received them, accepted them? 

A. Well, under the understanding that I had, the 
people were allowed to accept g-ifts. I don't think 
anybody ever discussed the amount of gifts, assuming 
that they would be reasonable amounts, which had 
been customary over the years, anywheres from 5 to 
10, $2'5 maximum. But I had no idea they were that 
large, but I didn't know anything about it. It's hard 
to look back and say if it was improper if the situa­
tion had never been discussed. 

Q. Well, it certainly would create the appearalltce 
of impropriety, WOtddn't it, when assigmnent clerks 
and secretaries were receiving gifts as high as $60 
from one attorney? 

A. Well, I think it would. 

Q. Is it only the amount that bothers you.p 

A. Well, to be perfectly frank, it didn't bother me 
that the secretaries received Christmas gifts because· 
I have no feeling that this is a bad thing in itself, 
it's only people who use it to make a bad thing. But 
my whole background favors the idea of joy at 
Christmastime, and in that sense I personally always 
try to give gifts to my secretary and see that the girls 
in the office do r,eceive small gifts from the staff. 

Q. Well, YOtt don't condone or approve of a prac­
tice whereby one employee can receive as much as 
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$400 or $500 in cash gifts at Christmastime, do you 
Judge? 

A. No, I don't. 

Q. Was there a tradition in the Division of W ork­
men's Compensation in Newark of gift-giving which 
goes back many years? 

A. It goes back all the years that I have been in the 
Division and in the years before when I didn't work 
in the Division. 

Q. I believe you told me that there was, in fact, a 
time when judges of compensation and others of the 
Division personnel, the bureau personnel, carried 
their Christmas gifts home by the carload? 

A. That's true. When I first came into the Division 
in 1955, that was the standard practice. And then 
when I say-I don't know about carload, but a truck­
load. Some people did take truckloads of gifts home, 
and this was changed subsequently. At the time the 
change went into effect the commissioner at that time 
expressed a view that he had no objection to some­
body receiving some liquor or cigars, but he couldn't 
see how any bottle of liquor or box of cigars could 
amount to a bribe of anybody in the department. But 
during the discussion that we had when we did take 
action to straighten out the problem, it was com­
monly arrived at, tacitly perhaps, but well under­
stood, that the action did not prohibit the girls from 
taking, accepting Christmas gifts. 

Q. When was that action taken.~ 
A. Well, I can't pinpoint it. It's somewhere in the 

late fifties or early sixties. Just exactly where, I 
can't say right at the moment. 

Q. You mean it was tacitly understood that the 
division personnel in Newark would be entitled to 
accept Christmas gifts despite the regulation of the 
Division to the contrary? 

A. Well, I didn't say Newark, and I don't think it's 
limited to Newark. It's general, all the offices, and it 
is my understanding that that is a fact, as you put it. 

Q. Whose responsi.bility do you think it would 
have been, Judge Kelly, to enforce the administra-
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tive rule which prohibits employees and officials of 
state agencies from accepting gifts and gratuities?' 

A. Well, all the authority comes from the commis­
sioner and then into the director's office. Ba,se~ on 
being so advised, any lesser official in charg(j should 
comply with the requirements that are give" to'tb.eW' 

Q. Well, in other words, you would have looked to 
the director of the Division for the enforcement of 
the rule against the giving of gifts? . 

A. That's very definite. If you don't mind, I wbuld 
like to comment on a point that was brought up this 
morning with Mr.Waldx·on. You said something 
about when this change takes place or was there a 
change in 1972, and there was, and you gave a reason 
which he thought perhaps was the reason. But I 
learned later that the commissioner took an entirely 
different· viewpoint and expressed a view that he 
wanted nobody to accept anything, and I advised the 
lawyers in the halls and the doctors and everybody 
else to not give anybody any presents, and I told the 
girls in the office not to aCBept any presents this year 
from outside people. 

Additional testimony was elicited from the Judge about attempts 
by petitioner's attorneys to give him gifts: ' 

Q. Well, am I correct in my understanding that 
there have been petitioners' attorneys who from time 
to time persist in offering you gifts? 

A. That has happened, but I don't accept them. 

Q. In fact, you have in fact returned some, haven't 
you? 

A. That's right. 

Q. And this practice of giving gifts to the bureau 
personnel, and, in fact, offering gifts to judges of 
compensation persists to this very day, doesn't it? 

A. I can't say that. I doubt it very much. I'm not 
aware of it. 

Q. Well, when was the last time a petitioner's 
attorney offered you a gift that you had to return? 

A.' The last incident I had was in 1969. . 
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, '. Q That was the last time? 
A. Right. 

The Judge was asked for an opllllOn on the qualifications of 
present Judges of Compensation and on how the process of selec­
tion of future judges could be improved. He testified as follows: 

Q. Now, I take it you are fa'miliar with the qualifi­
cations of all the judges 01 compensation in the Work­
men's Compensation Division, are you not? 

A. I can't say that I am because there have been 
new appointments in the last couple of years and 
some of them have not really come across my path 
too much to form any conclusion. 

Q. How many new appointments were therein the 
last two years? 

A. vVell-well, I would speculate, at least, four or 
so. I'm not sure. 

Q. Well, then, excluding those fo~"" which wo·uld 
leave us a balance of approximately thirty-one, how 
would you rate those of which you have an opinion as 
to whether they are well qualified, qualified or not 
qualified? Will you give me a percentage figu"e? 

A., Well, let's see. I'd say 20'}'o are well qualified; 
perhaps 40 to 50% are qualified, and then there's 
questionable degree of incompetency as to the balance. 

Q. In other words, the balance of 20 to SO'}'a in rela, 
tive deg"ees of incompetence? 

A. I would say that. 

Q. Is it fair to state that the appointments of judges 
of compensation has been based primarily on political 
considerations? 

A. I think so. 

Q. 'Would you personally favor the screening of 
applicants for the positional judge of compensat'ion 
by the Bar Association.p 

A. Most emphatically, yes. 

It was Judge Kelly's opinion, as it was the opinion of the pre­
vious witnesses, that the transfer of the Workmen's Compensation 
Courts to the Judicial Branch of government would be beneficial: 
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Q. Judge, do you have an opinion as to whether or 
not the supervision of the judges of compensation 
should come under the judiciary or should stay within 
the Division? 

A. Well, my own feeling, preferably, would be to be 
under the judiciary. But I don't know what the 
practical situation is in that regard. I think that 
would certainly raise the standard of operation con­
siderably and would take it ruway from being· torn 
politically each time a different group comes into 
power. 

Q. A different group to curry favor for their 
favored sons as an appointment? 

A. It isn't-we're dealing in workmen's compensa­
tion and we're dealing with the issue between labor 
and industry, and on one side you find that you're 
being charged with not doing enough for the injured 
workman and then, when there is a changeover, you're 
told that you're destroying the business climate by 
giving away too much, and you're in this constant 
conflict. We do not live a cloistered life as compensa­
tion jUdges. We're constantly under fire for one thing 
or' another. 

Q. Well, especially in Newark Y01,'re really in a 
fish bowl, aren't you? 

A. Well, it's a fish bowl. It's a tremendous opera­
tion there. I don't know whether you realize it or not 
but we have 25 to 30% of the entire work in the state 
right in Newark and we have plenty of cases. And, as 
a matter of fact, this past week the commissioner gave 
me authority to make some policy changes to counter­
act some of the difficulties we've been having. 

Like Judge Levine, Jndge Kelly has observed a growing practice 
of some petitioners attorneys to encourage elderly individuals to 
use the Second Injury Fund (sometimes referred to as the 2 
per cent fund) as a supplement to a pension or Social Security. 
He testified as follo'ws as to that practice and his suggestions for 
arresting it: 

Q. Now, Judge, I'm going to move on to another 
subject. When I spoke to you previously, you told 
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me that the Second Inju,-y Fund was" overplayed." 
Could you explain to me what you mean by that.W 

A. Well, I think there is a tendency for lawyers to 
encourage elderly people, with due respect to my­
self aud all others here who may be as old or older. 
But when they get about sixty-five aud they perhaps 
are tired of working, and maybe rightfully so, they 
look around for programs that will help them to 
survive. I know it's tough. I'm not minimizing the 
difficulties. But when they become eligible for Social 
Security, and if they can work it, they make a com­
pensation claim and then they try to qualify for bene­
fits under the 20/0 Fund, and to do this you need an 
accident or an occupational illness of some kind. 

Q. I don't suppose you would know whether they, 
meaning these people you describe, look around for 
the lawyer or the lawyer looks around for them, would 
you? 

A. I don't know the answer to that. All I know is I 
get-we get plenty of these cases. 

Q. Do you associate this practice, that is the appli­
cation for the Fund by elderly people, do you associate 
this practice with a particular law firm.W 

A. Well,I--

Q. I'm not going to ask you to name the firm, but I 
wondered if yoUr--

A. There is one law firm that does go in big on that, 
but I don't say it's the only firm. 

Q. Not the only one? 
A. Yes. 

Q. Then would it be fair to state in these cases 
u,e're talking abotd, the Second Inju,-y Fund cases, 
they',-e being used to cornpensate disabilities, which, 
in your opinion, are age related rather than employ­
ment related? 

A. I think in many cases the compensation case is a 
valid claim. The part of it that I think I distrust is the 
claim for benefits under the 2% Fund, because there's 
very few people at the age of sixty-five who cannot 
show preexisting conditions, particularly arteri-
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osclerotic heart disease, hypertension, and maybe a 
broken leg playing high school football and a few 
other things that happened through the years. 

Q. Well, do you think, then, that the resort to the 
Fund should be eliminated after age sixty-five? 

A. Well, I told you before that I thought there 
should be an ineligibility at age sixty-five; but after 
hearing Stanley Levine today and thinking about that 
occa·sional guy who is youthful and vigorous, I felt 
that maybe the idea should be to have a presumption 
that he's ineligible at sixty-five, but give him the 
opportunity to overcome that presumption. 

Q. Ptd the bt~rden on him in that circumstamce? 
A. Right. 

Judge Kelly was aware of the increasing resort to unwarranted 
multiple allegations of injury in some occupational disease claims 
and favored discouragement of the practice: 

Q. Now, Judge, are you also familiar with the 
practice of alleging multiple disabilities arising out of 
the same employment? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. And do you associate that practice with a 
particular law firm? 

A. Well, in the same sense that I answered the 
other question, not exclusively, but in the great 
majority of cases it is one firm. 

Q. And have you found that in these cases that we 
are describing these multiple allegations are unjusti­
fied? 

A. Well, the outcome is as was brought out here 
this morning; usually limited to a recovery of one 
phase. 

Q. And if the outcome is usually limited to re­
covery /01" only one disability, it would st~ggest there 
was no sincere belief in the validity of the others, 
wouldn't it? 

A. It certainly would suggest something about it 
that.shouldbe discouraged. 
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Q. That the practice should be discouraged? 
A. Right. 

Q. How do you think you could discourage that? 
A. Well, I've already instituted some changes in 

Newark on that. We have the policy there that when 
a mUltiplicity of claims is made like that, the respon­
dents do not have to order any examinations until 
after the pretrial conference when they see what the 
other side has. 

The abusive practice of some attorneys' almost invariably 
alleging neuropsychiatric injury in addition to the basic injury 
alleged has increased, according to Judge Kelly, who told of a 
step he has taken to try to curb this abuse: 

Q. Judge, now on to another subject area, and that 
is, specifically, the allegation of neuropsychiatric im­
pairment in low-back cases. Do you think that the 
alleging of neuropsychiatric impairment in low· back 
cases is being abused? 

A. Well, alleging is probably being abused in a 
sense that too many times, I think, petitioners' 
attorneys generally will try to force settlements by 
bringing in a claim for a. neurological if they don't 
get a break at the pretrial conference, if they don't 
get a favorable settlement. 

Q. Do you find that there is a practice among peti­
tioners' attorneys in these low-back cases to send their 
client automatically out for a neuropsychiatric 
evaluation, in other words, if it's low back, send him 
to Dr. So-and-so for neuropsychiat!'ic evaluation? 

A. W,ell, perhaps there is, although I don't know 
whether you understand or whether something 
shouldn't be talked about at this point in relation to 
these so-called neuropsychiatric examinations. There 
is an area of low-back sprain which involves radicu­
litis. Radicular references it's called. 

Q. What is that? You will have to explain that. 
A. Well, that means that there is some irritation of 

the nerve root in the spine. This causes pain to go 
down one of the extremities or both extremities. It 
still may not be an extremely serions condition, but it 
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still may exist. And there is a distinction here I want 
to make clear, if I possibly can. Nenropsychiatric is 
two spheres, representing two spheres of medicine, 
one is neurological, one is psychiatric. Now, if you're 
talking about the anxiety state, you're talking about 
the psychiatric reaction. But if you're talking about 
nerveroot irritation, you're talking about the neuro" 
logical involvement in the low back. Many of these 
cases have a bona nde area of neurological involve" 
ment in the low back. The only point that I would try 
to make is that the lawyer shouldn't decide to have the 
examination. The examination nenrologically should 
be made on only if the orthopedist recommends it, in 
other words, if the orthopedic examination indicates 
complaints suggestive of nenrological involvement of 
the low back, then he would make that type of recom­
mendation to have a neuropsychiatric examination. 

Q. Well, have you found evidence that petitioneTs' 
attoTneys aTe not going through the orthopedist but 
are making the determination and automatically send­
ing the client? 

A. r think they do, to a great extent make the 
determination themselves as to what examinations. 

Q. And you don't think that's proper? 
A. r don't think that's really the right thing to do. 

r think that the natnre of the injury should suggest 
one type of medicine and a doctor of that type should 
do the examining, and if he recommends any further 
examinations, then they should be follo.wed up. 

As previously noted, the Commission's investigation had as one 
facet the looking for ways which might possibly increase the use 
of the informal process for making compensation awards. Judge 
Kelly agreed on the importance of progress toward more use of the 
informal process and offered suggestions for accomplishing that 
end: 

Q. SO that there's been an increase in the resort to 
formal hearings? 

A., Right, right. 

Q. All right. Now, has this increase in the resort 
to formal hearings resulted in delay in the dispo­
sition of these cases.~ 
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A. Well, insofar as we have the capacity to hear 
the cases and there are whatever factors are in­
volved in getting cases ready, there would be some 
delay. The more cases we have, there's that much 
longer a period. 

Q. What I'm driving at is this, Judge: Obviously, 
if there was a greater resort to formal hearings, one 
could say just to create more .iudges yon will reduce 
the delay. But wouldn't another solution be to take 
some of these cases and have them heard at the in­
formallevel? 

A. I'm wholeheartedly in favor of that. I think a 
lot-almost all cases could go through an informal 
hearing as a preliminary step. 

Q. Would you recornmend any changes in the pres­
ent structure of the inforntal hearing as it now 
exists in order to accommodate these cases? 

A. Well, we don't have any structure; There is no 
law. 

Q. It's not covered by statute? 
A. There's nothing in the law about this informal 

hearing. 

Q. I understand. 
A. And I think it might be a good idea to draw up a 

statute relating specifically to informal hearings. 

Q. Where there wonld be an examination only by 
a state doctor? 

A. I don't say it would have to be by a state 
doctor. It could be, they could bring in their reports 
from treating doctors or examining doctors or any­
body they want who was capable of doing it. 

Q. Well, what would be your line, if you thought it 
throt<gh, and you may not have, what would be ym6r 
line of demarcation between a case heard on the in­
formal level and a case heard at the formal level? 
W ot<ld you send certain kinds to the informal? 

A. Well, I've thought of, say, a number of $1,000 as 
a number. One of the reasons there has to be some 
limitation, I think, in fairness to all of the parties, is 
there should be a firm record covering anything of a 
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serious nature so that all parties involved are pro­
tected in any future activities, such as e'ven a judge 
being criticized, or a company being asked to reopen 
a case and pay more money and things of that type. 

Q. Well, I think YOtb told me, Judge Kelly, the last 
time we met that you would favor a decrease in the 
number of compensation judges and a greater incen­
tive provided for capable young people to become 
referees. I understood you to meam, from that, there­
fore, that you would reduce the jurisdiction in the 
formal hearing and increase the jurisdiction in the 
informal hearing? 

A. Well, I don't mean solely that.' What I meant 
was a combination. You see, we really didn't discuss 
what I had in mind there. My feeling-is that there 
could be a combination of informal and pretrial con­
ference, not to make another step but to consolidate 
two steps; have an informal hearing, and if the situa­
tion isn't resolved, then right then and there to enter 
a pretrial order and send the case to trial, and this 
could be handled by a corps of referees. 

Q. Well, wouldn't you want to do something to 
encourage people to arrive at a settlernent in the in­
formallevel, otherwise the attorneys will simply take 
it up knoulvng that they're going to get 20% of the 
award? 

A. That's where perhaps the thousand-dollar 
figure would come in; that if they refused to accept a 
reasonable disposition, that they would be limited 
to a 5% {3ounsel fee. Now, let me point out that even 
at the present time there are some lawyers who bring 
formal hearings even on finger cases because they just 
don't want to be bothered with informal hearings, 
and they know they're only going to get a 5 % counsel 
fee, but they do that anyway. They absorb that and 
they prefer to do it that way. 
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CASH HOARDS AND ENTERTAINMENT 
EXPENSES 

As part of the Commission's investigation, the accounting staff 
examined the books and records of a number of doctors engaged 
in practice involving Workmen's Compensation cas,es. The pur­
pose of this phase of the investigation was to attempt to deter­
mine if there were patterns of expenditures which might con­
tribute to the" clubhous'e type atmosphere" pervading the W ork­
men's Compensation system. 

Julius M. Cayson, Jr., C.P.A., the Commission's Chief Account­
ant, was called as a witness to testify as to the facts determined 
by this phase of the investigation. Mr. Cayson had previously 
been qualiiied as an 'expert ,witness in the federal and state courts 
and before legislative committees. He described how the account­
ing staff conducted complete audits of the books and records of 
nine doctors, five of whom were doctors who examined petitioners 
in Workmen's Compensation cases and four of whom were en­
gaged primarily in work for respondent insurance companies. 

VERIFICATION DIFFICULTIES 

Mr. Cayson explained how the staff encountered difficulty in 
verifying the income of some of the doctors because of the failure 
of some insurance companies to iss'ue a certain federal Internal 
Revenue Service (I.R.S.) form: 

Q. Now, were there any major difficulties or im­
pediments which confronted the staff in preparing 
these examinations? 

A. Yes. Among others, and there were others, the 
staff discovered that we could not obtain a hundred 
per cent verification of the workmen's compensation 
income of the petitioners' doctors because some of the 
insurance companies did not provide what is com­
monly known as a Form 1099 relating to this category 
of disbursements. 

Q. Would you explain what a 1099 is, please? 
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A. I'd be glad to. A Fonu 1099 is similar to the 
commonly used Form W-2, only this is the form which 
is generally required when fees in excess of $600 are 
paid by a paying agent to physicians for services 
rendered. 

Q. Now, did the carriers explain why they did not 
provide the Form 1099? 

A. Yes, they did. They contended that the peti" 
tioners' examining physicians were not held em­
ployers within the meaning of the applicable Revenue 
Ruling TIR-1054, dated 11/17/70. I might add in 
passing that one major carrier even advised that they 
didn't even have a record of the checks issued to peti­
tioners' doctors. 

Q. Now, what was the basis, then, upon which the 
Commission and the accounting staff had for deter­
mining that insurance companies should have re­
ported all payments to doctors in excess of $600 on 
Form 1099? 

A. Well, Mr. Diana and Commissioners, we have on 
our staff four accountants with a combined one 
hundred ten years of experience with the Internal 
Revenue Service. Our reading, our collective reading 
of the statutes, leads us to believe that the insur­
ance eompanies are responsible, and we have so in­
quired to Washington, D.C., for a ruling on the matter 
and we have not received that reply as yet. But our 
collective interpretations lead us to believe that they 
were responsible for issuing 1099's. 

THE INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE UPHOLDS THE 

COMMISSION 

The Commission subsequently received a letter (marked as 
an exhibit at the hearings and reprinted in full in the A,ppendix of 
this report) from ~William H. Rogers, Chief of the Administrative 
Provisions Branch of the I.R.S., upholding the S.C.I. 's staff opinion 
that insurance companies writing Workmen's Compensation 
coverage are required to furnish Form 1099 when payments of 
$600 or more per year are made to any physician, without regard 
to his being a petitioner's or a respondent's physician. 
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LACK OF COMPLIANCE ENCOURAGES DIVERSIONS 

Mr. Cayson testiiied £nrther how non-compliance with the Form 
1099 requirement evidently encouraged substantial diversion of 
Workmen's Compensation fees into cash hoards by some,doctors, 
hoards which could not be traced as to ultimate expenditure and 
which could ha;ve been used for the purposes of entertainment and 
gift giving: 

Q. Therefore, if I may swmmarize, carriers writing 
a substantial portion of the compensation insi.rance 
in New Jersey did not provide 1099 data relating to 
petitioners' doctors, but they did provide data relat­
ing to respondents' doctors? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. Of what significance to the Commission's exam­
ination of compensation practices is the failure by 
insurance companies to file 1099's for petitioners' 
doctors.~ 

A. Our examination of the records of petitioners' 
doctors disclosed material diversion of workmen's 
compensation fees by three petitioners' doctors 
examined. Whereas, only one respondent doctor 
diverted workmen's compensation fees. We found no 
discrepancies in the records of only one petitioner's 
doctor out of all those examined. 

Q. What do you mean by "diversion of compensa­
tion fees"? 

A. Fees were not deposited in normal business 
bank accounts by these doctors but rather the checks 
received by them for their examinations were: A, 
cashed; B, deposited to savings accounts; or, C, en­
dorsed over to third parties and not disclosed to their 
accountants. Therefore, the funds so diverted by the 
methods described in A, Band C above would not be 
reflected in the doctor's gross receipts for the New 
J ersey Unincorporated business tax purposes and in 
all probability not recorded for Federal income tax 
purposes. I must say probably because the New 
Jersey State Commission has no access to Federal ' 
income tax returns, which are confidential. 

Q. Mr. Cayson, as a result of the stall's examina­
tion of the four doctors, petitioners' doctors, and I 
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think there was one 'Yespondent's doctor in that 
growp, what is the dollar value of diverted receipts 
in the years 1970 and 1971? 

A. There was a total of $351,133. It is broken down 
as. follows: Dr. A: $128,958. 

Q. Is that a petitioner's doctor? 
A. Yes, it is. I'll identify them. Dr. B, a peti­

tioner's doctor, $102,983. Dr. C, $64,837. By the way, 
this is a treating doctor working primarily for peti­
tioners. Dr. D is a respondent doctor. $54,355. And 
I repeat, the total involved is $35'1,133. 

Q. Now, was there a particular modus operandi 
that these doctors used in the dive,.sion of income? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What was it? 
A. All right. I'll go back to Dr. A. His modus 

operandi used was: A, he cashed checks and he en­
dorsed checks over to third parties. Dr. B. He cashed 
checks and he also deposited other checks to savings 
accounts. By the way, none of these accounts were 
disclosed to the accountant. Dr. C used all three 
methods; that is, he cashed checks, he deposited some 
checks in the savings accounts and he also endorsed 
them over to third parties. The last, the respondent's 
doctor, cashed checks and he also endorsed the checks 
over to third parties. Again I would like to repeat 
that all these particular individuals involved, as far as 
our investigation was able to disclose, did not disclose 
this information to their accountants. 

Q. Now, what do you see as the significance of the 
dive,.sion of these workmen's compensation fees by 
these docto,.s? 

A. Their check-cashing practices provided a sub­
stantial cash hoard which cannot be traced. Secondly, 
none of these physicians expended sig'llificant amounts 
of any checks for entertaimnent purposes or gifts. 
Our staff can only conclude that on the basis of trade 
practice by five other workmen's compensation doctors 
who were examined that Dr. A to D, who I alluded to 
above, used cash for their business entertainment and 
business gifts. 
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Q. In other words, if these doctors were receiving 
income that they were not disclosing, there would 
perhaps be no way to determine how they were ex­
pending those sums, and if they were expending them 
for illegal or unethical purposes there would be no way 
to detect it? 

A. There is absolutely no way to detect that, Mr. 
Diana. 

GOOD RECORDS TELL TALES 

To illustrate the type of information which could be developed 
from well kept books aud records haviug no discrepancies, Mr. 
Cayson testified about one petitioner's doctor who expended 
$36,844 in entertainment of personnel involved in various areas 
of the Workmen's Compensation system in 1970-1971, including 
expenditures on behalf of a Judge of Compensation: 

Q. Was there an instance, to illustrate the point 
that we have just made through questioning, was there 
an instance where you were able to trace the expendi­
ture of money by a petitioner's doctor? 

A. Yes, we were. 

Q. And what was his inc01ne from all sources for 
1970? 

A. $246,467. 

Q. And how much of that did he earn from his com-
pensation practice? 

A. $189,796. 

Q. About BO%? 
A. Roughly, yes. 

Q. What was his income from all sources in 1971? 
A. $307,624. 

Q. And how much of that was from his compensa­
tion practice? 

A. $265,451. 

Q. How much money did this petitioner's doctor 
expend in the entertainment of workmen's compensa­
tion personnel in 1970 and 1971? 

A. $36,844. 
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Q. Did that include the entertainment of insurance 
co'npany per so,,!nel including insurance adjusters? 

A. Yes, it did. 

Q. Did that include the entertainment of respond­
ents' attorneys? 

A. Yes, it did. 

Q. Did that include the entertainment of peti­
tioners' attorneys? 

A. Yes, it did. 

Q. Did that include the payment of gratuities to 
personnel of the Division of Labor and Industry? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Were there included in that total any monies 
paid to a judge of workmen's compensation? 

A. Yes, itwas. 

Q. Who was that judge? 
A. Alfred D'Auria. 

Q. What year was this? 
A. This was in 1971. 

Q. Was there a payment by this doctor of $150 in 
April 1971 to Alfred D' Auria representing the pur­
chase of theater tickets? 

A. Yes, it was. 

Q. What was the doctor's explanation for that? 
A. He said that the tickets represented an anni-

versary gift to Jndge D'Auria. 

Q. Did we determine from Judge D'Auria when 
his wedding anniversary was? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What month? 
A. Jnne. 

Q. Additionally, during 1971 did the records of that 
doctor reflect the payment of $250 to the wife of 
Alfred D'Auria? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And what was the doctor's explanation tor that 
payment? 
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A. He explained this represented payment to Mrs. 
D'Auria on behalf of her son Peter for research 
Peter was alleged to have done for the doctor. 

Q.Did this doctor make any appearance before 
Judge D'Auria in 1971? 

A. Yes, he did. 

Q. How many? 
A. Sixty. 

Q. What was the dollar value of medical fees 
awarded to him by Judge D'Auria in 1971? 

A. $2,300. 

Q. And what percentage of that figure was in ex­
cess of the maximum allowed by division regulations? 

A. The medical fees Judge D'Auria awarded to 
this doctor exceeded the maximum by 36%. 

Mr. Cayson told additionally of large expenditures for enter" 
tainment by respondents doctors: 

Q. Now, did your examination of the records of 
respondents' doctors disclose payments to Oompensa­
tion Division personnel? 

A. Yes. One of these respondent doctors gave 
Christmas gratuities to- Workmen's Compensation 
Court personnel. This doctor also acknowledged that 
he was one of three doctors who split bills at various 
restaurants in Newark to which certain invited parties 
present at compensation court regularly adjourned 
for lunch. He explained how usually at least one of 
the doctors would be present and pick up the tab and 
later collect from the other two. This professional 
corporation, and they operate as a professional cor­
poration now, expended $20,770 in compensation ex­
penses during the two years examined, A second 
respondent doctor cashed a total of $27,500 in business 
checks which were deducted for tax purposes as enter­
tainment as follows: In 1965, $7,500. 

Q. 1965? 
A. I mean 'G9. I beg your pardon. In 1970, 

$10,000. In 1971, $10,000. His accountant, a C.P.A., 
could provide us with no backup data to substantiate 
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these ,expenses, merely summarizing that he probably 
spent the money on adjusters and other insurance 
company personnel. It is signmcant to note that this 
doctor derived 90% of his income from workmen's 
compensation. 

A NATIONAL PROBLEM OF COMPLIANCE 

Through Mr. Cayson's testimony, it was established that pay­
ments to petitioners' doctors in Workmen's Compensation cases 
in New Jersey from insurance companies totaled $1.6 million in 
1970-72. Since the Commission's research sho,wed insurance com­
panies accpunting for half that total did not issue Form 1099 to 
petitioners' doctors, $800,000 of that total went unreported to the 
Federal Government on those forms. . 

More significantly, the lack of compliance with the issuance of 
Form 1099 could be considered a national problem involving at least 
$lpmiIJion. Mr. Cayson testified to that point as follows: 

Q. Now, based on your twenty-two years' experi­
ence, you would agree that this non_compliance with 
1099 regulations is not only aNew Jersey problem 
but is a national problem as well? 

A. I would definitely agree, because I must assume 
that the national carriers not providing 1099 's in N e", 
Jersey are not providing them to doctors in forty-four 
other states. Let me explain that. There are approxi­
mately forty-five states that permit private insurance 
companies to write business. There are five states, 
therefore, that have what we call state funds and 
these-therefore, that's how we got the forty-fiVe 
states. 

Q. On a national basis, then, what do you estimate 
is the annual amount of doctor income not reported 
to the Federal Government on Form 1099'# 

A. The minimum figure that I could come up with 
is $16 million; 
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THE HIGH COST OF UNWARRANTED 
ALLEGATIONS 

The abuse of making insincere and unwarranted allegations of 
multiple injuries in some occupational disease claims in compensa­
tion cases was previously documented in the testimony of four 
expert witnesses. Mr. Cayson was asked to testify as to how this 
abuse has the effect of driving up the cost of Workmen's CQJ;npensa­
tion insurance rates. 

CLAIM EVALUATIONS 

Mr. Cayson first discussed the way in which these multiple 
allegations claims are evaluated for loss reserve purposes by 
insurance companies: 

Q. Turnmg to another subject, Mr. Cayson,dtbrirtg 
the course of this investigation did you have occasion 
to mterview the claims managers for insurance 
COmpanies? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Howmany? 
A. Seven. 

Q. Now, is one of the functions of a claims manager 
the evaluation of filed claim petitions for loss reserve 
purposes? 

A. Yes. Under his supervision there would be a 
workmen's compensation claim expert who would 
evaluate each and every claim petition for loss reserve 
purposes. 

Q. How did you find that they were categorizing 
the claims? 

A. Generally speaking, serious and non-serious. 
Certain claims are recognized as having a value of, 
let's say, $500 or less and these are in the so-called 
non-serious category. 

Q. Now, how are the claims rated.~ 
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A. Non-serious claims are what they call average 
rated; that is, they are put into the hopper and an 
average is derived therefrom. The serious cases are 
rated on a case-by-case basis. 

Q. Now, are occupational disease clams considered 
in the serious category and, therefore, rated on a 
case-by-case basis? 

A. Yes, they are. 

Q. Now, wo~dd you give me some idea of how these 
companies initially vahte an occupational disease 
claim? 

A. Yes. One company valued the claims at 5 to 
10% of maximum recovery, or $1100 to $2200. A second 
company rated them at twice the value of the peti­
tioner's doctor's findings. Thus, if the petitioner's 
doctor finds a 15% disability, the company would 
value at 30% or $6600. A third company valued them 
at 15 to 17% even if the petitioner's doctor finds no 
disability. The fourth company values them at 25% or 
$5500. A fifth company values them at 50% or $11,000. 
Just for comparison purposes, I went to a source in 
New York and they advised me that in New York 
the occupational disease {lases are valued at 50% of 
total. 

Q. That would be 50% of the maxim~m' New York 
1'ate? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Therefore, from what you told me there ap­
parently is no uniformity in the rating practice? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. Now, in addition, do the ins~f,Tance companies 
add (' loss aclj~,strnent factor to the evaluated occupa­
tional disease claims? 

A. Yes, they do. 

Q. And what does that represent? 
A. The loss adjustment factor represents an allow' 

ance for medical examination, legal fees of the in­
surance company and operating expenses applicable 
to workmen's compensation. 
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Q. What per cent of their evaluation, that is of the 
loss evaluation, is added as a loss adjustment fact01"? 

A.Mr. Diana, that may range anywhere from 8 
to 12%, but the average is about 12%. 

Q. Now, can you give l1te therefore an average 
figure for the evaluation of occupational disease cases 
by those carriers' clai,ns managers which you inter­
viewed as they were evaluating New Jersey risks? 

A. The average that we came up with was 30%, 
$6600 if you add the loss adjustment factor. 

A COSTLY COMPARISON 

With an average evaluation having been established, this .average 
was compared to the actual awards in the occupational disease 
cases handled by a New Jersey law firm. The comparison showed 
actnal awards were much lower than the average evaluation. Mr. 
Cayson testified as to the comparison and to the conclusion that the 
growing abuse of unwarranted multiple allegatioils causes Work­
men's Compensation insurance rates to rise: 

Q. Now, did we also examine the occupational 
disease cases of one law firm which went to judgment 
in 1972? 

A. Yes we did. 

Q. And how many cases did that incltlde? 
A. 362. 

Q. And what were the typical allegations of dis­
ability.@ 

A. Partial permanent disability to chest, lungs, 
respiratory system, nose, throat, hearing, internal 
organs, nervous system, and complications arising 
therefrom. 

Q. Now, despite the allegations of these m1tltiple 
disabilities, what did the awards themselves reflect? 

A. The awards reflected that in only 7% of the 
cases there was any finding of any work-related dis­
ability other than chronic bronchitis. 

Q. Now, what was the dollar value of these awards? 
A. 466,256 cases--dollars, rather, or $1,288 per 

case. Let me repeat that. $466,256 or $1,288 per case. 
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Or stated another way, the average award averaged 
6% of partial totaL 

Q. Now, how would these cases have been rated by 
insurance companies that you interviewed? 

A. Well, if we wanted to strike an average, the 
average reserved for elWh case would have been 
$6,600 or 30% of partial total, for a total loss reserve 
value of $2,389,200. 

Q. Now, I take it, then, that the net result of these 
multiple disability allegations is to force insurance 
companies to set aside higher loss reserves? 

A. There is no question about that, sir. 

Q. Am I correct in assuming that higher reserves 
will produce higher rates? 

A. There is no question about that. 
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THE CONDUCT OF JUDGES 

As previously noted, some of the allegations which led to mount­
ing pressures for reforms in the Workmen's Oompensation system 
concerned toleration of abuses and even illegalities to a point where 
those adverse practices were flourishing. The Oommission's public 
hearings, having established how improprieties and abuses can 
flourish under a pervasive atmosphere, now were focused on how 
that atmosphere might affect the conduct of certain Judges of the 
Workmen's Oompensation Oourt. 

FREE LUNCHES 

Dr. Alex E. Maron, a physician with offices in Ocean Township, 
has since 1960 conducted a practice consisting principally of ex­
amining and evaluating disabilities of petitioners in compensation 
cases, most of which are in the orthopedic injury field. He testified 
about the custom of attorneys, doctors and judges involved in 
compensation proceedings in the courts in Freehold frequently 
lunching together, with one judge never contributing to the cost 
of those luncheons: 

Q. All right. Directing your attention, Doctor to 
the period of time from approximately 1966 to 1971, 
did your practice place you frequently in the comp 
cowrt in Freehold? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Doctor, is there any type of a practice or a tradi­
tion in the Freehold comp court with re.qard to 
luncheons? 

A. There was. 

Q. Would you describe that practice, please? 
A. Well, speaking specifically that period from '66 

to '71, or even before that, it was the custom for the 
petitioners' attorneys and the respondents' attorneys, 
as well as the doctors involved in the various cases, 
to have lunch together. It wasn't done on a one 
hundred percent basis. Very often we would go to 
the American Hotel, which was across the street, and 
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there might be one table where it would be myself and 
the respondent's doctor, Dr. Villapiano, and maybe 
fOUT or five of the attorneys, and then there mig'ht be 
other tables where there would be some of the in­
surance company representatives, adjusters with their 
attorneys. There might be some petitioner's attorneys 
who chose to sit with their petitioners, for example. 
So that it wasn't an all-encompassing thing, but we 
knew that regularly we would meet there for lunch 
and those who wanted to would sit with us. 

Q. Were the judges frequently in attendance at 
these luncheons, Doctor? 

A. I would say frequently, yes. 

Q. Who would normally pick up the tab? 
A. Well, the ta.b was paid by the doctors, who 

would share it, and some of the attorneys, primarily 
petitioners' attorneys. There frequently was contri­
bution from some of the respondents' attorneys. 
There frequently were visiting petitioners' attorneys 
who did not contribute. If they came once in awhile, 
we would offer them a meal as a guest. You know, 
we were glad to have them. And many of the judges 
would frequently contribute their share or a share. 

Q. WellJ during the period under consideration 
right now was Judge Alfred P. D'Auria presiding 
frequently in the FreehOld area? 

A. My recollection is that he was there frequently 
for a period of about a year. I don't remember 
whether it was '68 or '69. About a year after he first 
started he was assigned to our area regularly. He 
was there about two-three days a week. 

Q. And would he frequently attend these lunch­
eons? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Did YOt' ever see him contribute any money 
towards his own ltmch.@ 

A. I don't recall seeing him 'contribute. 
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FREE CHAUFFEURING 

Philip Bigotto, a shorthand reporter employed by the firm of 
William C. 0 'Brien and Associates, had been assigned exclusively 
to Judge Alfred D'Auria of the Workmen's Compensation Court. 
Mr. Bigotto was called as a witness to tell of the services, other 
than shorthand reporting, he was required to perform for that 
jndge and how his employer gave him extra monetary compensation 
for performing those extra services. In retnrn, Judge D'Auria 
awarded the O'Brien firm the maximum $25 stenographic fee for 
each compensation case, lowering that fee award to $20 only in 1972 
at a time when it became known the S.C.I. was investigating the 
Workmen's Compensation system. Mr. Bigotto testified as follows: 

Q. Mr. Bigotto, are yo~! assigned to a particular 
judge on a permanent basis? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And who is that judge, sir? 
A. Judge D' Auria. 

Q. Mr. Bigotto, are any of the other repOI"ters in 
the O'Brien service regularly assigned to a particular 
judge on a full-time basis? 

A. No. 

Q. When were you first assigned to Judge 
D'A1!ria, Mr. Bigotto? 

A. I believe it was 1968, if I'm not mistaken. 

* * 

Q. Among your duties, Mr. Bigotto, don't you also 
piclc Mr. D'Auria 1!P and drive him to and from worlc 
every day? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And do yOt! ever talce him o~d on rides other 
than to and from cOt!rt? 

A. Only on one or two occasions when I went up to 
see J ndge Tumulty right after he had his stroke, or I 
was down to Judge Tumulty's wake in Jersey City, 
only abont that. Once I took him to a judges' meet­
ing, his son wasn't around, and that was on a Satur­
day. I thought that was asking- a little too much, 
but I did him a favor. 
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Q. Didn't he, in fact, on one occasion send you to 
his summer home in Avon to pick up his shoes? 

A. On occasion, yes. 

Q. Well, these side assignments, Mr. Bigotto, do 
you put in a voucher to the O'Brien service for that? 

A. Sure, sure. 

Q. Are you, in addition to your normal salary, 
compensated by the O'Brien Company for your ser- ' 
vices to Judge D' Auria? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And how much do you receive for that, sir? 
A. $45 a week. 

• * • • * 
Q. And what various court houses did you drive the 

j1!dge to? 
A. Different counties you mean we worked in 7 

Q. Yes. 
A. First started out, I think we worked in Newark. 

Then from Newark we worked in -let me see, now­
Morristown. From Morristown went down. to 
Elizabeth where we are now, Elizabeth, and two days 
in Freehold a week. 

Q. And Y01! w01tld pick the judge up at his home 
and drive him to the various court houses? 

A. Yeah. 

Q. And do you feel as though you are being reim-
bursed fully for this chauffeuring job? 

A. Enoughmoney7 No. 

Q. Why do you say that? 
A. Well, I think it's-there are guys in the office 

that are making twice as much money as I am, and, 
well, I think it's worth more than that, really. 

Q. Is this because of the charges for gas and oil or 
the aggravation that you have to put up with? 

A. Well, the aggravation and the whole bit, the 
traveling. 

• * • 
74 



Q. Mr. Bigotto, you said you commenced chattffeur­
ing Judge D'Auria about 1968; is that correct? 

.A. Yes. 

Q. And is it also correct, is it not, that Judge 
D'Auria had. made a request of your employer that 
he be given a chauffeur? 

.A. I have no knowledge of that. 

Q. How do you think the others got the job? 
.A. I don't know. . 

Q. Well, woUld you .assume he made the request or 
would you assume Mr. O'Brienr----­

.A. I would have to assume that. 

Q. You would have to assume that, wouldn't you? 
.A. Uh-huh. 

Q. All right. Now, let's examine a little bit about 
your job as a repOI"ter for Judge D' Auria. You would 
not transcribe, would you, the conferences, the settle­
ment conferences? 

.A. No. 

Q. What you would transcribe is the five-mi'/VUte 
proceeding in open court where the settlement was 
formalized; isn't that correct? 

.A. Correct. 

Q. How many of those do you think you cot~ld do 
in a day? 

.A. Quite a-well, it depends. I do my own typing. 

Q. I understand . 
.A. If you were to send it out to a typist, you could . 

probably do a lot. 

Q. No, no. I mean, in the course of one court day 
how many of those formalized proceedings would you 
transcribe in open court? Twenty maybe? 

.A. It would.be a very, very, very busy day. 

Q. Well, more than twenty? 
.A. I say, the average is-a good day in the division 

is considered ten settlement cases. 

Q. Ten? 
.A. Yeah. 
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Q. Maybe sometimes as marvy as fifteen? 
A. Sure. 

Q. SO you would be transcribing betwen ten and 
fifteen cases a day. And I take it, by the way, the 
money that was awarded for the stenographic fees 
doesn't go into your pocket, does it? 

A. No. 

Q. It goes to your employer, doesn't it? 
A. Correct. 

Q. And you were being awarded the maxi'mum fee 
throtbghout the entire year 1970, were you not, $25? 

A. Correct. 

Q. For a five-mintbte proceeding in cO~brt, were you 
not? 

A. Yes. 

Q. In 1971 you were being awarded $25, were you 
not? 

A. Correct. 

Q. All right. So we only have, ymb say, perhaps 
some period of time in 1972 where he cut you down to 
$20. 

A. Correct. 

MORE FREE LUNCHES AND A FREE PAIR OF SHOES 

Judge D'Auria sat regularly in the Workmen's Compensation 
Courts in Toms River from 1967 to 1971. Among the attorneys 
who appeared before him regularly there, and occasionally in 
Freehold, is Sheldon Stern who was then employed by another 
attorney, Harold Lipsky. Mr. Stern testified that Judge D'Auria 
would go to lunch in Toms River with a group of attorneys and 
doctors who appeared regularly before the judge, with the judge's 
lunch and those of respondent attorneys being paid for by the 
petitioners attorneys present. Mr. Stern testified additionally 
about an incident where he personally paid for Judge D'Auria's 
lunch: 

Q. Well,did you ever personally pay for the 
judge's lunch? 

A. On one occasion I know I particularly had paid 
for his lunch. On other occasions bills were split 
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among petitioners-and when I say "petitioners," 
petitioners' attorneys-and the physicians who were 
there at the time. Not only would the judge's lunch 
be included, but generally respondent's. 

Q. Well, when you appeared before the Commission 
in executive session, Mr. Stern, didn't you relate an 
incident wherein the judge chastised you for sneaking 
away on him one day? 

A. Yes, yes, I did. 

Q. Would you tell us what happened? 
A. This was in Freehold and he asked myself and 

another attorney to stay for lunch and go out for 
lunch. I had matters back in the office, I had other 
things to do, and I didn't feel like going to lunch with 
him and I went to lunch with the other attorney. 

Approximately a week or two weeks thereafter I 
appeared again in Freehold and there was some dis­
cussion that I ran out on him, so to speak, at lunch 
time .. 

Q. He accused you of running out on him? 
A. Well, accused. Judge D'Auria's bark was worse 

than his bite. I had never gotten one thing one way or 
the other. It was his mannerism, and I didn't, feel 
threatened by it. I didn't feel compelled. 

Q. Well, did you buy lunch? 
A. Yes, I did . 

. Q. Did you have enough money on you to pay for 
it? 

A. At that particular time, no. No. I did not. 

Q. Well, how did you get it? 
A. I borrowed some money from another attorney 

who was along with us. 

Mr. Stern told of another incident where an unfulfilled promise 
of the purchase of a pair of shoes for Judge D'Auria led to Stern's 
being ordered out of court by that judge who later received the 
promised pair of shoes: 

Q .. Mr. Stern, didn't you also relate in executive 
session to the Commission an incident wherein the 
judge threw you out of his courtrooin over a pair of 
shoes.W 

77 



A. Yes, I did. 

Q. What happened there? 
A. Well, I have been thrown out of the courtroom 

many times by Judge D'Auria particularly. I don't 
think I'm the only one. 

He broug'ht up a question of a pair of shoes for him. 
I-at that time I knew nothing about any shoes and I 
didn't know what he was talking about. 

I went out in the hallway and a Dr. Zinkin told me 
that there was some discussion between him (the 
Judge) and Mr. Lipsky over a pair of shoes. I went 
back in, I told him I don't know what he's talking 
about, no one mentioned anything to me about it, but 
that I will discuss it with Mr. Lipsky. 

Q. Well, was court in session when he threw you 
out? 

A. Court was in session. I don't believe that there 
was anyone else in the court except for some attor­
neys. There may have been. It was not sometliing 
that--

Q. But he was sitting up on the bench, wasn't he? 
A. Yes, he was. 
He didn't mention the shoes from the beneh. He 

just told me to-when I showed up, he told me to get 
out, and I said, "Why?" from the back of the court­
room and he said, "You know why." and I says, "I;m 
confused." and I think Dr. Zinkin, who is the peti­
tioners' doctor who generally appeared in T'oms 
River, said, "I'll go out in the hall and talk to you," 
and he did and says that Harold was supposed to find 
him-Harold meaning Mr. Lipsky was supposed to 
find him a pair of shoes. And I says, "Well, I know 
nothing about it, no one ever told me about it," and I 
went and told Judge D' Auria that I know nothing 
about it but I'll talk to Harold about it. 

Q. Did you talk to Harold? 
A. Yeah, I told him that something about shoes, 

that Judge D' Auria's talking to me about shoes arid I 
didn't know anything about it. 

Q. Well, what did Mr. Lipsky tell you? 
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A. I think he just told me, "Don't worry about it," 
not that I was worried about it. I just told him and 
that was the end of it as far as I was concerned with 
the shoes. I didn't deliver any shoes to him. 

Q. Do you know whether Mr. Lipsky ultimately did 
give him the shoes? 

A. I believe he got the shoes. I'm quite sure of 
that. Who gave it to him, I-I don't know. I know 
I did not give it to him and I know that Mr. Lipsky 
generally would not appear in comp during that 
period of time since I was going to comp on a regular 
basis and that Dr. Zinkin-may have given him the 
shoes, some other attorney may have given him, you 
know through the office. 

Q. Were you aware at the time, Mr. Stern, that the 
subject of this controversy was a ten-dollar pair of 
crepe-soled shoes? 

A. If it was $10, I think it was a lot. I think it 
was like $5, because I understand that with the shoes­
I think they got them from a pushcart on the East 
Side in New York, really. 

FREE STATE BAR ASSOCIATION DUES 

There also came a time in 1968 when D' Auria requested that 
Mr. StBrn pay the judge's Bar Association dues. Mr. Stern testified 
as follows as to that incident: 

Q. All right. Mr. Stern, I direct your attention, 
sir, to the month of May, 1968. Did you attend the 
State Bar Convention in Atlantic City at that time? 

A. I don't know the year. If you are referring to 
previous testimony with regards to--

Q. Yes. 
A. -the dues, if that be the year that I was down 

there, I don't know. I remember that there was an 
important election, that was the year that I'm talking 
about, and it could have been '68. 

Q. Well, did you see Judge D'Auria at that con­
vention? 

A. Yes, I did. 
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Q. And did you have any conversation with him? 
A. Yes. 

Q. And would you tell the Commission what the 
subject of that conversation was? 

A. I was either walking by or waiting in line to pay 
my dues and Judge D 'Auria approached me and asked 
me for money so he could pay his dues and get in and 
vote. I told him that I didn't have it, and I told him I 
didn't have it. He said, "Where's Mr. Lipsky7" or 
"Where's Harold?" and I said, "He's over there." 
And he said, "Would you go and get him for me?" 
and I went and got Harold and--

Q. Did you tell Harold what the judge wanted? 
A. I told him that he wanted to borrow some money 

from me for the dues and I didn't have the money 
and you could afford to lend it to him easier than I 
could. 

Q. Well, what did Mr. Lipsky say? 
A. I think he was kind of disappointed that Judge 

D' Auria so to speak, found him rather than the 
thousand of other lawyers that were in the convention 
and went over and spoke to him, and I believe either 
paid his dues or gave him the money for his dues or 
either-well, one or the other; either paid for his 
dues or gave him the money for it. 
The Chairman: How much was involved? 
The Witness: To be very honest, sir, I really don't 
know because of the fact it wasn't my money and I 
could really care less of how much someone else was 
either loaning or giving or doing. 
The Chairman: Didn't the judge m;mtion any sum to 
you? 
The Witness: He mentioned his dues, and as soon as 
he mentioned his dues, and I really didn't have it-I 
think if I had it, I might have loaned it to him. 
The Chairman: Okay. 

Q. Wasn't there a problem with regard to arrea1's? 
He hadn't paid in a long time? 

A. Yes, as I recall, when they went to pay his dues, 
that there was some discussion with the girl who was 
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taking the money at the table that he hadn't paid for 
a long period of time and that his dues were substan­
tial, and, I believe, I believe that Mr. Lipsky told the 
girl, "Then give him a new membership." 

Q. Which would have been cheaper than updating 
the dues? 

A. I believe he asked them how much does he owe 
and how much is a new membership and take the 
lesser of two evils. 

At this point in the hearings, the State Bar Association dues 
ledger card for Judge D'Auria was entered as an exhibit. It showed 
Jndge D'Auria had been dropped from membership in the Associa­
tion in 1945 for non-payment of dues and re-instated May 18, 1968 
on payment of $20, which indicates L,ipsky paid for a new member­
ship rather than for the more costly step of clearing up Judge 
D 'Auria's arrearage. 

MORE FREE LUNCHES AND A FREE CHRISTMAS PARTY 

Attorneys for the New Jersey Manufacturers Insurance Com­
pany appeared regularly before Judge D'Auria in the Workmen's 
Compensation Courts in Elizabeth during 1971-72. After an exhibit 
was marked summarizing some of the expense vouchers incurred 
by three of the company's attorneys, John R. Gleeson, Jr., Assist­
ant Vice President and Attorney of Record for the New Jersey 
Manufacturers Insurance Co., testified as follows: 

Q. I show you Exhibit 31, Mr. Gleeson, and ask you 
if you can identify that, sir. 

A. Yes. This is a compilation of isolated expense 
accounts, which included a lunch expenditure for 
Judge D' Auria. I might say, there are other people 
present. In short, the expenses reflected here are not 
entirely spent for Judge D' Auria's. I might say, there 
are other people present. In short, the expenses 
reflected here are not entirely spent for Judge 
D'Auria's lunch. There may have been three or four 
people present at anyone time. But, at any rate, 
included in the items as set forth here is Judge 
D'Auria's lunch. 
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Q. And this summa.-y of expenses runs from what 
time period to what time period, sir? You may retain 
it. I have a copy here. 

A. It's a period apparently from August 6, 1971 to 
December 4---:-December, 1972, approximately a year 
and a half. 

Q. All ,·ight. Directing your attention, then, to the 
last page, is there a total of all expenditures? 

A. For this, for this period, a year and a half, 
representing the three employees whose lunches were 
itemized here, or summarized, there is a total of 
$726.15. 

Q. j)!fr. Gleeson, did you ever disc~,ss this particular 
situation with your employees? 

A .. Yes. 

Q. Inm,rring expenses for Judge D' Auria? 
A. Yes, as a matter of fact, I did, because it was 

occurring with repetitive habituals and I did inquire 
as to what brought about the situation. 

Q. Well, did they explain to you what their position 
was with rega"d to these expenses? 

A. Yes. At the noon recess, when they were as­
signed to a particular court, more particularly in the 
Elizabeth vicinage, it would be either suggested by 
Judge D'Auria that they go to lunch or he would 
inquire, "Where are you going to lunch! ", the general 
indication being that they should lunch together, 
which they did. At the expiration of the lunch, when 
the check would come in, they felt obliged to pay it. 

Q. And would it be a fair statement to say that 
your cOlnpany tolerated this situation? 

A. Yes. We did not condone the situation. We 
felt it an imposition. But under the circumstances of 
the situation insofar as rather than embarrass our 
attorneys or put them in a position in which they 
would incur some animosity, possibly, from Judge 
D' Auria, we tolerated the situation. 

Q. j)!f r. Gleeson, I direct your attention to the front 
of that exhibit, more particularly to an expenditure 
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noted for Dec. 13th, 1971, in the amount of $144.08. 
It's on the first page, sir. 

A. On the first page1 Yes, I see it. 

Mr. 0 'Connor: Can we have this marked as an exhibit. 

(Expense voucher of New Jersey Manufacturers 
Insurance Company received and marked Exhibit 
C-32) 

Q. Mr. Gleeson, I show you Commission Exhibit 
C-32 and ask you if you can identify that exhibit, sir? 

A. Yes, I can. 

Q. What is that exhibit? 
A. This is an expense account item submitted by 

one of our attorneys for the date-I guess it's Decem­
ber the 13th, '71, and it, in effect, indicated "Enter­
tainment of Elizabeth Workmen's Compensation 
Court bureau personnel at the request of Judge 
Alfred D' Auria and under his direction and super" 
vision." 

Q. So, in other words, Judge D'Auria had one of 
your attorneys pay for his Christmas party; isn't that 
correct, sir? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. Now, does this practice still exist within your 
company? 

A. No, it does not. 

Q. Do you have any particular feelings as to 
whether or not it should continue? . 

A. I am very happy that the practice is discon­
tinued. 

At this point in the hearings, it was noted that Judge D'Auria 
had appeared at a private session of the Commission on April 4, 
1973, and a copy of the tranS<lript of that appearance was entered 
on the public hearing record as an exhibit. Co=ission Counsel 
B. Dennis 0 'Connor stated for the public record that the exhibit 
showed that Judge D' Auria declined to execute a waiver of his 
public employee immunity and testify without that i=unity. He 
was excused as a witness. 
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J,udge D'Auria on May 10, 1973 was suspended from the Work­
men's Compensation Bench by State Labor and Industry Co=is­
sioner Ronald Heymann as a result of testimony relative to the 
Judge at the Commission's hearings. The suspension remained 
in effect until Judge D 'Anria retired on June 29, 1973. 

A SALE OF INCOMPLETE LAW BOOKS 

S. Lawrence Torricelli, an attorney, was at the time of the public 
hearings associated with the law firm of Rabb and Zeitler'" iu Wood­
bridge by virtue of ownership of one share of stock in that firm. 
He handled all compensation pra,ctice for the firm. 

Torricelli testified about an incident wherein a Judge of Com­
pensation effected the sale of a set of incomplete law books to 
Rabb and Zeitler at a time when that firm had Workmen's Com­
pensation cases before that judge: 

Q. Now, Mr. Torricelli, did there come a time in 
mid-1971 when a Judge Joseph Grzankowskir--Re­
porter, that's spelled G-"-z-a-n-k-o-w"s-k-ir--told you 
to have Mr. Rabb call him conce,.ning the sale of some 
law books? 

A. That's true. 

Q. And what did Judge Grzankowski say to you? 
A. He says-he told me that he had a lot of law 

books that he wanted to sell our firm because he knew 
that we didn't have any law books and--

Q. What did you say to him? 
A. And I called him. I said, "I don't do any of the 

buying and selling, you would have to talk to Mr. Rabb 
about it and"--

Q. Well, did you also--
A. --and, so, he asked me to have Mr. Rabb 

call him, and I don't know whether Mr. Rabb called 
him the first time. I don't believe he did, because I 
sam Judge Grzankowski a second time and he said, 
"Well, he hasn't called me yet." 

I said, "I'll tell him again to call you." 
Finally, I guess they got together and spoke. 

* The firm of Rabb and Zeitler, a professional corporation, was' in the process of being 
dissolved at the· time this report went to press. The principals, William Rabb and 
Richard Zeitler were practicing law at separate locations, Rabb having established his 
own law office and Zeitler remaining at the firm's office. , 
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Q. Did you also tell Grzankowski that "We don't 
have any place to ptlt the books?" 

A. I did on the second occasion. 1--

Q. Yes. 
A. I told him that we have no library space at all. 

Q. Btlt he persisted and said, "Have him call me?" 
A. Well, yes. 

Q. All right. Did you detennine that ·!!ltimately 
the books were sold by Judge Grzankowslei to Rabb 
dI; Zeitler? 

A. Yeah, because one day they suddenly arrived 
and there they were all piled up all over the floor. 

Q. Did Mr. Rabb say to you that he was not happy 
about having to buy the booles? 

A. Mr. Rabb was extremely unhappy about the 
whole situation. 

Q. Did he say why he was unhappy about buying 
them? 

A. No, it's, not the question. The books were 
usable. The question of the money had to be spent 
and that we had no place to put them. And, as a 
matter of fact, we put them in Mr. Wolmack's office, 
my associate. We had a little tiny cubicle of a room 
there, and half of it had to be taken up with the law 
books all piled up on the floor. 

Q. Well, if Mr. Rabb was unhappy about having to 
buy the books, why did he buy them? 

A. You would have to ask him that. 

Q. Well, were you appearing regularly in compen­
sation court before Judge Grzankowski at this tinte? 

A. Every day. 

Charles E. Waldron, previously identified as Special Investigator 
for the S.C.I., investigated the circumstances of the sale of the 
books to Rabb and Zeitler. A summary of the principal points of 
his testimony follows: 

• The amount of the sale was $2,339 as determined by 
the payment check (marked as an exhibit) dated 
March 9, 1971 and drawn on the regular account of 
Rabb and Zeitler, payable to Judge Grzankowski. 
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• 'i'he Judge was co.o.perative with the investigatio.n 
and vo.luntarily turned o.ver all his pertinent reco.rds 
and also co.nfirmed a descriptio.n o.f the vo.lumes So.ld 
after Waldro.n had physically inspected the bo.o.ks at 
the o.ffice o.f Ranb and Zeitler. 

• The bo.o.ks So.ld included vo.lumes o.f the Atlantic 
Repo.rter, the New Jersey Digest, the New Jersey 
Practice Series, the Encyclo.pedia o.f Trial Techniques, 
and Negligence in the Atlantic States. The sets were 
all o.ut of date andlo.r inco.mplete, and inspectio.n 
sho.wed Rabb and Zeitler had never taken steps to. 
update them and complete them as o.f 1973. 

• Judge Grzanko.wski appeared befo.re an executive 
sessio.n o.f the Co.mmissio.n waived his public-emplo.ye 
immunity and testified that Rabb and Zeitler appeared 
eager to. buy the bo.o.ks, a principal o.f that firm having 
said to. the Judge in 1969 to. ho.ld o.nto. the bo.o.ks until 
the firm had mo.re ro.o.m fo.r them. (The private 
sessio.n testimo.ny o.f the Judge was entered o.n the 
public hearing reco.rd as an exhibit.) 

• Waldro.n by pho.ne (his no.tes o.f the co.nversatio.n 
were marked as an exhibit) o.btained an estimate fro.m 
an appraiser at Gann Law Bo.o.ks in Newark that the 
law bo.o.ks at the time o.f sale in 1971 were Wo.rth a 
to.tal o.f $1,025. 

• Waldro.n o.btained ano.ther written appraisal 
(marked as an exhibit) fro.m an appraiser o.f the 
Williams Press, New Yo.rk City, that the value o.f 
the bo.o.ks at the time o.f sale ,wo.uld be at to.P $1,750 
but that was a high figure at which nego.tiatio.ns Wo.uld 
start. 

Judge Grzanko.wski was suspended fro.m the Wo.rkmen's Co.m­
pensatio.n Bench fo.r five days in a disciplinary actio.n o.rdered by 
State Labo.r and Industry Co.mmissio.ner Ro.nald Heymann as a 
result o.f the testimony befo.re the Co.mmissio.n relative to. the sale 
o.f the law bo.o.ks. 
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A LAW PRACTICE ON THE SIDE 

As part of the investigation of the conduct of some Judges of 
Oompensation, the Oommission asked several judges to submit 
statements of their net worth during 1968-71. Anet worth state­
ment is essentially a comparison of what a person owns to what he 
owes. The financial resources which result in increases in a person's 
net worth should be ascertainable and explainable. 

One judge submitting such a statement was Judge James J. 
Bonafield who at the time was sitting in the Workmen's Oompensa­
tion Oourts in Newark. Bonafield's net worth statement was 
questioned by the Commission's Special Agent/Accountants be­
cause his stated net worth exceeded by some $33,000 the fiscal 
resources which could be ascertained as being available to him. 
Special Agent/Accountant John P. Gildea testified at the public 
hearings that the $33,000 was an indicator that the judge might 
have sources of income that might not have been disclosed. Ad­
ditionally, the Commission was cognizant that under New Jersey 
Statutes Annotated 34 :15-49, Judges of Compensation were re­
quired, effective January 7, 1970, not to engage in the practice of 
law and to devote full time to their judicial duties. 

Accordingly, the Oommission's staff continued to investigate 
relative to Judge Bonafield. Mr. Gildea subsequently discovered 
Judge Bonafield had maintained, at least up to the spring of 1971, 
insurance covering employees at his law offices at 1458 Main 
Avenue, Clifton. Gildea testified how this discovery led to others 
and a suspicion that Judge Bonafield may have used another at­
torney's name to mask his (Bonafield's) law practice after the 
January 7, 1970 cutoff date: 

Q. Now, in the course of this investigation did we 
discover that Judge Bonafield had maintained com­
pensation 'insurance covering certain categories of 
employees? 

A. Yes, there had been such a policy which was in 
force at least up until April of 1971. 

Q. And did we locate the insurance agency who 
wrote the policy? 

A. Yes, we did. 

Q. And did you examine the file? 
A. Yes. 
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Q. And during your examination of that file what. 
was revealed to you? 

A. In the examination of that file we came across 
a letter with the return address of Marino T'edeschi, 
1458 Main Avenue in Olifton, but the postmark on it 
was from Brick Township in Ooean Oounty. 

Q. Well, I will give you C-99. Is that the envelope 
to which you are referring.W 

A. Yes, that is the envelope. 

Q. And that's an envelope which was utilized by 
Judge Bonafield in transmitting something to his 
insurance agent; is that correct? 

A. I presume it was by Judge Bonafield because all 
other correspondence in that file was from Judge 
Bonafield.· 

Q. And the letter was postmarked what date? 
A. May 18th of 1971. 

Q. And in the upper left-hand corner whose name 
appeared? 

A. Well, the fact that it had a stamp of Brick 
Township and the name of Marino Tedeschi at 1458 
Main Avenue, I knew that Judge Bonafield had a 
house in Brick Township and I knew that he owned 
the address, the building at 1458 Main Avenue. I 
checked several years of the Lawyers Diary, the 
directory for lawyers, and I found that Marino 
Tedeschi had never listed his address at 1458 Main. 

Q. SO what did that lead you to suspect? 
A. Well, I believed that possibly indicated that he 

was using Mr. Tedeschi-that Mr. Tedeschi may have 
been being used by Judge Bonafield as a front for 
operations out of 1458 Main Avenue. 

Q. As a front for the practice of law you mean? 
A. That was my--

Q. That was your suspicion at that time? 
A. Suspicion. I had no proof. 

Q. I understand. 
A. Just to look into it. 
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A JUDGE Is CALLED 

The questions raised by the investigation of Judge Bonafield 
prompted the Oommission to call him as a witness at a private 
hearing. The following exchange from the transcript of that ap­
pearance was read into the public hearing by Ronald S. Diana, 
Special Oounsel to the Oommission in the Workmen's Oompensa­
tion investigation: 

Mr. Diana: I would next like to read a question and 
answer posed at executive session on Thursday, May 
3rd, 1973, by me to Judge James J. Bona:field. 
" Question: And is it your testimony here this after­
noon that in the last two years you have not received 
any monies representing legal fees or the proceeds 
from legal fees! 
"Answer: That's my testimony." 

Mr. Gildea subsequently read some other portions of Judge 
Bona:field's private hearing transcript into the public hearing 
record to set forth the judge's contention that he had an agreement 
with Marino Tedeschi, the aforementioned Paterson attorney, to 
take over Judge Bona:field's law practice in return for $250 per 
month in rent payments by Mr. Tedeschi for the use of the law 
offices at 1458 Main Avenue, Olifton: 

Q. Now, did we then purst!e these questions raised 
by the envelope? 

A. Yes, we did. 

Q. Did we pursue them with Juge Bonafield? 
.A. Yes. Judge Bonafield appeared before the Oom­

mission at executive session May Brd, 1973, and dur­
ing the course of this hearing he was questioned con­
cerning his relationship to Marino Tedeschi. He 
described the relationship as the transcript will show. 
Mr. Bonafield speaking--

Q. Just a minute, Mr. Gildea. You're now going 
to read front Jt!dge Bonafield's sworn testimony 
under oath at executive session; is that correct? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. All right, sir. 
A. "He, of course, Mr. Tedeschi, and I are very 

good friends. I have known him for a number of years 
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and he would take a case that I would refer cases to 
him. He would do work for me, and he occupied the 

. offices at 1458 Main Avenue for a while." 

Q. Now, what did Judge Bonafield testify to con­
cerning any monies that he received from Tedeschi 
for cases referred to him by the Judge? 

A. The testimony as recorded is: "Question: "_. _. 

Q. Again you are reading, now questions posed to 
Judge Bonafield at executive session, sworn to under 
oath; is that correct? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. All right. 
A. "Question : Now, out of those cases have you 

received any fees ¥ 
"Answer: No fees as referrals. 
" Question: Well, what kind of fees then ¥ How would 
you characterize them ¥ 
"Answer: Well, we had an arrangement where he 
would agree to pay rent for the use of the office, and 
he paid me rent. 
"Question: How much rent? 
" Answer: $250 a month. " 

Q. All right. So, then, the substance of Judge 
Bonafield's testimony was that after the cutoff date 
in January of 1970 Tedeschi paid him rent for the 
use of office space at 1458 Main Avenue? 

A. Yes. 

A SIGNED STATEMENT DISPUTES THE JUDGE 

The day after Judge Bonafield's appearance at the private ses­
sion of the Commission, Mr. Gildea interviewed Mr. Tedeschi and 
obtained that attorney's signature on a statement summarizing 
that interview. The statement was marked as an exhibit at the 
public hearings, and Mr. Gildea testified as to its salient points 
as follows: 

• Tedeschi told Gildea that he made what he termed 
a loose arrangement in late 1969 with Bonafield to 
take over Bonafield's legal work. Tedeschi said he 
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did take over a few cases from Bonafield but that was 
all. He cannot recall ever paying any rent to Bonafield 
and was not even given a key to Bonafield's offices 
in Clifton. Tedeschi recalled a bank account was 
opened in his name for deposit of receipts relative to 
any cases referred by Bonafield. Tedeschi, however, 
did not have control of the bank accounts and he 
never saw the cancelled checks or bank statements 
from that account. 

• Tedeschi did sign some checks drawn on the account 
in blank. The bulk of the checks drawn on that ac­
count were signed by John R. Celentano, who was an 
authorized signatory and who is an attendant in the 
Workmen's Compensation Court and who was em­
ployed formerly· as an investigator in Judge Bona­
field's law work. 

THE RECONSTRUCTION OF BANK ACCOUNTS 

Mr. Gildea's next step, given the absence of any cancelled checks 
or other records for the Tedeschi account, was to reconstruct that 
account through legible bank records of the New Jersey Bank, N.A. 
When he went to do that job, he found there were actually two 
accounts in Mr. Tedeschi's name. One was a trustee account which 
had been opened with a card signed by Mr. Tedeschi. The second, 
a regularaccouut, was opened with a card in handwriting different 
than Mr. Tedeschi's. Mr. Tedeschi told Mr. Gildea he did not sign 
the card opening the regular account. 

Mr. Gildea then proceeded to the tedious task of reconstructing 
both accounts from bank records. The reconstruction showed for 
the trustee account from its opening in February, 1970 until it was 
closed out in August, 1972, total deposits of $59,854, with $11,787 
being transferred to the regular account. The reconstruction of the 
regular account showed, from its opening in March, 1970 to its 
closing out in August, 1972, total deposits of $16,029, with the 
following payments being made out of that account: $7,733 to Judge 
Bonafield, $2,000 to Mrs. Charlotte Siderits who was Judge Bona­
field's law office secretary, $1,504 to Tedeschi, and $675 to 
Celentano. Mr. Gildea testified further as to payments from the 
regular account for legal proceedings and as to indicators that the 
payments made to Judge Bonafield were actually paid to him 
personally: 
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Q. There is a column for clerks of counties and 
courts, police and hospitals. Will you explain that, 
please? 

A. In the working of liability cases, in order to 
build up your case you have to get a record of the 
police reports; you have to get the accident reports; 
the action that was taken when the party went to the 
hospital as a result of an accident; and when cases 
are instituted in various courts, there's payments 
made to the clerks of the courts to institute the 
su=ons and complaint, pay for the action of the 
sheriff or marshal, whoever delivered, and such pay­
ments as that. 

Q. And the amount of monies then expended for 
filing fees and court records amounted to $879 dur'ing 
the period of the account's existence? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. All right, sir. Now, Mr. Gildea, ,in your analysis 
you have ind,icated the payments were made to James 
J. Bonafield personally. How do y01~ know they were 
paid to him personally? 

A. Well, the amounts you speak of in that column 
represent checks to cash or to Bona;field on which the 
endorsement indicated that the check was deposited 
into Judge Bonafield's account at the First National 
Bank of Passaic or where the check was personally 
endorsed by Judge Bonafield and deposited or cashed 
by him. 

Q. SO there wasn't any doubt that he received the 
money or deposited it? 

A. At least, it was credited to his account. 

Q. Credited to his account? 
A. Or he received it personally. 

Mr. Gildea testified additionally how this bank account data did 
not support Judge Bonafield's claim of getting $250 per month in 
rent from Tedeschi : 

,Q. Was there anything in any of these records to 
indicate that these payments to Bonafield, that $7,700, 
were paid to him by Marino Tedeschi as rent for the 
use of the 1458 Main Avenue premises? 
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A. There was olte check, I think, had a notation 
"rent" on it. There were several checks in the amount 
of $250. But if you note iu the period of March 
through December, 1970, the checks which he negoti­
ated amount to $5,700. Now, this is only a ten-month 
period. If the rent was $250 a month, the total would 
have ouly amounted to $2,500 not $5,700. 

Q. Right. So that if the payments to him had in 
fact been rent of $250 a, month during 1970, they would 
have equaled $2,600 and not $5,70Of 

A. That's correct. 

LEGAL ACTIONS ARE IDENTIFIED 

From data in the bank account records as a starting point, Gildea 
was able to find and examine appropriate court records and, 
thereby, identify 171egal actions which went through the Tedeschi 
bank accounts controlled by Judge Bonafield. The 17 did not 
represent all legal actions handled by Judge Bonafield's law office 
but rather the number Mr. Gildea could discover with certainty, 
given the time he had to investigate and his desire to keep the 
investigation as confidential as possible. 

Of the 17 matters, one was started in 1969, eight were started 
in 1970, six were initiated in 1971 and two were started in 1972. The 
cases involved negligence actions, realestate closings and probate 
matters. Gildea testified as to obtaining statements from the 
Bonafield clients in two of the cases to the effect that they never 
met Mr. Tedeschi and that all personal contact at Judge Bonafield's 
office was either with Mrs. Siderits or the Judge: 

. Q. Did you interview any of the clients.~ 
A. Yes, and I was successful in having two of them 

sign my memorandum of interviews. 

Q. And what did you learn from these interviews? 
A. Well, each of these interviews brought out the 

fact that whereas correspondence received by them 
and checks made by them in connection with the action 
involved were all in the name of Marino Tedeschi, 
these parties, in the course of these actions, had not 
met Mr. Tedeschi personally. 
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Q. With whom had they dealt? 
A. In both instances all personal contact was at 

the law office on the ground floor of 1458 Main Avenne, 
Clifton. In one instance the person handling the 
matter at all times was Mrs. Siderits, who personally 
advised the client as to the amonnt of the fee, amonnt 
which was dne at that particnlar time. In other in­
stances, the other instance, all personal contacts were 
with Jndge Bonafield or John R. Celentano. 

Q. And were there legal fees involved in these 
transactions .W 

A. Yes, legal fees were involved. 

Q. SO, then, at least so far as your investigation 
was concerned, lJIf r. Gildea, you were able to identfy 
and get signed statements from two clients who while 
there activity, their legal activity, emanated out of 
1458 lJIfain Avenue, they never met lJIfr. Tedeschi per­
sonally, they either dealt with lJIfrs. Side,-its or James 
J. B onafield? 

A. That is the result of my interviews. 

Q. Right. And this was for a period subsequent 
to January 7,1970? 

A. Yes, both. They were, yes. 

MI'. Diana: All right. I will now offer Exhibit C-109, 
which is a statement prepared by Agent Gildea and 
signed by the client, Mrs. Stella Schweighardt, 
S-c-h-w-e-i-g-h-a-r-d-t in which she established that 
a probate matter arose in 1972; she drew a check 
drawn on her account at the Elmwood State Bank 
on June 9, 1972, payable to Marino Tedeschi in the. 
amount of $500; she identified the check was in pay­
ment for the probate of her husband's will; she 
never met Mr. Tedeschi; she spoke to him once over 
the phone, and all her dealings were with the office 
secretary, Charlotte Siderits. 

BY MR. DIANA: 

Q. Did lJIfrs. Schweighardt mention the second 
$500 in payment for that probate? 

A. No, I didn't bother asking her about t.hat. 
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Q. Yau didn't? 
A. No, at this time. 

Q. You know there is a total fee of $1,000, which 
we will explain subsequently in these hearings? 

A. Yes. 

Mr. Diana: Now, in addition, I now offer as 0-110 a 
statement signed by Roscoe J. Shannon, S-h-a n-n-o-n, 
and that establishes that the Shannons in 1970 
arranged for an appointment with Judge Bonafield 
through his secretary for representation concerning 
the purchase of a house. According to Mr. Shannon's 
statement, Bonafield and the secretary were at the 
office when the Shannons signed the closing docu­
ments; they met him, meaning Judge Bonafield, at 
6 :00 P.M. in the evening; they never met Marino 
Tedeschi; they've known Bonafield since 1966. The 
statement also establishes that they asked Judge 
Bonafleld to draw their will and they went back to 
Bonafield's office on December 17th, 1970. The will 
had been prepared and Bonafield and Oelentano 
witnessed it. 

BY MR. DIANA: 
Q. Is that substantially what that statement that 

you got from that witness establishes, Mr. Gildea? 
A. Basically. 

• • * • • 
Q. All right. Now, I would like to introduce Ex­

hibit 0-111, which is a letter on the lette1'head of the 
law offices of Marino Tedeschi, 1458 Main Avenue, 
dated November 30,1970, which is a.bill for services 

. directed to Mr. and Mrs. RoscoeJ. Shannon. The 
attorney's fee is $290, and there is a signatul'e which 
p'twports to be Mr. Tedeschi's and we know that it is 
not? 

A. That's correct. 

Mr. Diana: Additimlally, I will offer Exhibit 0-112, 
which is the attestation page of the Shannon will, 
dated Dec. 17, 1970, indicating James J. Bonafield 
and John R. Oelentano as the witnesses, this in cor­
robration of this statement, and then Exhibit 0-113, 
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which is a letter dated December 8, 1970, from the law 
offices of Marino Tedeschi. That:s the letterhead. 
This is a bill for services rendered in connection with 
the preparation of the will, $25. 

BY MR. DIANA: 

Q. Thistime1l1r. Celentano signs for 1l1r.l'edeschi? 
A. That's my recollection. 

Mr. Diana: I also offer Exhibit C-114, which is on the 
letterhead of the law offices of James J. Bona-field, 
dated January 5, 1971. It's addressed to the Shannons 
and encloses the deed, bnt it is signed, "Marino 
Tedeschi." However, it was not his signature, it was 
signed by the office secretary. 

I have no further questions of Mr. Gildea. 

A VERY LOOSE ARRANGEMENT 

Marino Tedeschi had known Judge Bonafield since 1945. In late 
1969 or early 1970, the two men had a conversation in which the 
judge noted he could no longer practice law and suggested Mr. 
Tedeschi take over the work of Bonafield's law office in Clifton, on 
the condition that Mr. Tedeschi would pay Judge Bonafield rent 
for the premises. Mr. Tedeschi testified at the public hearings that 
the rental agreement was a very loose one and that the anticipated 
turnover of Judge Bonafield's law practice never came to pass: 

Q. You mean yot~ orally agreed to pay $250 a 
month? 

A. Yes, but if some months there wasn't any 
money, I wouldn't pay the rent. 

Q. This was at the inception? 
A. Inception. Perhaps January, 1970. 

Q. All right. So, taking it at that point in time, 
it was your understanding that your only obligation 
with respect to the proceeds that would come into the 
office was the payment of $250 a month Tent and you 
keep the rest for yourself? 

A. That is correct. 
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Q. All right. And did you also have some anticipa­
tion that there would be new business generated as a 
result of your taking over the premises? 

A. I thought there would be good possibility of 
new business. 

Q. And upon what did you base that assumption.~ 
A. Well, Clifton is a nice area, that is a pretty 

nice area up there, and it's sort of building and it's 
nice area. I was-in fact, I had been thinking of mov­
ing in the last few years, and I had thought of moving 
to Clifton, especially my home. 

Q. Well, did Judge Bonafield indicate to you that 
perhaps thrQt,gh his name and popularity, or the 
extent to which he was known in the cornmunity, that 
people might come to you? 

A. Yes, he did. 

* • * • 
Q. Well, you say things hadn't been working out 

too well. What do you mean by that? 
A. Well, I thought that I would go there and look 

over the files and see what work was to be done and 
what work wasn't to be. done and I would take over the 
files completely. 

Q. I didn't understand your answer. What was it 
that prompted you to become dissatisfied with the re­
lationship which, I think you said, first caIne about in 
April or May of 1970. 

A. Right. 

Q. When you, first expressed dissatisfaction. 
A. Right, right. 

Q. Well, why was it? Why did you express dis­
satisfaction? 

A. Well, because I was under the impression that 
what would happen would be, I would go to Clifton 
Avenue and sit down with M.r. Bonafield and we would 
go over files and from. there on I would handle the 
files completely. 

Q. I see. 
A. And since that wasn't done 1--
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Q. You mean Judge Bonafield was handling the 
files? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Now, did you-let's put it this way: How many 
times total in 1970 do you recall actually having visited 
the premises at 1458 Main Avenue? 

A. Well, I would say maybe ten times. 

Q. Maybe ten? 
A. Maybe nine. 

Q. Somewhere around that nu,nber. I'm. not asking 
for a precise figure. I understand recollections have to 
have some tolerance, obviously. 

How about 1971? 
A. In 1971-1 would say I was there less often. 

Q. Less than ten, nine or ten tin!es? 
A. Yes. 

Q. And do you recall bei~g there af all in 1§72? 
A. 1972 I was never there, sir. 

Q. All right. Now, since you didn't have a key to 
the premises, I take it you always had to .go there 
when someone else was there? 

A. That is correct, sir. 

Q. Would that either be .M rs. Siderits 0'" Judge 
Bonafield or JohnOelentano? 

A. I don't recall John Celeutano ever being with 
me. It was either Mr. Bonafield or Mrs. Siderits. 

Q. Allright. Did yo,! ever handle any title closings 
at 1458 Main Avenue? 

A. Yes, I did. 

Q. How many? 
A. I think maybe two or three, 

Q. Total? 
A. Yes. 

Q. And did you ever handle any negligence actions 
by the sense of preparation of summonses and com­
plaints or any matters which would follow the issuance 
of a summons and complaint? 
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A. No, sir, I didn't. 

Q. You never handled any? 
A. No. 

No RENT WAS EVER PAID 

Judge Bonafield, after his May 3, 1973 appearance before the 
Co=ission in private session, proceeded immediately to Mr. 
Tedeschi's home and together they drove to a Clifton area restau­
rant where they had a conversation which included an assertion 
by Mr. Tedeschi that he never paid Judge Bonafield any rent. 
Tedeschi testified as follows: 

Q. All right. You took a ride. Where did you go? 
A. Well, we just drove around Clifton area, Clifton 

area, and then we went to Howard Johnson's. We 
had a cup of coffee. 

Q. And did you have a discussion with him there at 
Howard Johnson's? 

A. Yes, we did. 

Q. And what was the discussion about? 
A.' He had, Mr. Bonafield had told me that he was 

before the Commission, this Commission, and he was 
trying to review with me what our agreement was 
about when he first couldn't practice law and that I 
was supposed to be a tenant of his. 

Q. Right. Did he mention that yo'u were to pay to 
him $250 a month rent? 

A. I believe he did, yes. 

Q. You never, in fact, paid $250 a month rent, did 
you? 

A. No. 

Q. Did you say that to Judge Bonafield when he 
raised that issue with you on the evening of May Brd, 
'197B? ' 

A. I don't recall saying anything about that. He 
did most of the talking. 

Q. ,He did most of the talking. Did you ever say, in 
substance or effect, "But you know, Jim, I never paid 
you any rent"? 

A. In effect, yes. 
99 



Q. And what was his response to that? 
A. He said something to the effect, "What if I said 

you did 1" And I said, "But it's not true." 

Q. I'm sorry. I didn't hear the last part of that 
answer. 

A. I said, he said to me, "What if I said you did 1" 
And I said, "But it's not true." 

Q. And then what did he say? 
A. I don't recall him saying anything at that time. 

THE CONTROLLED BANK ACCOUNTS 

The checkbooks and statements relative to the two bank accounts 
in Mr. Tedeschi's name were kept at Judge Bonafield's law office. 
Mr. Tedeschi testified that until July, 1972, he never saw a check­
book or a bank statement relative to those accounts and had no 
idea how much money had passed through them: 

Q. Now, Mr. Tedeschi, did you ever see the bank 
statements for the trust account or the regular 
account, /i"st of all, prior to July of 1972? 

A. No, sir. 

Q. Did you ever see the cancelled checks or the 
check stubs for eithe,' account prior to July of 1972? 

A. No, sir. 

Q. What did you, in fact, see in July of 1972? 
A. In July of 1972 Mr. Bonafield came to my home 

in the evening, and I think he had a paper bag he 
had two books in, checkbooks, and he gave them to 
me. He says, "Here." And so I took a look at them 
and I saw things were missing and I asked him where 
the cancelled checks were. He said, "I don't know." 

Q. You asked Mr. Bona/ield at that time where 
the other checks were? 

A. Where the cancelled checks were. 

Q. Where the cancelled checks were. This was an 
account in your name and you were asking him where 
the cancelled checks were and he didn't know? 

A. (Nodding affirmatively.) 
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Q. I take it, then, sir, that the only thing he gave 
to you were the unused checks drawn on the tr'!!st and 
the regular account? 

A. Yes, everyimng I gave to Mr. Gildea--

Q. Yes, I'm just trying to get your recollection of 
that, Mr. Tedeschi. 

Mr. Tedeschi, were you aware at any time prior to 
your first appearance before the Commission in execu­
tive session that some $60,000 had gone through the 
trust account? 

A. No, sir. 

Q. Were you aware at any time prior to your first 
appearance before the Commission in executi1Je 
session that some $16,000 had gone through the 
regular account? 

A. No, sir. 

Q. As far as you knew, Mr. Tedeschi, who con­
trolled the trust account and the regular account? 

A. Mr. Bonafield. 

SOME INTERESTING SIGNATURES 

Using legal action papers discovered by Mr. Gildea in his in­
vestigation as exhibits, Attorney Tedeschi identiiied a number of 
signatures purporting to be his as not being his: 

Q. All right. Mr. Tedeschi, I'm now going to ask 
you to eXa'mine various pleadings with respect to 
actions that were instituted after January of 1970 and 
which we have identified from the bank records of the 
Marino Tedeschi Regular-Trt!st Account of having 
been instituted out of the 1458 Main Avenue office. 
These are Exhibits C·115 through C-134. Now, I will 
identity them and ask yo~! questions concerning them 
one by one. 

Would you look at the complaint filed in Attenello, 
A-t-tce-n-e-l-l·o, v. Grand Union, which was com­

menced in October 14, 1970, and will you look at the 
signature at the bottom of the complaint? 

A. I'm looking, sir. . 
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Q. AU right. Is that your signature? 
A. No, sir. 

Q. All right. Look at C-116, which is a substitution 
of attorney in the same action. I've got to find these 
documents first. They're not in order. If you will just 
excuse me for a moment. 

Yes. Now, you will notice that on C-116-let me 
ask you first, is that your signature on the substitution 
of attorney? 

A. No, sir. 

Q. The language of the substitution of attorney is, 
I hereby s1f,bstitute in rny place and stead as attorney 
for the plaintiff Malcolm N. Bohrod B-o-h-r-o-d, Esq., 
maintaining offices at 1180 Raymond Boulevard, New­
ark, New Jersey,", and the signature is "Marino 
Tedeschi" and you're saying that's not your signa­
ture? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. Do you know who Malcolrn Bohrod is? 
A. I know he's an attorney, but outside of that I 

don't knowwho he is. 

Q. Do you know him to be an attorney practicing 
compensation in Newark? 

A. No, I don't know that. I just know he's an 
attorney. 

• • " • * 
Q. C-117 is a. complaint in Celentano v. Doremus. 

Now, would you look at the signature? 
This complaint, by the way, was commenced July 

27, 1.970. Would you look at the signature at the 
bottom of the complaint? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. It that your signature? 
A. No, sir. 

Q. It's your name, isn't it? 
A. Yes, sir. 

Q. AU right. Would yOu look at G-118, which is a 
stipulation in the same action? Would you look at 
the signature" Marino Tedeschi"? 

A. Yes, sir. 
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Q. Is that your signature? 
A. No, sir. 

• * * * 

Q. All right. Would you look now atO-120, which 
is a complaint filed in February of 1971 in Chornko, 
C-h-o-m-k-o, v. Center Savings and Loan Association 
of Clifton, and would you look at the signature on the 
bottom of the complaint? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Is that your signature? 
A. No, sir. 

Q. Now, C -121 is an action filed in the Superior 
Court Didio v. Sylvestri, and the action was com­
menced in April of 1970. I direct your attention to the 
signature on the complaint and I ask you to tell me it 
that's your signature. 

A. No, sir. 

Q. Now, will you also look at C-122, which isa sub­
stitution ot attorney in the same action, dated June 
16,1970, whereby Marino Tedeschi substitutes Joseph 
Piscopo, P-i-s-c-o-p-o, as an attorney for the plaintiff, 
Is that your signature? 

A. No, sir. 

Q. Now, would you look at C-123, which is a com .. 
plaint filed in the Passaic County District Court, 
Mackey, M-a-c-k-e-y, v. The City of Passaic, and 
the complaint was filed in June 7, 1971. You will notice 
the.signature" Marino Tedeschi" at the bottom of the 
complaint. Is that your signature? 

A. No; sir. 

Q. Now, if you look at C-124, it is a stipulationof 
dismissal in that action, dated January 3rd, 1972. 
There is the signature " Marino Tedeschi." Is that 
your signature? It's the second page of that attach­
ment. 

A. Yes, I see it, sir. 
No, it's not my signature. 

Q. Not your signature. All right. Would you look 
at C-125, which is a complaint in Rivera, R~i-v"e-r-a; v. 
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Fronduto, F-r-o-n-d-u-t"o, filed in the Passaic COtmty 
District Court September 20th, 1971, and would you 
look at the signature at the bottom which purpo.-ts 
to be "Marino Tedeschi." Is that your signature? 

A. No, sir. 

Q. Mr. Tedeschi, would you now look at C-126, 
which is a substitution of attorney in the same action 
whereby Marino .Tedeschi substitutes kIalcolm N. 
Bohrod as attorney for the plaintiff, and it's dated 
February 29, 1972. Is that your s'ignature? 

A .. No, sir. 

Q. Would you look at C-127, tohich is a complaint 
in Stoepker, S-t-o-e-p-k-e-r, an infant, v. John W. 
Meyer, an action filed in the Passaic County District 
Court, and would you look at the signature at the 
bottom of the complaint.~ 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Is that your signature? 
A. No, sir. 

Q. And the complaint was filed on December 21, 
1970. Would yot.look at C-121, Mr. Tedeschi, which 
-I mean C-128, which is a substit'ution of attorney 
in that action, dated May 3rd, 1971, whereby Marino 
Tedeschim.bsf'itutes Joseph Piscopo. It that your 
signature, sir? 

A. No, sir. 

Q. Now, let's look at C-129, which is a complaint 
in the case of Stout v. Trenz, T-r-e-n-z, and the com­
plaint was filed April 26, 1971, and there is a signature 
which purports to be" Marino Tedeschi" as attorney 
for the plaintiff. Is that your signature? 

A. No, sir. 

* * * * 

Q. Well, we'll go through the rest of these then. 
Would YOt. look at C-130, which is an order for 

judgment entered in the Stout case, and the order for 
judgment is dated January 27, 1972. There is a signa­
ture "Marino Tedeschi." Is that your signature? 

A. No, sir. 

104 



Q. Well, that's well after May of '71, isn't it? 
A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And you will notice that there is a representa­
tion in the first paragraph of the order for judgment 
that, "This action having come on for trial before 
the Honorable Joseph M. Harrison, sitting without 
a jury on January 18, 197.2, with Malcolm N. Bohrod 
appearing for Marino Tedeschi, attorney for plain­
tiff, and Robert Trenz and Nancy Trenz, defendants, 
appearing pro se." Did you know that Bohrod was 
appearing for you in that action? 

A. No, sir. 

Q. You didn't even know the action had been filed, 
did you? 

A. No, sir. 

Q. All right. Would you please, Mr. Tedeschi, look 
at C-131, which is an action which was filed in the 
Superior Court of the State of New Jersey entitled 
Szanto, S-z-a-n-t-o, v. Morzck, M-o-r-z-c-k. The co.n­
plaint was filed June 8, 1970. Would you look at the 
signature? Is that your signature, "Marino 
Tedeschi" ? 

A. No, sir. 

Q. Would you now direct your attention to C-13.2 
which is a complaint filed in the Passaic County 
District Court, George Welkey, l'V-e-l-k-e-y, v. Clifton 
Hydraulic Press Co. The action was commenced 
November 1, 1971. It is purportedly signed by Marino 
Tedeschi as attorney for the plaintiff. Is that your 
signature? 

A. No, sir. 

Q. Again, this ~uas after your May '71 conversa­
tion with Judge Bonafield. 

Would you look at C-133, which is an answer to 
counterclaim filed in the sa1ne action, dated November 
.26,1971. Would you look, first of all, on the first page, 
the signature "Marino Tedeschi." Is that your 
signature? 

A. No, sir. 
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Q. Would you look on the second page where there 
is another signature, "Marino Tedeschi"? Is that 
your signature? 

A. No, sir. 

Q. And that one was notarized by Gharlotte L. 
Siderits on November 26th, 1971? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. SO it would be your testimony-that she notar­
ized a signature that wasn't yours? 

-A. That is correct, sir. 

Q. Now, would you look at G-134, which is a sub­
stitttfion of attorney Bonafield in the same action, 
dated February 29, 1972, whereby Marino Tedeschi 
substitutes Malcolm N. Bohrod as attorney for the 
plaintiff? Is that your signature on the second page? 

A. No, sir that's not my signature. 

In subsequent testimony, Mr. Tedeschi was emphatic that he had 
never authorized anyone to sign his name on the aforementioned 
legal papers: 

Q. Did you ever authorize anyone to sign your 
name--

A. No, sir. 

Q. -to summonses and complaints in any of the 
actions which I have shown you? 

A. No, sir. 

-Q. Did you ever authorize anyone to s.gn your 
name on a substitution of attorney? 

A. No, sir. 

Q. Did you ever authorize anyone to sign your 
name on the various orders and judgments that you 
have seen? 

A. No, sir. 

_ Q. Did you ever dictate or prepare summonses an~ 
complaints in any of the actions which I have just 
shown you? 

A. No, sir. 
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Q. Did you ever have any conversations with 
Charlotte Siderits concerning the language of the 
complaint in any of those actions? 

A. No, sir. 

Q. Do you have any recollection of any conversa­
tion with Mrs. Siderits concerning the use of your 
name in preparation of these summonses and com­
plaints? 

A. No, sir. 

* * * * * 
Q. Now, did you know that stationery was going to 

be prepared in your name; that is, having your letter­
head and showing the 1458 Main Avenue address? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And who did you understand was go.ing to be 
paying for that stationery? 

A. Mr. Bonafield. 

TEDESCHI WANTED OUT 

One of the aforementioned cases, Stout v. Trene, in which an 
imitation of Counsellor Tedeschi's signature was affixed to legal 
papers without his authorization or knowledge, aroused particular 
recollections in Mr. Tedeschi's mind, because incidents attendant 
to that case prompted Mr. Tedeschi to attempt to sever connec­
tions with Judge Bonafield: 

Q. Mr. Tedeschi, do you have any recollection of 
this action, Stout v. Trenz? 

A. Yes. I remember this matter because-of 
course, I don't remember the date, but I have an 
answering service, and one day my answering service 
called me and said to me that Judge Ciolino was 
looking for me. 

Q. Judge Ciolino, C-i-o-l-i-n-o? 
A. Yes. 

Q. He is a Passaic County District Court Judge? 
A. Yes. I think he might be a Superior Court 

judge now. 
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Q. But at that time? 
A. He was a district court judge. 
And I didn't know why Judge Oiolino would be 

looking for me, so I called Judge Oiolino, you know, 
because he knows me and I wanted to know why he 
was looking for me. He indicated there was a matter· 
in court at that time; that if I wasn't there the next 
ten or fifteen minutes, or sometimB, the case would 
be dismissed. Well, of course, I wasn't aware of any 
case and I wanted to know the name of the case and 
the nature of the matter, and Judge Oiolino told me 
what it was. 

So, after that I called Judge Bonafield in Newark 
and I told him about Judge Oiolino calling me, and I 
had always been on very friendly terms with .J udge 
Oiolino because I knew him when he was a magistrate 
in Clifton. I used to appear there when I was in the 
prosecutor's office. And I told him that I didn't want 
anything more to do with him or anything of that 
nature. I says I'm being embarrassed and I'm getting 
in trouble and I just didn't want anything to do with 
him. 

Q. What did Judge Bonafield say to you? 
A. He indicated that it was all right with him. He 

indicated that this particlUlar gentleman was a relative 
of his of some type, and I didn't care about that. I 
just didn't want anything more to do with him, and 
he said words to the effect it's all right. 

Q. Well, did he tell you he was going to discontinue 
using your name at that time? 

A. No, he just said it was all right with him. In 
other words, I didn't want anything further to do 
with him. He said words to that effect, it was all 
right. 

Q. And did he ask YOt. whether or not you were 
still interested in sharing the proceeds of any matters 
which might have been instituted out of that office? 

A. N o. We just had an argument and we had, like I 
say, kind of-I was very angry about it and that was 
the nature and substance of the-- . 
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Q. Well, did you learn that he did not discontinue 
using your name after that date? 

.A. No, I really didn't. 

Q. Well, the date of that, you say the date of that 
discussion with Judge Bonafield was in October of 
1971? 

.A. Oh, no; oh, no. 

Q. Well, the complaint in this action was filed in 
April of 1971. There teas an order to disntiss the co,n­
plaint entered in September, September 22, 1971, 
which would have been about the time you would have 
gotten the call front .htdge Ciolino. Now, did you have 
a telephone conversation with Judge Bonafield after 
you got that telephone call? 

.A. Well, somehow I thought it was probably in 
May. I don't know what made me think it was May. 
That's the impression I had. 

Q. May of '71? 
.A. Yes. 

Q. That's when you had the conversation? 
.A. Yes, I think. Yes, that's the impression I had. 

Q. Do you know he, in fact, continued to use your 
name after that date? 

.A. No, I didn't. 

VISITS FROM THE JUDGE 

Mrs. Charlotte Siderits was the only secretary in Judge Bona­
field's law offices in Clifton during 1962-70. Mrs. Siderits, testify­
ing with a grant of witness immunity, first told of Judge Bona­
field's visiting her shortly before she was subpcenaed to appear 
before the Commission: 

Q. Now, is it a fact that on Sunday, May 6th, four 
days prior to your having been subpoenaed, Judge 
Bonafield came to your house? 

.A. Yes. 

Q. You will have to talk into the microphone. 

Q. Was that nn unannounced visit? 
.A. Yes. 
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Q. When was the last time you had seen Judge 
Bonafield before that .visit? 

A. I beg your pardon 1 

Q. When was the last time you had seen him before 
the visit? 

A. Probably November or December. Early 
December was the last. 

Q. Of 1972? 
A. Yes. 

Q. At about the time your employment ter­
minated? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Now, on the occasion of his visit to you on Sun­
day, May 6th, did he make any reference about the 
rent arrangement? 

A. Yes, he did. 

Q. And what did he say concerning that? 
A. Well, he made a statement that he felt that he 

could wind down his practice and that he could rent 
out his office for $250, and futures. 

Q. Do you have any reason to knotu why he felt it 
necessary to make that explanation to you on Sunday, 
the day before you had been subpoenaed? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What do you know to be the reason? What did 
you understand to be his reason? 

A. He told me that I was-that he had testified 
and that I might be called in to testify at a public 
hearing. 

Q. And did he describe to yOt! what a public hear- . 
ing was? 

A. That it would likely get in the newspaper and 
that there would-the public is allowed· at the 
session. 

Q. Did he say words, in substance or effect, thqt it 
wOt!ld be in front of a lot of people? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. Did you then tell him you couldn't liOssibly do 
. that? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And then did he tell you you could always plead 
the Fifth Amendment? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Now, did he make a second visit to you? 
A. Yes. 

Q. Was that two days later, on Tuesday, May 8th? 
A. Yes. 

Q. And at this time did he say to you that it wasn't 
just a possibility of you being subpoenaed, that it was 
probable? 

A. That it was, yes. 

Q. Almost a certainty? 
A. Yes. 

Q. Did he indicate how he knew that? 
Mr. Feinstein: Don't guess. If you don't know, you 

don't know. 
A. I don't remember. 

Q. You don't remember whether he had any in­
dication Or explanation as to how he knew that. Didn 'f 
you ask him? 

A. I'm sure he did, but I just can't think. 

Q. Well, did he indicate that John Celentano told 
him? 

A. That's right, yes. 

Q. He said John----
A. He said John Celentano had been served that 

mormng. 

Q. Now, does Mr. Bonafield-does he have any 
reason to know that you are a highly nervous person? 

A. Yes. 

THE JUDGE PRACTICES LAW 

In late 1969 or early 1970, Judge Bonafield informed Mrs. 
Siderits that because of the prohibition against practicing law, he 
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had made arrangements with Mr. Tedeschi to take over th8' law 
offices in Clifton. Mrs. Siderits, however, testified that Judge 
Bonafield retained control of the law practice and office and con­
tinued to be her employer: 

Q. Now, what were your office hours during the 
period commencing with Janua'ry of 1970? 

A. Four hours on Tuesday afternoon and four 
hours on Friday afternoon. 

Q. And that was from one till five? 
A. Yes. 

Q. That had been your procedure pr'ior? 
A. Prior, yes. 

Q. And you were paid On an hourly basis? 
A. Yes. 

Q. And who did you understand to be paying your 
wages? 

A. Mr. Bonafield . 

* • * • • 
Q. Well, were there pending legal matters in which 

Judge Bonafield had been the attorney of record in 
which Marino Tedeschi had to be s1tbstituted as 
attorney of record? 

A. It was never a written substitution, but he had 
told me that Mr. Tedeschi would take over the files. 

Q. But there was, in fact, no substitution? 
A. No. 

Q. All right. Now, during the years 1970, '71 and 
'72, from whom did you get most of your instruc­
tions? 

A. Mr. Bonafield. 

Q. By the way, when did your relationship with the 
office terminate? 

A. Either in late Nov. or early Dec., I believe. 

Q. Of 1972'# 
A. Yes. 

Q. And whom did you look to as your employer? 
A.' Mr. Bonafield. 
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Q. And who did you understand to be, again the 
source of your wages? 

A.. Mr. Bonafield. 

Q. All right. Now, with respect to transfers out of 
the trustee account to the regular account, on whose 
instructions did you make those transfers? 

A.. Mr. Bonafield. 

Q. With respect to disbursements md of the 
regular account, upon w.hose instructions did you 
make those disbursements? 

A.. Mr. Bonafield. 

Q. With respect to lawsuits which were instituted 
out of the 1458 Main Office during 1970, '71 and '72, 
upon whose instmctions did you institute those law­
suits? 

A.. Mr. Bonafield. 

Q. Who dictated the legal documents to you? 
A.. Mr. Bonafield. 

Q. Upon whose instructions did you prepare snm­
monses and complaints and pay filing fees? 

A.. Mr. Bonafield. 

Q. If you had questions concerning the language to 
be included in the complaints filed after January 7th, 
1970, with whom did you consult? 

A.. Mr. Bonafield. 

Q. Would you have occasion to call him at the 
compensation court in Newark? 

A.. Yes. 

Q. How often would that occur? 
A.. Oh, maybe ten times a year. 

Q. Upon whose instructions did you make case 
referrals to other attorneys? 

A. Mr. Bonafield. 

Q. Am I correct that upon Mr. Bonafield's in­
structions you referred cases to an attorney named 
Spielman? 

A.. Yes. 
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Q. An attorney named Piscopo.W 
A. Yes. 

Q. And an attorney named Bohrod? 
A. Yes. 

THE SIMULATED SIGNATURES 

Mrs. Siderits was unequivocal in her testimony that Judge Bona­
field knew she was simulating Mr. Tedeschi's signature on legal 
papers and notarizing some of those signatures: 

Q. Now, upon whose instructions did you affix the 
name 0 f Marino Tedeschi on s'U/YMlwnses and com­
plaints? 

A. Nobody told me to affix the signature. I mean, 
it just couldn't go out without a signature. 

Q. Well, who told you to type the name Marino 
Tedeschi at the bottom of the complaint? 

A. Mr. Bonafield. 

Q. Did he kniJW that you were signing Tedeschi's 
name? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Did you know that it was illegal to sign the 
name of an attorney to a complaint? 

A. No, I didn't. (Whereupon, the witness confers 
with counsel.) 

A. No, I didn't. 

Q. Did you assume that because Judge Bonafield 
knew you were signing the name, that it was okay to 
do it? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Were there occasions when you would forge 
Tedeschi's signature and then notarize the forgery? 

Mr. Feinstein: I would only object on behalf of my 
client, Mr. Chairman, to the use of the word 
"forgery". It could be with permission of somebody 
or facsimile. 

The Chairman: All right. 

Q. How about a facsimile? 
A. Yes. 
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. Q. When you facsimilated Mr. Tedeschi's stgna­
ture? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And then you would notarize the facsimile? 
Were there occasions? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Did Judge Bonafield know you were doing that? 
A. Yes .. 

Q. Did you have some guide to use in signing his 
name? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What did you use? 
A. A signature card. 

Q. And you then tried to make your signatul'e of 
Tedeschi look as the Tedeschi signature on the signa­
ture card? 

A. Yes. 
• * • • 

Q. All right. I take it Judge Bonafield never told 
you not to sign Marino Tedeschi's name? 

A. No. 

THE DISBURSEMENTS TO THE JUDGE DIDN'T EQUAL THE 

RENT 

As keeper of the checkbooks for the two bank accounts in Mr. 
Tedeschi's name, Mrs. Siderits soon had reason to know the 
amounts she was disbursing did not equal the purported rent pay-
ment figure: . 

Q. Now, as monies were received from settlements, 
closing or probate matters, would you make the 
deposits? 

A. I would prepare a deposit slip. 

Q. You would prepare deposit slips? 
A. Yes. 

Q. And when monies were transferred from the 
trustee account into the regular account, would you 
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prepare the checks which represented disbtwsements 
on the regular accounts? 

A. Yes. 
Q. They were always signed generally by whotn? 
A. Mr. Celentano, mostly. 

Q. Now, when it came time to make the disburse­
ments out of the regula·r account, I understand you.r 
testimony to be that you followed Mr. Bonafield's 
instructions with respect to the disbursements? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And how did he characterize the monies that he 
was to receive? Did he ever characterize them? 

A. I don't think so. 

Q. Well, was there a point in time when you knew 
that monies that you were disbursing to him co'ltldn't 
possibly be rent? 

A. The amounts were not the amount he had told 
me the rent was. 

THE ELUSIVE FIXTURES 

As previously noted, Judge Bonafield would direct Mrs. Siderits 
to make disbursements from the Tedeschi bank accounts. Mrs. 
Siderits was asked to testify about a particularly large disburse­
ment to the judge: 

Q. Well, let 'me put the question to you this way: 
Do you "emember making out a check to Judge Bona~ 
field for $2,500 in Dec. of 1970? 

A. Not until I saw it at the last hearing. 

Q. All right. When you saw it at the last hearing, 
did you have any recollection then as to what yot!r 
state of mind was when you prepared that check? 

A. No, because I remembered that that's the one 
he told me was for fixtures. 

Q. For fixtures? 
A. That's right. 

Q. In other words, this was reimbursement to him 
for fixtures in the office? 

A. That's what he told me. 
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Q. Well, had the,.e been new fixtures which had 
come in recently? 

A. No. 

Q. SO it couldn't have been for fixtures, could it? 
A. The office fixtures is what he said the check was 

for. 

Q. That was his explanation. You didn't question 
it. 

A. No, I didn't. 

LEGAL FEES ARE PAID 

Mrs. Siderits became aware of a coincidence in time between the 
division of proceeds from legal matters by Judge Bonrufield's 
office and the payment of money to the judge from the Tedeschi 
regular bank account. Mrs. Siderits was asked to testify about 
several specific incidents of legal fees charged after the Jan. 7, 
1970 cutoff date for Judges of Compensation to desist from any 
further practice of the law: 

Q. All right. Now, did you find that there was a 
coincidence in time between the division of proceeds 
from legal matters and the payment of monies to 
Bonafield? 

A. Yes. 

Q. All right. I will ask-let me ask this question 
first: Do you remember a client by the name of 
Misajets, M-i-s-a-j-e-t-s? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Do you remember that as a negligence action? 
A. Yes. 

Q. Do you remember it as one that was instituted 
after January 7, 197011 

A. I don't remember when it was instituted, but 
I'm sure it probably was if you're questioning me on 
it. 

Q. Well, it was, and I would like to show you three 
checks, which are marked 136, 137 and 138. The checks 
are dated June 24th, 1971, the date of the settlement. 
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They're drawn on The Hartford Insurance Group, 
and they were deposited on July 7, 1971, into the 
trustee account, and they total $2,460. 

Do you remember seeing those? 
A. I can't say that I remember, but I must have. 

Q. Well, let's see if we cotdd refresh your recollec­
tion. Keep those in front of you, if you would. 

Now, I want to show YOt! checks drawn on the trust 
account marked Exhibits 139, 140, and 141. The checks 
are dated JUly 9, 1971, and they're payable to the 
Misajets, and the total amount is $1,845. 

(Whereupon, the witness confers with counsel.) 
A. On the backs of the Hartford checks I tecognize 

that as my writing. 

Q. Your writing on the back of the-­
A. Yes. 

Q. SO you must have-­
A. Yes. 

Q. --deposited them in the trust account? 
A. Yes. 

Q. All right. Do you recognize YOttr writing on the 
checks drawn on the trust account payable to the 
Misajets? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You notice the date, July 9th? 
A. Yes. 

Q. And the total amount is $1,845'1 
A. Yes. 

Q. You can take my word for the add'ition. 
If we subtract $1,845 from $2,460, we come l!P with a little 

over $600. 
Now, I will show you Exhibit 0-142, which is a check 

which is a transfer from the trust account to the 
regular account in the amount of $600, dated July 6, 
1971, and ask you if that check is in your handwriting. 

A. Yes, it is. 

Q. As you sit here today can you tell me if that 
represents a transfer of proceeds h'om the trust 
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account to the regular account, proceeds "epresenting 
the Misajet settlement? 

A. Yes. 

Q. It does, does it not? 
A. (Nodding affirmatively.) 

Q. All right. Now, I will show you checks which 
are marked C-143-144 and 145. These checks Me 
drawn on the Marino Tedeschi Regular Account. The 
first one is payable to James J. Bonafield in the 
amount of $250, and it is dated July 6,1971. C-144 is 
payable to cash, endorsed by Bonafield, or endorsed 
to the account of Bonafield, dated July 9th, .1971, in 
the amount of $150. C-145 is payable to John R. 
Celentano in the amount of $25 and it is dated July 9, 
'71, and C-146, dated July 9, 1971, is payable to 
Marino Tedeschi, $150. It is marked" Misajet" in 
the upper left-hand corner. 

First of all, I would like you to examine these and 
tell me if they're in your handwriting. 

A. Yes. 

Q. And do they represent the division of the pro­
ceeds of the settlement of the Misajet case? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Out of which Judge Bonafield got $400; is that 
correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And Marino Tedeschi got $150? 
A. Yes. 

Q. Now, Mrs. Siderits, do you reme'mber the pro­
bate of an estate involving a Mrs. Schweighardt? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Do you remember if that estate was probated 
in May of 1972? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Do you recall that the fee for the probate of the 
will was $1,000? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. And who told you what to charge as a legal 
fee? 

A. Mr. Bonafield . 

* • * • * 
Q. All right. Now, do you recall, you were here 

this morning when Mr. Gildea testified concerning the 
Shannon closing? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you recall the statement that we read into 
the record purportedly signed by Mr. Shannon or Mrs. 
Shannon concerning their appointment at the 1458 
Main Avenue office. Do you recall them calling yO~b 
and making the appointment? 

A. No, I don't. 

Q. Do you recall being present? 
A. Yes. 

* * • • * 
Q. Do you recall on Nov. 30,1970, that a bill was 

sent out tbnder the name of Marino Tedeschi for an 
attorney's fee in the Shannon matter? 

A. Yes. 

Q. For $290. 
A. Yes. 

Q. Mr. Tedeschi hadn't done any work in connec-
tion with that, had he? 

(Whereupon, the witness confers with counseL) 
A. To my knowledge, he didn't. 

Q. To your knowledge he had not. 

THE AGREEMENT WAS A BLIND 

Because of incidents as cited above and her knowledge of the 
law offices' finances, Mrs. Siderits came to realize that the so-called 
agreement for Mr. Tedeschi to take over Judge Bonafield's law 
practice and pay rent in return had never materialized: 

The Chairman: Let me see if I can't get to the 
bottom of this. Mrs. Siderits, would you explain for 
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the benefit of this Commission what your understand­
ing was of the arrangement about the two-hundred­
fifty-dollar rent, please ~ 

The Witness: It didn't seem to be what he had 
originally told me. 

The Chairman: And why do you come to that con­
clusion it wasn't what he initially told you "I 

The Witness: Because Mr. Tedeschi wasn't doing 
any of the work. 

Examination by Commissioner Farley: 

Q. Mrs. Siderits, I only have one or two questions. 
Isn't it a fact that sometime in 1971 or '72 you real­
ized that the so-called rent agreement with Tedeschi 
was really a blind; there was no really rent arrange­
ment? 

A. There didn't seem to be. 

Q. And Bonafield was the man that was calling 
the shots? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And the accounts that were set up in the name 
of Tedeschi were really opemted and run by Bona­
field through yourself, right? 

A. Yes. 

The presentation of the facts relative to Judge Bonafield was 
completed by Special Counsel Diana's offering as an exhibit for 
the public record a state document filed with the Department of 
Labor and Industry and attested to by the Judge: 

Mr. Diana: I would now like to offer into evidence 
a document of the State of New Jersey, Department 
of Labor and Industry, Division of Administration, 
entitled "Conflict of Interest Questionnaire" as 
Exhibit C-149. It is dated March 31, 1971. The name 
of the individual signing· the document is James J. 
Bonafield. 

Under Section A of the document he says as 
follows: "I am not now engaged in any business, 
trade or profession outside of, or in addition to, my 
position with the Department of Labor and In­
dustry." 
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- . The certification at the bottom reads as follows: :"'1 
hereby certify that this conflict of interest questionc 
naire contains no willful misstatement of fact nor 
omission of material fact and that before I accept any 
outside employment or engage in any business activity 
outside of my position with the Department of Labor 
and Industry after the date of this questionnaire, I 
will submit a new questionnaire for decision by the 
Conflict of Interest Review Board," dated March 31, 
1971, James J. Bonafield. Exhibit C-149. 

RECOMMENDATION FOR DISMISSAL OF THE JUDGE· FROM 
OFFICE 

Immediately after the testimony relative to Judge Bonafield at 
the S.C.I. 's public hearings in June, 1973, State Labor and Industry 
Commissioner Ronald Heymann ordered the Judge be suspended 
from the Workmen's Compensation Bench. Subsequently, then 
Governor William T. Cahill appointed John J. Francis, a former 
Associate Justice of the New Jersey Supreme Court, as Hearing 
Examiner to conduct a public hearing concerning the charges that 
Judge Bonafield practiced law unlawfully while holding the office 
of Judge of Compensation. The hearings, which afforded Judge 
Bonafield the right of cross examination of witnesses and the 
opportunity to testify on his own behalf and present witnesses for 
his defense, were held in October, 1973. Mr. Francis, in December, 
1973,found in his report to the Governor that Judge Bonafield had 
unlawfully practiced law from January, 1970 to July, 1972 and 
recommended that the Governor dismiss Judge Bonafield from 
office. Mr. Francis wrote: 

After seeing and hearing the witnesses and study­
ing the transcript of their testimony and the many 
exhibits introduced, I am satisfied beyond a reason_ 
able doubt that Bonafield was engaged in the practice 
of law between January 1970 and July 1972 in viola­
tion of the statutory prohibition against doing so. I 
find also that the transgression did not occur through 
mistake, inadvertence or even negligence. It was done 
with premeditation, deliberation, and wilfulness, and 
represented a fully conscious decision to circumvent 
the statute. 
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Respondent offered evidence to be . utilized on the 
issue of penalty, if a finding of guilt was made. It 
consisted of the testimony of a number of attorneys 
who have substantial practice in the Workmen's Com­
pensation Division, as well as co-workers in the 
Division. They asserted that Bonafield was a compe­
tent and hard working Judge of Compensation. Con­
sideration has been given to that testimony in reach­
ing the determination I believe should be made with 
respect to the measure of discipline to be imposed 
upon Bonafield. 

I can find nothing to condone or excuse or mitigate 
his conduct. In my view the violation goes to the very 
heart of his qualification to be an administrative judge. 
The Supreme Court in Campbell v. Dept. of Civil 
Service, 39 N.J. 556, 582 (1963) declared that the 
elemental guides to judicial ethics which have been 
codified into formal rules to govern the conduct of 
judges in courts, apply alike to triers or quasi-judges 
in administrative agencies. Deputy-Commissioners 
sought and accepted the title of Judge of Compensa­
tion, and their actions when holding that office must 
meet the same standard of integrity as is imposed 
upon judges of the judicial department of govern­
ment. If lack of integrity is tolerated in those whose 
duties require them to engage in the judicial process, 
a mainstay of our government must become gangren­
ous. In the present day climate of our society that 
cannot be allowed to happen. 

Respondent's violation of the statute forbidding 
him to practice law is a more grevious transgression 
of law and ethics than those involved in Campbell v. 
Dept. of Civil Service, supra. and Russo v. The 
Governor of New Jersey, 22 N.J. 156 (1956). 
Under the circumstances the public interest can be 
served only by imposition of the severest of sanc­
tions. 

Accordingly, having found the respondent guilty 
beyond a reasonable doubt of the charge made against 
him, it is my recommendation that he be dismissed 
from office as a Judge of Compensation. 
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DISMISSAL Is ORDERED 

Governor Cahill in January, 1974, after review had been made 
of Mr. Francis '8 report and of objections filed by Judge Bonafield 
to that report, ordered that the Judge be dismissed from office. 
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SOME ABUSES IN "NEURO" AND 
HEAT TREATMENT 

S. Lawrence Torricelli, the attorney whose testimony about a 
judge's sale of law books to the law firm of Rabb and Zeitler has 
previously been set forth on pages 84 and 85, testified again at the 
public hearings as an expert witness relative to abuses in making 
unwarranted allegations of neuropsychiatric injury in Workmen's 
Compensation claims and to heat treatment excesses in compensa­
tion cases. Torricelli, before he became associated with Rabb and 
Zeitler, practiced law on his own in Hackensack; was employed by 
the late Jolm McGeehan, an eminent Newark attorney, and served 
as a Deputy State Attorney General and as a Referee of Com­
pensation. 

INVARIABLY THAT DOCTOR 

Mr. Torricelli upon joining the Woodbridge law firm found little 
or nothing had been done about its Workmen's Oompensation 
cases, and he set about organizing the firm's Oompensation De, 
partment. In that process, he came across a large number of claim 
petitions which set forth a basic allegation of low back injury, 
plus an additional allegation of neurosychiatric (which encom­
passes neurological) injury, with Dr. Herbert Boehm invariably 
the examining doctor for the "neuro" allegation. Torricelli 
testified about this overuse of "neuro" allegations and why they 
might be considered unwarranted allegations: 

Q. Well, let's see if I can clear this up a little bit. 
I take it that when you got there you may have 
observed that there were claim petitions involving 
soft tissue injuries to the low back in which there was 
also a claim for a neurological or a neuropsychiatt'ic 
disability? 

A. That's true, sir. 

Q. And that you WQ2,ld have found, I take it, that 
any examination and report by Dr. Boehm was in­
variably dated subsequent to the date of the claim 
petition; isn't that correct? 

A. As far as I know, yes. 
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Q. It was always dated after the claim petition? 
A. As far as I know, surely. 

Q. Which means, then, that the statement on the 
claim petition signed by the petitioner under oath 
concerning a neurological disability was probably 
untrue? 

. A. Well, that's a very difficult thing to answer. 
First of all,--

Q. Why is it so difficult to answer? 
A. I didn't have the opportunity of speaking to the 

clients. 

Q. I understand. 
A. I didn't have the opportunity of observing the 

client. But just let me say this: that on just the facts 
you have given me of the minor soft-tissue injury, I 
do not think that a neurological examination is 
warranted. 

PROPER PRACTICE AND A ~ARNING 

Mr. Torricelli gave his opinion as to the proper practice in alleg­
ing neuropsychiatric injury, told why he had reduced the use of Dr. 
Boehm to a minimum, and warned of the damage that could be 
done by careless and unwarranted practices in this area: 

Q. Well, what's your practice with respect to the 
reference to a neurologist or neuropsychiatric 
physician for the evaluation of disability? 

A. Well, I will refer a petitioner for such an exam­
ination if it's recommended by the orthopedist, first 
of all. Number two, in instances where there's 
plainly an injury of a neurological nature, such as a 
concussion, or if I have information relative to a 
particular client who has lost a major member like an 
arm or a leg. But it's got to be something significant. 

Q. SO significant that it would be obvious to you as 
a practitioner that the petitioner was suffering from 
some neurological overlay or some neuropsychiatric 
overlay? 

A. Yes, in instances where it's obvious. 
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Q. Well, supposing that the petitioner came in and 
said he injured his back while lifting a barrel or a 
drum or something of that nature at work. Would you 
refer him to Dr. Boehm fo1'--

A. On those facts alone, per se, no. 

Q. No. Did you find that that had been done before 
you became associated with Rabb and Zeitler? 

A. Well, in such cases as I have had occasion to 
review yes. 

Q. Yes, that it had been done. And I take it that 
y01b have found that there we-re a great number of 
cases, in fact, I think I told you at your private hear­
ing that there were so-mething like 200 in the period 
1969 through the middle of 1971, where D1·. Boeh1n was 
evaluating neuropsychiatric disability for Rabb db 
Zeitler, and I think you said you were surprised to 
find 01d that there were that many. Is that correct, 
sir? 

A; Yes, I was completely amazed. 

Q. Yes. And I take it that after that date your use 
of Dr. Boehm was considerably less; is that so? 

A. It's down to an absolute minimum. 

Q. All right. Can you tell me the reason for that? 
A. Well, for the reason that I have already out-

lined to you, and I don't see any reason fOor it, to 
begin with, and I don't want to put myself in the 
positiOon of alleging a disability or trying to bnild one 
up where it's not there. 

Q. Well, yes. And I think I asked you that very 
same question at your private hearing and you said 
something like this in answer to my question: you 
said, "The petition bears a signed oath by the peti­
tioner wherein the petitioner certifies that he has cer­
tain complaints. Now, certainly if a petitioner in good 
faith does not have these neuropsychiatric complaints, 
I'm not about to allege them." 

A. That's quite true, sir, I did say that. 

Q. That was your answer to my question why 
you---

A. And I will reaffirm that answer now as well. 
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Q .. Right. So that if I might summarize--1Jou 
con'eet me if I'm wrong, sir-your much less freq~;ent 
use of D1". Boehm as opposed to the use that had been 
made of him prior to the time you came to Rabb and 
Zeitler was because you didn't want yo~;r clients .to 
be signing a statement unde,. oath that wasn't true? 

A. That's quite true, and then I have another 
reason which I would like to outline. 

Sometimes you can do an individual a great deal of 
harm by letting him think that he's a neuropsychiatric 
case. I mean a lot of these people are uneducated, and 
right away they think that they're neuros, and you 
can do a man a great deal of harm that way where 
it's not warranted. In other words, to put it in plain 
language, the working man comes out of the entire 
hearing with a belief that he's crazy. 

Q. Yes. If I understand you correctly, sir, you're 
telling me that many of your clients might not have 
a complete education, end they might be fearf2d of 
the-let's put it this way: If you were to send hirn to 
a neuropsychiatric man, they may not understand the 
reason, it may create or generate a fear in them which 
shouldn't hnve been there in the first plnce? 

A .. That's exactly, and you may find yourself in a 
position where you may be creating a neurosis where 
there's none to begin with. 

Q. You might be helping it along? 
A. Yes. And I might like to outline another reason 

as well. In handling compensation cases, we're deal­
ing with peoples' lives, and by that I mean this: that 
you take a young man who's just starting out in busi­
ness or industry and you give him a record of 
neuropsychiatric claim, it goes on his record and it's 
apt to hurt him. 

Q. In other words, if there had been a rather care­
less allegation of neuropsychiatric disability which 
just sh02dd happen to result in a finding of neuro­
psychiatric disnbility, that stays on the man's work 
record and that could prejudice him? 

A. That's exactly it. 
Let me put it this way, sir: I wouldn't want it 

alleged against any member of my family, my son or 
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my daughter, so I'm not about to inflict this label care· 
lessly and wantonly on any person unless, of course, 
the facts actually warrant it and there's a neuro· 
psychiatric disability and the truth has to be faced 
and the man is entitled to be paid for it. 

Q. I understand, sir. I think what you're telling 
rne is that an attorney should use extreme care in the 
allegation of neuropsychiatric disabilty? 

A. That's right. As a matter of fact, an attorney 
should use extreme care in anything that they allege, 
which is something that I learned through the years 
and also was fortified by my association with Mr. 
McGeehan. 

• * 
Q. So if you're going to allege this willy-nilly as 

an attorney, I suppose you have to have some belief 
that you're going to be held up or substantiated, or 
confir1'ned rather, by your neuro, your neurologist? 

A. I think you have a rather fair anticipation that 
it will be. 

HIGH HEAT TREATMENT BILLS 

Besides reducing the use of Dr. Boehm's services to a minimum, 
Mr. Torricelli also put an end to the Rabb and Zeitler practice of 
running up large bills for unauthorized heat treatments in com· 
pensation cases from a set of favored trea,ting doctors. Mr. 
Torricelli testified additionally that the same set of doctors sub­
mitting high treatment bills in compensation cases were also used 
by Rabb and Zeitler in their negligence action cases: 

Q. Yes. Now, when you became aware-and I 
should pTeface this question by saying you probably 
have already answered it, considering the lack or 
ratheT the reduced frequency with which you now 
use Dr. Boehm. But in case the record isn't clear, 
when you became aware of Rabb <f; Zeitler's practice 
to send clients to Dr. Boehm without a propeT medical 
referral, did you take steps to discontinue that 
practice? 

A. Yes, I did. First of all, I told them when I went 
there that I wouldn't take over this practice unless 
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I was given absolutely a free hand. I mean as far as 
my job is concerned I was to have no outside inter­
ference at all. 

Q. And, in fact, your, shall w,e say, compensation 
section of Rcibb and Zeitler is physically in a different 
place? 

A. As a matter of fact, it's physically moved. 
We're down inthe basement. 

Q. Yes. 
A. With no windows. 

* • • • • 
Q. Now, Mr. Torricelli, when you arrived on the 

scene at Rabb d!; Zeitler, and, now with respect to their 
compensation practice, did you make any observations 
with respect to their resort to certain doctors who 
administered heat treatment? . 

A. Well, I would very frequently come across bills 
from Dr. Brandwein in the file. And who was the 
other man? Dr.--

Q. Dr. Gordon? 
A. Dr. Gordon. And Twas at a complete loss to 

understand what in heaven's name they were doing 
there, because they were completely unauthorized, and 
I'd go to court with these bills and I could never 
collect them. 

Q. Well, I think we better take this step by step. 
F'irst, let me ask you, what is the definition in a com­
pensation case of unauthorized treatment? 

A. Well, any treatment that is not afforded or 
sanctioned by the insurance carrier, or treatment that 
is not emergency treatment. 

Q. Yes. And if the carrier after you made applica­
tion to him should reject your request for treatment 
and you as an attorney felt that there should be 
further' treatment, what would be the proper and 
legal thing for the attorney to do? -

A. Well, the proper legal thing to do is to make a 
motion for medical treatment. However, if the client 
is in need for immediate medical care, you can't wait 
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around for this motion to be listed, and I would like to 
say something about these motions a little latllr. 

Q.Yes. 
, . A. You then write a letter or communicate with the 
carrier and tell them that your client is in need of 
emergency care and you're directing the client to go 
to Dr. X or to the hospital; if they have any objec­
tions, to let you know i=ediately. 

Q. But I take it that the emergency situation is a 
'rare one? I mean, it isn't going to happen every day? 

A. It's going to be very rare. It's got to be a situa­
tion where a man has a disc and he just can't move. 
But in the ordinary run-of-the-mill back case it's not 
that bad. 

Q. Well, did you find that prior to the time you had 
come to Rabb db Zeitler. there were several cases, 
several compensation cases, where in the ordinary 
run-of-the-mill back case they had incurred the cost 
of heat treatment On behalf of the client? 

A. Well, I'm at a loss to know what treatment was 
rendered because I didn't see any reference to heat or 
the diathermy or anything. I just saw bills. 

Q. Well, did you see--1AJhen you saw these big bills 
from Dr. Brandwein, I think you said at one point 
there was one for $400 on a case? 

A.That's right. 

Q. The settlement value of the case was far less, 
was less tha~ 

A. That's right, the case was tried to a conclusion 
and the petitioner got 2¥2 of total, which is $550. Dr. 
Brandwein was ruled unauthorized. 

Q. Yes. 
, A. And, therefore, uncollectable. 80--

Q. Well, did you understand the natu,"e of the treat­
ment that these doctors like Brandwein were pro-
viding? . 

.. A. I have no idea, sir. I really don't know what 
tliey were doing. If I knew, I'd tell you, but I just 
don't know because the bills didn't specify what they 
were doing. 
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Q. There was no itemization on the bill? 
A. VV \!ll, I'd see some bill from Dr. Mandell, for 

instance, chiropractor. He had X-ray and then he 
had a re-X-ray and then he had a laboratory fee. I 
said, "What in the hell is a chiropractor doing with 
laboratory fees 1 " and then every time you turn around 
he's re-X-raying again. Of course, I would completely 
discount these bills and I couldn't collect them in 
court. Impossible. 

Q. Well, what did you do, then, when you got there 
and discontinued that practice? 

A. Well, first of all I wouldn't refer the client out 
to anyone. I never sent anyone to Dr. Brandwein, 
I never sent anyone to Dr. Gordon. I would pursue the 
proper legal remedy of going back to the carrier and 
asking for medical treatment, and if that didn't work, 
then I would go ahead with my motion for medical 
intent. 

Q. Yes. Now, did you have a,'1f idea as to the total 
number of doctors utilized by Rabb dI; Zeitler on behalf 
of their clients for treatment? I won't say heat treat­
ment, because apparently you couldn't see anything 
on the bill which indicated that. You can take my 
word for it, it was heat treatment. 

A. Well, the only doctors I was aware of that were 
being used, and I understand they were being used 
in the liability department and negligence, were Drs. 
Gordon, Lopez--

Q. Lopez? 
A. Brandwein. 

Q. Mandell? 
A. And Mandell. 

Q. And did yo,~ understand that they were also 
being used to treat compensation cases? 

A. Well, they were before I went there, but not 
after I took over. 

Q. I mean before you went there. You found bills 
in the compensation files? 

A. Yes, they were in there. 
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Q. Reflecting treatment by these doctors in com­
pensation cases? 

A. Yes. 

Q. SO that you would describe Drs. Lopez, Gordon, 
Mandell and Brandwein as favored treating doctors 
tor Rabb d!; Zeitler? 

A. I suppose they were. 

Q. Yes. 
A. I mean insofar as I came across. 

Q. And when you got thel'e, you discontinued the 
practice ot sending these clients to treating doctors 
without authorization? 

A. That's right. 

Mr. Torricelli told of a problem area in the processing in the 
Workmen's Oompensation Oourts of motions for additional medical 
treatment and how a strong Director of the Workmen's Oompensar 
tion Division might alleviate that problem: 

A. I want to bring out this question of motions 
. for medical treatment which the law affords ns. The 
remedy is there. However, it is very poorly exercised 
because these motions don't get listed in the Division. 
They don't get listed. They get lost in the shuffle, 
and I have to keep calling on the telephone and cajol­
ing the personnel to please list these motions. 

Q. Well, these motions--
A. In the meantime, the client is not getting any 

treatment, the client is not being paid. 

Q. Can you account tor that in any way.~ 
A. I think what they need is a good effective 

director to straighten out the whole thing, sit dOVlIl. 
with the personnel,sit down with the girls, show them 
what to do. Yon know, remedy is one thing, but 
exercise it. 

Q. Considering the n~fmber of people who have 
come in to testfy at these hearings about the need for 
a good, effective director, I would say this poor 
gentleman is going to be working twenty-four hours 
a day. 

A. I just hope he measures up to it. 
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SOME HEAT TREATMENT FALSITIES 

The Commission's investigation led to questions being raised as 
to legitimacy of some high treatment bills submitted to Rabb and 
Zeitler .by Dr. Boehm in legal actions being handled by that firm. 
As a result, the Co=ission's agents interviewed at random some 
of the doctor's former patients involved in those actions to check 
the validity of treatment bills rendered. In the instances of three 
patients, the Commission was informed they had visited the doc­
tor's office less time than listed on the bills rendered by Dr. Boehm. 

A GLARING EXAMPLE 

One of the patients is Mrs. Lydia Jiminez of Perth Amboy who 
was represented by Rabb and Zeitler in a negligence action arising 
from injuries she suffered in an automobile accident in 1969. Mrs. 
Jiminez first went to her family doctor but was subsequently sent 
by Rabb and Zeitler to a doctor who for about five months gave 
her massage and heat treatments for the lower back twice a week: 
When she continued to complain of nervonsness, she was directed 
to Dr. Boehm who, after initial examination, gave her heat type 
treatments which Mrs. Jiminez found quite an odd· step for 
a psychiatric doctor. Mrs. Jiminez testified about those treatments, 
her termination of visiting Dr. Boehm, and the falsification of the 
bill submitted by Dr. Boehm to Rabb and Zeitler: 

Q. What kind of a doctor did you understand Dr. 
Boehm to be? 

A. Psychiatrist. 
Q. A psychiatrist. Now, when you got to Dr. 

Boehm, what kind of treatment did he administer? 
A. Funniest one. 

Q. It was a funny one, yes. 
A. Because he just locked me up in this room, which 

I call a closet, with a heat lamp and a pair of dark 
glasses. 

Q. All right. You say he gave you a funny treat­
'I'Iwnt, he locked you up in a small closet with a heat 
lamp, a .chair and a pair of dark glasses? 

A.· Yes, sir. 

Q. All right. Now, how often did you go to Dr. 
Boehm for treatment? 

A. I was supposed to go there twice a week. 
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Q. Yes. 
A. But I didn't make it up that way. 

Q. The first week how often? Did you make the 
two visits the first week? 

A. The first week, yes. Then I skipped. 

Q. Then you skipped a week? 
A. Then I went hack. 

Q. And how many visits did you make to him 
altogether? 

A. Six altogether. 

Q. You're pretty clear on that, are you, that it was 
six? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. All right. Now, did something happen on the 
occasion of the sixth visit which helped you to re­
member why it was the last visit? 

A. Because I had an argument with Dr. Boehm. 

Q. What did that argument consist of? 
A. Well, I complained about the treatment. I 

thought that's not the kind of treatment I went there 
for. 

Q. Did you tell him that you're not that bad; that 
T don't need that kind of treatment. I could lock 
myself in my own closet. 

A. That's right. 

Q. Is that what you told him? 
A. Yes, sir. 

Q. You walked out and didn't go back? 
A. I told him not to wait for me, I wasn't coming 

back. 

Dr. Boehm's bill and attendant correspondence in the Jiminez 
case were marked as an exhibit. Mrs. Jiminez's testimony pro­
ceeded with reference to that exhibit: 

Q. And you will note that the letter in the second 
paragraph says as follows, and I shall read it for the 
record: "At the request of Dr. Pollen I originally 
examined the patient in my office on October 29, 1969. 
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At that time she complained of pressure in her chest, 
frequent headaches and nervousness and restlessness. 
I saw the patient at regular intervals on thirty-nine 
occasions from November 6, 1969 to July 30, 1970. 
The patient suffered from a post-concussion syndrome 
plus post-traumatic neurosis following injury of the 
left frontal head. She rficeived tranquilizers, anal­
gesics, reassurance and foradic galvanic treatment," 
which interpreted into English means heat treatment. 

Now, you will notice, Mrs. Jiminez, that the bill 
annexed to those two letters indicated that he ex­
amined yot, on Nov. 29, 1969 and thereafter treated 
you on thirty-nine separate occasions ~,p through 
July 30, 1970. Insofar as that bill reflects a treatment 
of you on thirty-nine occasions, is that bin true or 
false? 

A. That's false. 

Q. Because you were only there six times; is that' 
correct? 

A. Six times altogether. 

After Mrs. Jiminez testified before the Commission Feb. 14, 1973 
in private session, she, was visited by M,essrs. Rabb and Zeitler. 
They, according to Mrs. Jiminez, tried to put words in her mouth 
as to the number of times she had been treated by Dr. Boehm: 

Q. All right. Now, Mrs. Jiminez, if I may refresh 
your recollection, you testified before this Commission 
in private session on February the 14th, 1973. Shortly 
after that did Mr. Rabb or Mr. Zeitler come to see 
you? 

A. Yes, sir, he carne to my house. 

Q. And tvere they both together? 
A. They were both together. 

Q. And did they say at that time that they learned, 
that you had testified before the Commission? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And did they indicate that they knew what your 
testimony had consisted of? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. And did they attempt to try to get yMt to change 
your testimony at that time? 

A. Not in clear words, but intentional. 

Q. I see. Well, what wO"ds did Mr. Rabb or Mr. 
Zeitler say to you the evening they came to your 
apari1nent, which indicated to you that they wanted 
you to change yo,w testimony? 

A. Well, he kept on telling me that he, you know, 
settled a good case for me and he wasn't aware that 
I only had six visits to Dr. Boehm; that he doesn't 
know that he was, overcharging for the bill. Just 
trying to put words in my mouth. 

Q. And he wanted you to come down to his office 
and sign a statement? 

A. That's the way I understood it. 

Q. Did y01t understand what he wanted to put in 
the statC'ntent? 

A. No. 

Q. And did you S1tbsequently call him and tell him 
that everything you testified to before the Commission 
was the truth and you saw no point in coming down to 
his office? 

A. That's right. 

No MORE THAN NINE VISITS EACH 

Two other former patients of Dr. Boehm who were intervie,wed 
by S.O.I. agents are Antonio Elias and his wife, Oarmen. The 
Eliases, who live in Newark, were represented by Rabb and Zeitler 
in a negligence action arising from injuries the Eliases suffered 
in an automobile accident in August, 1969. 

They first were treated by a Dr. Weinstein at his office in Irving­
ton twice a week from August through December, 1969. Dr. 
Weinstein was scrupulous about sending the Eliases copies of 
their treatment bills which accurately reflected the frequency of 
their visits and the amounts charged. Originals of those bills were 
sent to the law firm. 

JliIrs. Elias testified why she and her husband had particularly 
clear recollections of visits made to doctors after their accident 
because they were without a car of their own: 
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Q. Perhaps I should ask you now, was there a 
particular reason why you both would go together to 
the doctor? 

A. Mainly because we had no form of transporta­
tion and we always tried to make it convenient for 
both of us to attend at the same time. 

Q. Yes. And your husband at the time was em­
ployed as a tractor-trailer driver? 

A. No, shortly afterwards. 

Q. But speaking only, now, of the per'iod of ti,ne 
involving Dr. Weinstein. I take it your husband's 
employment was not a factor, then, in when you went 
to see Dr. Weinstein? 

A. No. 

Q. But what was a factor was your accessibility 
to transportation? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And did you have to borrow a car? 
A. Most of the time, or take a taxi. 

Q. And would you borrow your father's car? 
A. Most of the time. 

Q. Or take a taxi? 
A. Right. 

Q. SO that you would be likely to remember the 
visits that you made because of the manner in which 
you had to arrange for transportation; is that 
correct? 

A. Yes. 

After Dr. Weinstein discharged the Eliases; she continued to 
suffer from nervousness and headaches and he from tension in the 
neck and leg. It was recommended the Eliases see Dr. Boehm at 
his office in Elizabeth. The Eliases think the law firm made that 
recommendation. 

Mrs. Elias testified as to the number of visits she and her husband 
made to Dr. Boehm's office and what treatment was administered 
on those occasions: 

Q. Now, do you recall that you first saw Dr. Boehm 
in late March of 1970? 

A. Yes, I did. 
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Q.All right. Now, I take it that you had a baby 
that was born December 18, 1970? 

A. Right. 
Q. That would mean that you became pregnant 

sometime during March, 1970? 
A. Yes. 
Q. Right. We've got four and I never know ex­

actly how to date it. 
A. I know. 
Q. But, anyway, I counted back nine months and 

I got to sometime in March of '70 with respect to 
your baby. 

A. Right. 
Q. All right. Now, what kindof treatment did you 

receive from Dr. Boehm? 
A. Just heat treatment, a lamp. 
Q. Heat treatment with a lamp? 
A. Right. 
Q. Did he prescribe tranquilizers? 
A. No. I wouldn't take them even if he did. 
Q. Because you were pregnant at the time, so you 

wouldn't take tranquilizers? 
A. No. 
Q. Now, you recall, if you started in March of 1970, 

do you recall, first of all how you got transportation 
to Dr. Boehm? 

A. Same manner; we either borrowed my father's 
car or took a taxi. 

Q. And I take it, once again, you and your husband 
were making these visits together? 

A. Right. 
Q. Because of the ease of transportation? 

·A. Right. 

Q. You both had to go in the same transportation 
because you didn't have a car? 

A. Right. 

Q. Now, by this time had your husband become em­
ployed as a tractor-trailer driver? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. And would there be occasions when he would be 
working at night and say, "I can't make the appoint­
ment?" 

A. Right. 

Q. And you would call and cancel? 
A. Right. 

Q. Do you recall approximately when, that is what 
month-let's put it this way. This 1r~ight help you. 
Do you recall how many months or weeks before the 
birth of your baby yott stopped going to Dr. Boehm? 

A. It must have been about either October or very 
early Nov. but I can't remember any later than that. 

Q. All right. Do you recall how many visits you 
made to Dr. Boehm? 

A. I am not sure, but it couldn't have been more 
than eight or nine. 

The bill and attendant correspondence sent to Rabb & Zeitler 
by Dr. Boehm in Mrs. Elias' case was marked as an exhibit, and 
she testified relative to that exhibit: 

Q. All right. Mrs. Elias, you will see that I have 
given you a three-page document, the first page of 
which consists of a report addressed to Mr. Rabb, 
dated March 25th, 1970, concerning you; the next page 
of which is a f~trther report to Mr. Rabb, dated Dec. 
4,1970, and the last page of which is the bill. Now, 
my first Q"6estion, did you ever see a copy of Dr. 
Boehm's bill? 

A. No, not until I came to Trenton the previous 
time. 

Q. Right. And yO"! will notice that Dr. Boehm has 
billed sixteen visits concerning treatment rendered 
to you. I take it yott could not have been there sixteen 
occasions? 

A. No. 

Q. Therefore, you could have been there, as you 
said, perhaps at most nine, so that means seven visits 
you never made? 

A. Right. 
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Q. Now, you will notice, also, that on his report of 
Dec. 4,1970, he says, "This patient was also treated 
by me on fifteen occasions"-I might insert for the 
record, the 16th being the first examination----" from 
April 2nd to November 11, 1970. She received 
a.nalgesics, tranquilizers and reassurance." 

Did you ever receive any tranquilizers? 
A. No. 

Mr. Elias corroborated his wife's testimony and testified 
similarly as to the bill submitted to the law :firm by Dr. Boehm in 
Mr. Elias' case. 

Q. Mr. Elias. 
A. Yes, sir. 

Q. I take it that if I were to ask you the same ques­
tions that I asked Mrs. Elias, concerning the details 
of the accident, the trips to Dr. Weinstein, the referral 
to Dr. Boehm, stopping there, you would answer as 
she had? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. In other words, you wo~!ld confirm that you both 
made the trips to the doctors together because of the 
transportation problem? 

A. Also because we were married. 

Q. Also because you were married. I don't know 
how I could have forgotten that. 

Okay. How many visits to Dr. Boehm do yO!! recall? 
A. Eight or nine visits. 

Q. Eight or nine visits? 
A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And amI correct in assuming that your recollec­
tion as to the number of visits is aided by the difficulty 
you had in arranging transportation? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And that if you had been there sixteen times 
then you would have had to borrow your father-in­
law's car on sixteen occasions, or pay for taxis on 
sixteen occasions, those would be events you would be 
likely to remember; is that correct? 

A. Yes, sir. 
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Q. So you are very firm in YMtr recollection that it 
could have been no more than nine visits? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Mr. Diana: I will ask the reporter to mark Dr. 
Boehm's report and bill for Antonio Elias as next in 
order. 

(Report and bill of Dr. Herbert Boehm re Antonio 
Elias received and marked Exhibit 0-40.) 

Q. Now, you will look at that bill, Mr. Elias. You 
will notice, by the way, that he has billed for your 
initial examination on March 25, 1970, in an amount of 
$50. 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And thereafter he has billed for fifteen office 
treatments at $20 each, for a total bill of $350? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Now, on the office treatments that you say you 
made, which was nine, I think you said, what did the 
treatment consist of? 

A. Well, there was sort of a heat treatment around 
the neck with some type of a lamp. 

Q. About how long would this process take? 
A. Ten minutes. 

Q. About ten minutes? 
A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Now, yo'u will notice that he's billed for fifteen 
visits. I take it it's your testimony that six of those 
visits have to be padded? 

A. Yes, sir. 
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A MULTIPLE ALLEGATIONS EXAMPLE 

Of a number of petitioners in Workmen's Oompensation cases 
interviewed by the Oommission's staff in the conrse of the investi­
gation, James Earl Buie of Newark provided some illuminating 
information about how he ultimately was referred to aNew Jersey 
law firm and how that law firm handled his case. Mr. Buie was in­
jured in September, 1971 when he slipped and fell while at work. 
He went to one attorney who filed a compensation claim in October 
of that year. Mr. Buie later became dissatisfied with Attorney 
Number One. He test>fied as follows about going to a second 
attorney: 

Q. And how did you find another attorney? 
A. I found another attorney through a cab driver. 

Q. You were in a cab and you were talking to him 
and you said that you wanted to get another attorney 
or a good attorney, and he recommended Attorney 
No.2: is that correct? 

A. Yes, that's true. 

Q. And did he give you Attorney No. 2's profes­
sional card? 

A. Yes, he did. 

Q. All right. As a result of that, did you make an 
appointment to see Attorney No.2? 

A. I didn't make an appointment, I was just told to 
come right into the office. 

Q. And went to the office? 
A. Yes. 

Q. Now, when you went to the office, what was the 
first thing that happened? I assume you were inter­
viewed by an attorney? 

A. That's right. 

Q. And did he ask to describe the nature of your 
complaints? 

A. He did. 
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Q. And what did you tell him? 
A. I told him I fell injuring my back and head. 

That's all I told him. 

Q. That's all you told him.p 
A. Yes. 

Q. Then did he proceed to dictate into a recording 
device? 

A. He did. 

Q. And during the course of his dictation did you 
hear him dictate complaints that you had never told 
him abotd? . 

A. Yes. 

Q. Would you look at C-41, which is the petition 
filed on your behalf by Attorney No.2, and you will 
notice it says in Paragraph 12, Mr. Buie, "Permanent 
partial disability to the back, right leg.. nervous 
system, neck, head, internal organs and complications 
arising therefrom." Now, did you tell Attorney No.2 
about an injury to your back? 

A. Yes, I did. 

Q. Did you tell him about any injury to your right 
leg? 

A. No, I didn't. 

Q. Did you tell him about any tnJury to your 
nervous system. 

A. No. 

Q. Did you tell him about an injury to your neck 
and head? 

A. My head, not to my neck. 

Q. Not your neck? 
A. No. 

Q. Did you tell him about injuries to your internal 
organs? 

A. No, I didn't. 

Q. How long did this interview with Attorney No. 
2 take? 

A. I say, around twenty minutes. 
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PROFESSIONAL CARDS GIVEN 

Mr. Buie told of Attorney Number Two giving him (Buie) some 
professional cards: 

Q. During the course of that interview was there a 
point in time when Attorney No.2 gave you some of 
his professional cards? 

A. Yes, he did. 

Q. And what was the first thing you did when you 
got them? 

A. Well, I looked at the cards when I got them 
and--

Q. I see. You weren't saying anything, you were 
just looking at the cards? 

A. That's right, I was looking at the cards. 

Q. Then did he ,nake some comments? 
A. He was telling me that he represent a lot of 

minority groups, you know, black and Spanish. 

Q. I see. Did you understand his statement to that 
effect to provide a motivation for you to go out and 
hand out those cards? 

A. Right. Well he was telling me if I saw some­
body on the job that needed an attorney or I met any­
body on the street that needed an attorney, to refer 
them to him. 

Q. And then did you make any comment with 
respect to that? 

A. I didn't make any comments at all. 

Q. You still remained silent? 
A. That's right. 

Q. And did YOt; notice any change tn his facial 
expression at that point? 

A. Well, he began to smile when he was telling me 
that he represent a lot of minority and--

Q. Then did he say anything which led you to 
believe that you could expect to get something if you 
sent people in to him? 

A. He was telling me one hand washed the other. 
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Q. He said one washed the,other? 
A. Right. 

Q. All right. Now I'm holding in rny hand an 
envelope in which are contained several professional 
cards. Is this the envelope and are these' the cards 
that you turned over to this Odrrimission thatwer~ 
given to you by this Attorney NO.2? 

A. That is the envelope and that is the cards. 

A SUGGESTED OPERATION 

A suggestion that he undergo an operation and the signing of a 
claim petition in blank were additional elements of Mr. Buie's 
testimony: 

Q. Now, Mr. Buie, during the course of your repre­
sentation by Attorney NO.2, did he suggest to you that 
you should have an operation on your back? . 

A. Yes, he did. ' 

Q. Did he tell you that if you had that operation 
you would get more money in the settlement or the 
compensation award? 

A. He did. 

Q. Was there any doctor, either a petitioner's 
doctor or a respondent's doctor, who at any time 
advised you that you should have an operation? 

A. No, no doctor advised me that I should have 
operation. 

* • * • * 

Q. Mr. Buie with respect to 0-42, was that typed 
out in full, that petition, when you signed it? 

A. You say was it typed out? 

Q. Yes. Or did you sign it in blank or was it fully 
typed out? 

Let me put it this way: Did you return to that 
Office No.2 to sign the petition or did you do that on 
your very first--

A. Well, I sign all the papers on my first, you know, 
visit to the office. 
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Q. Well, do you recall whether all of this informa­
tion was on the petition when you signed it or did you 
sign it in blank? 

A. I signed it in blank. 

147 



THE HOUSE DOCTOR ARRANGEMENT 

The Co=ission's investigation included an examination by the 
accounting staff of the books and records of three law firms known 
to hwve practices in compensation and negligence matters. Those 
examinations revealed facts as to the relationship or lack of rela­
tionship of the firms to favored treating doctors. 

The firms were referred to in testimony as Firms A, Band C 
for the sake of convenience. At the outset, however, they were 
identified as being: Law Firm A, Freeman and Bass,* Newark; 
Law Firm B, Rabb and Zeitler, Woodbridge, and Law Firm C, 
Balk, Jacobs, Goldberg, Mandell and Selighson, Newark. 

The examination of the books and records were for the years 
1970 and 1971. Julius P. Cayson, the previously identified Chief 
Accountant of the Co=ission, noted in his testimony that the Balk 
firm voluntarily made availabie its 1972 books and records in 
addition to those requested by the Commission and that that firm's 
books and records were kept in the most exemplary fashion. 

Mr. Cayson defined, for the purposes of the Commission's in­
vestigation, the term "treating doctor" to mean a doctor who 
renders treatment to individuals injured in accidents, said treat­
ment almost invariably consisting of some form of physiotherapy. 
Mr. Cayson observed additionally that data as to payments to 
doctors in compensation cases is contained in the records of the 
State Labor and Industry Department, since doctors in these cases 
are paid directly by insurance companies. In contrast, he noted, 
data as to payments to treating doctors in negligence, cases is 
discernable from the books arid records of the law firms involved, 
since the treating doctors in those cases are paid by the law firm 
out of the settlement proceeds, after the law firm has received 
the settlement check from the insurance company and deposited 
that check in the law firm's trustee account. 

Mr. Cayson testified as follows as to what this phase of the Com­
mission's investigation showed relative to the three law firms' use 
or lack of nse of treating doctors in compensation cases: 

* Shortly after public testimony was given in which the firm of Freeman and Bass was 
identified by name, the s..C!. was enjoined by the United States District Court for the 
District of New Jersey from referring to this law firm by name. The S.c.!. appealed to 
the United States Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit which dissolved the injunc­
tion. The Circuit Court, however, remanded the matter to the District Court, and the 
matter is still in litigation. 
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Q. All right. Now, limiting ourselves to the ques­
,tion of the use of the treating doctor in compensation 
cases, let us take the firms one by one. You start, 
then, by explaining the answer .to that question with 
respect to Law Firm A. 

A. With respect to Law Firm A, we were able to 
determine from the records of the Department of 
Labor and Industry that in the year 1970 one doctor, 
I repeat, one doctor, was used exclusively by the firm 
in treating their orthopedic cases. 

Q. All right. Now what about Law Firm B? 
A. From interviews with doctors who showed up as 

payees in their liability cases, we determined that 
these doctors who showed up in the liability cases also 
simultaneously were doing compensation work. In 
other words, as this investigation has progressed, 
we found that one type. of medical treatment dDve­
tailed with the other. 

Q. Now, Law Firm C: What about that one? 
A. In the case Df L"w Firm C, a partner in that 

law firm testified at these hearings that his firm has 
never, I repeat never, sent its compensation clients to 
doctors who provide heat treatment. 

Q. Yes. That was the testimony of Jacob Balk? 
A. Yes, it was . 

. Mr. Cayson next was asked to testify about what the examina­
tion of the books and records of the law firms showed relative to 
the use or non-use of treating doctors in negligence cases. His 
testimony was accompanied by the marking as exhibits of two 
charts (Numbers Eight and Nine on pages 330 and 331) which 
showed in g-raphic form the house doctor relationships maintained 
by Law Firms A (Freeman and Bass) and B (Rabb and Z'eitler). 

Q. All right. What did the disbursements out of 
the trustee account of Law Firm A disclose for the 
years under review? 

A. They ntilized approximately one hundred differ­
ent doctors in liability cases. However, it is of great­
est significance to. note that 53% of all fnnds paid out 
of their trustee account to treating doctors, or $35,000, 
was paid to one doctor. 
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Q. All right . . This was the same treating doctor 
as was used by them in their compensation cases; is 
that correct? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. Incidentally, what percentage of this favored 
.doctor's reported gross receipts resulted from busi­
ness sent by Law Firm A? 

A. A minimum of 40%. 

Mr. Diana: All right. We will now refer to the 
chart entitled "House Doctor-Example 1." I will 
ask the reporter to mark this chart as Exhibit C-43. 

(Chart entitled " House Doctor-Example 1" re-
ceived and marked Exhibit C-43.) 

Q. Now, the doctor that we have just been describ­
ing is identified how in the chart? 

A. He is identified as Dr. B. 

Q. All right. Now, since we are going to be 
identifying Dr. B. subsequently in the hearings, his 
name is what? 

A. His name is Dr. Harold Lippman. 

Q. Right. 
A. L-i-p-p-m-a-n. 
Q. All right. Now, to summarize, what does this 

chart reflect? 
A. This chart, the chart reflects the total payments 

as reflecting all payments paid to Dr. B. 
Q. Now, how many negligence cases did Law Fil'm 

A's payments to Dr. B. represent? 
A. Approximately 400. 
Mr. Diana: All right. Mr. Cayson, in discussing 

Law Firm B, let us now refer to House Doctor­
Example No.2. 

(Chart entitled "House Doctor-Example 2" re­
ceived and marked Exhibit C-44.) 

Q. All right. This chart, first of all, "ej/ects, does it 
not, Mr. Cayson, that for the year 1970 and '71 Law 
Firm B paid out of its trust account a total of 
$230,000 to treating doctors; is that car,'ect? 

A. That is correct. 
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Q. It also refiects, does it not, that of this total five 
doctors received 54% of all payments made by this 
firm to treating doctors in liability cases? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. And it also refiects, does it not, that the balance 
of monies or disbursements out of the trustee account 
was divided among 145 doctors? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. And the average payment to those doctors was 
$758'1 

A. That is correct. 

Q. You think there can be little doubt based on this 
chart that Drs. A, B, C, D and E were the favored 
treating doctors of Law Firm B? 

A. There is no doubt about that. 

Q. Now, concerning Law Firm C, what did their 
trustee disbursements indicate? 

A. We found no pattern emerging from the dis­
bursements concerning the use of treating doctors. 

Q. You mean there was no repetitive use by that 
firm of any particular treating doctor? 

A. Occasionally the journals of Law Firm C would 
reflect three of four payments to the same doctor, but 
invariably they were isolated payments here and 
there. 

Q. All right. What did a comparison, then, of 
disbursements to doctors by Firms A, Band C 
suggest? 

A. We can only conclude from the evidence, Mr. 
Diana, that the clients of Firm C selected their own 
treating doctors and that a majority of the clients of 
Law Firms A & B did not. 

THE MISSING FILES 

Because of Dr. Harold Lippman's (Doctor B) favored treating 
doctor status, the Co=ission's investigation attempted to 
develop more facts about that doctor's practice and its relation­
Hhip to Law Firm A. Joseph T. Corrigan, Special Agent for the 
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Commission, was called to testify about pertinent, documents and 
private testimony accmnulated during the course of ~hispj1ase of 
the investigation. 

The Commission believes the presentation of data through Mr. 
Corrigan's testimony provided an orderly and concise way of 
covering pertinent subject matter so that the publich('arings 
could progress on schedule. Mr, Corrigan in his testimonyi',eferred 
to subpmnaed docmnents and quoted parts of the private testimony 
of two of Dr. Lippman's Medical Assistants and of a Lippman 
patient who was referred to that doctor by Freeman,'and Bass 
(Law Firm A). ' , " 

Despite Mr. Corrigan's first hand references, to subpamaed docu­
ments which were publicly displayed and his direct quotation of 
sworn' testimony, there were attempts to label erroneously his 
testimony as hearsay. Ino,rder to make the record inalterably 
clear on this matter, the private testimony transcripts, of the two 
Medical Assistants, Mrs. Flora Ware and Miss Marion Kings berry, 
and of the Lippman patient, Mrs. Bessie Coles, were ina~ked at 
the public hearings as exhibits so that they would be' publicly 
available for anyone interested in verifying' the, accuracy of 
Corrigan's testimony. 

The initial phase of Agent Corrigan's testimony covered what 
facts could be gleaned by what documents Dr. Lippman did pro­
duce in response to two subpmnas served on him. Some of the 
principal points covered in this area of Mr, Corrigan's testimony 
were: 

"The Commission subpmnaed on January 3, ,1973 the 
patient files of Dr. Lippman in 60 Workmen's Com­
pensation cases for 1970 where the doctor received 
p!qment as an lmauthorized heat treating doctor for 
Law Firm A (Freeman and Bass). After Lippman's 
motion to quash the subpcena was denied, he pro~ 
duced, as of January 26, 1973, 48 of the 60 files, claim­
ing the other files had been discarded after being 
water damaged in his old office in Newark in 1972. 
In two-thirds of the 48 produced patieut files there was 
correspoudence, including a re'port and bill, with "Law 
Firm A.The correspondence contained in two-thirds 
of the files showed that in ouly two instances had 
the petitioners been patients of Dr. Lippman prior to 
their accidents, a fact which helped establish that 
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Law Firm A sent nnmerons clients to Lippman for 
heat treatments . 

• In response to a second subprena served on Lippman 
February 7, 1973 at his present office·s in Irvington for 
all his inactive patient cards reflecting treatments in 
negligence cases for Law Firm A, including 400 files 
identified by name in the subprena, Dr. Lippman on 
March 1, 1973 produced only 73 of the subprenaed 
files, claiming that a water pipe burst in his old 
Newark office earlier in the year had damaged the 
other files. Additionally, only 20 of the produced files 
had the correspondence, including the doctor's re­
ports, despite the subprena's specification that the 
correspondence be included. 

RECORDS DESTRUCTION 

One of Dr. Lippman's two Medical Assistants told the Commis­
sion of destruction of some records in the doctor's office. Agent 
Corrigan's testimony continued: 

Q. Now, did Dr. Lippman's medical assistants 
testify before the Commission? 

A. Yes, two of them did under a grant of immunity 
after they invoked their Fifth Amendment rights on 
advice of counsel. 

Q. Did one ot those medical assistants testify that 
she had received instructions from Dr. Lippman to 
remove docutnents fr01n the files and destroy them? 

A, Yes, sir, she did. 

Q. What specifically did she say he told her to 
remove and destroy? 

A .. Well, according from her testimony, "letter­
heads from the lawyer's office and copies of the 
reports." 

Q. Now, we·re these instructions given to her by 
Dr. Lippman at a point in time after the list of 400 
files waB under subpcena? 

A. Yes. 
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HIGH BILLS MAKE HIGH SETTLEMENTS 

The doctor's two Medical Assistants additionally testified of 
indefinite lengths of heat treatments for patients, the crediting of 
some patients for treatments not rendered, and of patients' 
knowledge as to the effect of high heat treatment bills. Mr. 
Oorrigan's testimony continued: 

Q. Now, what was the testimony of Dr. Lippman's 
assistants concerning how they could make the 
determination that the patient was to continue re­
ceiving heat treatment? 

A. Well, one testified, "Sometimes we overheard 
the doctor say this patient is to receive treatment 
twice a week or three times a week." . 

This same witness also testified that he never spec­
ified any length of time. 

Q. Well, now, if the nurses or the medical assist-. 
ants didn't happen to overhear the doctor's instruc­
tions, then how were they to determine or how' did 
they determine the length of time with respect to the 
heat treatment or how many treatments? 

A. One assistaut testified that if the patient showed 
up, it was merely presumed he was to he. given 
diathermy. 

Q. Well, were they able to enlighten us, these 
medical assistants, on how they knew when treatment 
should stop? 

A. Well, the answer given was', if the doctor made 
that decision, the word" discharge" would be written 
on the bottom of the patient card. Or if the patient 
stops coming in on their own, there is nothing written 
on the chart, or so they said. 

Q. Now, how many times did we find that the word 
"discharge" was written on the 121 patient cards that 
we actually got pursuant to subpoena? .' 

A. Exactly six. 

'Q. SO if I may swnmarize, then, these medical 
assistants testified that they were never told a definite 
length of time with respect to heat treatment; the 
patients came in and maybe they would remember ever 
hearing that the doctor said treat this patient twice 
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a week or three times a wee70, and if they didn't 
happen to overhear that, they would assume that 
because the patient was there the patient should have 
treatment, and, finally, the best they could tell us as to 
how treatment 'Was to stop was, they said, "Well, 
maybe the doctor wrote it on the card and said disc 
charge, otherwise the patient made the decision him­
self," and from the evidence we had before us it 
looked like the patient 1nade most of the decisions. 
Is that a fair statement? 

A. That's exactly right. 

Q. Now, did these medical assistants testify that 
occasionally they 'Would credit patients for treatment 
not rendered? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Under what circumstance did one of the girls 
state this occurred? 

A. Sometimes the patient was supposed to come in 
twice a week and could only make it one of the days 
and would only make it one of the days and would call 
and ask to receive credit for the second visit. 

Q. And what did the other medical· assistant 
testify? 

A. She testiified that she, would sometimes credit 
a patient for having been in twice a week and that 
she did this for various patients. 

Q. Now, did we ask these witnesses wha.t was their 
understanding as to the reason the patients tvanted 
cred.it for visits that they hadn't made? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And what was the response? 
A. Well, let me refer to the testimony of one of the 

girls. "Question: Did you ever hear a patient say, 
"My lawyers told me if I get a higher bill, I will get a 
higher settlement"~ 

" Answer: Yes, I did. Most patients would tell you 
that." 

Q. So that one medical assistant testified that skI! 
'Would frequently hear the patient say, "My lawyers 
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told me if I get a higher bill, I'll get a higher settlee 
ment"? 

A. Right. 

PERFUNCTORY TREATMENT Is SOMETIMES THE RULE 

Mrs. Verdell Avant, who during 1971e72' was a Medical Assiste 
ant to Dr. Lippman, subsequently appeared at the public hearings 
and testified about conditions and practices in the doctor's office 
which were conducive to perfunctory treatment and overtreatment 
of patients in compensation and negligence cases: 

Q. And about how many people would you obseTve 
that weTe in there on a single day for heat treatment? 

A. As many as fifty. 

Q. As many as fifty. Now, how long did this heat 
treatment that was admmistered last? 

A. Until the patient got tired of coming. 

Q. No, I mean, was there a time lilYnit on the timer? 
Is it five minutes; ten minutes? 

A. Oh, on the machine itselH 

Q. Yes. 
A. Yeah, five minutes. 

Q. Now, when Dr. Lippman would seethe patient 
on the initial visit, would he give any instructions 
concerning how often the patient was to COme in for 
heat treatment? 

A. Twoethree times a week. 

Q. You tvould hear him say to the patient, "Gome 
in two or three times a week"? 

A. Sometimes. 

Q. Sometimes? 
A. Right. 

Q. Sometimes he didn't say anything? 
A. Sometimes I didn't hear him . 

• • • • • 
Q. All right. Would he put any duration in time 

on that? 
A. As far as--
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· Q. How many weeks? 
A. No. 

Q. It was an indefinite duration? 
A. To my .know,ledge. 

Q. To YOlir knowledge. Now, how were patients 
discharged? 

A. When they got tired of coming, they just go to 
the doctor and tell him they think they're better. 

Q. And would there be times-all right. You said 
that one way, they might go to the docto'r and say, 
"I don't feel I need any more treatment." Is that 
correct.W 

A. Right. 

Q. Would there be times when they would just 
come in until they decided they didn't wa.nt to come in 
anymore? 

A. That's right. 

HEATLESS TREATMENTS 

Mrs. Avant told of a time when treatment of patients continued 
at Dr. Lippman's office when one heat treating machine )Vas in­
operative and the second machine was not emitting much if any 
heat: 

Q. How many machines were there in the office.~ 
A. There were two', two machines. 

Q. All right. Was one a new one? 
A. One was a new one and one was an old one. 

Q. All right. Did there come a time when the new 
one broke down? 

A. Yes, it did. 

Q. What abmd the old machine; did it give off any 
heat? ' 

A. Not to me it didn't, and to the patients it 
didn't, either. 

Q. The patients complained that it didn't give off 
any heat? 

A. Yes they did. 
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Q. Were they nevertheless treated with the 
machine? 

A. I'm sorry. 

Q. Were they nevertheless treated with that 
machine--

A. Yes, they were. 

Q. --that didn't give off any heat? 
A. Yes, they were. 

Q. And did you bring to the attention of Dr. Lipp­
man the fact that the old machine didn't give off any 
heat? 

A. Yes, I did. 

Q. And what did he say? 
A. Just have to wait till the other machine come 

back. 

Q. He didn't tell you to stop using it? 
A. No, he didn't. 

Q. And he knew that you were continuing to admin­
ister heat treatment to patients using a machine that, 
from your observation and patients' complaints, 
didn't work. 

A. Right. 

PROFESSIONAL CARDS ARE DISTRIBUTED 

Law Firm A (Freeman and Bass) was more prominent in repre­
senting Dr. Lippman's patients than any other law firm, according 
to Mrs. Avant, who told of professional cards of some law firms 
being given to lawyerless patients: 

Q. All right. During the period of time that you 
were there, and confining n~y question only to those 
patients who came in already with an attorney, do 
you recall whether or not one attorney was more 
prominent than the other, than others in represent­
ing these patients who came in to Dr. Lippman with 
an attorney? Do you remen~ber whether one law firm 
stood out? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. And was that Law Firrn A? 
A. Correct. 

Q. Now, would there also be times when the 
patients would come in and wottld not have an 
attorney? 

A. Correct. 

Q. All right. What would you do ·under those 
circumstances? 

A. Well, after the patient went into the examining 
room with Dr. Lippman, when the patient came out, 
some of the times Dr. Lippman would instruct me to 
give the patient a name of a lawyer. I, in turn, would 
take the patient to the nurses' station, either ask 
Marion or Flora to give me a card for the patient or 
they, in turn, would give a card to the patient of a 
lawyer. 

Q. All right. So that if I understand your testi­
mony correctly, if a patient came in and did not have 
an attorney, generally after he had had his first visit 
with the doctor he would come out and say that" I' ,n 
supposed to get the name of an attorney"? 

A. Correct. 

• * * • 
Q. First of all, we should establish that when you 

were working there how many other employees did 
Dr. Lippman have? 

A. Two others besides myself. 

Q. And who were those two others? 
A. Flora Ware and Marion Kingsberry. 

Q. All right. Now, when you would refer the 
patient to Marion or Flora for an attorney's card, 
would you have any way of knowing what card they 
were in fact given by Marion Or Flora? 

A. Not directly, no, for the simple fact after I took 
the patient into the nurses' station and referred him 
to Marion and Flora, and if they gave him the card 
at that time, I went back to the other patients. 

Q. All right. Now, in these circumstances, again . 
confining myself to the question where you might not 
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necessarily know what card Marion or Flor(J; gave to 
the patient, we have a patient who catYie in the fit'st 
time without an attorney, the patient CMnes back a 
second. time and now has an attorney. Can you· tell 
us what attorney or law firm the patient generally 
came back to Dr. Lippman with? 

A. Generally, Law Firm A. 

Q. Okay. Now, were there occasions . when you 
would get an attorney's card to give to the patient? 

A. Yes. 

Q.And where would you get the card? 
A. In the left-hand-corner at the bottom of 

Marion 's' desk. 

Q, And were there attorneys' cards in that drawer? 
A .. Yes, it was. . 

Q .. .And how many attorneys can you recall whose 
cardsUJcre in that drawer? . 
. A. ,']'0 my knawledge, about three or four. 

Q. All right. I think you told me that one started 
with an M?' 

A. Right. 

Q. You mean the first name or the last name? 
A. The last name. ' 

Q. And one started with a W? 
A. Correct. 

Q. And the other was Law Firm A; is thdt correct? 
A. Right. 

PATIENTS ARE INTERVIEWED 

In an effort to determine in specrnc instances if Dr. Lippman's 
patients actually received the number of treatments indicated on 
subpffinaed patient ,cards, the Commission's staff attempted to 
locate 30 of his patients and succeeded in locating about 10. Of 
that ni:up.ber, six had insufficient recollection to. be of any help. 
Four were, subpffinaed but all pleaded their Fifth Amendment 
privileg!l. One of those four, the afQrementioned Mrs. Bessie 
Coles, WaS granted witness immunity. 
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ONLY FIVE VISITS RECALLED 

Mrs. Coles had initially been interviewed by Special Agents 
Corrigan and Anthony Rosamelia because her statements to exam­
ining doctors in her vVorkmen's Compensation case indicated she 
was treated by Dr. Lippman less than 10 times, rather than the 20 
times indicated on her patient card. In the interview, she told the 
agents that she was referre.d to Dr. Lippman by Freeman and Bass 
(Law Firm A), estimated she made five visits to that doctor's 
office and stated that the number of visits could not have beffil. as 
many as.15 or 20. (The memorandum of that interview was marked 
as an exhibit at the public hearings.) 

A CHANGE iN NUMBERS 

When the patient testified under oath subsequently at a private 
session of the Commission, she said that she had been thinking 
back since her interview and that the number of Visits could have 
been more than five; Agent Corrigan testified as to her change- of 
mind on the number of visits and the role of Law FirmA in that 
change: 

Q; Now, did we· determine that anything had 
happened between your interview of March 21 and the 
patient's appearance before the Commission·on 
March 29th which might have caused her to change 
her story? 

A. Yes, sir. She made two visits to the offices of 
Law Firm Awhere she was askedto sign an affidaVIt 
that she had been to Lippman's office for twenty heat 
treatments. . . 

Q. Did she sign the affidavit? 
A; Yes, sir; 

Q. Why? 
A. At the time we interviewed this patient she had 

just had a baby. In fact, the baby was eleven weeks 
old. She testified befote: the Commission that not 
being away from her child wasupperrnost in her mind 
a~d she wanted to avoid her appearance befor~ the 
Cominission.· . 

Q. Did she indicate that her attorney promised 
her she would not have to appea.- if she signed the 
affidavit? 
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A. I'll read her testimony. 
"Q. By the way, I meant to ask you on the occasion 

of your two visits to the office of Law Pirm A in con­
nection with the subpcena, did you sign any papers? 

" A. Yes, I signed papers. 
"Q. What did you sign? 
"A. A statement, I guess. 
"Q. What was the statement? What did it consist 

of? What did it say? 
"A. My name, address, the conversation I had with 

two investigators, I guess remembBring a little bit 
about the case, the visits to the doctor, and that I had 
a two-month-old baby at the timB, and who referred 
me to the lawyer, and that's about it. 

"Q. Did he tell you why he wanted you to sign that 
statement? 

"A, Well, I was hoping I wouldn't have to appear, 
you know, because maybe you could accept the paper 
and disregard me appearing, I don't know. 

"Q. Did he tell yo'u that if you signed that state­
ment you wouldn't have to come down here and 
appear? 

"A. I think sO,yes. 

" Q. In the statement that you signed for La!/,/} Pirm 
A in their office, did that indicate the number of times 
that you had been to Dr. Lippman' s office.~ 

"A. I think it did. 

"Q. What did that have, the number of times? 
"A. I think it said approximately twenty times. 

"Q. And you signed that statement? 
"A. Yes. 

"Q. But it's not true, is it? 
"A. I don't think so. 

"Q. Why did you sign it? Because that would 
avoid your testifying? 

"A. Yes." 
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COOPERATION NOT FORTHCOMING 

Messrs. Samuel Freeman and Samuel Bass, principals in the law 
firm which bears their names, and Dr. Harold Lippman each were 
given an opportunity to appear before the Commission in private 
session during the investigation. 

Mr. Freeman did not make an appearance, pleading health as the 
reason. Mr. Bass and Dr. Lippman did appear before the Come 
mission separately, each was offered an opportunity to cooperate 
with the Commission, and each chose not to do so. 
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HEAT TREATMENT FRAUD 

The facts obtained from the examination of the books and records 
of the law firm of Rabb and Zeitler (Law Firm B) by the Com­
mission's accounting staff prompted further investigation of'that 
firm's practices, with particular reference to the heat treatment 
bills rendered by the firm's favored doctors in compensation and 
negligence cases. 

A FRENETIC ATMOSPHERE 

Kenneth Oleckna, now an attorney, was employed on a part-time 
basis by Rabb and Zeitler in 1969-71 as part of his effort to earn 
money to put himself through law school. Mr. Oleckna testified 
as to why he disassociated himself with that law firm for a number 
of reasons, including a frenzied atmosphere and some questionable 
practices: 

Q. Now, did YO"tr part-time employment with that 
firm commence in about September of 1969? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And did it continue intermittently with them 
until early 1971.W 

A. Yes. 

Q. And did you discontinue your employment with 
Rabb dJ Zeitler at that ti,ne? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And what was the reason why you did so, sir? 
Would you please talk into the microphone so we can 
hear you. 

A. I discontinued my employment with Rabb & 
Zeitler for two reasons. Number one, I was unhappy 
with the treatment I was receiving. I didn't like­
well, three reasons. I didn't like the way the place 
was run, and other people, including some attorneys, 
told me that the law firm of Rabb & Zeitler was going 
to get in trouble some day and I should get out of 
there: 
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'Q. N ow;i! I understand you correctly, these were 
some attorneys working for them who told· you they 
thought Rabb cf; Zeitler was going to get in trouble 
and you ought to get out of there? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Did you draw that conclusion yourself, that you 
thought they were going to get in trouble? 

A. Yes, I did, by the manner in which the office 
operated . 

.. Q. Now, was there a point in time when you were 
employed by Rabb cf; Zeitler when the ivorkvolume 
seemed to explode overnight? 
\ A.·Yes. 

Q. W Quld you describe, explain that a little bit for 
me, please? 

A •. I'd have to go into a story. 

Q,. Go. into a story. 
A. When I first started working there, the firm 

wasn't open that long. My employment consisted of 
a couple of nights a week and Saturdays. In the 
beginning there weren't that many cases and it was 
It normal, what I had conceived to be, a normal office. 
In early 1970 the place all of a sudden was just-it 
was uubelievable, the amount of cases that were 
coming in, specifically Spanish people, clients, Spanish 
clients. 

Q. Was their clientele mainly FuertoRican and 
black? 

A. I would estimate ninety per cent . 

. Q. Ninety p~r cent? 
A. In my opinion. 

Q.And this was drawn from the community im~ 
mediately adjacent to Woodbridge where their offices 
we,(e located? 

A .. From what I had seen, the vast majority of the 
cases came from Spanish people from Perth Amboy, 
New Brunswick and Elizabeth. 
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Q. Now, did Richard Zeitler have any qttalifica­
tions which made it possible for him to ingratiate 
himself with the Spanish comm;unity? 

A. I believe his mother was Puerto Rican. 

Q. And he spoke Spanish fluently, did he not? 
A. Yes. 

Q. Now, when this work volume exploded, did you 
find that clients would be kept waiting for hours? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And did you find that sometimes Zeitler would 
go out a back door and just leave them waiting? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And did you find that sometimes a client got so 
enraged that he punched a hole in an office wall? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Did things apparently get so bad that, in fact, 
the office was fire bombed? 

A. What happened there, in the su=er of 1970 I 
went away with the National Guard for six weeks, 
and when I returned this-one of the secretaries' 
offices, the walls were charred, and I came across 
several files that we,re half burned or papers that had 
been burned. I inquired as to what happened and I 
had been toM that somebody threw a fire bomb in the 
office. 

Q. But no explanation was given? 
A. No. I assumed that it was a disgruntled 

Spanish person. 

ALIAS MR, CRANE 

Mr. Oleckna testified that one of his responsibilities at the law 
firm was to obtain police and medical reports in accident cas·es so 
that settlement of those cases could be achieved by a Larry Crane 
who became associated with that law office in 1970: 

Q. In other words, you would prepare all the docu~ 
ments necessary for him to evaluate liability and 
settle the case? 

A. I didn't prepare th,em, I obtained them. 
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Q. You obtained them? 
A. Yes. 

Q. All right. Now, what was your understanding 
ot what Mr. Crane was doing once you prepared these 
files tor him by getting the necessary documents? 

A. Settling them. 

Q. Settling cases? 
A. Yes. 

Q. He was calling up the insurance company repre­
sentative and agreeing on a figure and settling at 
that figure.~ 

A. Yes. 

Q. All right. Now, did you subsequently learn tha,l 
this Larry Crane's real name was Larry Kirschen­
baum? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And did you subsequent-that's K-i.-r-s-c-h-e-n­
b-a-u-m, Kirschenbaum .. And did you subsequently 
learn that Larry Kirschenba",m was employed by the 
Allstate Insurance Company at the same time he was 
working tor Rabb db Zeitler? 

A. I came to that opinion. At a later date I came 
to that opinion. I can't recall whether I developed 
that opinion while I was still working there or after 
I left. I recall him having a conversation with some­
one who told me that Crane was Kirschenbaum. 

Q. Well, you know now, don't you, as a tact, that 
Crane is Kirschenbaum and Kirschenbaum was an 
employee ot Allstate and he was an Mnployee ot All­
state when he was settling cases tor Rabb db Zeitler? 

A. Yes, sir. 

WERE THEY PHOTOGRAPHERS? 

Mr. Oleckna testified how he arrived at the opinion that several 
of the law finn's employees listed as photographers might be 
ambulance chasers or case runners: 

Q. Now, did Rabb db Zeitler employ several men 
who were described as photographers? . 

A. Yes. 
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Q. Did you, in fact, believe them to be ambulance 
chasers or case runners? I'm asking you for your 
belief, first of all. 

A .. I can only give you an opinion. 

Q. All right: What's your opinion? 
A. In my opinion at this particular time, I can 

recall relating in my mind the fact that the people, 
the type of people you just mentioned, were all of 
Spanish surnanles and since the business--

Q. All these photogr!lcphers h!lcd Spanish surnames, 
didn't they? 

A. Almost, yes, I believe they were. 

Q. They did. 
A. And since most of the business then coming in 

was Spanish, I became of the opinion that there must 
have been some relationship. 

Q. All right. Let's see if we can doa little better 
than that. You knew one gentleman who was a photo­
grapher there named Ted Orengo, didn't you? 
O-r-e-n-g-o. 

A. Yes. 

Q. A II right. Orengo told you he was running cases 
for Rabb d/; Zeitler, didn't he? 

A. He never said it in the manner in which you 
just said it. 

Q. How did he say it? He said, "Richard beat me 
on a number of cases?" 

A. That's what he told me. 

Q. Meaning that Zeitler hadn't paid him for some 
of the cases he brought in, correct? 

A. That was one of the ways in which I could have 
interpreted it, yes. 

Q. Give me another way you could have interpreted 
it. 

A. I came to the conclusion it either meant that 
or else he beat him on the pictures. 

Q. Didn't payhirn for the pictt,res he was taking? 
A. Yes. 
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Q. Is that why he had a two-way radio in his car, 
to help him take pictures? 

A. That was the ot.her point. which made me think 
perhaps it was t.he other reason. 

Q. Yes. He had a two-way radio in his car? 
A. He told me that. 

Q. He told you that. By the way, do you know 
where he is now? 

A. I believe he'8 in Puerto Rico. 

AN UNITEMIZED BILL 

Mr. Oleckna testmed that on one occasion in October, 1970 he was 
directed to discuss an unitemized heat treating bill for about $700 
with Dr. Louis Brandwein, who submitted the bill and was one of 
the law firm's favored treating doctors: 

Q. In other words, Dr. Brandwein had submitted a 
bill for services to Rabb d/; ZeitlM somewhere in the 
neighborhood of $700 and there was no itemization 
indicating when the patient had been in? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. All right. Now, with respect to that bill, did 
you go over and disct'sS it with Brandwein? 

A. I went to his office. He was busy, so I sat in 
. the waiting room until nine, nine-thirty until he was 
free to see me and then I discussed it with him. 

Q. All ,·ight. Did you tell him that Zeitler said 
he 1vanted some dates on this bill? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What did Dr. Brandwein tell you? 
A: I can't recall the exact words. As I recall it, 

he said to me to the effect of, "I can't put dates. 
I saw this man once." 

Q. All right. Brandwein said, "I can't put any 
dates on it, I only saw the man once." Did Dr. Brand­
wein offer to withdraw the bill? 

A.He handed it back to me. 

Q. He handed it back to you because he expected it 
to be paid; is that correct? 
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A. Mr. Diana, you're asking me my assumption. 

Q. Anyway, he did hand it back to you? 
A. Yes. 

Q. Did he say, "Give it back to Zeitler?" 
A. I d()n't know. He just handed it back to me, 

you know, put it back in the file. 

Q. All right. Then what did you do with that bill? 
A. Initially I thought I went back that night. Now 

as I'm recalling, it was the' next day. I took those 
files home with me, left them in my car overnight, 
went to school the next day. When I went to the office, 
told Dick, I told Mr. Zeitler what happened. 

Q. All right. And what did Zeitler say? 
A. He didn't respond to me in one way or another. 

Q. Do you know whether or not the bill was ever 
removed from the file? 

A. I don't recall ever having seen that file again, 
Mr. Diana. 

A MENACING REMARK 

Mr. Oleckna was first interviewed by Special Agents of the Oom­
mission on January 11,1973 and gave private testimony before the 
Oommission January 24, 1973. He testified at the public hearings 
that on January 21, 1973 he received a phone call from Messrs. 
Rabb and Zeitler which resulted in Oleckna's meeting those two 
individuals at a diner. After the conversation had touched on Mr. 
Oleckna's interview with the agents, the conversation took on a 
more menacing tone: 

Q. When you got to the diner, who was there? Was 
Zeitler there? 

A. Yes, he was waiting for me at the door. 

Q. Was Rabb there? 
A. Well, Mr. Zeitler met me at the door and he 

took me over to Mr. Rabb,who was sitting down. 

Q. In a booth? 
A. Yes. 
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Q;All right. Now, during the course of your con­
versation with them, did they tell you not to say 
anything to the Commission because the Commission 
couldn't malce you say anythmg? 

A. Can I relate in my own words exactly what 
happened on that day1 

Q. Please do. 
A. After he called me I called you and you wereu't 

in. Then I called somebody else and they weren't in. 
I figured if I didn't go to the diner, he's goiug to 
come over to my apartment, so I went to the diner. 
And he met me at the door and there were about­
sitting behind him at the counter were five or six 
people who were Spanish. That area is not inhabited 
by Spanish people, and since it was a Sunday morning 
I couldn't understand why there were Spanish people 
in there except if they were there with Mr. Zeitler. 

Q. I see. Did you have any reason to believe that 
they were friends of Mr. Zeitler othe-r than the fact 
that they were Spanish? 

A. I can only assume they were there. 

- Q. In any event, I take it-let's put it this way: 
Did their presence create any apprehension in you? 

A. Yes. 

Q. All right. Now, during the course of this con­
versation did either Rabb or Zeitler ask you if you 
had seen The Valachi Papers? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Did either--1JJhich one, Rabb or Zeitler? 
A. Zeitler. 

Q. Did Mr. Zeitler say to you after he asked that 
question, "Thin,qs like that really happen?" 

A. Yes. 

Q. And what did you understand him to mean by 
that? 

A. Well, can I explain 1 

Q. Please do. 
A. After I initially spoke to you and I had been 

informed about, and guns had been mentioned and 
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things of that nature, which I had ne'ver heard of 
before, I became very concerned. And then after us 
tiLIking about the incidents of violence that had, 
occurred in the office in the past, I became very. 
concerned because I realized it was a volatile situation. 

Q. YO~t thought he was threatening you, didn't 
you? 

A. Well, if I can explain the whole thing. 

'Q I would like an answer to the q~testion. 
A. At that time I thought so, yes. 

Q. At that time you thought he was threatening 
you because you had in your mind, did you not, one,: 
the fact that he was known to carry a gun, or at least 
you believed he was known/o carry a gun? 

A. Because you had told me. 

Q. Right. Two, that the office had been fire bombed, 
and, three, that there were Spanish-speaking people 
at the bar or the counter in an area not known for 
Spanish-speaking people? 

A. Yes. 

Q. AU right. And this created an apprehension in 
you,' mind; is that correct? 

A. Yes. 

THE DR. GORDON RELATIONSHIP 

The relationship between Dr. Edward Gordon, who ,until 1972 
practiced medicine.inRahway, and Rabb and Zeitler (Law Firm B) 
was a subject of the 'CoImnission's investigation since the staff's 
examination of Rabb and Zeitler's disbursements during 1970-1971 
showed Dr. Gordon received the largest payment--$42,OOO-of any 
of the favored treating doctors of the law firm. 

Dr. Gordon appeared before the Commission for the first time 
at a private session in January 24, 1973 at which time he asserted 
his Fifth Amendment right when asked questions about, his bills 
and his relationship with Rabband Zeitler .. The Oommission 
decided that the receipt of facts relative to that relationship was 
of sufficient importance to the investigation to confer witness 
immunity on Dr. Gordon' and, thereby,. toeompel hiIjl:,. to give 
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responsive answer to all questions. The doctor reappeared befo're 
the Commission in private session Februaryl, 1973 at which time' 
he testified fully about padding of bills at the behest of Rabb and 
Zeitler and for several other law firms on a lesser scale. The 
immunity granted Dr. Gordon and any other witnesses by the Com­
mission is of the limited use-and-derivative-use variety which bars 
use of the immunized testimony and its frnits in. any subseq:Uf~~ 
criminal prosecution but permits prosecution on any evidence 
de;velopedindependently. ' 
.' 

. ,.Tll~Comrriission after February 1, 1973 by a majority vote~ould 
atlj-ny timehaNe made Dr. Gordon's testimony public. In oth,er, 
1Yorils, ,the Commission had his testimony as it related to varioU", 
paddE\C\ bills in hand as of that date. 

'8ubsequently, Dr. Gordon asked if his cooperation with the Cori1~ 
rriission in producing reco,rds and testifying as to them would b~ 
made known by the Commission to the Union County Prosecutor's 
Offic.e which had before it certain criminal charges pending against 
the doctor. After receiving a pledge from Dr. Gordon of contirmed 
cooper.ation with all agencies int6'rested in matters under investiga., 
tion by t!le Commission, the Commission did, in keeping with tKe 
tiine-honored practice existent between agencies interested in ilfl'ec; 
tive enforcement of the laws, communicate with the Union Prosecu­
tor's Office relative to Dr. Gordon's cooperation and pledge of 
continued cooperation. 

The Commission was well aware of Dr. Gordon's connection 
with some unsavory matters. For that reason and because of the 
Commission's policy of searching for corrobrative and supportive 
data before proceeding to a public stage, the Commission did not 
proceed to calIon Dr. Gordon to re-testify in public until the follow­
ing supportive data had been obtained: 

• The private testimony of one of Dr. Gordon's medical 
assistants relative to bill padding and a determination 
that another of his former assistants would testify 
similarly. 

• The private testimony of two other doctors, supported 
by their office records, that they, too, had padded 
treatment bills for Rabb and Zeitler. 

• The private testimony of the medical assistant to one 
of those two doctors relative to bill padding. 
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• '''he private testimony of a former employee of Rabb 
and Zeitler that she had with instructions from the 
firm's business manager put phony doctor's treatment 
dates on a doctor's bills rendered to that law firm. 

BILL PADDING TECHNIQUES 

Mrs. Judith Manfra was Medical Assistant to Dr. Gordon during 
1971-72, succeeding then Miss Edna Mae Thorn but now Mrs. Edna 
Mae Zaleski. Mrs; Manfra, testifying under a grant of-witness 
immunity, stated that Edna Mae Thorn had instructed Mrs. Manfra 
how to make out inflated heat treatment bills for the firm of Rabb 
& Zeitler, with the bill totals being kept usually in the range of $300 
to $500. Even though a patient may have been in the office only 
once or twice, Mrs. Manfra testified she would add enough phony 
treatment dates to the bill to bring it to the desired total. 

Mrs. Zaleski was the doctor's Medical Assistant from the summer 
of 1969 to July, 1971. She testified, with a grant of witness im­
munity, how she received instructions on bill padding from Dr. 
Gordon and accomplished the desired bill totals by adding enough 
fictitious heat treatment dates at $10 per treatment: 

Q. Now, while you were employed by Dr. Gordon, 
did you prepare and submit reports and bills to the 
firm of Rabb & Zeitler for treatment not actually 
rendered? . 

A. Yes. 

Q. All right. At whose direction and instruction 
did you prepare these reports? 

A. Dr. Gordon's. 

Q. And where was he getting his instructions from? 
A. I believe, from the lawyers. 

Q. You don't know it as a fact, but it is your 
belief that he was getting it from Rabb & Zeitler? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Now, your instructions with respect to theprep­
amtion of these bills, if I 1<nderstood you correctly, 
was that they were to be prepa1'ed in a predetermined 
total? 

A. About, yes. -
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Q. What was the dollar range? 
A. Usually anywhere from $200 to $500; $200 to 

$500. 
Q. Anywhere from $200 to $500? 
A. Well, it would depend what Dr. Gordon would 

tell me what it was. I mean I didn't decide how much 
I was going to type up the bill for. I was told how 
much to make it. 

Q. With respect to each bill? 
. A. Oh, oh, yes, each one. 

Q. I see. When it came time to prepare each bill, 
you were told what the total should be? 

A. Right. 

Q. Whether it's 200 or 250, or 300 or 400? 
A. Right, right. 

Q. And then what would you do? 
A. Well, then, according to the dates, I would just 

make it up to enough dates to carry through to that 
amount. 

Q. SO if the bill was to be $400 and you needed, 
then, forty visits at $10 apiece, is that correct? 

A. Right. 

Q. And you just picked the dates to equal the $400? 
A. Usually, yes. 
Q. Because I take it that on these occasions the 

patient card would contain no reflection that the 
patient had actually been in except on one occasion? 

A. Right. 

Q. Now, did these instructions apply both to com­
pensation and to negligence cases? 

A. Yes. 

At this point at the public hearings, Mrs. Zaleski described one 
padded bill (marked as an exhibit) as typical of the padded bills 
submitted to Rabb and Zeitler. The patient was in only once but 
Mrs. Zaleski added enough phony treatment dates to bring the 
bill to $560. 

Mrs. Zaleski testified as to some indices which led her to believe 
that both Messrs. Rabb and Zeitler knew of and were directing the 
bill padding practice: 
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Q. Do you have anything that wm,ld c(J,1,se you to 
reach a conClusion as to whether these padded bills 
were being done at the direction of Rabb cf/; Zeitler? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Anything that would cause you to believe that 
~t was at the direction of Mr. Rabb? ' 

A. Yeab, at times he would. 

Q. He would direct you? 
A. Well, I kne,w he would call or state about the 

caSe and, you know, "Let's close it out" and things 
like that. 

Q. How about Mr. Zeitler? 
A. Oh, yeah. 

Q. He was? 
A. He was more so. 

Q. SO that both of them were involved in this whole 
operation, in yow· judgment? 

A. Yes. 

Seven letters (marked as exhibits) were described by Mrs. 
Zaleski as communications from the firm of Rabb and Zeitler to 
Dr. Gordon which attempted to induce the doctor to list treatment 
for individuals who had never been in the doctor's office. Mrs. 
Zaleski testiiied she and the doctor refused to go along with such 
requests. Typical of her testimony is the following excerpt as to 
one of the letters: 

Q. Now, Mrs. Zaleski, would you look at Exmbit 
C-49? 

A. Right. 

Q. A letter dated February 25, 1970. Would you 
read the letter aloud, please? It's from Rabb cf/; Zeitler 
to Dr. Gordon, is it not? 

A. Yes, it is. 

Q. Would you read it aloud? 
A. It says, "Dear Dr. Gordon: I am handling a 

case for your patient. The insurance company wants 
an immediate settlement, but I still need a copyo:!, 
your bill and report. Please forward this immediately 

. so that we can settle this immediately and insure pay-

176 



ment of your bill in this case. "Your immediate 
cooperation would be appreciated as this case is im­
mediately ready for settlement. "Yours very truly," 
and it's signed by Richard Zeitler. 

Q. All right. Was that patient ever in your .office? 
A. No. I have a notation on the top of it in my 

handwriting that says, "2/28 ", and it says, "Told him 
patient never in, cannot do." 

Q. When it indicates "told him," who does "him" 
refer to? 

A. Zeitler; Mr. Zeitler. 

Q. You called Zeitler and told him the patient was 
never in? 

A. Yes, I must have. 

Q. At least, that's what that note indicates? 
A. Yes, yes. 

Q. Now, were there occasions when you would call 
Zeitler and tell him the patient was never in and he 
would say, "That's all right, prepare the bill any­
how?" 

A. Yes, he would say that. 

Q. He would say that? 
A. Oh, yeah. 

Q. Did that happen very often? 
A. Yes. 

Q. I take it you would decline under those corcum­
stances? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You have testified as to the padding of bills. 
Now, you spoke of an instance with Mr. Zeitler 
wherein you told him that person was never treated 
by our office? 

A. Right. 

Q. And then he said to you, "Well, send the bill 
anyway?" 

A. Right, "Don't worry about it." 

Q. Well, what was done after that? 

177 



A. Well, I would just go back to Dr. Gordon and 
tell him.and we would not type up the bill for the letter 
stating that we wouldn't handle the case and if Mr. 
Rabb--Mr. Zeitler wanted, he might call Dr. Gordon 
and argue the point over with him. But I never typed 
up the bill. It was never done. 

Q. I see. So there is a distinction between a 
padding of a bill and a nonexistent person that uias--. 

A. Yes. 

Q. -never treated by you? 
A. Yes. 

Mrs. Zaleski described five additional letters marked as exhibits 
from the firm of Rabb and Zeitler to Dr. Gordon as attempts by 
that law firm to induce the doctor to prepare reports and bills for 
patients who came in months after their accidents and had sus­
tained only minor injuries, Mr. Zaleski testified how the doctor 
rejected a request of this nature: 

Q. Would you loole, Mrs. Zaleslei, at 0-59, which 
was formerly 0-22. Now, the top attachment is a letter 
from Rabb <I; Zeitler, dated May 11, 1971? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And is that a request from the firm to Dr. 
Gordon for a report and bill with respect to the named 
patient? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Now, would you read aloud, please, the response 
of Dr. Gordon to that letter? By the way, that re­
sponse was signed by you on Dr. Gordon's behalf? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And, so, would that mean that you typed this 
letter? 

A. Yes. 

Q. All right. Would you read the letter aloud? 
A. '.'Dear Mr. Zeitler: The above-named patient 

was in my office on May 1st, 1971 in regards to her 
accident which occurred on January 29th, 1971. I wish 
to inform you that I will not be able to take on this 
case or do a consultation report. I prefer n6t to get in-
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volved with cases such as this where, the patient has 
been under the. care of another physician fo'r these 
minor ailments and for which I cannot write a con­
sultation. " 

Q. All right. And would you look at the patient 
card? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Is there a comment there about which expresses 
Dr. Gordon's reaction to this particular injury? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Would you read that comment.~ 
A. He wrote, "Stinking case." 

Mrs. Zaleski, although not fully cognizant of the details of 
negligence settlements, could see a relationship between the padded 
bills and larger settlements in negligence actions: 

Q. Could you give this Commission an indication 
in your own words, after thinking about it, as to why 
Dr. Gordon would submit padded bills to the law 
firms? 

A. Well, if they made padded bills, they.all made 
more money. 

Q. Y oumean make more money by--who would 
pay this money? 

A. I guess everybody did. You know, the lawyers 
did, the person who was-the case was about, and 
the doctor, they would all make more money. 

Q. Have you ever heard of the word" specials" in 
an accident case? Specials? 

A. No. 

Q. It doesn't mean anything to you? 
A. Like a specialist doctor? 

Q. No. Specials are amounts that" patient sup­
posedly has expended for medical and hospital treat­
ments. 

A. The most that they can go that their insurance 
will cover? 

Q. Yes. 

A. Yeah. 
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Q. Now, do you believe that the amount that an 
injured person has to pay for hospital and medical 
treatment has some relationship with the amount that 
he might ultimately recoup for his injuries? 

A. I imag~ne that's how the lawyer got at his figure 
when he would tell us what to make it for. 

Dr. Gordon opened his medical office in 1968 in Rahway, and 
until he retired from practice in New Jersey in 1972, his practice 
consisted principally of treatment of persons involved in accident 
cases of which some were Workmen's Compensation cases but more 
were negligence actions, with Rabb and Zeitler most frequently 
representing the injured individuals. Dr. Gordon told how he 
began padding bills after a conversation with William Rabb in 
1968: 

Q. Now, Dr. Gordon, soon after you started your 
practice in Rahway did you meet an individual named 
William Rabb? 

A. Yes, I did. 

Q. And was he an attorney? 
A. At that time he was. 

Q. Was he associated with Mr. Zeitler at that time? 
A. Not at that time. 

Q. All right. Now, when you met him, and I believe 
this would have been when, in 1968? Can you give me 
the approximate time? 

A. No, but it was in 1968 because I had just opened 
my practice. 

Q. SO it would have been at the time in 1968 when 
you had just opened your practice. Did he say any­
thing to you about handling some of his negligence 
and compensation cases? 

A. I believe Mr. Rabb and myself were just about 
beginning our professions about at that time-maybe 
that probably drove us, made us compatible-and on 
the first few cases I guess were normal procedures, 
and then he said to me, look, the bills can be higher, 
between three and five, but not more than that because 
we run into trouble, with the insurance companies. As 
long as it's kept between three and five, in other 
words, you can go as high as three and five on the bills. 
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Q. Let me see if I understand. There was a point 
in time in Y02.r professional relationship with Rabb 
where he said to you you can subntit a bill beiweC1t 
3 and $500, but don't malee it higher than that? 

A. (nodding affirmatively.) 

Q. All right. Then did yo'" pass those instructions 
on to your medical assistants? 

A. Y'es, I did. 

Q. And what was the form of those instructions? 
A. That the bills were not to exceed 3 to $500; if 

the patient came in, fine, if he didn't, we ean go-we 
have to either give them excessive treatment to reach 
the 3 to 500, or, if ne<lessary, to pad the bill to bring 
it up to that amount. 

. Q. AU right. Let me see if I can refresh your 
recollection a little bit. Do you recall either Mr. Rabb 
or Mr. Zeitler ever saying to you, "I'm sending down 
a patient. Malee the usual bill?" 

A. Similar to that. 

Q. Something like that? 
A. Yeah. 

Q. How abmd would they ever say, one or the 
other, "Keep the bill at that range where they won't 
bother us?" 

A. Exactly. 

Q. And who did they refer to? 
A. Insurance companies. 

Q. Now, would there be times when Zeitler would 
call you .and say, "You can go higher on this one, 
there's plenty of coverage?" 

A. That is correct. 

The doetor testified further that he passed on instrudions to 
his Medi<lal Assistants about padding the Rabb and Zeitler bills 
to the range of $300 to $500 by adding fictitious treatment dates 
1llltil the desired total was reached. The doctor discontinued 
further acceptance of any patients referred to him by Rabb and 
Zeitler during 1971, with Mrs. Zaleski's urging a factor in that 
decision. Dr. Gordon testified: 
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Q. All right. I think we established that there was 
a point in time, you said, when things were getting out 
of hand because they were making increasing demands 
to file reports and bills for patients that were never 
in the office? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. As a result of that did you discontinue your 
relationship with Rabb d!; Zeitler? 

A. Partially because of that reason; partially be­
cause of that reason and one of my girls probably 
earlier stated--

Q. You---
A. -that they're trying-if I continue with Rabb 

& Zeitler I will wind up in trouble because they're 
sending in patients that were never in my office and 
they're doing too many phony bills, and after I did 
submit a bill it was always discounted, whatever he 
felt he wanted to give me, not what the bill asked for. 

Q. Let's go into that, first of all. I take it that you 
would find frequently Rabb d!; Zeitler would not reim­
burse you for the full amount of your bill? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. In other words, if you submitted a bill for $500 
which included phony treatment, they would feel free 
to cut you back? 

A. Whatever reason they did it, but they cut it 
back. 

Q. Whatever reason, but they did cut you back? 
A. Right. 

Q. And that happened on several occasions? 
A. That is correct. 

Q. And if I ttnderstood your testimony correctly, 
she became apprehensive that you were going to get 
into serious trouble and she was one of the reasons 
why you told Rabb d!; Zeitler" I'm not going to accept 
any more of your patients?" 

A. That is correct. 

Q. But you did nevertheless continue to submit 
reports and bills for patients that had already been in? 
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A, Only what had already been taken, but I WOould 
nOot take any mOore frOom them. 

Dr. GOordOon estimated his grOoSS receipts frOom payments frOom 
Rabb and Zeitler frOom 1968 until he stOoPped accepting referrals 
frOom that firm in 1971 tOo be $50,000. As previOously nOoted in the 
dOoctOor's testimOony, he received only an average Oof· 70 per cent 
remuneratiOon fOor bills submitted tOo that firm. This WOould indicate, 
therefOore, that he sent that firm bills which tOotaled SOome $70,000. 
Since settlements in negligence actiOons are reached Oon a rule Oof 
thumb Oof three tOo five times the medical bills, the settlements based 
Oon Dr. GOordOon's bills tOo Rabb and Zeitler WOould be in excess Oof 
$200,000. 

FRAUD CONCEDED 

The dOoctOor testified that he attempted tOo ratiOonalize the bill 
padding fOol' Rabb and Zeitler and, tOo a lesser extent, fOor several 
Oother law firms Oon the grOounds that insurance cOompanies were big, 
impersOonal machines which fleeced the pUblic. lIe later, hOowever, 
cOonceded it was in effect a fraudulent scheme which milked in­
snrance cOompanies. 

Q. Naw, in effect, what yau're saying, and I think 
it's a ratianalizatian, abviausly, is that an insurance 
campany is fair game? 

A. I'm SOorry, I can't say that. There's nOo such 
thing as fair game. It's still stealing nOo matter hOoW 
yOoU IOoOok at it. 

Q. It's what? 
A. It's still stealing Oor fraud no matter how yOoU 

IOook at it, not fair game. 

Q. Sa yau cancede, na matter haw yau ratianalize, 
it's still a fraud? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Because yau are deliberately padding bills for 
the singular purpase af getting a better settlement 
than yau u'auld narmally be entitled tOo? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. And that certain attarneys were in cancert with 
yau in daing this? 
. A. That is correct. 
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Q. And certain plaintiffs or petitioners would get 
an award that would be greater than norma,lly 
awarded to them? 

A. That's the purpose of it. 

Q. And it was a deliberate, planned. architecttwed 
scheme which worked across the board? 

A. Not deliberate, planned across the board, it was 
always like an acceptable thing. 

Q. That's the point I want. The system as you 
understood it operated in this fashion? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. And you were a part of the system? 
A. That's correct. 

Q. And the attorneys were a part of the system? 
A. Correct. 

Q. Obviously the plaintiffs or petitioners were a 
part of the system? 

A. Exactly. 

Q. And the thing was to milk insurance companies? 
A. Correct. 

Two OTHER DOCTORS PAD THE BILLS 

The Conmtission's investigation of the relationship between the 
firm of Rabb and Zeitler and its favored treating doctors in com­
pensation and negligence cases uncovered further instances of 
padding relative to the bills of Dr. Manuel Lopez and Dr. Jon 
M. Mandell. 

'Miss Diane Martin, medical assistant to Dr. Lopez, testi,fied with 
a grant of witness immunity at the public hearings how Dr. Lopez 
began taking cases from Rabb and Zeitler in 1969, and ho~v shortly 
thereafter she received instructions on bill padding from an at­
torney at Rabb and Zeitler. 

Because a court order· in a civil action was in e,ffect at the time 
testimony was tal<cn during this segment of public hearings, the 

*The same order of the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey, 
which was previously cited in the footnote on page 148 of this report, additionally 
enjoined the S.c.I. from mentioning the names of individuals and firms in an adverse 
manner at public hearings. As previously noted, the S.c.I. appealed to the United States 

184 



witnesses were instructed to reIer to doctors, lawyers and law firms 
by code letters rather than by name, and to employees of law firms 
by title only. Since that order has been reversed on appeal, the code 
letters and employees can now be identified by name. Law Firm B 
is the firm of Rabb and Zeitler, Dr. E. is Dr. Lopez, and the attorney 
is Richard Zeitler. Miss Martin testified as follows: 

Q. Did this attorney that you had conversation 
with in Law Firm B, did that com;ersation include a 
description, a discussion as to the manner in which 
reports and bills were to be prepared? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And did he tell you he was going to give you a 
price to put on each bill? 

A. Yes, he did. 

Q. And did he tell you that you would then put in 
enough dates on the bill to equal the price? 

A. Yes. 

Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit which dissolved the injunction. 
The S.c.I. firmly believes there is a compelling rationale for the naming of names at 
public hearings for reasons of credibility and an orderliness of procedure which will 
result in full and proper consideration of the facts. This rationale was set forth by 
the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia in the case of 
Doe v. McMillan, 459 F.2d 1304 (1972), affirmed in part and reversed in part by the 
United States Supreme Court, 41 U.S.L.W. 4752 (May 29, 1973). 
The Circuit Court in Doe held that a special select subcommittee of the House District 
Committee and its staff were privileged from civil rights actions brought by students 
mentioned in an adverse manner in a public report of an investigation of the District's 
school system. In so holding, the Court discussed the merits of the students' claims 
of a right to anonymity: 

... at a time such as this when\ "credibility gaps" are frequently men­
tioned, it was entirely reasonable for the House District Committee to 
include what it considered to be sufficient factual data to support its 
findings concerning a controversial and complex area . . . All the details 
of such circumstances including the names of the students involved and 
their acts- were relevant and necessary for a full and proper consideration 
of the matter. 

The sale purposes of ,the S.c.!. in holding -public hearings are to carry out its statutory 
mandates to convey information to the public and present facts as the basis for recom­
mendations for corrective actions by the legislative and executive branches of govern­
ment. The United States Supreme Court in Hannah v. Larche 363 U.S. 420, 441; 80 
S.Ct. 1502 (1960), recognized that public proceedings by a purely investigative com­
mission such as the S.c.!. might result in the collateral consequences of individuals being 
subjected to public opprobium, loss of jobs and the likelihood of prosecution. That 
ground, however, was held to be of no consequence in Hannah, with then Chief 
Justice Earl Warren writing: 

. . . even if such collateral consequences were to flow from the Com­
mission's investigation, they would not be the result of any affirmative 
determination of the Commission and they would not affect the legitimacy 
of the Commission's investigation. . 
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Q. And did he tell you that generally yo'" would 
pick three visits a week until you arrive at the tbtal? . 

A. Yes. 

Q. Did he tell you how much to charge tor the 
opening visit? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And what !vere his instructions concerning tha,t? 
A. Well, the opening visits would be about $25. 

Q. And what would each subseqt~ent visit bd. 
A. 10. 

Q. And $10 was tor whM kind ot t,'eatment? What 
was the general treatment to be adrninistered on sub­
seq!,ent visits? Was it heat treatment? 

A. Yes, if needed. 

Q. "It needed." Did you have the instructions 
from this Law Firm B with regard to both accident 
and workmen's compensation cases? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I take it as a result and pu,rsuant to these in­
structions you prepared bills in an arnottnt supplied to 
you by Law Firm B, including charges for treatrnent 
never rendered? 

A. Yes. 
* • • 

Q. Now, Miss Martin, did any attorney from Law 
Firm B ever offer you any explanation as to why he 
wanted phony or padded bills? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And do yot~ recall what that explanation was? 
A. Yes. He told me that this is the way that the 

insurance companies do business by-and that, also, if 
the higher the bills, the higher the settlements. 

Q. Did he say that if it wasn't high enough, he 
couldn't settle a case? 

A. Yes, I think so. 

:Miss :Martin testified further that the usual range of the padded 
bills specified by the law firm was from $100 to $500. She estimated 
she padded bills with phony treatment dates in 40 instances where 
the patients had been in the doctor's office only on(le or twice. 
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THE FIRM SENDS A SECRETARY 

There came a time in 1970 when Miss Marlin felt so strongly 
that the bill padding was wrong that she contacted the Habb and 
Zeitler firm and told them they would have to g'et someone else to 
make up the doctor's bills, Shortly thereafter, a part-time sec­
retary for that firm, Mrs. Ruth Richards, visited the dO'ctor's office 
on more than one occasion. Miss Martin testified about those visits: 

Q. N aw, I take -it, then, that a secretary an"ived 
and said that Law Firm B had sent her? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And can you tell me an the accasian af your 
first having talked to' this secretary what she said to' 
yau and what you said to' her, as best YM. can 
remember? 

A. Y'e-s. She had come into the office and identified 
herself, after that saying that she would be the one 
making up the reports and bills. I asked her where 
they were going to be done. I assumed they would be 
in the office, but she infO'rmed me that she could not 
because of having small children at home, sO' that she 
would be taking the reports home and doing them. 

Q. I see. And as a result af that did yau supply her 
with letterhead and bills far Dr. E.? 

A. Yes. 

Q. His statianery? 
A. Yes, I did. 

• • * • * 
Q. All right. Naw, shartly after that, ar a paint in 

time after that, did yau have accasian, then, to' submit 
to' her patient cards af Dr. E from which rep arts and 
bills were to' be sitbmittedta Law Firm B? 

A. Yes. 

'Q. All right. N aw, so the recard is clear this secre­
tary was anly to' prepare reparts and bills for Law 
Finn B; is that carrect? 

A. Yes, it is. 

Miss Marlin's conviction that bill padding was wrong and could 
lead to serious trouble 1ed her to urge Dr. Lopez (Dr. E) to' stop 
accepting' cases from Rabb and Zeitler (Law Firm B) : 
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Q. All right. Did there come a point in time when 
you spoke to your employer about discontinuing his 
relationship with Law Firm B? 

A. Yes, I did. 

Q. Approximately when was that? 
A. It was approximately a year before he actually 

stopped. 

Q. When you say "it was approximately a year 
before he actually stopped" can you tell me when it 
was, your first conversation you had concerning that? 
Was it about the same time you asked to have some­
one else prepare the reports and bills? 

A. Yes, it was around that time. 

Q. Around that time~ 
A. Uh-huh. 
Q. That's when you made your first attempt? 
A. Yes. 

Q. Then did you discuss the matter again with your 
employer subsequently? 

A. Yes, I did, again. 

Q. And approximately when was that? 
A. That was approximately in the middle of '71. 

Q. All right. This time did you say anything differ-
ently to your employer than you had said previously? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What did you say? 
A. I told him that what we're doing was wrong, 

and I also told him that if he hadn't stopped accept­
ing clients from this law firm, that I would quit my 
job, and I tried to make him understand that, you 
know, he could probably get in trouble for it. 

Q. Well, did you have any belief that because of 
your employer's nationality he might not have had the 
same comprehension of, shall we say, right and wrong 
in this society? 

A. Yes, I did. 

Q. When you told him that if he didn't discontinue 
dealing with this law firm that you would have to leave 
him, what happened next? 
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A. IV ell, he finally discovered that what I was say­
ing I meant, and he began to believe that it was true 
from seeing things going on. 

Q. And did you call the law firm yourself and tell 
thern that you would accept no more clients? 

A. Y cs, on s'everal occasions. 

Q. On several occasions. On those occasions were 
you able to speak to any member' of the finn or did you 
end up talking to a secretary? 

A. I ended up talking to a secretary. 

Q. But someone who you presumed could convey 
the message to a responsible member of the firm? 

A. Yes. 
* '*' * 

Q. I see. After you called the first time, did the 
law finn comply with your wishes or did they just 
keep sending clients? 

A. No, they just kept sending them. 

Q. And how long did it take for this firm to get the 
message? 

A. Oh, about, I would say, approximately a month. 

Q. And do you know whether your employer also 
spoke to them? 

A. That I'm not sure of. 

Dr. Manuel Lopez received his medical degree from National 
University in Bogota in his native Columbia, South America, in 
1959. He later came to this country and eventually opened an 
office for the general practice of medicine in Rahway. Dr. Lopez 
testifying with a grant of witness immunity told how he first met 
Richard Zeitler socially and how Zeitler subsequently asked Lopez 
to first take cases involving compensation claims and later asked 
for padded bills in negligence cases: 

Q. All right. If I understand your testimony, sir, 
with respect to the compensation cases, he told you 
he wanted you to provide unauthorized treatment.~ 

A. Y'es. 

Q. That is, treatment witho,d the approval of the 
employer? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. And he would tell you how much to charge? 
A. Yes. 

Q. Did the amount that he gave you with respect 
to the compensation cases have any bearing on how 
often the patient was in your office? 

A. Relation between the visits and the price f 

Q. Yes. 
A. Sometime the patient came once or twice and he 

wants three of four times the bilL 

Q. I see. Sometimes the patient was in once or 
twice and he wanted a bill reflecting three or four 
times that amount? 

A. Yes. 

Q. In other words, whatever the price-strike that. 
If I understand your testimony with respect to these 
compensation cases, whatever the price mi.qht have 
been for one Or two visits, he wanted you to triple 
that? 

A. Yeah. 

Q. SO that you would be billing for visits or treat­
ment which was never rendered? 

A. Compensation, yes, treatment rendered once or 
twice in the office. 

• • • • • 
Q. All right. Now, did you have any discussion, 

then, with this Law Firm B concerning the handling 
o/the liability cases, the negligence cases? 

A. Oh, yes. 

Q. And what did they tell you about that? 
A. He wants to take all the car accidents, send to 

my office. He wants a special bilL 

Q . He wants a special bill. 
A. Special bill. 

Q. And did he tell you the total that he wanted you 
to submit? 

A. Yeah, he call later and tell me how much is the 
bilL 
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Q. He would tell you how much to bill? 
A. Yes, after. 

Q. Generally, what amount would he tell you? 
A. A-Oh, some big bills; 2, 300, 500. 

Q. 400? 
A. 4 and 500. 

Q. And he tcould give you the total he wants? 
A. Yes. 

Q. Would he tell you how much to charge for the 
opening visit as well? 

A. Yeah, he say start the first 25 and thEm 10. 

Q. Start the first 25 and thereafter 10? 
A. 10. 

Q. You understood you were to submit that bill 
whether the patient was treated or not? 

A. He wants to do the phony bilL 

Q. In what language did you communicate with this 
individu·al? 

A. In Spanish. 

Q. "In Spanish." And were all your communica­
tions with the--

A. Always in Spanish. 

Dr. Lopez testified further that he .submitted some 300 to 400 
padded bills to Rabb and Zeitler during 1969-72 and that so far 
he had received $25,000 in payment on those bills withmo,re still 
due. By. January, 1972 Dr. Lopez had been convinced b~ Miss 
Martin and friends of the dishonesty of bill padding and he. I'efused 
to take any more cases from Zeitler. Zeitler is referred to .as "he" 
or "him" or "this lawyer" in the following excerpts from Dr. 
Lopez's testimony: 

Q. Did you ever tell this law firm that you weren't 
going to accept any more of their clients? 

A. Oh, yes, yes. 

Q. Approximately when was that, sir? 
A. First time it was in the January, '72.' 

Q. And what was the reason for your telling them 
that? 

A. Because it's dishonest. 
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Q. You realized it was dishonest and a mistake and 
you just wanted to have nothing more to do with it? 

.A. Yes. 

Q. As a result, did you call this firm up? 
.A. I spoke personally. 

Q. You spoke personally with him. And did he 
make any comment to you.~ 

.A. Oh, yeah. You don't want to make chowa, it's 
the only--

Q. Did he tell you, say, no gusto chowa va infe-l:no?, 
.A. Yes. 

Q. What does that mean in English? 
.A. If you don't like money--

Q. If you don't like money, go to hell? 
.A. Go to helL 

Q. This is when you told him you wanted to dis­
continue? 

.A. Yes. 

Q. He said, "If you don't like money, go to hell"? 
.A. Yes. 

* * • 
Q. And did-let's put it this way: When you 

entered into this arrangement with Law Firm B, what 
understanding did you have as to whether or not it 
was legal? 

.A. I never was doing business with lawyer and 
now haJVe the business. I think it was honest the first 
time when he came to the office, and after I found it 
was complete dishonest . 

. Q. Did you associate what you were doing with 
conditions that yOu found in this country.W 

.A. My nurse told me this is dishonest. 

Q. She told you it was dishonest? 
.A. Dishonest, and after I speak with couple of 

friends, told me,· , 'You better stop." 

Q. But would it be fair to say that because of your 
recent national origin, having come from South 

192 



America, would it be fai,' to state that your frame of 
mind was you didn't see the right and the wrong when 
you were first approached? 

A. Yes, I didn't see. 

Q. It made no impact on you? You had no experi-
ence with dealing with lawyers? 

A. No experience, no. 

Q. And your basic language was, and is, Spanish? 
A. Is Spanish. 

Q. Did this lawyer, who you said spoke Spanish, 

A. Perfect Spanish. 

Q. Perfect Spanish. 
A. Perfect. 

Q. Did he give ym; any explanation or rationale 
ab01;t this? 

A. It was correct. 

Q. He told you it was correct? 
A. Correct. 

Q. You would be helping people who were hurt; is 
that what he said? 

A. Yes, help poor people, and after I find it was 
not right. 

Q. And then when finally ym;r nurse or secretary 
m,ade you understand that it was wrong, you took--­

A. Yes. 

Q. --steps to put an end to it? 
A. Yes, complete. 

THE SECRETARY GETS INSTRUCTIONS 

Mrs. Ruth Richards, the previously mentioned part-time secre­
tary employed by the firm of Rabb and Zeitler (Law Firm B), had 
been with the firm only two weeks when she was asked to type the 
medical bills and reports of Dr. Lopez in cases involving individ­
uals being represented by the law firm. At first she typed only 
unitemized bill totals because Dr. Lopez's patient cards contained 
only a total dollar figure with only one or two office visits recorded 
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in each case. Those bills were I'eturned to her by the law firm with 
the direction for her to get instructions as to itemization from Dr. 
Lopez. Mrs. Riehards, testifying with a grant of immunity, said 
she got only vague statements from Dr. Lopez's medical assistant 
as to itemization, and the bills she typed subsequently were again 
rejeeted beeause the itemized treatment dates were not sufficient 
to justify the totals of the bills. 

Mrs. Richards then testified that the law firm's office man­
ager, Charles Haus, instructed her on the exact way to pad Dr. 
Lopez's (Dr. E) bills with sufficient itemization of phony treat­
ment dates: 

Q. All right. Did the office manager then tell YOtt 
how to arrive at the bill total? 

A. Yes, he did. 

Q. What did the office manager tell you? 
A. He wrote it out on a yellow sheet of paper that I 

should charge, $25 for the initial visit and examination 
and than $10 per visit after that until the total was 
arrived at that was on the back of the doctor's card. 

Q. All right. Now, did he indicate to you that you 
could find the dates on the patient card? 

A. No, sir. He told me to use a six-month period. 

Q. He told you, in effect, to make up the dates? 
A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And he told you to charge $25 f01" the first visit? 
A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And $10 thereafter until you arrive at the bill 
total? 

A. Yes, sir. 

The yellow sheet prepared by Mr. Haus was marked as an 
exhibit. To illustrate the bill padding technique, a $275 treatment 
bill prBiPared by Mrs. Richards on Dr. Lopez's letterhead was 
marked as Exhibit C-70. Mrs. Richards testi:fied as follows about 
that bill: 

Q. All right. Do you see anything on Exhibit 0-70 
which indicates the instructions to you in the hand­
writing of the office manager for Law Firm B as to 
how to correct the bill? 
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A. He has a note, "Need correct itemized bilL" 

Q. And what did that mean to you? 
A. That I had to retype it to equal the amount of 

money that was on the--

Q. You had to add more dcdes, right? 
A. Yes. 

Q. And you just picked dates out of thin air? 
A. Ye,s, sir. 

Q. At this point in time, 1l1rs. Richards, did it dawn 
on you that these dates were fictit-ious? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Mrs. Richards testified further as to the duration and extent of 
her typing padded bills for Lopez patients for submission to Rabb 
and Zeitler (Law Firm B) : 

Q. 1l1rs. Richards, for how long a pet'iod of time 
were you employed part-time by Law F'irm B? 

A. A little over one year. 

'Q. , From approximately 1l1ay of '71 to June of '72? 
A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Can you estimate for me how many fictitious 
bills you typed for Law F'irm B? 

A. I really can't tell you exactly. 

Q. Would it be more than a hundred? 
A. I believe so. 

Mrs. Richards from February to J nne of 1972 worked in the law 
firm's office. She testified about an instance where Zeitler se1).t two 
"photographers ", who can now be identified as Manuel Cartegena 
and Librado Apatano, to a hospital to see an accident victim an,d 
about the frantic pace at the law office: 

Q. Did you ever overhear a conversation from a ' 
partner 'Of Law F'irm B to two of the photographers to 
go to Perth Amboy Hospital? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Would you describe the circumstances sur" 
rounding that instruction.~ 
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A. Well, it was really one morning, and a person 
from Firm B came in with a newspaper and he said, 
"This looks like a good accident case," and said to 
two people there to take a run over to Perth Amboy 
Hospital. 

Q. In other words, the instruction was to go over 
to the hospital and see the patient? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. You don't know for what purpose, do you? 
A. Yes, sir. 

Q. It certainly wasn't to bring the patient flowers, 
I take it, in any event? 

A. No, sir. 

Q. Did yO~b make any observations while you were 
there concerning the number of new cases that might 
have generated over a weekend? 

A. It was fantastic, yes. 

Q. Would you describe that to me? 
A. ~Well, you would arrive on Monday morning, 

there would be twenty or thirty new files piled on the 
girl's desk to have numbered. ~ 

Q. Were you able to determine that these were 
cases which were acquired over the weekend? 

A. I assume so. 

Q. That tuas an assumption on your part? 
A. Yes. 

INSTRUCTIONS ON TESTIMONY 

The Oo=ission first subpamaed Mrs. Richards on March 1, 
1973 to appear at a private hearing. She immediately notified the 
firm of Rabb and Zeitler of the service of the subprena. On the next 
day, according to Mrs. Richards, Zeitler and another of the firm's 
attorneys and the business manager, Haus, came to her home and 
gave her some instructions on how to testify before the Oo=is­
SIan: 

Q. Did any of them make any statement which 
would have indicated to you that your function with 
respect to those bills was simply mechanical? 
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A. Yes, sir, they told me I was a machine, "and that 
I typed what I saw just as a machine would do. 

Q. Now, did one of the attorneys make any com­
ment to you which put you in any fear or appre­
hension? 

A. Yes, sir, one of them mentioned to me twice 
that he's known as the head of the Spanish Mafia. 

Q. I take it that is not a comment that you took 
lightly.~ 

A. No, I got frightened. 

Q. Now, did any of the individuals who came to 
your house that afternoon from Law Firm B give you 
any instructions on how you were to testify before the 
Commission? ' 

A.' They told me to tell the truth. 

Q. And would you explain to me what they meant 
or what you understood them to mean by the truth? 

A. Well, the truth being that there were no-that 
you would have no records to disprove that I just 
typed from those bills as I saw them and that's what I 
put on the bills and reports. 

,Q • .In other words, am I correct, then, they told 
you that since you have no way to disprove whether 
the patient had in tact been all those days, all you had 
to say was, "I typed them up"? 

A.Right. 

Q. And that you shouldn't indicate any knowledge 
you might have that those dates were fictitious? 

A. Right. 

Q. Is that what they told you? 
A. Yes, sir. 

Dr. Jon Mandell, a chiropractor with offices in Metuchen, 
testifying with a grant of witness i=unity, told how he padded 
some bills for the firm of Rabb and Zeitler after a conversation 
with Zeitler who is referred to as "he" or "him" in the following 
testimonial excerpts: 

Q. Well, in your early con'versation with him in 
early '69; did you indicate to him that you treated 
accident cases.~ 
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A. I did. 

Q. And did you tell him that you would be happy 
to treat any clients that he might send? 

A. I did. 

Q. And did he tell you that he could send you a lot 
of business? 

A. He did. 

Q. Did he tell you that he needed large bills? 
A. Yes, he did. 

Q. Did he tell you why he needed large bills? 
A. Yes, he did, CounseL 

Q. What did he say as to why? 
A. The bigger the bills, the bigger the settlemepts. 

That's alL 
• * * * • 

Q. Now, as a result of this conversation did he 
start sending you clients? 
. A. Yes, he did. 

Q. And over the course of your relationship with 
him, roughly, approximately how many cases did he 
send you? . 

A. Approximately 400 cases. 

Q. Do any percentage of those 400 cases involve 
the submission by you of bills including charges for 
treatment not rendered? . . 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Approximately how many? 
A. AppNximatelysixty-three to sixty-five, 

Q. Out of 400? 
A .. That is correct. 

Q. All right. Now, were there any occasions when· 
Law Firm B would send you cases and say, "J''IrI, 
sending 80 and 80 up and I need a backdated bill~" 

A .. Y e.g, sir. . . 

. Q. And did you supply him with a backdated bill? 
A. Yes, sir. 
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Q. And were there occasions when he indicated to 
you that he needed lots of visits reflected on the bill? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And did you provide him with bills on those 
occasions? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And that meant you were providing him.with 
bills including charges for services not rendered; ~s 
that correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Now, with respect to these sixty-five or so cases 
that you described, we have already established, have 
we not, that those sixty-five cases were all cases in; 
which charges for phony treatment were included? 

A. Yes, sir. 
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A PADDED BILL AND THE STATE 

To highlight the adverse impact of bill padding, the investig'ation 
included the tracing of a padded bill in a negligence case and the 
key role of that bill in a $2,000 settlement paid by the state through 
its Unsatisdied Claim aud Judgment Fund. The fund is main­
tained to protect persons injured by uninsured motorists or in 
hit-and-run accidents. 

Charles E. Waldron, Special Investigator for the Commission, 
was recalled to te,stify how the heat treatment. bill in this case 
caught his attention and how the records of the cas8' were traced to 
the ultimate settlement of the suit. A summary of the .salient 
points of Mr. Waldron's testimony follows: 

• Mr. Waldron extracted a heat treatment bill, rendered by 
Dr. Manuel Lopez to Rabb and Zeitler (Law Firm B), from 
Dr. Lopez's file because the bill, totaling $365, listed 35 
visits by the patient, Stephen Potash, while the patient card 
reflected only two visits. The bill bor8' the initials, R.R., 
indicating it had been prepared by Mrs. Ruth Richards, the 
former part-time employee of Rabb and Zeitler, who padded 
Dr. Lopez's bills on that firm's instructions. 

• Mr. Waldron checked the SupHrior Court files of the negli­
gence action case of Stephen Potash vs. the State Director 
of Motor Vehicles. The records reflected Potash had been 
injured in a hit and run accident, so that suit was brought 
by Rabb and Zeitler against the state for collection from the 
Unsatisfied Claim and Judgment Fund. 

• The records also showed that in answer to the State's 
demand for further answers to interrogatories in the case, 
Rabb and Zeitler submitted a letter with the 35-visits, 
Dr. Lopez bill for $365 for treatment of Mr. Potash 
as an attachment. After receipt of that bill, the Un­
satisfied Claim and Judgment Fund agreed to a $2,000 
settlement of the case. 

LESS THAN TEN VISITS 

Stephen Potash, who is employed as an investigator for the 
Essex County Welfare Board, was injured in an accident in Plain-
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field in 1969 when his car was struck by a vehicle driven by a 
hit-and-run motorist. He was referred to the law firm of Rabb and 
Zeitler (Law Firm B) who in turn sent him to Dr. Manuel Lopez 
for treatment. Mr. Potash testified as to the number of visits he 
made to that doctor's office and the falseness of the Dr. Lopez bill 
which listed 35 visits: 

Q. All right. Now, how many visits for treatment 
did you make to Dr. Lopez? 

A. Anywhere from five to ten visits. It didn't 
exceed ten visits. 

Q. It didn't exceed ten? 
A. Right. He examined us-excuse me. He exam­

ined us twice and then told us to come back for heat, 
heat treatments which we did, and somewhere six­
seven visits. 

Q. Well, how did it happen that you discontinued 
going to Dr. Lopez? 

A. I wasn't uncomfortable any more. I didn't have 
the pain in my neck I didn't ha;ve to go for treat­
ment, I didn't feel, anyway. 

Q. SO you just discharged yourself? 
A. Right. 

* * * • 
Q. Were you aware--at any time did you see a bill 

for treatment rendered to you of Dr. Manuel Lopez? 
A. No, I didn't. 

Q. Do you now understand the exhibit that you see 
in front of you to be the bill that Dr. Lopez submitted 
in this lawsuit? 

A. Yes. 

Q. In your lawsuit? 
A. Correct. 

Q. Is that an accurate reflection of the number of 
times that you were in his office? 

A. No, it isn't. 
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A SKIMPY SHARE OF A SETTLEMENT 

Mr. Patash then testified that his suit was settled by the law firm 
withaut priar cansultatian with him and that he was surprised and 
dismayed by the amaunt he received: 

Q. Did they ever ask your approval concerning the 
figure at which the case should be settled? 

A. NO'. I was tald the cas'e was settled. 

Q. The only thing, if I understand your testimony 
correctly, yo~, were told after the fact; is that correct? 

A. Right. 

Q. All right. Did they tell you the amount in which 
the case had been settled? 

A. Right, $2,000. 

Q. At the time they told you that, what was your 
expectation as to the amount of money you were to 
receive from the settlement? 

A. Twa-thirds . 

• • • 
Q. Did you complain when you were handed a 

check by Law Firm B in only the sum of $600 plus? 
A. Y,eah. I said "W aw," and the manager af the 

law firm went an to' explain that there are numeraus 
casts and expenses involved with a case like this, and 
I really thaught I had nO' recaurse. 

IN LIEU OF FORMAL AMENDMENT 

The Patash negligence suit, in accard with the pracedures af the 
State Unsatisfied Claim and Judgment Fund, was assigned far an 
investigatian by an insurance camp any which turned that task aever 
to' the General Adjustment Bureau. That a.gency submitted to' the 
Fund a field investig·atian report which cantained files referring 
to' "specials" ar medical expenses-$365 far Dr. Lapez and $50 
for Rahway Hospital, for a tatal af $415. 

As previously nated in Mr. 'Waldran's testimany, the interrag­
ataries submitted by Rabb and Zeitler to' the state in this suit 
were inadequate as to' medical expense data, and the state 
demanded further answers. In respanse, Rabb and Zeitler sent a 
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letter, with a copy of the Lopez bill for 35 visits for a total charge 
of $365 attached, requesting that the bill's submission by letter be 
accepted inl,ieu of formal amendment of the interrogatories., The 
request was apparently accepted by the Fund. Salvatore, O~poz~i, 
Manager of the Fund and an attorney, testiiied the acceptance ,of 
the request was not unusual in New Jersey: 

Q.Let me ask you this, Mr. Capozzi: Would it 
have struck you as unusual that the material con­
tained in the letter of May 15, 1972, and its attach­
ments were unsworn? 

A: No. It's quite a common practice in this state 
for supplemental material to interrogatories to be 
supplied by the attorney with his representation, ask­
ing that they be accepted as if they were under oath, 
so that it's not an unusual practice. 

Q. I didn't get the last part of you,' answer. Would 
they be accepted as if they were under oath? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Isthat-
A. Interrogatories, of course, are s,worn to by the 

party. When supplemental interrogatories are fur­
nished, to properly comply with the rules they should 
be also sworn to by the party. However, the attorneys 
in this state commonly accept a letter reciting" This 
will supplement interrogatories and you may accept 
them as if they were under oath." 

Q. Well, there is nothing in the letter that says you 
may accept it as if they were under oath" though, is 
there, the letter of May 15th, 1972? 

A. Well, I take the last sentence to that letter to be 
the eqniva1ent of that. "If we do not hear from you, 
we assume, that you will accept these answers in lieu 
of a more formal amendment." Now, that basically 
says the same thing because the amendment--

Q. Well, I don't interpret it to say basically the 
same thing. I interpret it as rather artful language tq 
avoid saying the same thing. 

A. Perhaps. 



THE BILL WAS INFLUENTIAL 

The field investigation report by the General Adjustment Bureau 
recommended to Mr. Capozzi that the Potash case be settled for 
$2,500. Mr. Capozzi, after evaluating the report, recommended to 
the Board of the Fund a $2,000 settlement. The Board approved 
the recommendation, and a check (marked as an exhibit), drawn 
on the Department of the Treasury, State of New Jersey, was 
issued to effect the settlement. Mr. Capozzi testified how signifi­
oant the doctor's medicalbill was in the settlement figure and how 
that settlement was unwarranted in light of the falsity of the bill: 

Q. Now, obviously when you made this settlement 
you had no knowledge or warning that approximately 
twenty-eight of these alleged treatments were fraud­
ulent or spurious? 

A. IVe had no such knowledge. 

Q. And had you known that, it certainly would 
have been a primary element in assessing the value of 
this case? 

A. Very significant element. 

Q. SO the fact that you relied upon a three­
hundred-sixty-five-doUar medical bill of Dr. Lopez 
based upon thirty-five treatments, in effect, was the 
reason why you gave the $2,000'1 

A. It was a very important factor in the weighing 
of the decision to arrive at a settlement, yes. 

Q. And had you known the true facts, a two-thou­
sand-dollar check would not have gone out of your 
office? 

A. I tried to run quickly through my mind an 
evaluation based upon what Mr. Potash testified as 
to the actual treatment and number of visits and 1-
the $2,000 would obviously be a gross overpayment 
for that kind of injury. 

Q. Yes. If you were talking in the context of two 
treatments by the doctor and four or five heat treat­
ments, you're talking about a totally different evalua­
tion on the case; is that not so? 

A. Yes, substantially, yes. 
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Q. So that you would agree that a substantial 
portion of this two-thousand-dollar check was as of 
today unwarranted? 

A. Yes. 

Co=issioner Farley: That's all I have. 
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WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION 
INSURANCE RATES 

The Accounting Staff of the Commission expended considemble 
time and effort analyzing the structure and processes underlying 
the setting of rates charged by insuran{le companies for Work­
men's Compensation coverage in New Jers·ey. The goal was to 
determine if there were areas of possrble changes and improve­
ments which would tend to minimize rate increases and get more 
of the premium dollar paid to the injured workers. The accounting 
staff had the benefit of consultation with a leading e"'pert in the 
financial strudure and rate making process of insuran{le {lompanies. 

THE RATING BUREAU 

The Compensation Rating and Inspection Bureau is the, body 
which establishes and maintains the premium rates for Work­
men's Compensation insurance in New Jersey. The Bureau has 
an excellent reputation in the rate-making field. However, Julius 
P. Cayson, C.P.A., the Commission's Chief A{lcountant, was re­
called as a witness to describe the Bureau's operations and 
possible ways .of improving them. Mr. Cayson, in response to 
questions from Martin G. Holleran, Executive Director of the Com­
mission, testified as follows: 

Q. Now, Mr. Cayson, are you familiar with the 
C01npensation Rating and Inspection Bureau of the 
State of New Jersey? 

A. Yes, lam. 

Q. Department of Insurance? 
A. Yes, I am. 

Q. And where is it located? 
A. 60 Park Pla<le in Newark. 

Q. And when was it established, sir? 
A. It was established on March 27th, 1917, by 

statute. 

Q. Can you tell us whcd its functio1~ is? 
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A. By law, New Jersey Statute 34, Sectians 15 to' 
89, its primary purpase, amang others, is to' estab­
lish and maintain rules, regulatians, and premium 
rates far warkmen's campensa.tian and emplayer 
liability insurance and to' equitably adjust the same as 
far as practicable to' the hazards af individual risks. 
Thus, basically its functian is rate making far the in­
surance industry; that is, to' develop manual rates. 

Q. Is the rate-making process in New Jersey in 
any wayan adversary process? 

A.It is nat. 

Q. And of whom or what does the membership of 
the Compensation Rating Bureatt consist? 

A. The membership cansists af every mutual 
assaciatian and stack campany autharized to' write 
campensatian ar liability insurance in the state. 
Accarding to' N erw Jersey Statute 34 :15-90, if yau are 
not a member af the Bureau, yau will nat receive yaur 
autharizatian to' write workmen's campensatian in­
surance. 

Q. You ttsed the tenn "mutual association and 
stock company." W iU you define them, please? 

A. A mutual associatian is an O'rganizatian in 
which the ownership af assets and cantrO'l O'f O'pera­
tiO'ns are vested in palicyhalders, whO' have O'wnership 
rights anly as IO'ng as they' cO'ntinue being policy­
halders; upan the expiration af their policies, they 
lose all rights and interest in the cO'mpany. A stO'ck 
company is an O'rdinary cO'rpO'ratiO'n arganized far 
prafit; awnership O'f assets and cO'ntrO'I af carpara­
tians are vested in the stO'ckhO'lders. 

Q. Can you tell me what the personnel makeup of 
the rating bureau is? 

A; There is a gaverning cO'mmittee which cO'nsists 
af three representatives fram stack campanies and 
three fram mutual campanies. The Bureau is headed 
by a chairman appointed by the CammissiO'ner af In­
surance whO' is the gavermnent's representative O'n the 
Bureau, but he has nO' vate. He is a--

Q. The government's representative has no vote 
on the governing board? 
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A. That's right, sir. 

Q. Would you contim<e, please? 
A. There are in all, according to Bureau figures, 

135 employees in the Rating Bureau. 

Q. Before we get into that, could you tell me by 
whom the special deputy of the Com1nissioner of In­
surance is paid? 

A. By the State of New Jersey. 

Q. Now, according to Rating Bureau figures, how 
many employees are there in the Rating BU'rea1t? 

A. 135. 

Q. And how many of these 135 are paid by the 
state? 

A. Four. 

Q. And with the exception of these four, how are 
all others paid? 

A. They'm paid from quarterly assessments which 
are made against the particular insurance carriers in 
the state in proportion to the amount of workmen's 
compensation that they're writing. 

Q. You mean they're paid by members of the 
Bureau? 

A. That's right, yes. 

Q. And these are the people to whom they 1'eport? 
A. That is true. 

Q. And are the employees of the bureau subject to 
the approval and ratification of the Commissioner? 

A. Yes, they are. However, there is one other 
provision there that is quite interesting. 

Q. And what is that, sir? 
A. It says that no person shall be employed at an 

annual salary in excess of $7,500 without specific 
approval of the governing committee. 

Q. lJIIeaning the stock cornpanies and the mutual 
companies and their representatives? 

A. Well, I would say the representatives of the 
stock companies and the mutual companies, the 
governing committee consisting of six people, yes. 
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Q. Can you tell us what the income was for the Rat­
ing Bureau in the last year that it reported and how 
this income was generated? 

A. The total income was $1,411,228, and $1,370,153 
was generated from quarterly assessments and 
approximately $41,000 came from miscellaneous 
sources. 

Q. And can you tell us what the expenditures 
totaled? 

A. $1,317,977. 

Q. And how much was expended on salaries? 
A. $825,835. 

Q. Of your $1,317,977 of that total, how much was 
expended in employee relations? 

A. $106,771. 

Q. And what expenses does the line item ernployee 
relations and welfare encompass? 

A. Blue Cross-Blue Shield, major medical and 
pensions. 

Q. Fringe benefits? 
A. Fringe benefits, yes. 

Q. All right. So, then, according to Bureau statis­
tics, of the $1,317,.977, $923,607 is allocated to salary 
and fringe benefits? 

A. 'L'hat is correct. 

Q. And this is paid by the mutual and stock com­
panies, whose rates a,"e made by this Bureau; is that 
right? 

A. That is correct, yes. 

Q. All right. Now, you indicated that the Buremb 
has been in existence for approximately fifty-six 
years, since 1.917. During that period of time has any 
outside agency, either governmental or otherwise, 
done a cost study or rate review on the rating prac­
tices or conducted a review of rates of the Rating 
Bureau procedures? 

A. No, they haven't. 

Q. And is there anywhere within the laws of the 
State of New Jersey a requirement that such a study 
or review be conducted? 
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A. Well, New Jersey Statute 17 :29A-12 is con­
sidered a deemer clause. 

Q. And what do you mean by that.W 
A. That is that all the Commissioners of Insurance, 

and down through the years Co=issioners of Bank­
ing and Insurance, have deemed that particular 
clause as not to be applicable to the.N ew J crsey Com-
pensation and Rating Bur'eau. ' 

Q. YO"' mean every commissioner so far has tradi­
tionally taken the position that this statute is not 
applicable to the Rating Bureau? 

A. That's correct, yes. 

Q. And do they vietu this study rC1!iew as nec­
essary or unnecessary? 

A. Well, they can see some merits in it but they 
don't see the necessity of it at the present. 

Q. Well, what repi,tation does the New Jersey 
Rating Bureau have among its peers? 

A. It has a very excellent reputation; it's a very 
professional organization. 

Q. Well, could you tell me, even though it has this 
excellent reputation, whether it is necessary to under­
take such a study? 

A. Well, we feel that without undertaking. such a 
study it's impossible to determine whether the cost of 
the premium to the employer is either too great or 
too little, or it is equally impossible to determine 
whether the practices and procedures of the Rating 
Bureau are proper. 

Q. Do any other states have laws reqt,iring that 
special reviews or studies be conducted at specific 
intervals? 

A. Ye,s. 

Q. Can you nmne a couple? 
A. Yes, contiguous states such as New York, 

Massachusetts and Pennsylvania. 

Q. And are laws such as these beneficial to' the 
Workmen's Compensation system? 

A. It is the belief of the Co=ission that if is, ye's. 
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Q. And could you gwe us some illustrations of the 
benefits that it might serve? . 

A. Well, if the examination cornirms the reputation 
of the Rating Bureau, this should definitely he hrought 
to the attention of the puhlic. If, on the other hand, a 
cost study review uncovers material de,ficiencies in thc 
rate-making process, immediate steps should he taken 
to correct these deficiencies. Such a re'view would act 
as a self-correcting mechanism if rates are set too 
high or too low. Such a rate re,view hy an outside 
agency or department would serve as a counter 
halance to the rate-making hureau. It would confirm 
the accuracy of in-hous'e practices and procedures and 
it would highlight deficiencies. Either result, of 
course, would he heneficial to the puhlic. 

OPEN RATING AS AN ALTERNATIVE TO RATE MAKING IN 

. CONCERT 

The question of the use of open rating, as a viahle alternative 
to rate making in concert, was hr>e,fiy touched on at the puhlic hear­
ing. This method is used in several states, notahly, the State of 
California, the nation's largest. Open rating"s principal appeal 
lies in the opportunity for well-run carriers to introduce an ele­
ment of competition in the ·Workmen's Compensation rate 
structure. 

A hrief summary of the pros and cons of the use of Open Rating 
was presented at the puhlic hearings through the testimony of Mr. 
Cayson: 

Q. And what other type of rating process besides 
rating in concert are there? 

A.Well, in the State of California they have open 
rating. 

Q. And what is open rating? 
A. Open rating is a file and use system which would 

eliminate the prior approval of the commissioner as a 
prerequisite for a rate change. To implement its 
decision to change rates, all that a carrier would have 
to do would he give notice of an intended change and 
file that notice with the commissioner. Of course, if 
such rates are unconscionahle, the commissioner 
could, on hehalf of the puhlic, institute proceedings 
to block snch changes. 
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Q. Well, could you tell us what some of the 
advantages are at the open rating system? 

A. Open rating would make all premium levels 
more responsive to the current costs and markets in~ 
stead of being excessive for some and inadequate for 
others as happens with rate making in concert. Rates 
would be held down by economics of competition 
accompanied by vigorous enforcement of the existing 
state and federal antitrust laws. 

INADEQUACY OF Loss DATA SUBMITTED FOR RATE MAKING 

PURPOSES 

The absence of outside V'erification of loss data which is sub­
mitted or "called in" by over 200 members of the Rating Bureau 
caused the S.C.I. to reevaluate it's approach to an analysis of the 
loss data at this central source. Further complicating the problem 
was the discovery by the Commission staff that there is no uni­
formity in claim petition evaluation among the majo,r insurance 
carriers which were contacted. 

Some companies utilized very liberal estimates as to their 
ultimate loss exposure, whereas others evidenced conservatism in 
their assessment of future liability on claims. The investigation 
disclosed that the problem is particularly acute in the area of 
evaluations of Occupational Disease (O.D.) cases. A trend toward 
the filing of a claim of job-related disabilities falling in the O.D. 
category, was noted in Essex, Hudson, Bergen and Me,rcer 
Counties. 

Therefore, the thrust of the S.C.I. inquiry into a study of actual 
losses centered on a revie,w of the overall loss experience reported 
in annual reports covering the years 1967 to 1971, inclusive, which 
were filed by the Rating Bureau and the Department of Labor and 
Industry. 

The public hearing testimony is summarized below: 

1. Earned premiums for the years 1967 to 1971 were 
$1,236,105,964 (Chart 10 on Page 332:). 

2. "Paid Losses" for the same period were $560,901,112 whereas 
Incurred Losses were $736,824,951. (Chart 10.) 

3. A comparison of earned premiums and actual loss payouts 
applicable to these premiums, in the year received, illustrate the 
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cash flow generated by Workmen's Compensation business: 
(Charts 10 and 11 on Pages 332 and 333). 

Earned Paid 
Year Premium losses-cu,.,.ent 

1967 192,000,000 13,000,000 
1968 232,000,000 16,000,000 
1969 253,000,000 17,000,000 
1970 273,000,000 18,000,000 
1971 284,000,000 19,000,000 

4. Loss Reserves increased 100% from 172 million dollars at 
1/1/67 to 347 million in 1971. Despite the fact that the total paid 
losses, for which they were set up, followed a fairly predictable 
trend and only increased 50% from 1967 to 1971: (Chart 11). 

Year Paid Losses 

1967 $ 92 million 
1968 104 " 
1969 109 " 
1970 122 " 
1971 132 " 

5. Using the average ratio of Loss Reserves to Paid Losses 
relating to prior years (Chart 11), an average of 241 % was de­
veloped. When this ratio was applied to the 12/31/71 reserve of 
$347,000,000, an excess reserve of $182,000,000 resulted. 

OCCUPATIONAL DISEASE-RESERVES 

Investigation into the loss reseI'Ve methods employed by five 
carriers writing one-third of all IVorkmen's Compensation business 
in the State disclosed a wide disparity in the evaluation of these 
petitions. Chart 12 on Page 334 illustrates a difference of 19% in 
the evaluation of a typical O.D. case which is initially set at 25% ; 
whereas the ultimate average settlement, as reported by the De­
partment of Labor and Industry, was 6%. 

In fairness to the carriers, it should be noted that they cannot 
initially de,uermine which O.D. cases are authentic and which cases 
represent legalistic "puffing" by the petitioner's attorney. The 
disparity in claim evaluation of O.D. cases is a manifestation of 
the insurance carrier's reaction to the increase in the trend by 
certain segments of the bar to apply a "shot gun" approach to 
force a settlement from the insurance companies. 
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ALLOCATION OF A PERCENTAGE OF INVESTMENT INCOME IN . 

RATE MAKING 

The S.C.I. hearings disclosed that the "cash flow" generated by 
Workmen's Compensation premiums provided funds ·for invest­
ment purposes. (Chart 13 on Page 335) illustrates the percentage 
of net investment income allocated to Workmen's Compensation 
business. Percentages ranged from a low of 5% to a hig~ of 5510. 
Seven major Workmen Compensation carriers averaged 3210 in 
investment income which was derived from Workmen's Compen­
sation (Chart 13). 

The same carriers earned approximately 80% of their total in­
come; on all lines of business, from investments whereas 20% was 
derived from underwriting. (Chart 14 on Page· 336.) 

It is clear that a significant portion of the inve'stment income is 
derived from Workmen's Compensation premiums. It remains for 
the Court to apply a formula for the allocation of some percentage 
of inV'estment income to a reduction in the Compensation rates. 

ALLOCATION OF EARNED STANDARD PREMIUM To THE N.J. 
WORKER 

Finally, the most tragic aspect of the Workmen's Compensation 
system in the State is the small percentage of premium which 
ultimately inures to the bene,fit of the worker. Despite the fact that 
over 1.2 billion dollars was credited to premium income by insur­
ance carriers from 1967-1971, only 4110 or $502,808,716 ultimately 
found its way to the person for whom the system was formed, the 
worker. Chart 15 (on Page 337) graphically illustrates the fact that: 

1. 499. million dollars was retained by insurance carriers as 
operating expenses or returned to employers in the form of divi­
dends or discounts. 

2. 58 million dollars was allocated to petitioner's doctors and 
attorneys. 

3. 175 million dollars was allocated to the reserve for future 
losses and contingencies of a catastrophic nature. While it may be 
argued that a portion of these funds are ultimately paid to the 
injured worker, this argument pales in view of the statistical 
evidence of a 100.10 increas·e in Loss Reserves as of 12/31/71 
viz. a. viz. 1/1/67, while both Incurred and Paid Losses merely 
increased 50%. Therefore, if we assume that one-half of 175 million 
dollars is ultimately paid to the worker, his share of the premium 
dollar is increased by 7 %, or to a total of 48 %. 
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TWO TIER BILLING, 

Theinvestigation found evidence in severalinstances of physi­
cians engaged in a two tier billing system whereby they charged 
a normal fee for a patient not engaged in Workmen's Compensa­
tion or liability litigation but increased their charges in those cases 
where an attorney was representing the patients. They attempted 
to justify this increase in fees by citing additional office expenses, 
such as correspondence in a litigated case, and the long wait for 
settlement and payment of the doctor bill. Although these facts 
might justify a minimal increase in fee's to cover expenses, there 
was a differential of up to 200% in cases of Dr. Le,wis J. Brandwein 
between ordinary cases and those involving litigation. 

Miss Irene 'Tomalavage, Office Manager of Dr. Brandwein, 
Kenilworth, N.J., from June 1967 to Fehruary 1972, was asked 
about the billIng system used by the doctor. She was shown an 
index card from the file of patient Harold Mil€s containing two 
columns of figl1res. Miss Tomalavage gave her explanation for 
th€ different charges. 

Q. And would you tell me what those two columns 
of figures represents? 

A. Well, the first column is the charge that would 
be given to the patient, and the second column of fe'es 
isa column that was-it's marked here, "Lawyer's 
Column." "Attorney's Column." 

Q. Well, for the record, give me a comparison. 
How much would the patient charge be for an office 
call? 

A. Well, if the patient came in, it depended on what 
,type of treatment was given, but a usual office call, 
I guess, would be considered around $8, somewhere 
in that vicinity. 

Q. I beg pardon? 
A. Somewhere in that vicinity. 

Q. And that would be--well, it is, in tact, $8 on, 
the ca.rd you're holding in your hand? 

A. Yes, right. 
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Q. And the treatment indicated is physiotherapy 
for the eight-dollar charge; isn't that correct? 

A. Right. 

Q. Now, what is the lawyer charge for the sante 
treatment? 

A. The lawyer charge for the same treatment was 
$15. 

Q. Now, why the difference between the patient. 
charge and the lawyer charge? 

A. Okay. At the time that the patient comes in, the 
doctor usually explains to the patient that being that 
this is, you know, a legal case and the amount of time 
that we have to, you know, wait to get paid and the 
amount of paper work involved and correspondence 
with insurance companies and attorneys,. that there 
would be, you know, an increase in fees versus if the 
patient came in and paid us, you know, as he went 
along. 

Q. Now, you correct me if my understanding is 
wrong, but is it fair to state that basically the nearly 
fifty per cent increase in the charge to the patient as 
opposed to the charge to the attorney was justified 
on the grounds that there would be delay in receiving 
payment from the attorney? 

A. I'm sorry. Couldyou--

Q. Yes. The reason given to the patient for the 
difference in charge, to wit, $8 if he were to pay it and 
$15 if it wereto be paid by the attorney, is beca!6se the 
doctor would have to wait longer to get his ntoney 
from the attorney? 

A. And also, you know, the amount of paper work 
involved in corresponding with attorneys, insurance 
companies, because, you know, theJ'e's more paper 
work and time involved. 

Q. Well, you mean in order to collect payment there 
would be more paper work and time involved? 

A. Yeah, right. 

Q. Can you give me a description of the paper 
work? 
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A; Well, like medical repO'rts WO'uid have to' be,yO'u 
knO'w, typed up, and bills typed up and recO'rded, and 
treatments, and things O'f that sO'rt. It's just keeping 
mO're recO'rds. 

Miss TO'malavage testified that the charges varied fO'r x-rays as 
well as physical therapy: 

Q. What was the difference in charges for x-rays? 
A. Well, O'n this particular card here it varies with 

the different x-rays. 
Q. Would you explain the difference for the record 

please? 
A. Well, like the cervical thO'];acic spines which are 

nO'rmally 15, there's a charge of $30, and an x-ray O'f 
the chest, which is nO'rmally $10, was $30. 

Q. SO that an x-ray of the chest was $10 for the 
patient but the attorney would be billed $30? 

A. Right. 
* • * * * 

Q. You have already given to me factors which you 
said were explained to the patient to explain the 
difference behveen physiotherapy charges to him and 
physiotherapy charges to the attorney? 

A. Right, sO' are you saying like different---

Q. Were the factors the same so far as the differ­
ence'l,n-

A. The reasO'n fO'r the increase, are yO'U saying, was 
the same as the increase in the therapy, is that what 
YDu're trying to' say, because Df the amDunt O'f paper 
wO'rk? 

Q. Yes. 
A. Yes. 
Q. SO the explanation, then, would be the same? 
A. Yes. 
Q. That there would be more paper work involved? 
A. Right. 

CDmmissiDner Farley brought a specific bill to' the attentiDn Df 
Miss TO'malavage. She cDntended the higher fee is due to' extra 
wO'rk by the physician and the length Df time elapsed befDre re­
ceiving final payment: 
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Q. Now, this bill is in two forms, Column 1 is the 
patient; is that correct? 

A. Oorred. 

Q. Column 2 is marked" Lawyer" or" Lawyer's"'? 
A. Oorrect. 

Q. Now, wo'uld you read what the total bill for this 
patient was? What was the patient billed for? 

A. In patient column are you referring t01 

Q. Yes. 
A. $430. 
Q. And what was the lawyer billed for? 
A. The lawyer's ];Jill was $1,035. 

Q. 80 you would agree if my mathel1tatics is correct 
that the lawyer's bill for the same patient and the 
same treatment was $605 over and above that bill 
which went to the patient, correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you say that the reason that there is a 
hundred fifty percent increase for the lawyer's bill 
over and above the patient's bill is for paper work? 

A. Well, there was really a lot taken into con­
sideration, like, you know, lawyer's reports, insurance 
reports. 

Q. Yes. Would you take a look at the last item on 
the lawyer's bill, and what does that say? 

A. I'm sorry. Would you repeat thaU 

Q. Would you take a look at the last item under 
the lawyer column prior to the total, and what does 
that say? 

A. "Report fee." 

Q. How much? 
A. $25. 
Q. 80 you were paid for a report fee over and 

above treatments, correct? 
A. Oorrect. But the increase also included in the 

amount of time that we had to wait to get paid. 
Sometimes a case wasn't settled for two or three or 
four years. 

* * * * * 
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Q. The card says the patient bill was $435, correct? 
A. Right. 

Q. And the lawyer's bill is $1,035? 
A. Right. 

Q. The $605 is due to extra work that the physician 
has to render? 

A. And the amount of time that we had to wait, 
you know, in order to get paid. 

Commissioner Farley: Thank you. 

Lewis J. Brandwein, Doctor of Osteopathy licensed to practice 
in New Jersey, appeared with counsel, Theodore J. Romankow, and 
was sworn. Counsel Diana produced a Blue Shield form which had 
been submitted by Brandwein which contains the following 
certification. 

"I certify that all statements in Part 2 herein are true and 
constitute all the services as set forth in lines 28 through 32 which 
I personally rendered; that the charges shown above represent my 
usual charges." Mr. Diana asked, "vVell, can you tell me now which 
are yonr usual charges, that which you charge Blue Cross or that 
which you charge the attorneys1" Brandwein then attempted to 
explain his billing system with testimony as follows: 

A. I would like the opportunity of explaining my 
system to you at this point, if I may, regarding your 
question, direct answer to your question. 

The reason I charged the Blue Cross $8 is because 
I know that is all they're going to pay me. That is 
not my usual charge for this accident case. The usual 
charge is $15. However, I billed the Blue Cross at $8 
because, using their code book, that is all they're going 
to pay me, and so, I bill out $8 so that when I receive 
the money from Blue Cross if they pay me anything 
less, then I have to look into it and see why they paid 
me less. If I had billed them the full amount of my 
charges, $15 then naturally they're going to pay me 
an amount less, and the amount of work that would 
entail investigating the reason they paid me less, it's 
of an academic procedure is what the problem is here. 

Co=issioner Farley: Doctor may I interrupt you 
there. 

The Witness: Y;es, sir. 
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Commissioner Farley: Assuming that a patient 
came to you that had no accident case,--

The Witness: Yes. 
Commissioner Farley: -no Blue Cross, received 

heat treatment from you and paid you in cash that 
day, how much would you get for the heat treatment~ 

The Witness: Usually, approximately $8. 
Commissioner Farley: Well, isn't that inconsistent 

with the statement you just gave? 
The Witness: No, sir, because the statement----'­
Commissioner Farley: I thought you said that the 

re,ason that you charged $8 to Blue Cross is that 
wasn't your real fee? 

The Witness: It was not my real fee for accident 
liability cases, sir. 

Commissioner Farley: So you had two systems, do 
I understand that correctly, one for accident cases 
and one for like patients off the street? 

. In reply to Commissioner Farley's question, Dr. Brandwein 
attempted to justify his $15 fee by saying he felt it was a fair and 
a reasonable fee for the amount of work entailed. He sometimes 
would cut his fee at the request of attorneys when there was a poor 
settlement or he would be placed on call for a possible court appear­
ance. There was paper work and filing to be done and also many 
of the accident patients did not keep their appointments. 

Dr. Brandwein's answer obviously did not get to the point of the 
question and Chairman McCarthy asked: 

The Chairman : Well, how about physio therapy 
treatment for a person who came in off the streeU 

The Witness: If a person came in off the street and 
there was no accident cases, no files to be opened up, 
I would charge $8. 

The Chairman: And what would you charge the 
lawyer if the lawyer sent that person over there? 

The Witness: If the lawyer came in and the patient 
did not pay and I had to go through the- all the 
things I had just mentioned before, reiterated before, 
the charge would be $15 and the patient was so 
advised. 
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The Chairman: Supposing it was an accident.case 
that a lawyer referred to you but the person still 
wanted to pay cash; what would the charge be ~ 

The Witness: If the patient wanted to pay cash, 
then I would instruct the patients that I would accept 
that amount of money that he paid me, I would bill 
him out, but for each and everything that I had to do 
I would expect to be paid. For instance, lawyers sent 
me a bill-ask for report, I charge him. If he sends 
for an interim report, I'd charge him. If he s'ent for 
a final report, I charge him. If he said, "Doctor, 
cancel ours because you may be on call for court," 
I say, "Not until I received a check for the amount of 
time I lose." 

Q. Well, Dr. Brandwein, the Blue Cross statement 
doesn't say" These are my us~wl charges to Blue 
Cross," does it? It says,"These are my t,sual 
charges?" 

A.. The reason it says-the reason I put down $8 is 
tha~ 

. Q. Let m.e asle you the qestion. They're n~t your 
usual charges, are they? 

A. It depends if this is an accident case or if it's 
not. 

Q. In other words, you would explain it this way: 
that in the letter to Law Firm B of March 19th, 1973 
when you said, "The reason in the reduction front my 
usual charges," you meant "my usual charges for at­
torneys," and when you signed the Blue Cross state­
ment that these were your usual charges, yat, meant 
"These were my usual charges to Blue Cross;" is that 
right? 

A. That's right, becaus·e that's their fee schedule. 

Q. SO you have usual charges for attorneys and 
usual charges for Blue Cross? 

A. Well, may I just expand on that~ 

• * • * 
The Chairman: I think you can answer yes or no, 

then if you have a brief explanation--
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A. Okay, the answer is yes, because this is what 
the Blue Cross fee schedule allows for this. For 
instance, if I would send the same bill to Medicaid or 
Medicare for the same services and I would bill them, 
say, $15, they have allowed me $13.40. I think I've 
testified to that previously, and that this was an allow­
an<le. Different insurance companies allow different 
amounts. Now, it all depends. I pull out their fee 
schedule and I put down the amount that they allow. 
This does not mean that this is my charge for services. 
I am just putting down what they will allo,w me, so 
from my bookkeeping sake, so when I get paid from 
them, I know if they have not paid me what I put 
down, then I have to look into it. It's an academic 
nature. 

Q. Let me ask you this: What amount did Blue 
Cross allow, what was the maximum amount they 
allowed for spinal manipulation under anesthesia? 

(Whereupon, the witness confers with counsel.) 

A. I don't recall. 

Q. $50, wasn't it? What did you charge Law Firrn 
B? $150, right? 

A. $150. 
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USE OF UNLICENSED PERSONNEL IN THE 
OPERATION OF X-RAY EQUIPMENT 

The investigation uncovered incidents whereby two physicians 
with large workmen's compensation and liability practices used 
unlicensed personnel to operate x-ray machines. Dr. Harold 
Lippman of Irvington and Dr. Lewis Brandwein of Kenilworth 
allowed unlicensed employees to operate these machines even 
though they had been notified on two occasions that this conduct 
was a violation of New Jersey statute. John J. Russo, Chief of 
the Bureau of Radiation Protection, Division of Environmental 
Quality, Department of Environmental Protection, was called as 
a witness and explained that the operation of x-ray machines by 
unli{lensed personnel posed a great threat to the public safety and 
welfare and that the physician should be held responsible for such 
conduct. 

Mr. Russo. stated there had been a law enacted in 1968 which 
required licensing of those persons admiuistering x-rays nnder 
penalty of a misdemeanor. As background, a registration program 
of known x-ray sources was instituted previously so that these ma,. 
chines could be analyzed and inspected to protect the general public 
and the environment from the hazards of unnecessary radiation. 
Mr. Russo testified: 

A. So a determination was made as far back as 
'64 by Dr. Kandle an attempt should be made to 
regulate the user as well as the machine, because it 
made no sense to repair these machines, put them in 
proper working order and then have an untrained or 
uninformed individual apply these x-rays on humans. 

Certain surveys taken during that period indicated 
there were many retakes because of improper train­
ing, inadequate position by these technicians. A survey 
also revealed there were about 3,000 of these people 
applying x-rays on humans that had no prior experi­
ence other than on-the-job training. So, on the insist­
ence of Dr. Kandle, in 1964 the Commission on Radia­
tion Protection was ordered to begin a draft of a law 
to provide for control of these individuals with at 

223 



least a minimum of two years' training and experience 
before they'd be allowed to apply these x-rays on 
humans. 

Between the period of '68 and '72 another survey 
was conducted, and for the first time in the histpry 
of this country we we're able to determine that as a 
result of anothe,r survey that there is beg-inning to 
show a decrease in the application of these medical 
x-rays on humans as a result of this legislation, so ' 
the---

Q. You mean they're not admmistered as mdis­
criminately as a result of this legislation? 

A. That is correct, sir. Even the quality of the 
x-rays have shown tremendous improvement. The 
number of retakes on individuals have been reduced. 

-
Mr. Russo explained the dangers of radiation: 

A. It has been known and still accepted fact based 
upon the kno'wledge we have today all radiation is 
injurious to tissue. It destroys tissnes, and the only 
rea,son medical x-rays are allowed is that the benefits 
outweigh the risks, when a physician, properly trained; 
indicates that due to pathology a radiograph is 
required. 

As a resnlt of the registration program, an i=ediate inspection 
of new x-ray equipment is required by the Bureau of Radiation 
Protection and then inspections every one, two, or three years are 
made. By September, 1968 a list of 9,000 medical owners of x-ray 
equipment in N,ew Jersey was in the possession of the Bureau. Mr. 
Russo testified: 

Q. Was one of those medical owners Dr. Lewis J. 
Brandwein? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And you had in your files information indicating 
that he owned an x-ray machine? 

A. Yes, sir. 

One of the routines the inspector involves himself with is the 
determination of those individuals on the premises actually in-
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volved in x-ray technology. A "facility questionnaire" is used to 
determine the number of operators after observation and question­
ing of the physician. 

There were two circulars sent out to all medical owners of x-ray 
equipment informing them of the change in the law requiring 
licensed personnel. A copy of the code and act were 'enclosed with 
the actual notification. Mr. Russo believes the law is too narrow: 

Q. I take it the law as it is presently written does 
not per se make it a c1·ime for a physician who allows 
unlicensed personnel to use his equipment? 

A. The law itself does not address itself at all to 
the physician, yet the responsibility should be there. 

Q. Has your agency recommended the change in 
the law to provide for that? 

A. As a result of our findings, yes, sir, it has, and 
it will place the responsibility, if it's introduced and 
approved, on the physician to make a determination 
that, at least, every operator is qualified under Ohap­
tel' 291 to operate that machine. 

* * 

Q. Do you know if it's come yet to the attention of 
your agency that this investigation has disclosed that 
two doCt01'S, one in Newark and one in Kenilworth, 
both with large liability and compensation practices, 
were allowing tbnlicensed personnel to use their 
equipment? 

A. Well, sir, it came as a shock Monday when one 
of your investigators so notified me, because the 
records indicated that in response to the doctor's 
answers to questions, that this occurrence did not 
occur. 

Q. In other words, your records with respect to Dr. 
Brandwein reflected that he was not t;sing unlicensed 
personnel? 

A. That's correct, sir. 

Robert Dabb, Radiation Physicist, Bureau of Radiation Protec­
tion, testified about his duties as to the inspection of premises 
containing x-ray equipment. He explained the procedure used: 
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A. As I enter the office of the doctor, the first things 
I do is get a release pa.per signed which gives me per­
mission to operate the x-ray equipment, and, second, 
then I ask the doctor is there anyone .beside the doctor 
who gives the x-rays, and if his answer should be no, 
I write down "none" on my techuician questionnaire, 
and 90% of the time I go on my own and inspect the 
doctors' x-ray equipment. 

Mr. Dabb was shown a copy of a facility questionnaire. 

Q. Mr. Dabb, do you recognize that as a copy of a 
document from your file? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. And do you recognize that as a questionnaire 
that you prepared upon the occasion of YMI,r visit to 
the premises of Dr. Lewis J. Brandwein? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. And what does that form indicate that Dr. 
Brandwein told you concerning his use of unlicensed 
radiology technicians? 

A. It indicated that the doctor is the only one in 
the office that administers x-rays to humans. 

Q. And what is the date of that report? 
A. 10/27/72. 

Irene Tomalavage, former office manage-r of Dr. Brandwe-in, was 
shown the letter sent by the Department of Health in 1968 to the 
9,000 medical owners of x-ray equipment in New Jersey and the 
letter sent by the Department of Enviroumental Protection to the 
owners in 1971. Miss Tomalavage was asked: 

Q. First of all, do you reme'mber seeing the letter 
of N ovembel", '68.W 

A. No, I don't. 

Q. How about the letter June of '71? 
A. No. 

Q. Did you ever overhear any discussion in the 
office concerning the necessity to be licensed as an 
x-ray technician? 

Mr. Butler : Up till this time 1 
Mr. Diana: Up till this time. 
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A. I can't really recall. I mean, like it's such a long 
time ago I don't remember if there was a discussion 
or there wasn't. 

Q. Would you remember whether you ever had 
any conversation with Dr. Brandwein concerning the 
law that x-my technicians be licensed and certified? 
Do you recall such a conversation? 

A. No, I don't remember. 

Dr. Lewis Brandwein was questioned concerning office procedure 
for the operation of x-ray machines. He claimed they were taken 
under his direct snpervision: 

Q. Now, was there a period of time when unlicensed 
x-my technicians were taken x-rays at your office? 

A. Under my direct supervision, yes . 

. Q. Well, that wasn't the question I asked you. I 
asked whether or not unlicensed technicians were 
taking x-rays. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Now, how long did allowing of unlicensed x-ray 
technicians to take x-rays go on at your offices? When 
did the practice stop? Let's put it that way. 

A. I'm sorry. When did it stop1 

Q. Yes. 

(Wherenpon, the witness confers with counsel.) 

A. When I fonnd out I was not allowed to do it. 

Q. You mean as a result of the appearGince in 
executive session before this Com1nission of your 
medical assistants? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And who takes x-rays at your offices now? 
A. I do. 

Dr. Brandwein said he did not recall speaking to an inspector 
from the Department of Radiation in October 1972: 

Q. Now, did you ever make a statement to an in­
spector from the Bureat' of Radiology that you were 
not using unlicensed x-my technicians? 
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(Whereupon the witness confers with counsel.) 

A. Would you please clarify it 1 When 1 What 
time 1 

Q. On October the 27th, 1972. 
A. I do not recall. 

Q. Do you think it's possible.@ 
A. I would-I wouldn't want to venture a guess. 

Q. At any time in 1972 did you ever make a state-
ment to an inspector from the B1treau of Radiology 
that you were not using unlicensed technicians? 

A. I do not recall. 

Q. Did you ever make such a statement in 1971? 
A. I do not recall. . 

Nor did the doctor recall rece;iving the letters previously identi­
fied by Miss Tomalavage concerning the need for licensed operators. 

Joan Anton, medical assistant of Dr. Brandwein, testified as 
follows: (It should be noted that the Dr. C referred to in her 
testimony is Dr. Brandwein). 

Q. All right. You are not a registered nurse? 
A. No. 

Q. Does Dr. C employ any registered nurses? 
A. No. 

Q. All right. You are not a licensed radiologist? 
A. No. 

* * * * 
Q. Prior to February 7th did you take x-rays for 

Dr.C? 
A. Before I was called 1 

Q. Before you were called to testify, yes. 
A. Before, yes. 

Q. All right. Now, who trained you to take x-rays? 
Another employee of Dr. C? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And did you know her to be a licensed radiol­
ogist? 

A. No. 
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,Q. Did you know, in fact, that she was not a 
licensed mdiologist? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Is it not a fact that throughout the course of 
your employment tor Dr. C and prior to February 7, 
1973, except for the doctor himself, everyone who took 
x-rays had no license to do so? 

A. Yes. 

Q. That is true, is it not? 
A. Yes. 

• • ,::!< • * 
Q. Did you understand at the time that you were 

taking x-rays that it was 1m violation of New Jersey 
cri,ninal law? 

A. No, I did not. 

Q. You did not know it was a misdemeanor puni~h-
able by fine or imprisonment? 

A. No, I did not. 

Q. Okay. Dr. C never so advised you? 
A. No. 

Q. Who takes the x-rays for Dr. C presently? 
A. He does. 

Q. He takes them all himself? 
A. Yes. 

Q. Andhowmany patients does he x-my a day? 
A. Afternoon and evening1 

Q. Yes. 
A. Maybe about ten, eleven. 

Q. Ten or eleven at the most? 
A. At the most It differs. 

Miss Anton was not supervised while taking x-rays which is a 
violation of N. J. S. A. 45 :25-13B: 

Q. Now, during that period of time when you were 
taking x-rays for Dr. C, were you taking the,n without 
medical supervision, that is with no one else in the 
room except you and the patient? 

A. Yes. 
229 



Q. I take it that Dr. C. w01tld have been in the office, 
but not necessarily? 

A. He was in the office, but he wasn't in the same 
room. 

Q. Were there occasions when he wasn't even in 
the office? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And how often would that happen? 
A. Well, on-aside from Mondays, Tue8day, and 

Thursdays, and Fridays, he was always there except 
on Wednesdays. There were times on Wednesdays 
when he wasn't in the office. 

Q. There· were times on Wednesday when he 
wouldn't be in the office? 

A. Yes. 

Mrs. Verden Avant, former medical assistant of Dr. Harold 
Lippman, testified as follows concerning ·Dr. Lippman's use of 
unlicensed personnel to operate x-ray equipment: . 

Q. Was there an x-ray m(tchine in the doctor's 
office? 

A. Yes, there was. 

Q. And who would administer the x-rays? 
A. Marion, Flora, and they tried to teach me, but 

I couldn't learn the hang of it. 

Q. Now, is Flora Ware a registered nurse, do you 
know? 

A. To my knowledge, I don't know. 

Q. Is Marion Kingsberry? 
A. Not to my knowledge. 

Q. And y01t are not a registered nurse? 
A. No, I'm not. 

Q. Or licensed-­
A. No, I'm not. 

Q. -person to give x-rays? 
A. No, I'm not. 

Q. Have you ever actually tried to adlninister an 
x-ray? 
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A. Upon-as for 1earning, yes. When they would 
teach me to take the x-ray, it would be an actual person. 

Q. I see. Who tried to teach you to administer 
x-rays? 

A. Both Marion and Flora. 

Q. I see. And how many x-rays would be taken in 
an average week, would you say? 

A. About four or five, because whomsoever had to 
have these x-rays and it was during the business hour, 
during the office hours, Dr. Lippman would instruct 
the patient to come on Wednesday, which he didn't 
have office hours in the morning. 

Joseph Corrigan, Special Agent to the New Jersey State Com­
mission of Investigation, was recalled and testilied * as follows 
concerning medical assistants Flora Ware and Marion Kingsberry: 

Q. All right. Now, on to another subject area con­
cerning Dr. Lippman and his office procedures. 

Did his medical assistants testify under a grant of 
immunity that they administered x-rays without medi­
cal supervision and without having been licensed? . 

A. Yes, sir, they did. . 

Q. Did one of them testify that they were permitted 
to continue this practice despite notification from the 
State of New Jersey concerning its illegality? 

A. Yes. 

* As noted on the instance of Agent Corrigan's 'previously presented testimony at the 
public hearings, he was testifying with direct and accurate reference to the _ private 
testimony given by Dr. Lippman's two medical assistants. Copies of the transcripts 
of the private testimony were placed on the record of the public hearings so that the 
accuracy of Agent Corrigan's testimony could be verified by anyone wishing to do so. 
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FINAL RECOMMENDATIONS 

PREAMBLE 

The New Jersey State Connnission of Iiwestigation (S.C.I.) 
herewith presents its final reconnnendations based on the investi­
gation of the Workmen's Compensation system and some practices 
found to be common to that system and the liability or negligen<le 
field. The reconnnendations have been given final formulation 
after lengthy study and deliberation by the Commission and its 
staff. The Connnission believes they provide a sound legislative 
and. administrative framework for elimination of abuse,s and pro­
gress toward an improved system which will adequately ahd 
equitably protect the injured worker and whi<lh will ass,ure that 
more of the compensation dollar flows expeditiously to that worker: 

REVIEW AND SUMMARY 

At the close of the public hearings on the Workmen's Com­
pensation investigation on June 22, 1973, the then Ohairman of the 
Connnission, John F. McCarthy, Jr., read into the record a state­
ment which set forth the Commission's preliminary reconnnenda­
tions for halting abuses and improving the system. The Chairman 
stated then that a principal reason for making innnediate, pre­
liminary reconnnendations was to provide the Governor's Work­
men's Compensation Study Commission with the S.C.I.'s be'st 
thinking at that time. The Chairman noted additionally in his 
statement that the Study Commission was searching for ways or 
fundamentally restructuring and re-orienting the Workmen's Com­
pensation system. The S.C.I. anticipated thatwhi1e the Study 
Commission would deal with areas beyond the scope of the S.C.I.'s 
investigation, a number of reconnnendations of the Study Commis­
sion would interrelate with and overlap the r'ecommendations of 
the S.C.I. 

The above mentioned possibilities became realities with the 
issuance of the Study Connnission's report on October 1, 1973. 
In this presentation of the S.C.I.'s final reconnnendations, set forth 
in detail on subsequent pages of this report, each reconnnendation 
delineates, where appropriate, the interrelationships between the 
reports of the S.C.I. and the Study Commission. The reports are 
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mutually supportive in some instances and complementary in some 
others, and may be said to offer a diversity of ideas for action by 
the legislative and executive branches of government. 
To summarize: 

• The proposals of the S.C.I. include enactment of 13 
bills and the taking of eight administrative and 
executive steps to implement 21 of the S.C.I. 's recom­
mendations. 

Of the 21, 10 were given general endors'ement by the 
Study Commission, two were not evaluated by that 
Commission, five are appropriate and needed despite 
overlapping recommendations of the Study Commis­
sion, and the balance would be needed in the event that 
overlapping recommendations of the Study Commis­
sion are not enacted. The bills proposed for enact­
ment and the proposed administrative-regulatory 
promulgations have been drafted by the S.C.I. 's legal 
staff, and those drafts are included in the details pre­
sented in subsequent pages of this report. 

• Two Joint Legislative Resolutions to establish Study 
Commissions are proposed for enactment to imple­
ment six S.C.I. recommendations. 

• The texts are recorded of several formal S.C.I. com­
munications which have been sent to the appropriate 
governmental units or professional agencies to imple­
ment six S.C.I. recommendations. 

The S.C.I. is gratificd that the Study Commission mentioned 
the S.C.I. 's preliminary report as an important input on which the 
Study Commission rclied and that that Commission saw fit to 
generally endorse most of the S. C.I. 's recommendations aimed at 
terminating abuses and illegalities and to note how some, of the 
Study Commission's recommendations might reach the same desir­
able ends sought by the S.C.I. 's preliminary recommendations. 

Although the S.C.I. does not have the expertise to indulge in 
evaluation type commentary on many of the far-reaching, basic re­
forms proposed by the Study Commission, the S.C.I. does endorse 
in general a principal goal of that Commission's report, namely 
the processing of more of Workmen's Compensation claims by an 
infonnal process. Indeed, the reports of both Commissions seek 
ways to expand the scope and use of the informal process and were 
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quite idelltical in reconunending an increase in the quantity and 
quality of state-paid doctors who evaluate injuries at the·informal 
level. 

It should be noted that basic reform and restructuring of the 
Workmen's Compensation system has been stymied for decades 
over issues which have so far dect'ted resoLution. The S.C.I. hopes 
and trusts the issues may this time be resolved without undue delay. 

If, however, basic restructuring and reform is not reached 
without prolonged stalemate, the full spectrum of all the S.C.I. 
recommendations presented in detail in the subsequent pages of 
this report provide at least a way of improving promptly the 
present Workmen's Compensation framework and curbing its 
abuses. 

PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS 

In areas wheJ'e the Study Commission's reconunendations and 
those of the S.C.I. are basically in accord and where the S.C.I. 's 
recommendations for halting flourishing abuses have been endorsed 
by the Study Commission, the S.C.I. respectfully J'econunends and 
requests expeditious legislative and executive action to implement 
recommendations. These priority areas aI'e discussed briefly below 
and in more detail in the subsequent subsection of this report en­
titled" Final Recommendations in Detail." 

LEGISLATIVE PRIORITIES 

Strong Director 
Both the report of the Study Commission and that of the S.C.I. 

have stressed the overriding importance of a strong Director of 
the Division of Workmen's Compensation as a principal key to 
the establishment and maintenance of an expeditious, well ad­
ministered and excellence-oriented Workmen's Compensation sys­
tem. The S.C.I. recommends enactment of a bill to providespecifi­
cally that the Director shall possess sufficient powes to achieve that 
goal. . . 

Additionally and importantly, the S.C.I. reconunended bill pro­
vides for the Director to be nominated and confirmed for a seven­
year term as a way of insulating the Workmen's Compensation 
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Division from the impact of political administration changes and 
encouraging development of the Division Directorship as a high" 
level, career type post. 

The Study Commission and the S.C.I. both recommend that the 
Director, under the final determination power of the State Com­
missioner of Labor and Industry, be specifically empowered to 
initiate removal proceedings for g·ood cause against the Judges of 
Compensation. 

Both the preliminary and final recommendations of the S.C.I. 
have been formulated with the possibility in mind that a decision 
might well be made to retain the present framework whereby the 
Workmen's Compensation Courts are part of the State Workmen's 
Compensation Division. The S.C.I. notes that the Study Commis­
sion's report recommends such retenti(>ll as part of its overall 
restructuring plan. 

If a consensus develops that attempts to improve the Compensa_ 
tion Judiciary within the present framework should be giV"en an 
opportunity to prove their worth, the S.C.I. will hoM in abeyance 
its alte'rnative recommendation for transfer of the Workmen's 
Compensation Courts to the Judicial Branch. The S.C.I., ho,wever, 
reasserts its preliminary recommendation statement that transfer 
of the courts to the Judicial Branch is a viable and effective method 
of establishing higher standards of atmosphere and operation for 
those courts. Indeed, the subsequent S.C.I. recommendations for 
improving the caliber of those courts through a screening process 
and through higher salaries could lead to an improved Compensa­
tion JUdiciary which could be a more valuable addition to the 
Judicial Branch in the future. 

Salaries of Judges 
For many thousands of New Jersey residents, their ouly court­

room experiences occur in the Workmen's Compensation Courts. 
Accordingly, the conditions in those courts should enhance the 
professionalism and dignity necessary to provide an aura conducive 
to excellence in the dispensation of justice., 'The citizenry of the 
state is entitled to no less, and, therefore, wise expenditures of 
money to achieve that goal will in the long run ,inure to the benefit 
of the public. 

The S.C.I. believes a single most important step which should 
be taken in this area is, to increase significantly the salary scales 
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for the Judges of Oompensation to attract more highly qualified 
individuals to that Bench. If this is done, the salary of the Director 
of the Workmen's Oompensation Division, who supervises the 
Judges, should also be increased. 

Specifically, the S.O.I. urges enactment of a bill to raise those 
salaries by tying the salary of the Director to that of a Superior 
Oourt Judge ($37,000) and the salaries of the Judges of Oompensa­
tion to those of a Oounty District Judge ($34,000). The bill would, 
if enacted, have the flexibility factor of the salaries of the Director 
and the Oompensation Judges automatically being adjusted upward 
when salaries of the Judicial Branch are increased. 

False Medical Reports 
A bill should be enacted to make it a misdemeanor for a doctor 

to knowingly submit a false medical report intended for use in any 
legal or administrative proceeding. This measure is needed as 
an additional tool to counter knowingly misleading or fraudulent 
bill padding practices as uncovered in the S.O.I. 's investigation. 
The Study Oommission generally endorsed this recommendation. 

Certified, Itemized Bills 
An additional recommendation of the S.O.I. is for enactment 

of a bill which would require, under possible penalty of being a 
disorderly person, that doctors render true, accurate and itemized 
copies of bills to patients for treatment rendered in instances 
where the bills will form the basis of a legal claim. A further 
requirement of this bill is that the doctor by his signature attest 
to the actuality and accuracy of treatment rendered, a provision 
which would protect a patient in event of a criminal prosecution 
of a doctor who had treated that patient. The Study Oommission 
has generally endorsed this recommendation. 

Court Orders for Treatment 
The enactment of another bill is recommended to require 

petitioners to move to obtain a Workmen's Oompensation Oourt 
order allowing medical treatments not authorized by the respondent 
employer or his insurance company. In a companion step, the S.O.I. 
has written the Director of the Workmen's Oompensation Division, 
urging him to issue appropriate directives to insure that the 
motions are heard promptly. These recommendations have been 
endorsed generally by the Study Oommission. 
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Doctors Contingency Fees 
A bill shO'uld be enacted banning outright the practice whereby 

sO'me law firms pay dO'ctO'rs O'nly a part O'f their fees if settlement~' 
in court were "IO'w," thereby effecting a fO'rm O'f cO'ntingency fee 
system which tends to' breed abuses O'f high fees, O'vertreatment 
and false repO'rts O'f treatment. The Study CO'mmissiO'n generally 
endO'rsed this recO'mmendatiO'n. 

Temporary Disability Payments 
Enactment O'f a bill is prO'PO'sed to impO'se a 25 per cent penaltY 

payment O'n emplayers O'r their insurance cO'mpanies whO' un­
reasO'nably O'r negligently delay in initiating payments O'f tempO'rary 
disability benefits to' injured wO'rkers. The Study CO'mmissiO'n has 
made a parallel recO'mmendatiO'n fO'r penalizing such dilatO'ry 
tactics by a 10 per cent penalty payment. The S.C.I. believes the 
25 per cent level will be mO're 'effective in spurring prO'mpt pay­
ments O'f these benefits which are designed to' partially replace 
wages IO'st due to' jO'b cO'nnected injuries. 

I.R.S. Form 1099 Information 
There shauld be enactment O'f a bill which would require m­

surance carriers dO'ing business in New Jersey to' rep art all re­
mittances O'f $600 O'r more to' physicians in a calendar year to the 
Secretary O'f State. This is the same type O'f infarmatiO'n nO'w 
required to' be reparted O'n the Federal Internal Revenue Service 
FO'rm 1099. The S.C.I. faund widespread nO'ncompliance with the 
issuance O'f FO'rm 1099 by insurance cO'mpanres, a failure which 
tends to' encaurage sO'me physicians to' divert incO'me thraugh 
creatiO'n O'f cash hO'ards which can be used cO'vertly fO'r improper 
purpO'ses. The S.C.I. also has sent cO'mmunicatiO'ns to' the CO'ngress 
O'f the United States urging enactment O'f legislatiO'n to' increase' 
mO'netary penalty far failure to' cO'mply with the I.R.S. FO'rm 1099 
requirements. The Study CO'mmissiO'n generally endO'rsed the S.C.I. 
recO'mmendatiO'n in this area. 

Employees Workmen's Compensation Booklet 
It is recO'mmended that a bill be enacted to' make it a duty 

fO'r the DirectO'r O'f the I¥ O'rkmen 's CO'mpensatian DivisiO'n to' ap, 
prO've apprO'priate boO'klets explaining to' emplO'yees their O'Ppor­
tunities and rights under the WO'rkmen's CO'mpensatian statute 
and requiring emplO'yers to' prO'vide the bO'O'klets to all emplO'yees. 
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The proposed bill is designed to encourage the approval and use of 
onB standard booklet but leave,g room for more than one such 
pUblication. The Study Commission endorses the goal of this S.C.I. 
recommendation but is of the opinion that some of the Study 
Commission's proposals would take care of the matter. The S.C.I. 
recommendation, however, should be vierwed as' an important com­
plementary step to the Study Commission's recommendations in 
this area. 

X-Ray Technicians 
Testimony at the public hearings found that instances of use of 

unlicensed personnel to administer x-rays in some doctors' offices 
posed a threat to personal health in the state. Accordingly, it is 
recommended that a bill be enacted to make it a misdemeanor for 
doctors to' knowingly or negligently employ an x-ray technician 
who does not have a valid certificate to engage in the activities of 
that type of technician. The Study Commission generally endorsed 
the S.C.I. recommendation in this area. 

Two-Tier Billing 
Recommendation is made for 'enactment of a bill to outlaw the 

practice of two-tier billing by doctors whereby a differential of 
as much as 200 per cent higher is charged for treatments in 
Workmen's Compensation and negligence actions than the doctor's 
normal (lharges. The S.C.I. believe.s legislation is in order in 
this area because of what appears to be inadequate vigilance and 
aggressiveness in the medical profession'8 program of self­
policing. The Study Commission has generally endorsed this 
recommendation. 

More and Better Paid State Doctors 
The testimony of expert witne-sses at the public hearings 

delineated the facts that the state-paid doctors who examine 
individuals and evaluate their injuries in the informal process 
are much too few in number and underpaid. The result has been 
a tendency to bypass the informal process, since hasty, unthorough 
examinations and evaluations have given that process the adverse 
reputation of not awarding the injured worker his due. The, S.C.I. 
recommends enactment of a joint re.solution setting up a five-mem­
ber special Commission to study the number and types of doctors 
needed by the state to expand fully the effectiveness and scope of 
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the infQrmal prQcess and the rates at which thQse dQctQrs shQuld be 
cQmpensated. This recommendatiQn may be vierwed as cQmple~ 
mentary to' the Study CQmmissiQn's basic recQmmendatiQns fQi' 
expanding the SCQpe and rQle Qf the infQrmal prQcess. 

Audits of Insurance Companies and Evaluation of the Rating 
and Inspection Bureau 

Bills shQuld be enacted to' require annual C.P.A. audits Qf in­
surance cQmpanies in lieu Qf state examinatiQns and rate-making 
examinatiQns by C.P.A.'s Qf the CQmpensatiQn Rating and In~ 
spectiQn Bnreau, the insurance rate-setting bQdy, at least Qnce 
every twO' years. The Study CQmmissiQn, due to' time limitatiQns, 
was unable to' further study the rate-making prQcess but expressed 
its general agreement with the S.C.I. view Qf the great impQrtance 
of this subject. 

Board Membership for the Rating and Inspection Bureau 
Enactment of a bill is recQmmended to' permit the GQvernQr 

to' apPQint to' the Board Qf GQvernors Qf the CQmpensatiQn Rating 
and InspectiQn Bureau three vQting members whO' are nQt assQci­
ated with the insurance business and whO' will represent the public 
intere,st Qn that bQard. 

Rate Making Study 
A jQint legislative resQlutiQn is recQmmended fQr enactment 

to' establish a nine-member study cQmmissiQn, specifically authQ~ 
rized to' emplQy expert actuarial staff, to' study in depth the fQllQw~ 
ing WQrkmen's CQmpensatiQn insurance rate-making areas brQught 
intO' questiQn at the S.C.I.'s public hearings-I) The possibility of 
an Open Rating system; 2) The inclusiQn of investment incQme in 
the rate-making structure, and 3) The PQssible use of actual paid 
IQsses and costs, properly adjusted fQr trends and/Qr legislative 
changes in the rate-making prQcess. As previQusly nO' ted, the 
Study CQmmissiQn shares the S.C.I.'s CQncern in the area Qf the 
rate~making prQcess. 

ADMINISTRATIVE-REGULATORY CHANGES 

Screening of Judicial Nominees 
The S. C.I. by letter to the GQvernQr has respectfully reCQm­

lllended and .requested that he, by publicly prQnounced PQlicy, 
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.establish a State Bar Association screening process, including 
screening by that Association's County Workmen's Compensation 
'Sections, for selections of potential nominees to the Workmen's 
Compensation Bench. The process should be similar to that which 
has long been established for potential nominees to be judges of 
,the regular courts. The S.C.I. notes that carrying out of this 
recommendation would be especially important if the previous 
recommendation is enacted for raising the salaries of the Judges 
,of Compensation. The Study Commission generally endorsed the 
:S.C.I. recommendation in this area. 

Neuropsychiatric Allegations 
! It has been recommended to the Director of the Workmen's 
'Compensation Division, by letter from the S.C.I., that he take 
administrative steps in order to circumscribe instances where 
petitioners attorneys may allege neuropsychiatric injury above and 
beyond the basic injury alleged. The S.C.I. heard public testimony 
that unwarranted allegations of neuropsychiatric injury were 
increasing and were often used as a wedge to extract a higher 
award. The Study Commission generally endorsed this recom­
mendation. 

Multiple Allegations 
'. A letter has been sent to the Director of the Workmen's Com­
pensation Division recommending that he issue appropriate 
iJ,dministrative directives requiring petitioners to have evaluating 
.medical examination reports for ea<lh injury alleged where 
:multiple allegations of injury are made. Testimony at the S.C.I. 's 
public hearings showed the practice of making unwarranted 
multiple allegations was on the increase and that that practice was 
6ften used as a wedge to extract a higher award. The Study Com­
'mission generally endorsed the S.C.I. recommendation in this area. 

Attorney Recommended Doctors 
A letter has been sent to the Director of the Division of W ork­

men's Compensation recommending and requesting that, by 
administrative directive and other appropriate communications, he 
require Judges of Compensation to scrutinize closely those cases 
where medical treatment payment is requested and the treating 
physician was recommended by the petitioner's lawyer and that 
he require the Judges to quash vigorously any patterns showing 
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the use of "house doctors" or favored treating physicians by 
petitioners' lawyers. The Study Commission has generally en­
dorsed this reco=endation. 

Medical Society Standards 
The New Jersey Medical Society, by letter from the S.C.I., has 

been urged to conduct a study aimed at formulating guidelines and 
standards governing the practice of doctors in treating patients in 
negligence and compensation cases. The S.C.I. 's investigation in­
dicated lack of a sufficient policy of self-policing by the medical 
profession in this area. Self-policing by professional societies has 
been quite effective in the law and public accounting professions. 
The Study Co=ission has generally endorsed this recom­
mendation. 

Penalties for Attorney Delays 
By letter to the Director of the Workmen's Compensation 

Division, the S.C.I. has reco=ended that he review the Division's 
provision's for penalizing dilatory tactics by petitioners and 
respondents attorneys, with emphasis on the proper enforcement 
of the penalties. The S.C.I. agrees with the Study Co=ission that 
the Director now has considerable powers to penalize but believes 
study and evaluation of the whole area of penalties and their en­
forcement is in order. 
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FINAL RECOMMENDATIONS 
IN DETAIL 

I. IMMEDIATE CORRECTIVE MEASURES 

a) Legislative Action 

1) The Need for Additional Powers for the Director of 
the Division of Workmen's Compensation 

The Testimony: 

The most clearly articulated statement of the widely-held 
view that the Workmen's Compensation Division desperately needs 
a stronger director came from Matthew Parks of the firm of Tomar, 
Parks, Seliger, Simonoff and Adourian, Camden, who testified in 
an expert capacity to the urgent need for a stronger director, 
properly empowered to regulate the conduct of personnel and 
supervise the overall efficiency of the system. 

The S.C.I. hearings revealed a clear need for the director to 
serve as career official, free of the vagaries of electoral politics, 
rather than as an executive appointee whose tenure of office expires 
with that of the Governor. 

The S.C.I. Recommendation: 

The Director of the State Workmen's Compensation Division, 
if the present administrative frame,work of the Workmen's Com­
pensation System is to continue, should be empowered thoroughly 
and specifically by statute and by departmental regulations to 
supervise and regulate the performance and conduct of judges and 
referees of compensation, with emphasis on the Director's responsi­
bility to see that high standards are maintained and to take pre­
ventive and remedial steps toward that end. Included in this power 
should be the right to removal for just cause. The Commission 
notes that the petitioners' attorneys and the judges of compensa­
tion who testified at these public hearings are unanimous in their 
opinion that a strong, active director enforcing· regulations and 
standards could be a giant step toward remedying ills that beset the 
Compensation Court System. 
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The Background: 
Under the current law, N.J.S.A. 34:1A-12 provides: 

. Division of Workmen's Compensation; officials and em­
ployees in Division; director; powers and duties 

The Division of Workmen's Compensation shall con-. 
sist of the Commissioner of Labor and Industry who shall 
act as chairman, a director who shall be appointed as 
hereinafter provided, judges of compensation appointed 
by the commissioner, and such referees and other em­
ployees as may, in the judgment of the commissioner, be 
necessary. Appointments of such judges of compensation, 
referees and other employees shall be made in accordance 
with the provisions of Title 11 of the Revised Statutes, 
Civil Service. 

The Director of the Division of Workmen's COInr 
pensation shall be a person qualified by training and 
experience to direct the work of such division. He shall 
be appointed by the Governor, with the advice and con­
sent of the Senate, and shall serve during good behavior 
and until the director's successor is appointed and has 
qualified. He shall receive such salary as shall be pro­
vided by law. 

The Director of the Division of Workmen's Come 
pensation shall, subject to the supervision and direction 
of the Commissioner of Labor and Industry : 

(a) Be the administrative head of the division; 
(b) Prescribe the organization of the division, and 

the duties of his subordinates and assistants, except as 
may otherwise be provided by law; 

(c) Direct and supervise the activities of all mem­
bers of the division; 

(d) Make an annual report to the Commissioner of 
Labor and Industry of the work of the division, which 
report shall be published annually for general distribution 
at such reasonable charge, not exceeding cost, as the com­
missioner shall determine; 

(e) Perform such other functions of the department 
as the commissioner may prescribe. 

The Director of the Division of Workmen's Com­
pensation shall also serve as secretary of such division, 
and may perform the duties of a judge of compensation. 
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While section (c) arguably authorizes the Director to' take 
such action as is necessary to control activities within the Division, 
the recent controversy over the po,wer of either the Commissioner 
of Labor and Industry or the Director of Workmen's Compensa­
tion to' remove judges of compensation demDnstrates at least the 
ambiguity of the statutory powers conferred by N.J.S.A. 34 :1A-12. 

Additionally, the statute pegs the Director's tenn to the 
Governor's term thus tending to politicize, rather than profes­
sionalize, the office. 

Suggested s.c.I. Proposal: 

N.J.S.A. 34 :lA-12 should be amended to read as follows: 

Division of Workmen's Compensation; Officials and Em­
ployees in Division; D'irector; Powers and Duties 

The Division of Workmen's Compensation shall 
consist O'f the Commissioner of Labor and Industry who 
shall act as chairman, a director who shall be appDinted as 
hereinafter provided, judges of compensation appointed 
by the Governor, and such referees and other employees 
as may, in the judgment of the commissioner, be necessary. 
AppDintments of such referees aud other employees shall 
be made in accordance with the provisions of Title 11 of 
the Revised Statutes, Civil Se,rvice. 

The Director of the Division of Workmen's Com­
pensation shall be a person qualified by training and 
experience to' direct the work of such division. He shall 
be appointed by the GDvernor, with the advice and con­
sent of the Senate, for a term of 7 years, and shall serve 
during good behavior and until the director's successor 
is appointed and has qualified. He shall receive such salary 
as shall be prO'vided by law. 

The Director of the Division Df Workmen's Com' 
pensation shall, subject to the supervision, direction and 
final determination of the Commissioner Df Labor and 
Industry: 

(a) Be the administrative head of the divisiDn; 
(b) Prescribe the organization of the division, and 

the duties of his &ubordinates and assistants, except as 
may otherwise be provided by law; 
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(c) Direct and supervise the activities of all mem­
hers of the division, with responsibility to set high 
standards of conduct for judges of compensation, referees, 
and other employees of the division; 

( d) Take preventive and remedial action with re­
gard to unexernplary conduct by judges of compensation, 
referees and other employees of the div'ision, including, 
but not limited to, the power to remOve from office upon a 
showing of just cause in an administrative hearing. 

(e) Make an annual report to the Co=issioner of 
Lahor and Industry of the work of the division, which 
report shall he puhlished annually for general distrihu­
tion at such reasonahle charge, not exceeding cost, as the 
co=issioner shall determine; 

(f) Perform such other functions of the department 
as the commissioner may prescrihe. 

The Director of the Division of Workmen's Com­
pensation shall also serve as secretary of such division, 
and may perform the duties of a judge of compensation. 

;Commentary: 

The S.C.I. proposal makes three principal reVlSlOns in the 
current law. By providing a 7-year term for the Director of Work­
men's Compensation, the threat of a shake-up in th8' Division 
·every time a new administration takes office is eliminated. While 
a new Governor will eventually have the opportunity to nominate 
,a new man, the length of the te,rm should encourage retention of a 
qualified, career-Director from one administration to the next. The 
7 -year term also parallels the initial term of appointment for 
Superior Court judges. While the Director would not receive 
tenure upon reappointment the S.C.I. helieves that reappointment 
would greatly encourage his career retention hy sUhsequent 
Governors. The addition of a "good hehavior" clause safeguards 
against any possihility of a proven incompetent continuing in office 
for an extended period of time. 

The other two chauges deal with the duties of the Director. 
Section (c) is amended to articulate and clarify the Director's 
responsihility to oversee the functioning of the Division scrupu­
,lously. The new section (d) grants the Director the clear power to 
remedy misfeasance and non-feasance in office, specifically auth­
orizing him to remove offenders for cause. 
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In the exercise of these powers, as in all his other duties, the 
Director remains subject to the supervision and direction of the 
Commissioner of Labor and Industry. The S.C.I. proposal makes 
explicit the fact that the Commissioner of Labor and Industry 
makes the final determination in matters involving the exercise of 
the Director's duties. Thus, for example, as long as the work­
men's compensation judiciary remains within the Division of 
Workmen's Compensation the Commissioner will make the ultimate 
decisions regarding their discipline or removal whenever 
necessary_ 

The S.C.I. proposal also corrects two inaccuracies in 
§ 34:1A-12,noting that the judges of compensation are appointed 
by the ,Governor, rather than the Commissioner of Labor and In­
dustry, thus bringing § 34:1A-12 into conformity with N.J.S.A. 
34 :15-49. It also deletes reference to judges of compensation with 
regard to Title 11, thus bringing § 34:1A-12 into conformity with 
N.J.S.A. 11 :4-4. 

T'o accommodate the new section (d), our proposal reletters 
the current sections (d) and (e) as (e) and (f) respectively. 

New Jersey Workmen's Compensation Study Com­
mission: 
The New Jersey Workmen's Compensation Study Oommis­

sion has endorsed the concept of a strong director. (See Report, 
pp.154-155). The S.O.I. proposals implement all positive aspects 
of the Study Commission's Recommendations. Provision is made 
to guarantee the direetor the highest salary in the division in a 
separate statute. (See I. Immediate Oorrective Measures; a) 
Legislative Action, 2) A Judicial Wage Oommensurate With 
Excellence) . 

S.O.I. proposed revisions in the statute make clear that the 
ultimate sanction of the Oommissioner of Labor & Industry is 
necessary before the Director can remove subordinates within the 
Division. 

Although the Study Oommission believes its recommendations 
implement the S.O.I.'s goals (see Report, p. 203), the S.O.I. believes 
that any successful effort to depoliticize the Division of Workmen's 
Compensation must include a provision for the Director to serve 
not for the duration of the Governor's term but rather for a term 
'of 7 years. This helps to guarantee a competent professional 
administrator but still allows removal for cause. 
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I. IMMEDIATE CORRECTIVE MEASURES: 

a) Legislative Action 

2) A Judicial Wage Commensurate With Excellence 

The Testimony: 
Both J aco b L. Balk and Judge Stanley Levine urged that the 

judges of compensation be given sala.ries comparable to those of 
other New Jersey judges as a step towards attracting more 
qualified and capable persons to the Compensation. JUdiciary. 
The current pay scale for judges of compensation ($29,500) neither 
compares with the salaries of parallel practitioners in. the private 
sector nor approaches the salary of other State judges, even at the 
domestic relations or county district court level ($34,000). 

The S.C.I. Recommendation: 
Political considerations and appointments of judges and 

referees must be subordinated to competence and integrity. A wage 
co=ensurate with excellence is a practical necessity which must 
not be overlooked. 

The Background: 
Under the current law, N.J.S.A. 34 :15-49 provides: 

Original jurisdiction of claims; salaries of director and 
judges 

The Division of Workmen's Compensation shall have 
the exclusive original jurisdiction of all claims for work­
men's compensation bene,fits under this chapter. The 
judges of the Division of Workmen's Compensation shall 
hereinafter be appointed on a bipartisan basis by the 
Governor, with the advice and consent of the Senate and 
shall serve during good behavior. The salaries of the 
director of the division and the judges of compensation 
shall be $27,000.00. Judges of compensation shall not 
engage in the practice of law and shall devote full time 
to their judicial duties. 

The section was rewritten to its present form in 1969 in a bill 
offered by then Assemblyman Parker. Before amendment the bill 
set the salaries of the director and the judges of compensation on a 
par with judges of the county district court. 
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The present Legislature has passed a bill (S. 12'15) ralsmg 
the director's salary to $32,000 and that of judges of compensation 
to $29,500. Additionally, supervising judges would receive a 
supplemental $1,500 per ;mnum. 

Suggested S.c.I. Proposal: 
N.J.S.A. 34 :15-49 should be ameuded to read as follows: 

Original jurisdiction of claims; salaries of di,.ectors 

The Division of Workmen's Compensatiou shall 
have the exclusive original jurisdiction of all claims for 
workmen's compensation benefits under this chapter. The 
judges of the Division of Workmen's Compensation shall 
hereinafter be appointed on a bipartisan basis bi the 
Governor, with the advice and consent of the Senate and 
shall serve during good behavior. The salary of the 
director of the division shall be the same as that 01 the 
judges of the Co'unty Court and the Superior Court. The 
salaries of the judges of compensation shall be the same 
as those of the judges of the county district cou,·ts who 
are required to devote their entire time to thei.r judicial 
duties. In addition to his salary, a judge of compensation 
regularly assigned as a supervising judge of compensation 
by the director shall receive additional compensation of 
$1,500.00 per annum during the period of such assignment. 

Judges of compensation shall not engage in the 
practice of law and shall devote full time to their judicial 
duties. 

Commentary: 
The S.C.I. proposal remedies the inadequacies in the current 

workmen's compensation pay-scale. By tying the salaries of the 
director and judges to those of other State judges, not only are 
the positions upgraded to the level of the general state jlldiciary, 
but the need for any separate future legislation with regard to 
these salaries is eliminated-they will increase as those of the 
general state judiciary do. 

The pay-scales ehosen provide the director with a salary of 
$37,000, supervising judges of compensation with a salary of 
$35,500, and judges of compensation with a salary of $34,000. This 
distributes the amount of compensation in accordance with the 
level of responsibility. 
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New Jersey Workmen's Compensation Study Com­
mission: 
The report of the Study Commission endorses the S.C.I. 

reco=endation in this area. Additionally, the S.C.I. proposal 
implements the Study Co=ission's recommendation that the 
Director be the highest paid employee of the Division. (See 
Report, p.154). 

I. IMMEDIATE CORRECTIVE MEASURES: 

a) Legislative Action 

3) False Medical Report 
The Testimony: 
Testimony given at the S.C.I. hearings indicated that a 

recurrent source of abuse in the workmen's compensation field is 
the incentive among the unscrupulous to submit false medical 
reports as a means of increasing compensation awards. Judge 
Kelly agreed that a statute which made such willing and knowing 
falsification of a medical report a criminal act might serve as a 
useful deterrent to the practice. 

The s.c.I. Recommendation: 
A statute should be enacted making it a misdemeanor for any 

physician to fill out or eXe(lUte a false medical report of the type 
that may be used in a Workmen's Compensation or negligence case 
or any other type of legal proceeding. 

The Background: 
There is no current statutory regulation governing the 

accuracy of medical reports. Title 45, on Professions and Occupa­
tions, provides a definition of physicians and surgeons (N.J.S.A. 
45 :9-5.1) which we can rely upon to avoid a definitional problem. 
The geueral structure of misdemeanor statutes provides drafting 
guidelines. 

Suggested s.c.I. Proposal: 
Any physician or surgeon, as de;fined in N.J.S.A. 

45 :9-5.1, who, with intent to mislead, misrepresents or 
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authorizes or approves the misrepresentation of, any 
material fact called for or included In any medicalreport, 
which is subsequently submitted to any judicial or admin­
istrative proceeding in this state, or which is used in 
negotiations seeking the settlement of any such proceed­
ing, is guilty of a misdemeanor. 

Commentary: 
This statute covers knowing and willing falsiiication of 

material facts, whether done personally by the physician or 
surgeon or by another with his authorization or approvaL It 
covers all fields rather than in just the workmen's compensation 
field. If it is desired to limit this recommendation to workmen's 
compensation, the words" any judicial or administrative" can be 
deleted and replaced with "workmen's compensation." The area 
of criminal liability is extended to cover "pre-trial" or "pre-hear­
ing" negotiations to provide a further safeguard against such 
abll.ses. 

New Jersey Workmen's Compensation Study Com­
mission: 
The report of the Study Oommission endorses the S.O.I. 

recommendation in this area. 

1. IMMEDIATE CORRECTIVE MEASURES 

a) Legislative Action 

4) Certified, Itemized Bills 

The Testimony: 
During the S.O.I. hearings testimony indicated some dis­

agreements over bills and services between physicians and patients 
involved in the workmen's compensation process. As one example, 
a Mr. and Mrs. Elias, patients of doctor Herbert Boehm, testified 
that they had been to his office no more than 8 or 9 times . while 
Boehm's records listed them for 16 visits. 

The S.c.I. Recommendation: 
Physicians should be required by law in cases where they 

expect to. receive payment for treatment in a compensation award 

250 



or from damages in a neglig'ence (lase, to provide patients in th9se 
cases with a true, accurate and itemized copy of the bill for treat­
ment rendered, properly certilled under penalty of law. Any new 
statut.ory provisions should require the doctor t.o attest by his 
signature .on all originals and copies of bills to the actuality and 
accuracy .of the examinations and treatments rendered and the 
amounts charged for them. 

, The Background: 
Title 45, Chapter 9 of New Jersey Statutes Annotated 

governs the practice of medicine and surgery, with N.J.S.A. 45 :9-5.1 
defining "physicians and surgeons." The statutes frequently 
impose fines for non-c.ompliance with the requirements of the 
chapter. 

Suggested S.c.!. Proposal: ' 
N.J.S.A. 45 :9-Certified, itemized bills, 

Any physician or surgeon who renders' treatllient 
which he knows or reas.onably should know is or will be 
related to or is or will be the basis of a legal claim for 
workmeIl's compensation or damages in negligen()e' shall 
provide his patient with airue, accurate and itemized C.oPy 
of the bill for treatment rendered. Such physician .or 
surgeon sh.ould certify and attest by his signature on all 
originals and copies of such bills to the actuality and 

'accuracy of the examinations and treatments rendered 
and the amounts charged for them. 

Any person who violates any provision of this sec­
tion is a disorderly person. 

Commentary: 
By placing this section in title 45, chapter 9, we avoid having 

t.o define "physician or surge.on." The statute enacts all the 
features of the S.C.l. recommendation and includes a penalty of 
up to 6 months in jail and/or a fine of up to $500 as a disorderly 
person under N.J.S.A. 2A :169--4. 

New Jersey Workmen's Compensation SwdyCom-
mission: ' 
The report of the Study Commission endorses the S.C.l. 

recommendation in this area. 
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1. IMMEDIATE CORRECTIVE MEASURES 

a) Legislative Action 
5) Court Orders for Treatment-Prompt Hearings 

The Testimony: 
AttDrney Matthe,w Parks testified that when examining 

physicians recDmmend mDre treatment fDr his clients he fDllows 
the prDper practice Df making a motiDn in cDurt fDr tempDrary 
medical treatment. S. Lawrence Torricelli, a fDrmer wDrkmen's 
cDmpensatiDn referee, nDW affiliated with a law firm and seeking to' 
curb that firm's most flagrant abuses Df the wDrkmen's compensa­
tiDn, agreed that in cases where respDndent refuses to' authDrize 
mDre treatment, prDper prDcedure is to' seek CDurt authDrizatiDn 
fDr treatment. He cDmplained hDwever, that the WDrkmen's 
CDmpensatiDn DivisiDn is lax in listing such motiDns fDr hearings. 

The S.c.I. Recommendation: 
The practice Df payment fDr unauthDrized medical tre,atments 

as part Df settlement, except for emergency treatment Df peti­
tiDners in WDrkmen's CDmpensatiDn cases, shDuld be ended, with 
prDvisiDn fDr treatment abDve and beYDnd what the respDndent 
emplDyer Dr insurance carrier will authDrize to' be undertaken Dnly 
Dn CDurt Order after fDrmal mDtiDn fDr the additiDnal treatment 
is made before a judge of the CDmpensatiDn CDurt. The bDdy 
charged with administratiDn Df the CDmpensatiDn CDurts shDuld 
take steps to' insure the prDmpt listing Df these mDtiDns fDr 
hearings. 

The Background: 
Paragraph 2 Df N.J.S.A. 34:15-15, iVledical and hospital 

service, prDvides : 
If the emplDyer shall refuse Dr neglect to' cDmply 

with the fDregDing prDvisiDns Df this sectiDn the emplDyee 
may seClure such treatment and services as may be 
necessary and as may CDme within the terms Df this sec­
tiDn, and the emplDyer shall be liable to' pay the ref Dr ; 
prDvided, hDwever, that the emplDyer shall nDt be liab~e 
fDr any amDunt expended by the employee Dr by any third 
person Dn his behalf fDr any such physicians' treatment 
and hDspitalservices, unless such emplDyee or any perSDn 
Dn .his behalf shall have requested the emplDyer to furnish 
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the same and the employer shall have refused or neglec­
ted so to do, or unless the injury occurred under such 
conditions as make impossible the notification of the em­
ployer, or unless the circumstances are. so pecnliar as shall 
justify, in the opinion of the workmen's compensation 
bureau, the expenditure assumed by the employee for such 
physicians' treatment and hospital services, apparatus 
and appliances. 

Suggested S.c.I. Proposal: 
Paragraph 2 of N.J.S.A. 34 :15~15, Medical and hospital 

service, should be amended to read as follows: 

If the employer shall refuse to neglect to comply with 
the foregoing provisions of this section the employee may 
secure such treatment and services as may be necessary 
and as may come within the terms of this section, and the 
employer shall be liable to pay therefor, provided, ho·w­
ever, that the employer shall not be liable for any amount 
expanded by the employee, or by any third person on his 
behalf for any such physicians' treatment and hospital 
service unless such employee or any person on his behalf 
shall have requested the employer to furnish the same and 
the employer shall have refused or neglected so to doand 
in the case of contirllUing treatment not just technically 
unauthorized, including, but not limited to physical 
therapy, chiropractic, neurological and neuro-psychiatric 
treatment, the employee has obtained a court order for the 
treatment on formal motion before a judge of compensa­
tion, unless the nature of the injury required such services, 
and the employer or his superintendent or foreman, hav­
ing knowledge of such injury shall have neglected to pro­
vide the same, or unless the injury occurred under such 
conditions as make impossible the notification of the em­
ployer, or unless the circumstances are so peculiar as shall 
justify, in the opinion of the workmen's compensation 
bureau, the expenditure assumed by the employee for such 
physicians' treatment and hospital services, apparatus 
and appliances. 

The second part of the S.O.I. recommendation, that the Work· 
men's OOmpensation Division list all ad.ditional treatment motions 
for prompt hearing should be handled by a Rule promulgated by 
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the Director. A letter from the S.C.I. Chairman should make 
such a recommendation to the Director of the Division of Work­
men's Compensation. The letter reads as follows:· 

Dear Mr. Dezseran: 
During the course of its investigation into the Work­

men's Compensation system, the New Jersey State Com­
mission of Investigation conducted public hearings at 
which the Co=issioners took extensive testimony. The 
testimony at these hearings told of a disconcerting fre­
quency of petitioners' attorneys pressing for payment of 
unauthorized medical treatments, where no court order 
had been obtained for such tre,atments. 

The Commission believes the practice should be 
ended, and to that end, the Co=ission has recommended 
amendment of Paragraph 2 of N.J.S.A. 34:15-15 to speci­
ficaIly require petitioners to obtain a court order for 
treatment not authorized by the respondent. 

The Commission also heard testimony that court 
orders for unauthorized treatment were not processed as 
promptly as they should be. The Co=ission recom­
mends and requests that you take whatever appropriate 
administrative steps which may be needed to insure that 
all such motions are processed expeditiously. Such 
measures might include the institution of continuous trials, 
the maintenance of separate motion lists, and the pre­
emptory lists of cases in which there is a denial by the 
carrier. 

Commentary: 

Sincerely, 

Chairman, 
N. J. State Commission of 
Investigation 

.The S.C.I. amendment to N.J.S.A. 34:15-15 retains the basic 
structure of 34:15-15 with regard to payment by the employer for 
unauthorized employee treatments. It adds to the "request-and­
refusal" requirement, the requirement for a motion for a court 
order in all cases of unauthorized continuing treatment unless 
statutory exceptions exempt the employee from the" request-and­
refusal" requirement. 

* A single letter, incorporating all recommendations to the Director, will be sent and 
'. is included in this report at p. 318. - .--
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New Jersey Workmen's Compensation Study Com­
mission: 
The R,eport of the Study Commission endorsed ,the S.C,L 

recommendation in this area, ' 

L IMMEDIATE CORRECTIVE MEASURES 

a) Legislative Action 

6) Doctor's Contingency Fees 

The Testimony: 
Testimony before the Commission indicated that certain law 

firms paid doctors only part of their fee if settlements wen~ "low", 
thus effecting a form of contingency-fee system, The inforp:tation 
gathered in the hearings suggested that contingency fees might 
breed such abuses as high fees, overtreatments and false reports 
of treatments, 

The S,c'L Recommendation: 
It is the opinion of the Commission that the practice of physicians 

rendering treatment on a contingency basis, that is to say, waiving 
their entire fee if the petitioner receives no award or waiving that 
portion of their fee which was no,t inclnded in the award, tends to 
breed abuses and is therefore strongly disapproved, 

The Background: 
N, J, Court Rules of General Application 1 :21-7 (a) defines 

a contingency fee as follows: ' 

As used in this rule the term "contingenLfe~ 
arrangement" means an agreement for legal servilles of 
an attorney or attorneys, including any associated or for­
warding counsel, under which compensation, contingent 
in whole or in part upon the successful accomplishment or 
disposition of the subject matter of the agreement, is to be 
in an amount which either is fixed or is to be determined' 
under a formula, 

The A,M,A,'s Principles of Medical Ethics, section 7,Opil1it;>I1 
15, bars any Fee Contingent On 01ttcome of Litigation: " ' 
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The contracting for, Dr acceptance Df, a cDntingent 
fee by a doctor, which is based on the outcome of litiga­
tion, whether settled or adjudicated, is unethical. The 
laborer is worthy of his hire and the physician, having 
only his services to sell, has an obligation to place a fair 
value on those services. Ethically this value should be 
based npon the value of the serviee rendered by the 
physician to the patient and not upon the uncertain out­
come of a contingency that does not in any wa.y relate to 
the value of the service. Furthermore, the physician's 
obligation to' uphDld the dignity. and honor of his pro­
fession precludes him from entering into an arrangement 
of this nature becaus'e, if a fee is contingent upon the 
successful outcome of a claim, there is the ever-present 
danger that the physician may become less of a healer 
and more of an advocate-a situation that does not uphold 
the dignity of the profession of medieine. 

Suggested S.c.1. Proposal: 
The following statute should be adopted: N.J.S.A. 45 :9~ 

Contmgent fee arrangements prohibited. 

a) As used in this section the term "contingent fee 
arrangement" means an agreement for medical services 
Df one or more physicians or surgeons, including any 
associated or forwarding medical practitioners, under 
which compensation in whole or in part is contingent 
upon the successful accomplishment or disposition of the 
legal claim to whieh such medical services are related. 

b) In any matter where medical services rendered to 
a client form any part of the basis of a legal claim for 
damages or workmen's compensation, a physician or 
surgeon shall not contract for, charge, or collect a contin­
gent fee. 

Commentary: 
Insertion of this provision in Title 45, Chapter 9 allows us to 

avail ourselves of the statutDry definition of "physician or 
surgeon" contained in N.J.S.A. 45 :9-5.1. The statute adopts the 
"contingent fee arrangement" definition of the N.J. Court Rt,les. 
It proceeds to ban. the,practice outright. 
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Despite the A.M.A. prohibition on the subject the matter 
seems appropriate for legislation. It deals not with the internal 
functioning of the medical profession but rather with an area of 
interaction between the medical profession and society in generaL 
As an acti~ty with potentially grave social consequences, it is a 
matter which the Legislature should affirmatively regulate, not one 
which. can be left to the supervision of the profession itself. 

New Jersey Workmen's Compensation Study Com­
mission: 
The Report of the Study Commission endorses the S.C.I. 

recommendation in this area. 

1. IMMEDIATE CORRECTIVE MEASURES 

a) Legislative Action 

7) Penalty for Delay in Paying Benefits 

The Testimony: 
Both attorneys who testified as expert workmen's compensa­

tion practitioners before the S.C.I., Matthew Parks and Jacob 
Balk, noted the practice of foot-dragg-ing by respondents in making 
temporarY' disability payments. As a solution to the problem Balk 
recommended Oregon's approach, charging a 25% penalty for un-
reasonable delays. . 

The S.c.1. Recommendation: 
In order to insure prompt payment of temporary disability 

to disabled workers, statutory provision should be made for im­
position of sanctions upon respondent employers or their insurance 
carriers who, through indifference or neglect, delay in initiating 
disability payments or in continning those paY'ments. T'emporary 
disability paY'ments to disabled workers are a partial substitute 
for their usual weekly paychecks. Therefore, temporary disabilitY' 
checks should be given the sam!, priority by an employer as he 
would in rendering the normal paychecks. Petitioners should not 
have to pry out temporary disability payments from employers 
of their insurance carriers. Abuses in this area must be ended. 
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The Background: 
N.J.8.A. 34:15-17 sets the requirements f~r notification of an. 

employer that a compensable injury has ocourred: . 

Unless the employer shall have actual knowledge of 
the occurrence of the injury, or unless the employee, or . 
some one on his behalf, or some of the dependents, or 
some one on their behalf, shall give notice thereof to the 

. employer within fourteen days of the occm;rence of the 
injury, then no compensation shall be due until such 
notice is given or knowledge obtained. If the notice is 

. given, or the knowledge obtained within thirty days from 
the OC(lurrence of the injury, no want, failure, or in­
accuracy of a notice shall be a bar to obtaining compensa­
tion, upless the employer shall show that he was pre­
judiced by such want, defect or inaccuracy, and then only 
to the extent of such prejudice. If the notice is given, or 
the knowledge obtained within ninety days, and if the 
employee, or other benefieiary, shall show that his failure 
to give prior notice was due to his mistake, inadvertence, 
ignorance of fact or law, or inability, or to the fraud, 
misrepresentation or deceit of another person, or to any 
other reasonable cause or exeuse, then compensation may 
be allowed, unless, and then extend only that the employer 
shall show that he was prejudiced by failure to receive 
such notice. Unless knowledge be obtained, or notice 
given, within ninety days after the occurence of the in­
jury, no compensation shall be allowed. 

The pertinent provision of Oregon's Revised Statutes, ORS 
656.262 (8) states: 

. If the fund or direct responsibility employer un­
reasonably delays 01' unreasonably refuses to pay com­
pensation, or unreasonable delays acceptance or denial of 
a claim, it shall be liable for an additional amount up to 25 . 
pereent of the amounts then due plus any attorney fees 
which may be assessed under ORS 656.382. 

Suggested S.c.I. Proposal: 
The following should be adopted as N.J.S.A. 34:15-: 

If an employer or employer's insurance carrier, hav­
ing actual knowledge of the occurrence of the injury, 01' 
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having received notice thereof such that temporary dis­
ability compensation is due under N.J.S.A. 34:15-17, 
unreasonably or negligently delays or refuses to pay 
temporary disability compensation, or unreasonably or 
negligently delays denial of a claim, it shall be liable for 
an additional amount up to 25 per cent of the amounts 
then due plus any reasonable legal fees incurred by the 
petitioner as a result of and in relations to such delays or 
refusals. Absent a positive showing to the contrary a 
delay of 30 days or more shall be considered unreason­
able and negligent. 

Commentary: 
This law provides that whenever an employer or his insurer 

is legally notified (in compliance with N.J.S.A. 34:15--17), and 
delays or refuses payment or delays a denial of liability, for 30 
days or longer, they are presumed to be negligent and unreason­
able and liable to a 25% penalty plus any causally related petie 
tioner's legal fees. 

New Jersey Workmen's Compensation· Study Com-
mission: 
The Report of the Study Commission, while endorsing the 

S.C.I. goal in this area, believed that its proposals solved the 
problem of delays in paying temporary benefits and thus eliminated 
the need for the S.C.I. proposal. The S.C.I. believes that the 
reco=ended 10% penalty proposed by the Study Commission for 
unreasonable delays in paying temporary disability is inadequate. 
In view of the fact that workers subjected to such delays may be 
forced to resort to high interest short-term borrowing or may face 
substantial disruptions in their pattern of economic consumption, 
the S.C.I. proposal for a potential penalty of 25;10 plus any con­
sequent legal fees incurred by the claimant reflects both a more 
workable and a more flexible approach to the problem. Precedent 
for such proposal is found in the parallel approach taken by the 
State of Oregon which has long shared, with New Jersey, a reputa­
tion as one of the Nation's more progressive states. 
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1. IMMEDIATE CORRECTIVE MEASURES 

a) Legislative Action 

8) Employee's Workmen's Compensation Booklet 

The Testimony: 
See the Commission's statement under The S.C.I. Recom­

mendation immediately following: 

The S.c.I. Recommendation: 
It has come to the attention of the Commission that although 

signs are required to he posted in all places of employment setting 
out the procedures and benefits in the event of on the job injury, 
employees nevertheless remain ignorant of their rights upon 
injury and the procedures to be followed to secure these rights. 
Therefore, the Commission recommends that upon employment of 
a new ,employee, every employer be required to provide a booklet or 
pamphlet to the ne'w employee outliuing his rights in the event of 
on the job injury and the proper procedure for securingsamB. 

The Background: 
N.J.S.A. 34:15-9 stipUlates that contracts of hiring made or 

in operation after July 4, 1911 are presumed to have been made 
with reference to the Statutory Article on Workmen's Compensa­
tion absent an express written statement to the contrary prior to 
any accident. 

Suggested S.c.I. Proposal: 
N.J.S.A. 34 :15-8A 

When an employer and employee shall by agreement, 
whether express or implied, as hereinafter provided, 
accept the provisions of this article, the employer shall 
provide each current and future employee, as of January 
1, 1974, ,vith a booklet or pamphlet in English and Spanish, 
approved hy the Director of the Division of Workmen's 
Compensation, stating and explaining the employee's suh­
stantive rights, and the proper procedure for seeuring 
those rights, in the event of an injury or death arising out 
of and in the course of his employment. The employer 
shall annually notify the Division of compliance, in the 
manner indicated hy the Director. 
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Commentary: 
This provision ties into the statutory presumption that the 

Workmen's Compensation Article is contained in all contracts. It 
gives the Director of Workmen's Compensation the duty to 
approve·appropriate booklets (thus encouraging approval and use 
of one standard booklet) and then requires employers to provide 
them to all employees. 

New Jersey Workmen's Compensation Study Com­
mission: 
The Report of the Study Commission, while endorsing the 

S.C.I. goal in this area, believes that its proposals for a Worker 
Support Section (WSS) and a Safety & Evaluation Section (SES) 
within the' Division alleviate the need for the S.C.I. proposaL The 
S.C.I. proposal, however, does not duplicate the work of the Study 
Commission in this area. The S.C.I. pamphLet proposal should be 
enacted as a concisely articulated, complementary program. The 
pamphlet proposal offers a simple concrete method for implement· 
ing the Study Commission goals, especially in view of the fact that 
the Director may delegate responsibility for approving such a 
pamphlet to either of these two sections in the event legislation 
establishing them is enacted. 

I. IMMEDIATE CORRECTIVE MEASURES 

a) Legislative Action 

9) Liability of Physicians for Unlicensed X-ray 
Technicians 

The .Testimony: 
Mr. John J. Russo, Chief of the Bureau of R.adiation Protec­

tion, e'Illphasized that the operation of X-ray mMhines by unlicensed 
technicians constituted a grave threat to the public safety and 
welfare. Statutory enactment has already made it a misdemeanor 

. for anyone unlicensed to operate an X-ray machine. Despite this 
testimony given at S.C.I. public hearings revealed that Dr. Louis 
Brandwein employed unlicensed technicians to operate such 
machines. 
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The S.c.I. Recommendation: 
, In view of the irreparable medical injury that could result 

from the lise of unlicensed personnel for the administration of 
X-ray and radiation treatment, information gathered relahve 
thereto will be turned over to the proper prosecuting authority, 
the State B,oard of Medical Examiners and the State Medical Asso­
ciation for whatever action they deem just and necessary. We 
support the State Environmental Protection position that the X-ray 
technician statute should be amended to hold physicians, legally 
responsible for the use of unlicensed technician'S. 

The Background: 
, Under the current Article governing the regulation iind oper­

ation. of X~ray machines by appropriate technicians, certain un­
lawftilconduct and violations of the Article are made misdemeanors. 
'['he I:rovision, N.J.S.A. 45:25-13 provides as follows: 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to 

(1) Sell or fraudulently obtain or furnish an 
X-ray technician diploma, certificate, or record, or to 
'ilidor abet in the same; 
, . (2) Engage in the activities of an X-ray tech­
nician under cover of a diploma, or certificate illegally 
or fraIUdulently obtained or signed or issued unlawfully, 
or under fraudulent representation or mistake of fact in 
material regard; 

(3) Engage in the activities of an X"ray tech­
nician under a false or assumed name; 

(4) Engage in, or hold himself out as entitled to 
engage.in", the, activities of an X-ray technician without 
a valid certificate; 

(5) Otherwise violate any of the provisions of 
this act. 

'(b) Any person who violates any provision of sec­
tion i3 Ca) of this act shall be guilty of a misdemeanor. 

Suggested S.c.I. Proposal: 
. N.J.S.A. 45 :;)5-13 should be amended to read as follows: 

(a). It shall be unlawful for any person to 
(1) Sell or fraudulently obtain or furnish an 

X-ray technician diploma, certificate, or record, or to aid 
or abet in the same; 
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(2) Engage in the activities of an X-ray teoh­
nician under cover of a diploma, or certificate illegally or 
fraudulently obtained or signed or issued unlawfully, or 
under fraudulent representation or mistake of face in ma­
terial regard; 

(3) Engage in the activities of an X-ray tech­
nician under a false or assumed name; 

(4) Engage in, or hold himself out as entitled to 
'engage in, the activities of an X-ray technician without a 
valid certificate; 

(5) Knowingly or negligently employ an X-my 
technician With01d a valid certificate to en,qage in the ac­
ti~'ities of an X-my technician; 

(6) Otherwise violate any of the provisions of 
this act. 

(b) Any person who violates any provision of sec­
tion (13) (a) of this act shall be guilty of a misdemeanor. 

Commentary: 
This amendment incorporates the S.C.I. reeommendation 

into the section on conduct prescrilJed as amisdenieanor. N.J.S.A. 
45 :2f>-13 is oriented toward unlicensed technicians themselves 
or those who help them prO(lure fraudulent licenses, and not toward 
the hiring physicians. Thus, if a separate statute directed spe­
,cifically toward physicians is desired, the following proposal may 
l)eofi'ered as N.J.S.A. 45:25-14: 

Any person who knowingly or negligently employs an 

X-ray technician without a valid certificate to engage in 
the activities of an X-ray technician shall be, guilty of a 
misdemeanor. 

New Jersey Workmen's Compensation Study Com­
mission: 
The Report of the Study Commission endorses the S.C.I. 

,recommendation in this area. 
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I. IMMEDIATE CORRECTIVE MEASURES 

a) Legislative Action 
10) Two-Tier Billing 

The Testimony: 
S.C.I. investigators came across several instances where 

doctors engaged in a two-tier billing practice whereby they charged 
a normal fee for a patient not connected with litigation in compen­
sation 0'1' negligence cases but increased their charges in thase 
(lases where they were to' be paid by the lawyers handling them. In 
one instance a normal fee of eight dollars for physical therapy 
treatment became fifteen dollars in a compensation case. Reasons 
advanced in support of such double billing was the increase in ex­
penses ,on a litigated case and the long wait for settlement of the 
case and payment of the doctor bill. While such factors could 
perhaps justify a minimal increase in fees charged for treatment 
connected with litigation, the Commission found it incredible that 
such factors could require such an enormous differential (ranging 
to 200%) between ordinary cases and those involving litigation. 

The S.c.I. Recommendation: 
In light of testimany on two"tier bifling practices (a differen­

tial of as much as 2.00 per cent) by some physicians in Compensa­
tion and negligence cases, statutory provision should be made to 
bar the practice. Two·tier billing consists of charging a normal 
fee for a patient nat involved in a litigated accident case but charg­
ing much higher fees where the physician is to be paid by a Com­
pensation Court award or by a law firm in a negligence action. 

The Background: 
At present there are no statutory controls on medical fees 

in litigated cases. However, the N.J. Court Rules section which 
de,fines the percentage rate,s attorneys may charge in contingency 
cases can provide the framework for one approach to determining 
the minimal increased costs a physician confronts when he dis­
penses services or treatment in a case involving litigation. It is 
important to provide for this because although two-tier billing of 
2'00% obviously indicates flagrant over-charging, there may be some 
justification far a small surcharge on medical services rendered in 
W /C cases, covering additional clerical costs. Permitting such a 
small surcharge might have the added advantage of blunting any 
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constitutional challenge to legislation or regulations banning ex­
cessive two-tier billing for medical services related to legal proceed­
ings. The medical profession could probably establish some 
minimal additional cost for rendering services related to legal 
proceedings; thus they could challenge any requirement of uniform 
charges as a taking of property without due process. Such a chal­
lenge would be similar to the one against the recent New Jersey 
Supreme Court l'uling on attorney's contingency fees. In the 
alternatiye, uniform rates might simply result in increased "nor­
mal" charges, thus passing these small additional clerical costs in 
W /C cases onto the general public .• 

Suggested S.c.I. Proposal: 
The follo,ving statute should be adopted: 

In any matter where medical services rendered to a 
client form any part of the basis of a legal claim for 
damages or workmen's compensation, a physician shall 
not contract for, charge, or collect a fee in excess of the 
following limits: 

1) the physician's standard fee for the same medical 
services which do not form any part of the basis of a 
legal claim for damages or workmen's compensation; 
plus 

2) the standard or established incremental costs, clerical 
or otherwise, incurred in rendering medical services 
which fornl any part of the basis or a legal claim for 
damages or v{orkmen's compensation. 

Commentary: 
There are essentially two approaches to a statute placing 

restrictions on the amount a physician may charge for the increased 
clerical and other expenses entailed in treatment related to litigated 
cases. One limits charges in such cases to the standard fee plus the 
additional standard established cost in such cases. The other limits 
fees in litigation related cases to the standard fee plus the estab­
lished additional costs, but places a sliding percentage ceiling on 
how much such additional costs shall be presumed to total. In so 
doing it follows the format of the Oourt R.ule controlling attorney 
fees in negligence cases. The problems inherent in estimating 
"reasonable" percentages by which to measure such additional 
clerical c&sts mitigates against this approach. The S.O.I. lacks the 
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resources for the necessary analysis of the matter and establishing 
a legislative study commission for such a limited purpose is' im, 
practical. The simpler proposal, a;bove, places the burden on the 
physician to establish any additional costs he may claim while at 
the same time leaving the door open for the appropriate body 
(perhaps the New Jersey Medical Society) to formulate standard 
gl1idelines in the field. 

New Jersey Workmen's Compensation Study Com" 
mission: 
The Report of the Study Commission endorses the S.C.I. 

recommendation in this area. 

I. IMMEDIATE CORRECTIVE MEASURES 

a) Legislative Action 

11) I.R.S. Forms 1099 

The Testimony: 
The S.C.I. public hearings on the Workmen's Compensation 

System in New Jersey revealed that to an extensive degree insur­
ance companies writing compensation insurance in the State are 
failing to provide I.R.S. Form 1099 with regard to payments of 
$600 or more made to petitioners' doctors. The magnitude of the 
problem was outlined by S.C.I. Chief Accountant Julius Cayson 
who reported that approximately half of the insurance companies 
writing compensation insurance in New Jersey do not provide 
Form 1099 (which is similar to the commonly used W-2 Form) to 
petitioners doctors. This stands in sharp contrast to the record 
of 100% compliance by the same companies with regard to their 
o,,,n doctors. This practice continues despite the fact that William 
H. Rogers, Chief of the Administrative Provisions Branch of the 
I.R.S., has expressed the I.R.S. position that such forms must be 
provided. 

Such non-compliance poses two related problems. Doctors, 
for whom Form 1099 is not provided, are enconraged to allow such 
income to go nnreported. As a result substantial tax revenues are 
being lost to the federal govermnent. . . 

With regard to the effect of non-compliance on petitioners' 
doctors, the S.C.I. investigation disclosed that three of the five 
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petitioners' doctors whose records were examined had diverted 
income from Workmen's Oompensation to cash hoards. Among 
insurance company doctors only one of four had made Emch a 
diversion. 

Despite this tendency, S.O.I. research indicated that fully 
$800,000, half the amount paid out to petitioners doctors by such 
insurance companies, went unreported on Form 1099. The non­
complying companies do business on a national basis, and Oayson 
estimated that this means that a minimum of $16 million nationally 
goes unreported to the federal government on Form 1099. 

The S.C.I. Recommendation: 
.All insurance companies should immediately start to issue 

federal tax return form 1099 for payments to petitioners' doctors 
who have received more than $600 each from a company during 
a calendar year. The Internal Revenue Service by letter has con­
firmed this Oommission's position that I.R.S. regulations require 
the issnance of these forms by the companies to both petitioners 
and respondents doctors. 

The Background: 
The Internal Revenue Oode section upon which the Form 1099 

requirement is based provides as follows: 

(a) Payments of $600 or more.-All persons en­
gaged in a trade or business and making payment in the 
course of such trade or business to another person, of rent, 
salaries, wages, premiums, annuities, compensations, re­
munerations, emoluments, or other fixed or determinable 
gains, profits, and income ... of $600 or more in any tax­
able year, or, in the case of such payments made by the 
United States, the officers or employees of the United 
States having information as to such payments and re­
quired to make returns in regard thereto by the regula­
tions hereinafter provided for, shall render a true and 
accurate return to the Secretary or his delegate, under 
such regulations and in such form and manner and to such 
extent as may be prescribed by the Secretary or his 
delegate, setting forth the amount of such gains, profits 
and income and the name and address of the recipient of 
such payment. 
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(d) Recipient to furnish name and address.-When. 
nece~sary to make effective the provisions of this section, 
the name and address of the recipient of income shall be 
furnished upon demand of the person paying the income. 

In explaining the, application of this section with regard to 
insurance carriers paying fees in excess of $600 to physicians in 
workmen's compensation caseH, William Rogers, Chief o.f the 
I.R.S. Administrative Pro.visio.ns Branch, referred to the Income 
Tax Regulatio.ns which supplement and clarify the Internal 
Revenue Code. His letter read in part: 

Section 1.6041(d) (2) of the Income Tax Regulations 
provides that fees for professio.nal services paid to at­
torneys, physicians, and members of other professio.ns are 
required to be reported in returns o.f information if paid 
by pe,rsons engaged in a trade or business and paid in the 
course of such trade Dr business. The insurance carriers 
co.me within this category. 

Sectio.n 1.G041-1(f) Df the R.egulatio.ns states that the 
amDunt is deemed paid fo.r purPo.ses o.f the above require­
ment when it is ·credited 0.1' set apart to a person without 
substantial limitation or restriction ... 

Accordingly, insurance carriers writing Workmen's 
Co.mpensatio.n are required to furnish Form 1099 when 
payments of $600 Dr more are made to. a physician. 

At the present time New Jersey does not require workmen's 
compensation immrance carriers to report such payments to the 
State. 

Despite this, insurance companies receive little statuto.ry 
incentive to. comply with the regulatio.ns, since the I.R.S. may 
impo.se a fine of only $1 for each violation. I.R.C. § 6652(b) ; 
Reg. § 301.6652-1. 

Suggested S.c.I. Proposal: 
There is a two-pronged approach which the S.C.I. takes with 

regard to such widespread non-cDmpliance with Fo.rm 1099 re­
quirements. Since the requirement currently contains no parti0ular 
penalty for failure to co.mply, an amendment impo.sing a ·speciJfic 
mo.netary penalty for failure to file Form 1099 pro.vides the neces­
sary incentive to comply. In this regard the S.C.I. sho.uld no.tify 
the members of the New Jersey Congressional Delegatio.n, as well 
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as the Ohairmen Df the apprDpriate HDuse and Senate ODmmittees, 
Df the widespread failure to' cDmp~y Dn the part Df insurance 
carriers. Federal legislatiDn CDuld CDme in the fDrm Df a simple 
amendment to' § 6041: 

(e) Failure to' cDmply with the requirements Df this 
sectiDn shall result in a fine Df nDt mDre than $1,000 fDr 
each viDlatiDn and/Dr imprisDnment fDr nDt mDre than six 
mDnths. 

A letter, cDmmunicating this recDmmendatiDn to' the members 
Df the New Jersey CDngressiDnal DelegatiDn, the Ohairman of the 
HDuse Ways and Means ODmmittee (Re,p. Wilbur Mills) and the 
Senate Finance CDmmittee reads as fDllmvs': 

Dear Chairman: 
In the CDurse Df its recent investigatiDn intO' the New 

Jersey WDrkmen's CDmpensatiDn the New Jersey State 
CDmmissiDn Df InvestigatiDn discDvered that to' an ex­
tensive degree insurance cDmpanies writing cDmpensatiDn 
insurance in New Jersey fail to' prDvide I.R.S. FDrm 1099 
with regard to' payments Df $600 Dr mDre made to peti­
tiDners'dDctDrs. The magnitude Df the prDblem was Dut­
lined by the State ODmmissiDn Df InvestigatiDn's Ohief 
Accountant, Julius CaysDn, whO' repDrted that apprDxi­
mately half Df the immrance cDmpanies writing CDmpensa­
tiDn insurance in New Jersey dO' nDt provide FDrm 1099 
to' petitiDners' dDctDrs. This stands in sharp cDntrast to' 
the recDrd Df 100% cDmpliance by the same cDmpanies with 
regard to' their Dwn dDctDrs. This practice cDntinues 
despite the fact that William H. Rogers, Chief Df the 
Administrative PrDvisiDn Branch Df the I.R.S., has ex­
pressed the I.R.S. pDsitiDn that such forms must be 
prDvided. 

Such nDn-cDmpliance pDses twO' related prDblems. 
DDctDrs, fDr whDm FDrm 1099 is nDt provided, are en­
cDuraged to' allDW STIch income to' gO' unreported. As a 
result substantial tax revenues are being IDst to' the federal 
gDvermnent. 

With regard to' the effect Df nDn-cDmpliance Dn 
petitiDners' dDctDrs, the ODmmissiDn's investigatiDn dis­
clDsed that three of the five petitiDners' dDctDrs whose· 
recDrds were examined had diverted incDme frDm W Drk­
men's CompensatiDn intO' cash hDards. AmDng insurance 
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company doctors only one of four had made such a 
diversion. 

Despite this tendency, the Commission's research 
indicated that fully $800,000, half the amount paid to 
petitioners doctors by such insurance companies, went un­
reported on Form 1099. The non-complying companies 
do business on a national basis, and Commission analysis 
indicates that as a result on a national basis, a minimum 
of $16 million goes unreported to the federal government 
on Form 1099. . .' 

, . At the present time, the State Commission of In-
vestigation believes that the I.R.S. cannot coercecompli-' 
ance with these regulations because of inadequate statu­
tory penalties in view of the fact that I.R.C. § 6652(b) 
provides a penalty of only one dollar for each violation. 
To remedy this inadequacy the State Commission of Inc 
vestigation respectfnlly recommends the following amend­
ment to the Internal Revenue Code § 6041: 

(e) Failure to comply with the requirement of this 
section shall result in a fine of not more than $1,000 for 
each violation, and/or imprisonment for not more than 
six months. 

Sincerely, 

Chairman, 
N. J. State Commission of 
Investigation 

. The other approach cures the problem at the State' level, by 
requiring insurance carriers to report sU(lh paymeuts to the Sec­
retary of State as a condition of doing business within the State. 
Such legislation reads: 

Every insurance company authorized to transact 
business in this State, and which is not authorized to do 
life insurance, health ins,urance, or annuities business as 
defined in Title 17B shall cause to be filed with the Sec­
retary of State, on or before June 30 of each year the 
names and addresses of, together with the amount paid or 
credited to, all physicians residing within this State; to 
whom the insurance company, in the course of its business, 
paid or credited an amount of $600 or more in the preced-
ing calendar year. . 

270 



Commentary: 
The suggested proposals assure the correction of the FOI1ll 

1099 abuse uncovered by the S.C.I. investigation. Federallegisla­
tion, imposing a fine on non-complying companies, would solve the 
problein directly by providing an incentive to :file through a 
monetary penalty for non-complianoe. Because of the obstacles 
inherent in any attempt to foster and achieve passage of a Con­
gressional bill, the alternate course of remedial state legislation 
offers the most feasible, if not the optimum, solUtion to the problem. 
The proposed state legislation simply requires the filing of Form 
1099 information as a condition of doing business and thus provides 
a cross"check on whether or not such companies have complied 
with the Federal Form 1099 requirement. 

New Jersey Workmen's Compensation Study Com­
mission: 
The Report of the Study Commission endorses the S.C.I. 

recommendation in this area. 

1. IMMEDIATE CORRECTIVE MEASURES 

a) Legislative Action 
12) Annual C.P.A. Audits of Insurance Companies and 

Evaluation of the Compensation Rating and Inspec­
tion Bureau 

The S.c.I. Recommendation: 
On a regular basis, at least once every two years, the business 

affairs, methods of operation and rate making procedures and 
practices of the Compensation Rating and Inspection Bureau of 
the State Department of Insurance should be reviewed by an 
independent firm of C.P.A.s. The Commission recommends that 
the State Commissioner of Insurance approve and prequalify the 
C.P.A. firms and that the cost of such services should be borne by 
the insurance industry through assessments by the Rating Bureau. 

It is also recommended that the State Commissioner of Insur­
ance should explore the feasibility of eliminating state insurance ex­
aminations in selected cases and substituting annual examinations 
of insurance companies by C.P.A. firms. The thrust of the annual, 
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state sanctioned C.P.A. audits should be directed toward in-depth 
reviews of the companies loss data and thc possibility of over" 
r~seI"Ving procedures as outlined in the Commission's public hear­
ing on Workmen's Compensation Systems. This recommendation 
should be considered as a supplement to the generally accepted 
auditing procedures as outlined by the American Institute of 
C.P.A.s. 

Commentary: 
This recommendation requires two statutes for its imple­

mentation, one for annual audits of insurance companies, and one 
for evaluation of the Compensation Rating and Inspection Bureau. 

Suggested s.c.I. Proposals: 
1. On annual audits of insurance companies: 

Every insurance company authorized to transact 
business in this State, and which is not authorizeq to do 
life insurance, health insurance or annuities business as 
de,fined in Title 17B, shall cause to be made a comprehen­
sive annual audit of a scope satisfactory to the Commis­
sioner of Insura.nce by independent auditors approved and 
pre-qualified by him. Certified copies of the report of the 
findings of such independent auditors, along with any 
reconnnendations, shall be filed forthwith by them with the 
Commissioner of Insurance and shall be available to State 
officials and at his discretion to the general public. The 
deadline for filing such reports shall be June 30 for audits 
of the previous calendar year and December 31 for audits 
of the previous fiscal year. 

2. On the Compensation Rating and Inspection Bureau: 

As often as he deems necessary, but at least once 
every two years, the Commissioner of Insurance shall 
cause to be made a comprehensive audit and evaluation of 
the business affairs, methods of operation and rate mak­
ing practices and procedures of the Compensation Rating 
and Inspection Bureau by an independent firm of C.P .A.s 
approved and pre-qualified by him and ha,ving no conneC­
tion with any insurance company authorized to transact 
business in this State. Certmed copies of the report of the 
findings of such independent firm or agency, along with 
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any recommendations shall be filed forthwith by them 
with the Commissioner of Insurance and shall be available 
to State Officials and to the general public. 

New Jersey Workmen's Compensation Study Com­
mission: 
The Report of the Study Commission noted with regret its 

inability, due to time limitations, to examine the Rate Making 
Process. The Study Commission expressed its general Agreement 
with the S.C.I. view of the great importance of the subject. 

I. IMMEDIATE CORRECTIVE MEASURES 

a) Legislative Action 
13) Public Members for the Governing Board of the 

Compensation Rating and Inspection Bureau 
The Testimony: 
S.C.I. Chief Accountant Julius Cayson testified as to the role 

of the Compensation R,ating and Inspection Bureau and outlined 
its current shortcomings. The Bureau, whieh has its office in 
Newark, is the bO'dy which maintains the premium rates for Work­
men's Compensation in New Jersey. While the Bureau has a 
generally high reputation in the rate making field, it determines 
premium rates without an adversary procedure. Its membership is 
composed of the mutual associations and stO'ck companies which 
write compensation or liability insurance in New Jersey. The 
public is represented on the Bureau's Governing Board through 
a special deputy of the Commissioner of Banking and Insurance. 
Such special deputy serves as ex -officio chairman of the Bureau 
but has no vote O'n the Governing Board. 

The S.c.I. Recommendation: 
It is the opinion of the Commission that the representation 

base in the rate making structure should be broadened; therefore 
the Commission recommends that three persons having no con­
nection with the Insurance Industry such as a member of the At­
torney General's Office, a representative from the Department of 
Consumer Affairs and a representative of the accounting profes­
sion be placed upon the Governing Board of the Compensation 
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Rating and Inspection Bureau to serve without compensation to 
represent and protect the rights of the general public, 

The Background: 
At: the present time the relevant statutory organization of 

the Compensation Rating and Inspection Bureau,· as outlined in 
the public hearings by Julius Cayson, is contained in N,J,S,A, 
34:15-90 : 

Insurance companies, members of bureau 
No mutual association or stock company shall be 

authorized to write compensation or liability insurance in 
the State unless it is a member of the compensation rating 
and inspection bureau, 

Each member of the bureau writing such insurance 
shall be represented by one representative and shall be 
entitled to one vote in the administration of bureau affairs, 

The bureau shall adopt such rules and regulations 
for its procedure and provide such income as may be neces­
sary for its maintenance and operation, 

The Commissioner of Banking and Insurance· shall 
appoint a special deputy to be ex-officio chairman of the, 
bnreau, Such deputy shall serve with the bureau solely as 
a representative of the Commissioner of Banking and In­
surance and of the Department of Banking and Insurance 
and shall hold no other office with the bureau nor shall he 
receive any compensation from the bureau, In the absence 
of the chairman or his inability to serve, the Commis­
sioner of Banking and Insurance shall designate another 
person to serve in his stead, 

All officers, members of committees and employees 
of the bureau shall be subject to the approval andratiiica­
tion of the Commissioner of Banking and Insurance, 

Suggested s,c.!. Proposal: 
N,J,S,A, 34 :15-90 should be amended to read as follows: 

No mutual association or stock companysh!;llbe 
authorized to write compensation or liability insurallce in 
the State unless it is a member of the compensation rating 
and inspectionblireau. 
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Each member of the bureau writing such insurance 
shall be represented by one representative and shall be 
entitled to one vote in the administration of bureau affairs. 

The Governor sh(lll appoVnt one member of the Divi­
s-ion of Consumer Affairs, one member of the Office of the 
Attorney General, and one certified public aCCOtlntant 
resident of this state to serve with the bureau as repre­
sentatives of the general public. Each as slwh shall be 
entitled to one vote in the administration of bureau affairs, 
and shall serve on the Governing Board of the bitreau but 
shall receive no compensation /1-om the bureau. 

The bureau shall adopt such rules and regUlations 
for its procedure and provide such income as may be neces­
sary for its maintenance and operation. 

The Commissioner of Banking and Insurance shall 
appoint a special deputy to be ex-officio chairman of the 
bureau. Such deputy shall serve with the bureau solely 
as a representative of the Commissioner of Banking and 
Insurance and of the Department of Banking and Insur­
ance and shall hold no other offi(Je with the bureau nor 
shall he receive any compensation from the bureau. In the 
absence of the chairman or his inability to serve, the Com­
missioner of Banking and Insurance shall designate 
another persou to serve in his stead. 

All officers, members of committees and employees 
of the bureau shall be subject to the approval and ratifica­
tion of the Commissioner of Banking and Insurance. 

Commentary: 
This amendment provides for the appointment by the Gov­

ernor of three voting representatives of the general public as 
members of the Compensation Rating and Inspection Bureau. It 
also guarantees them seats on the Governing Board of the Bureau. 
Thus, the amendment seeks to remedy the shortcomings which 
result from the Bureau's lack of an adversary procedure as part 
of its rate making process. 

New Jersey Workmen's Compensation Study Com­
mission: 
The Report of the Study Commission noted with regret its 

inability, due to time limitations, to examine the Rate Making 
Process. ' The Study Coin,mission expressed its general agreement 
with the S.C.I. view of the great importance of the subject. 
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I. IMMEDIATE CORRECTIVE MEASURES 

b) Administrative Action 

1) Multiple Allegations 

The Testimony: 
One of the most flagrant abuses brought to light during the 

S.C.I. hearings was the use of multiple allegations in claim peti­
tions, unsupported by either facts or the eventual award. Both 
Judges Levine and Kelly recognized this and Judge' Levine urged 
requiring physicians' reports rdative to all allegations. 

Additionally, S.C.I. Chief Accountant Cayson explained that 
the practice of unsubstantiated multiple allegations leads to higher 
insurance rates in workmen's compensation by forcing insurance 
companies to set higher reserves. 

The S.c.I. Recommendation: 
Prior to allegation of multiple disabilities above and beyond 

the alleged principal disability, attorneys for petitioners in Work­
men's Compensation cases should be reqnired by administrative 
court ruling to have examining physicians' reports relative to each 
and every multiple disability alleged. 

The Background: 
At present, the Director of the Division of Workmen's Com­

pensation could promulgate the appropriate rule. In the S.C.I. 
recommendation on transferring the compensation courts to the 
Administrative Office of the Courts, the proper remedy might be 
a Court Rule in place of, or in addition to, a Division rule. 

Suggested S.C.I. Proposal: 
A formal Employee's Claim Petition for Compensation, when 

filed with the Division of Workmen's Compensation shall be ac­
companied by supporting examining reports from qualified phy­
sicians or surgeons with respect to each injury alleged. 

A letter from the Commission should make such a recom­
mendation to the Director of the Workmen's -Compensation 
Division. The letter reads as follows:* 

* A single letter, incorporating all recommendations to the Director, will be sent and 
is included in this report at p. 318. 
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Dear Mr. Dezseran: 

During the course of its investigation into the W ork­
men's Compensation system, the New Jersey State Com­
mission of Investigation condncted public hearings at 
which the Commissioners took extensive testimony. The 
testimony showed a growing and abusive practice on the 
part of petitioners attorneys to resort to the use of 
multiple allegations in claim petitions, said allegations 
unsupported by either facts or the e,ventnal award. The 
testimony also sho,ved that this mnltiple allegation tech­
nique was being used as a wedge to attempt to attain a 
higher award and that the cost of the additional medical 
examinations involved was a factor in driving up the cost 
of workmen's compensation insurance coverage. The State 
Commission of Investigation naturally abhors the use of 
boilerplate petitions in this manner. 

To end this abuse of the system, the Commission 
recommends and requests that you promnlgate an adminis­
trative directive to quash this practice. The Commission 
believes that the'following rule, or one similar to it, might 
solve this problem: 

A formal Employee's Claim Petition for Compensa­
tion, when filed with the Division of Workmen's Com­
pensation shall be accompanied by supporting examining 
reports from qualified physicians or surgeons with respect 
to each injury alleged, which shall also state the name 
and address of the person, if any, who referred the peti­
tioner to the physician. With the approval of a judge of 
compensation, such claim petitions may be amended up to 
30 days after filing. 

Commentary: 

Sincerely, 

Chai=an, 
N. J. State Commission of 
Investigation 

This proposal, together with the S.C.I. proposed statute 
making false medical reports a misdemeanor, should provide a 
solution to the problem of unsubstantiated multiple allegations. 
Attorneys will not be able to submit these claims without medical 
reports and doctors filing false reports to support multiple allega­
tions will be subject to criminal prosecution. 
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Additionally, this requirement will assist in policing lID­

warranted attorney referrals of clients for medical treatment. It 
also prevents the settlement of a formal claim without having the 
relevant medical reports available. 

New Jersey Workmen's Compensation Study Com­
mission: 
The Report of the Study Commission endorsed the S.C.I. 

recommendation in this area. Since the multiple allegation abuse 
is flourishing, it is urgent that it be ended i=ediately by ad­
ministrative directive regardless of the outcome of the move 
toward basic reform of the Workmen's Compensation system. 

However, the thorough structural overhaul of the system 
proposed by the Study Commission may eventually solve this 
problem by increasing the number and quality of state doctors 
and expanding their role. If state doctors efficiently evaluate 
claimants' injuries and if countervailing testimony is required to 
challenge the determinations of the state doctors, it may be that 
the problem, i=ediately cured by the S.C.I. proposal, would be 
solved by the Study Commission proposal, if that proposal is 
enacted and proves to be effective. In the inte,rim, implementation 
of the S.C.I. proposal provides immediate relief. 

I. IMMEDIATE CORRECTIVE MEASURES 

b) Administrative Action: 

2) Limitations on Neuro-Psychiatric Examinations 

The Testimony: 
Attorneys Balk and Parks indicated that they did not refer 

clients for a neuropsychiatric examination except on the recom­
mendation of the initial examining doctor, uuless the injury is to 
the head or involves an amputation. Judges Le,vine and Kelly also 
testified that they belie,ved allegations of neuropsychiatric injuries 
were often unwarranted. 

The S.C.I. Recommendation: 
An administrative court ruling should be promulgated 

delineating obvious injuries (i.e., injury to the head or amputation 
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of a major member) where petitioners' attorney may refer clients 
for neuropsychiatric examinatioll by the doctor examining and 
evaluating the basic disability alleged. In all other instances, the 
proposed ruling should bar petitioners' attorneys from referring 
clients for neuropsychiatric examination above and beyond the 
basic disability alleged and pe)"1l1it neuropsychiatric examination 
in those instances only on the recommendation of the doctor 
examining and evaluating the basic alleged disability. 

The Background: 
The Divisiou of Workmen's Compensation promulgates the 

rules governing such aspects of the workmen's compensation 
practice. 

Suggested S.C.I. Proposal: 
No attorney, nor any other person at the instance of any 

attorney, shall refer a client in a Workmen's Compensation claim 
to any physician for a neuropsychiatric examination, except on the 
recommendation of the physician evaluating the basic disability, 
uuless the injury on which the claim is based involves the head or 
an amputation. 

A letter from the Commission should make such a recom­
mendation to the Director of the Workmen's Compensation 
Division. The letter reads as follows:~ 

Dear Mr. Dezseran: 
During the course of its investigation into the Work­

men's Compensation system, the New Jersey State Com­
mission of Investigation conducted public hearings at 
which the Commissioners took extensive testimony. That 
testimony showed a growing and abusive practice on the 
part of petitioners' attorneys to refer clients for neuro­
psychiatric examination so that a neuropsychiatric allega­
tion could be made above and beyond the basic injury 
alleged. The testimony also showed that the neuro­
psychiatric allegation was often used as a wedge to 
attempt to attain a higher award and that the cost of 
additional neuropsychiatric examinations was a factor 
in driving up the cost of workmen's compensation inc 
surance coverage. 

-* A single letter, incorporating all recommendations to the Director will be sent and 
is included in this report at p. 318. 

279 



To end this abusive', practice, the Oommission 
recommends and requests that you promulgate an appro­
priate administrative directive and indicate that the, 
Division will subject such nenropsychiatric allegations 
to careful scrutiny. The Oommission believes that the 
following rule, or a similar one, might soLve the problem: 

No attorney, nor any other person at the instance 
of any attorney, shall refer a client in a Workmen's 
Oompensation claim to any physioian for a neuro­
psychiatric examination except on the recommendation 
of the physician evaluating the basic disability, unless 
the injury on which the claim is based involves the head 
or an amputation. The report of s,uch examining 
physician shall indicate what portion, if any, of any 
disability is neurological, and what portion, if any, is 
psychiatric. 

Commentary: 

Sincerely, 

Ohairman, 
N. J. State Oommission 
of Investigation 

This rule limits the use and resort to neuropsychiatric exam­
inations without a physician's recommendations except in the cases 
noted above. Our other recommendations require medical reports 
in support of each injury alleged in a compensation claim. They 
also impose criminal liability on physicians for willful material 
misstatements in those reports. This recommendation goes a step 
further, reaching the initiating phase of such examinations. It 
places a responsibility on the attorney to act only upon professional 
recommendation except in obvious cases . 

. New Jersey Workmen's Compensation Study Com­
mission: 
The Report of the Study Oommission endorsed the S.O.I. 

recommendation in this area. Since the neuropsychiatric allega­
tionabuse is flourishing, it is urgent that it be ended immediately 
by administrative directive regardless of the outcome of the move 
toward basic reform of the Workmen's Oompensation system. 

. However, the thorough structural overhaul of the systelll 
'proposed by the Study Oommission may eventually solve this 
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problem area by increasing the number and qnality of state doctors 
and expanding their role. If the state doctors efficiently evaluate 
claimants injuries and if countervailing testimony is required tQ, 
challenge those determinations of the state doctors, it may be that 
the problem, immediately cured by the S.C.I. proposal, will be' 
solved by the Study Commission proposal, if that proposal Is 
enacted and proves to be effective. In the interim, implementation 
Of the S.C.I. proposal provides immediate relief. 

I. IMMEDIATE CORRECTIVE MEASURES 
'; 

c) Executive Action: 

1) Advance Bar Association Evaluations of Guberna-' 
torial Nominations to the Workmen's Compensa; 
tion Bench. 

The Testimony: 
The S.C.I. took testimony from 4 expert witnesses in the, 

course of its workmen's compensation hearings. In addition to 
Mr. Parks, they were Mr. Jacob L. Balk, senior partner in the 
firm of Balk, Jacobs, Goldberg, Mandell and Selighson in Newark, 
Judge Stanley Levine, Supervising Judge of the Workmen's Com­
pensation Courts in Elizabeth, and Judge Roger W. Kelly, then 
Supervising Judge of the 'Workmen's Compensation Courts in 
Newark. All four strongly advocated a procedure for screening 
candidates prior to nomination and confirmation. They indicated 
the absence of such a procedure fostered the frequent selection of 
unoutstanding judges of compensation; Judge Kelly went even 
further, indicating his belief that political considerations dominate 
the selection of such judges. 

The S.C.I. Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Governor, prior to appointments 

of judges of the Workmen's Compensation Court, notify the State 
Bar Association of his intent to make the appointments. The 
recommendations of that Association relative to the prospective 
appointees, while not binding', should be heavily conside·red in the 
interest of obtaining high quality and competence in the Work­
men's Compensation judiciary. 
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The Background: 
At present, Gubernatorial nominations for courts within the 

framework of the state court system are submitted to the' Ne,w 
Jersey State Bar Association for referral to the appropriate local 
county bar association which evaluates them as either qualified or 
unqualified. This policy has become executive custom but does not 
now extend to nominations for the workmen's compensation 
jndiciary. 

Suggested S.c.I. Proposal: 
This area seems ill-suited for legislation, since it would re­

quire subjecting an entire' area of executive policy to the restric­
tions of statutory controls. Appropriate action could be taken in 
the form of an official letter from the Chairman of the Commission, 
to the Governor noting the S.C.I.'s findings and requesting a 
formal announcement by the Governor that henceforth the custom 
o,f submitting judicial appointments to the Bar Association for 
screening in advance of their nomination will be extended to the 
workmen's compensation jUdiciary. The letter, which should be 
"For Public Release", reads as follows: 

Dear Governor Byrne: 
During the course of its investigation of New 

Jersey's Workmen's Compensation system, the New 
Jersey State Commission of Investigation conducted 
public hearings and took testimony from expert witnesses. 
These witnesses, both judges of compensation and active 
practitioners in the field, all indicated a belief that 
a process for screening potential nominees for the work­
men's COmpensation bench Wo,uld greatly improve the 
quality of the Workmen's Compensation Judiciary. 
Accordingly, the State Commission of Investigation 
respectfully recommends and requests that you announce 
and institute as a matter of executive policy, a procedure 
for submitting the names of potential nominees to the 
New Jersey State Bar Association fo,r referral to the, 
Judiciary and Workmen's Compensation Committees of 

, the appropriate local county bar association for evalua­
tion prior to their actual nomination as judges of com­
pensation. The State Commission of Investigation 
believes that such a policy would serve the public interest 
through assisting both the executive in nominating, and 
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the New Jersey State Senate in confirming, qualified 
judges of compensation. 

Commentary: 

Sincerely yours, 

Chairman, 
N. J. State Commission 
of Investigation 

This recommendation can be carried out quickly and effi­
ciently by executive order, avoiding the perils inherent in seeking 
to gain passage of new legislation. By awaiting the inauguration 
of a new governor we assure that the custom wiU be of at least 
4 years standing before any change of administrations occurs, and 
thus help to guarantee its continued practice from one admin­
istration to the next. 

New Jersey Workmen's Compensation Study Com­
mission: 
The report of the Study Commission specifically endorses the 

S.C.I. recommendation in this area. 

II. PROPOSED LEGISLATIVE STUDY COMMISSIONS 

1) More & Better-Paid State Doctors 

The Testimony: 
Attorney Parks testified in the public hearings that one of the 

barriers to more widespread use of the informal process for work­
men's compensation claims was that the pay scale for state-paid 
doctors fell so far below the market level as to impede the recruit­
ment of competent examining physicians for the informal process. 

The S.c.I. Recommendation: 
The State Department of Labor aud Industry should conside,r 

increasing the number of state paid doctors used in the informal 
process and taking steps to increase the examining and evaluation 
expertise of those doctors as ways of encouraging petitioners' 
attorneys to make more use of the informal process. 
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The Background: 
A brief glance at the statistics supplied by the Director of the 

Division of Workmen's Compensation, Mr. George Dezseran, in­
dicates that both the number of examining doctors employed by the 
state for such purposes, and the level of compensation they receive, 
are woefully inadequate. Only four full-time doctors are 
authorized, at a salary of $16,000 per annum. Five part-time 
doctors receive $63 per diem. In some instances per diem doctors 
examine as many as 40 claimants in the course of a day of informal 
hearings. The resulting compensation average of $1.50 per exam­

'ination guarantees either incompetent or inadequate examinations. 
,The problem is compounded by the complete absence of specialists 
among the examining physicians. 

Suggested S.c.I. Proposal: 
The following .T oint Legislative Resolution, a,uthorizing the 

necessary study of the problem, should be enacted: 

Whereas, the informal hearing process of the 
Division of 'Workmen's Compensation is designed for 
settling workmen's compensation Claims at the lowest 
possible cost to the claimants involved; 

Whereas, the efficient functioning and optimum 
utilization of the informal hearing process is in the public 
interest; 

Whereas, the full time and per diem services of 
competent physicians, both specialists and general practi­
tioners are essential to foster and enable the efficient func­
tioning and optimum utilization of the informal hearing 
process; 

Whereas, the number of physicians authorized on a 
full time and per diem basis is clearly inadequate to permit 
the efficient functioning and optimum utilization of the 
informal hearing process; 

Whereas, the levels of compensation authorized for 
such physicians fall so far below the fair market wage as 
too preclude the attraction of the competent physicians 
necessary to the efficient functioning and optimum utiliza­
tion of the informal hearing process; 

Whereas, the complete absence of specialists among 
the state doctors available in the informal hearings dis-
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cOUl'ages the efficient functioning and optimum utilization .. 
of the process; 

Be it resolved by the Senate and General Assembly 
of New Jersey that a Special Five-Member Commission, 
two members to be appointed by the· Governor, one by the 
President of the Senate, one by the Speaker of the General 
Assembly, and one by the Director of the Division of 
Workmen's Compensation is hereby established and 
authorized to determine the number and types of full-time' 
physicians required to enable the efficient functioning 
and optimum utilization of the informal hearing process 
of the Division of Workmen's Compensation. The Com­
mission is also authorized to determine the number and 
types of per diem physicians required, as well as the levels 
of compensation necessary to insure recrnitment of the 
competent full-time and per diem physicians of all types in 
the required number. 

The Commission shall appoint an executive secre­
tary and such other staff as is necessary to complete its 
study and shall report on its findings to the Legislature 
within six months of the date of the enactment of this 
Resolution. 

A sum of $50,000 is hereby appropriated to this· 
Commission to meet its necessary expenses. 

New Jersey Workmen's Compensation Study Com­
mission: 
The Report of the Study Commission shares the S.C.I. goal 

in this area but believes its recommendations eliminate the need 
for S.C.I. action in this area. The S.C.I. proposal offers a legisla­
tive vehicle to achieve the parallel goals of the Study Commission 
and the S.C.I. in this area, because the study will facilitate the 
enactment of appropriate legislation with regard to meeting the 
realistic needs of the Division of Workmen's Compensation in this 
field. 
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II. PROPOSED LEGISLATIVE STUDY COMMISSIONS 

2) The Rate Making Process: Open Rating; The Rating 
Base; Loss Data; and Over-Reserve Reforms 

Study of Open Rating 

The S.C.I. Recommendation: 
The Co=ission does not pass upon the merits of Open 

Rating, however, the Governor's Study Commission on Work­
men's Compensation should explore and consider the feasipility of 
open rating in New Jersey for Workmen's Compensation 
insurance. 

Investment Income in the Rating Base 

The Testimony: 
S.C.I. hearings disclosed that among those insurance carriers 

examined (four stock companies and three mutual companies), 
four-fifths of their gross income from investments and only one­
fifth of their gross income from underwriting. For both years 
surveyed (1971 and 1972) these proportions obtained. Despite this 
fact, investment income is not considered in the rate making 
process. 

The S.c.I. Recommendation: 
The Governor's Study Commission on ~Workmen's Com­

pensation should explore and consider the feasibility of imple­
menting the anticipated decision of the New Jersey Supreme 
ICourt on application of investment income to rate making in the 
automobile liability field to the Workmen's Compensation field. 

The Background: 
On JUly 11, 1973 the New Jersey Supreme Court, in In re 

Application of Ins. Rating Board, 63 N.J. 413 (1973), affirmed a 
decision by the Co=issioner of (Banking and Insurance) requir­
ing the inclusion of income from investments in the rate making 
process in the ,"utomobile insurance industry. The Court allowed 
an after-federal-income-tax profit on premiums of 3.5%, from 
which sum "after-tax income (other than capital gains) from 
investment(s)." Id. at 417. This is expected to redu~e the 3.5% 
figure to about 2%. 
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N.J.S.A. 34:15-89, states the powers of the Bureau of Com~ 
pensation Rating and Inspection. The statute describes the dutiM 
of The Bureau of Oompensation Rating and Inspection in 
pertinent part: 

It shall establish and maintain rules, regulations and 
premium rates for workmen's compensation and em­
ployer's liability insurance and equitably adjust the same, 
as far as practicable, to the hazard of individual risks, by 
inspection by the bureau. 

Study of Actual Losses &. Costs as Prime Rating 
Ingredient 

The Testimony: 
Testimony at S.O.I. Public Hearings revealed the following: 

No in depth cost studies of the rate making process 
for Workmen's Oompensation in New .Jersey have been 
made in more than half a century. 

Regular state insurance company examinations do 
not cure this defect since the audits are basically liquidity 
reviews (i.e. verilication of cash,stocks, bonds, mortgages, 
etc.) and a review of the loss reserves of the company 
results only in recommendations for increases in reserves. 

Oost studies and reviews are conducted in New York, 
Massachusetts and Pennsylvania. The Oompensation 
Bureau in N eew Jersey must rely on unverified data of 
more than 200 insurance <larriers, only 15 of which are 
based in New Jersey. 

The S.c.I. Recommendation: 
The Governor's Study Oommission on Workmen's Oompensa­

tion should study the basic assumptions of the rate making process 
to determine their validity and to determine whether actual losses 
over a specific period of time and actual costs for the same period 
should not be the prime ingredient in the rate making process. 

Study of Possible Over-Reserve Reforms 

The Testimony: 
Testimony at S.O.I. Public Hearings indicated that the pro­

cedure of valuing cases for loss reserve purposes failed to account 
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f<')r the fact that the value of workmen's compensation recoveries 
by injured workers (i.e. actual loss experience) ran dramatically 
behind the value placed on complaints for loss reserve purposes., 
The estimated overstatement of workmen's compensation in(lUrred 
losses by all insurance carriers for the period 1967-1971 could 
exceed $182 million. 

The S.c.I. Recommendation: 
The State Commissioner of Insurance should undertake to 

re-evaluate the statutory mandates that require insurance com­
panies to over-reserve for the catastrophic losses and the like. 
Additionally, the Commissioner should determine whether actual 
loss experience over a specified period of years, combined with an 
actuarially sound modification of the rate structure might not give 
reserves for liquidity purposes, a greater credibility. 

Suggested S.c.I. Proposal: 
The following Joint Legislative Resolution should be 

enacted: 

Whereas, no thorough study of the rate making 
process in Workmen's Compensation has yet been under­
taken in New Jersey; 

Whereas, the Report of the New Jersey Workmen's 
Compensation Study Commission recognized the im­
portance of such a study; 

Whereas, the New Jersey State Commission of 
Investigation recommends a study of the feasibility of 
open rating for Workmen's Compensation insurance in 
New Jersey; 

Whereas, the Ne~v Jersey State Commission of In­
vestigation recommends a study of the feasibility of 
implementing the New Jersey Supreme Court's decision in 
In re Application of Insurance Rating Board on the 
application of investment income to rate making in the 
field of Workmen's Compensation insurance; 

Whereas, the New Jersey State Commission of In­
vestigation recommends a study of the basic assumptions 
of the Workmen's Compensation rate making process, 
particularly with regard to over-reserves for catastrophic 
losses, actual losses and actual costs as ingredients in the 
rate making process; , 
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Be it resolved by the Senate and General Assembly 
of New Jersey that a Special Nine-Member Oommission 
be established, three members to be appointed by the 
Governor, two by the President of the Senate, two by the 
'Speaker of the General Assembly, and two ex-officio 
members, the Oommissioner of Insurance or his designee, 
and a member selected by the Governing Board of the 
Oompensation Rating and Inspection Bureau. 

The Oommission shall conduct a thorough study of 
the rate making process in workmen's compensation in­
surance in New Jersey and shall report on its findings to 
and recommendations to the Legislature within six months 
of the enactment of this Joint Legislative Resolution. 

The Oommission shall be aJUthorized to employ an 
executive secretary, two actuaries, and such staff as shall 
be necessary to conduct this study; the Oommission shall 
be authorized to expend as needed the sum of money 
necessary to conduct this study. 

Commentary: 
In view of the fact that the New Jersey Workmen's Oom­

pensation Study Oommission lacked the time to study the rate 
making process in workmen's compensation insurance, this legisla­
tive study commission offers the most feasible means by which to 
undertake a thorough examination of the rate making process. 

III. AREAS FOR ADMINISTRATIVE ATTENTION 

1) Study of Penalties for Attorney Delays 

The S.C.I. Recommendation: 
The body charged with administration of the Workmell's 

Compensation Oourt system should study the advisability of a 
system of penalties to be assessed against both petitioners and 
respondent attorneys for any dilatory tactics in the handling of 
cases, said penalties to be integrated into the awarding of counsel 
fees and costs where practical. 
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The Background: 
The Ru1es Qf the DivisiO'n Qf Workmen's CQmpensatiQn, II. 

The FQrmal PrQcess, cQntain three prQvisiQns penalizing attQrneys 
fQr dilatQry tactics. The first gQverns faiLure to' appear at, pre­
pare fQr Qr repQrt Qn schedu1ed pre-trial cQnferences. It allO'ws 
the hearing judge to' adjust the allQcatiQn Qf CQsts accQrdingly: 

... When a party Qr his attorney fails to appear at 
a pre-trial cQnference Qr to' participate therein Qr to pre­
pare therefQr the Referee Qr Judge Qf CQmpensatiQn CQn­
ducting the pre-trial cQnference shall make prQper nQte 
thereQf in the case file. The Judge Qf CQmpensatiQn 
assigned to' hear the case, in his discretiQn, may make such 
Qrder with respect to' the impositiQn Qf CQsts >and cQunsel 
fees and with respect to the cQntinued prO'secutiQn Qf the 
cause, as is just and prQper. 

With regard to' resPQndents dilatQry manuevers in pretrial 
conferences, any time a respondent negligently fails to' prQduce a 
needed medical repQrt at pre-trial, and thereby blocks mQving the 
case, the resPQndent incurs liability nQt less than 80 % Qf the 
counsel fees Qf a successful claimant: 

Any case set dQwn fQr pre-trial Qn mQre than Qne > 
QccasiQn, if nQt mQved because Qf failure Qf resPQndent 
to' have a report Qf medical examinatiQn, shall be placed Qn 
the trial list, and in the event an award is made, nQt less 
than 80% Qf the cQunsel fee allQ,wed to' petitiQner's 
attQrney shall be assessed against the resPQndent. This 
Rule shall nQt apply in any case in which the failure to' 
have said medical examinatiQns is due to' petitiQner's 
neglect Qr refusal to' appear fQr the examinatiQns, in which> > 
event the case shall be marked "not mQved." 

With regard to' petitiQners and their AttQrneys, whenever 
cases are marked "nQt mQved" thrQugh their fault, negligent 
'AttQrneys can have their fees reduced 20% fQr each such instance 
>aud negligent petitiQners may be penalized apprQpriately: 

Any case listed peremptQrily Qr listed within the 
first ten fQr hearing on a trial calendar, pr set dQwn fQr >a 
secQnd listing Qn a pre-trial calendar, in which nO' appear­
ance is made Qn behalf Qf petitiQner Qr which is nQt 
adjQurned fQr gQQd cause, shall be marked NOT MOVED 
and shall nQt be restQred to' the calendar except Qn mQtiQn 
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made upon five days notice served upon respondent; pro­
vided, however, that the Judge of Oompensation or 
Referee, Formal Hearings may, for good cause and on his 
own motion, restore a case marked NOT MOVED to the 
trial or pre-trial calendar. The counsel fee normally 
allowed shall be reduced 20% for each time a case has 
.been marked NOT MOVED, when the attorney for the 
petitioner is responsible for such marking. Where a case 
has been marked NOT MOVEn because of the peti­
tioner's failure without good cause to submit himself for 
a physical examination at the request of the respondent, 
the petitioner may be penalized in the apportionment of 
fees at the discretion of the presiding officer. 

Commentary: 
The Division of Workmen's Oompensation Rules thus contain 

several monetary penalties for delay. The problem would there­
fore seem to be largely one of enforcement. The Oommission pro­
posed amendment to Rnle 8 (Section II, Formal Hearings) 
expands the scope of attorney's delays for which respondent will 
be penalized. Sinoe such fees cannot be included in the insuranoo 
rate base, respondents will have further incentive to expedite the 
handling of formal cases. 

Suggested S.c.1. Proposal 
The Ohairman or Exeeutive Director should communicate by 

formal letter with the Director of the Division of Workmen's 
Oompensation, and recommend the Division review its provisions 
for penalizing dilatory attorney tactics by petitioners and 
respondents. Specifically, such a review should be directed to 
asoortaining whether or not the provisions are sufficiently severe 
and whether or not they are being properly enforced. Such a 
letter, which should also be "For Public Release" reads as 
follows ,. 

Dear Mr. Dezseran, 

nuring the oourse of its investigation into N erw 
Jersey's Workmen's Oompensation system, the New 
Jersey State Oommission of Investigation conducted 
public hearings at which the Oommissioners took extensive 

* A single letter, incorporating all recommendations to the Director will be sent and 
is included in this .report at p. 318. 
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testimony. The testimony at these hearings indicated the 
need for an adequately enforced. system of penaltieH, in­
tegrated where possible into the awarding of costs and 
counsel fees, which would be assessed against both peti­
tioners and respondent attorneys for any dilatory tactics 
in the handling of cases, The State Commission of 
Investigation notes that the Rules of the Division of Work, 
men's Compensation contain provisions in this regard. 
In light of the proposals contained in the Recommenda­
tions of the New Jersey State Commission of Investiga­
tion and in the Report of the New Jersey Workmen's 
Compensation Study Commission, the State Commission 
of Investigation recommends and requests that the 
Director of the Division of Workmen's Compensation 
review the Division's provisions for peJilalizing dilatory 
tactics by petitioner's and respondent attorneys" Such a 
review should evaluate the adequacy of such proevisions 
and exaniine whether or not they are being properly 
enforced. 

In addition, the State Commission of Inevestigation. 
recommends that Rule. 8 of the Division of Workmen's 
Compensation, Section II, 'Formal Hearings be amended. 
to read: 

Any case set down for pre-trial on more than one 
occasion, if not moved because of failure of respondent 
to appear, to proceed, or to haeve a report of medical 
examination, shall be placed on the trial list, and in the 
event ana,ward is made, not less than 80% of the counsel 
fee allowed to petitioner's attorney shall be assessed 

. against the respondent. This Rule shall not apply in 
any case. in' which the failure to haeve said medical 
examinations is due, to petitioner's neglect or refusal 
to appear for the examinations, in which eevent the case 
shall be marked "not moeved." . 

Sincerely, 

Chairman, 
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New Jersey Workmen's Compensation Study Com" 
mISSIOn: 

The Report of the Study Commission stressed its belief that 
the matter of assessing penalties for attorney delays was one 
which should remain within the discretion of the Director of the 
Division of Workmen's Compensation. The S.C.I. sees validity in 
this position, but believes that the Director of the D~vision of 
Workmen's Compensation should 'Undertake a thorough study of 
the adequacy of such penalties and their enforcement. Accordingly, 
the S.C.I. s'hould proceed to communicate its recommendation. 

III. AREAS FOR ADMINISTRATIVE ATTENTION 

2) Attorney-Recommended Doctors 

The Testimony: 
The S.C.I. investigation revealed a pattern of reliance upon 

specific doctors by certain law firms, suggesting that the firms in 
question were recommending the doctors to clients. Jacob Balk, 
one of the Commission's experts in the workmen's compensation 
practice, testified, and S.C.I. investigation verified, that his firm 
does not engage in the repetitive use of any particular doctors. 

The S.c.I. Recommendation: 
Judges of the Workmen's Compensation Courts should be 

under administrative diredion to scrutinize closely cases where 
payment for medical treatment is requested and the treating 
physician was recommended by the petitioners' attorney. 

Suggested S.c.I. Proposal: 
Since the remedy in this case is one of administrative direc­

tive within the Division of Workmen's Compensation, it seems 
inappropriate to propose the language of that directive. Any 
action to implement this S.C.I. proposal should be in the form of a 
letter from the Chairman of the Commission, noting the S.C.I. 
findings and requesting action thereon by the Director of the 
Division of Workmen's Colllpensation. The letter, which should 
alsd be "For Public'-Release", reads as follows: (This letter also 

293 



executes the next recommendation, III. Areas for Administrative 
Attention and Medical Society Action; 3) House Doctors.' 

Dear Mr. Dezseran: 

During the course of its investigation into New 
Jersey's Workmen's Compensation system, the New 
Jersey State Commission of Investigation conducted 
public hearings at which the Commissioners took extensive 
testimony. The testimony at these hearings revealed a 
disconcerting pattern of reliance by certain law firms upon 
specific physicians in workmen's compensation cases. 
Because of the inherent dangers of abuse and col1usion 
which are· possible whenever attorneys recommend 
physicians to their clients, in such cases the State Com­
mission of Investigation recommends and requests that 
your office issue an appropriate administrative directive to 
the judges of compensation, requiring that they scrutinize 
clos'ely those cases where payment for medical treatme:nt 
is requested and the treating physician was recommended 
by the petitioners' attorney. 

In the course of its investigation and public hearings 
the Commission also uncovered a "house doctor" practice 
among certain law firms engaged in workmen's compensa­
tion practice. The Commission believes that patterns 
indicating the repeated use of a few favored physicians by 
partioular law firms manifest possible abuses and im­
proprieties in the system. Therefore, the Commission 
recommends and requests that the judges of compensation 
be placed under administrative directive to quash such 
patterns vigorously whenever necessary. The Commission 
believes that the public interest would be greatly served 
if a clear message.wentforth from the Division of Work­
men's Compensation that in these matters only the highest 
ethical standards and conduct will be accepted from those 
attorney~ and physicians practicing in and before the 
workmen's compensation courts. 

Sincerely, 

Chairman, 
N. J. State Commission 
of Investigation 

* A single letter, incorporating all recomm~dations to the Director,. will be sent and 
is included in this report at p. 318. 
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New Jersey Workmen's Compensation Study Com­
mission: 
The report of the Study Oommission endorses the S.O.I. 

recommendation in this area. 

III. AREAS FOR ADMINISTRATIVE ATTENTION 

3) House Doctors 

The Testimony: 

S.O.I. Ohief Accountant Julius Oayson testified to the fact 
that specific law firms were engaging the same doctors repeatedly 
for heat treatments, and in one case less than 40ro of the doctors 
treating clients of a partiClular firm received 54% of the firm's 
total disbursements. This clearly indicated the use of "favored 
treating" doctors. 

The S.C.I. Recommendation: 

IVhen a pattern exists in compensation or negligence cases to 
indicate use by a partiClular law firm of a particular physician or 
a few favored physicians as an adjunct or adjuncts of that law 
firm, such a situation should signal an outward .manifestation of 
possible abuse of the system, which does· in fact breed impro­
prieties, and thus judges and referees in the system should sharply 
scrutinize their trial lists and be vigorous in quashing the emer­
gence of any such patterns. A clear message shoujd go forth from 
the Division that only the highest of ethical standards and conduct 
will be accepted from those attorneys and physicians practicing 
in and before the Workmen's Oompensation Oourts. 

Suggested S.c.I. Proposal: 

As with the problem of remedying abuses spawned by 
attorneys reco=endirig particular doctors to clients, the solution 
in the area lies in administrative directives within the Division of 
Workmen's Oompensation. Therefore, any S.O.I. action seeking 
implementation of our reco=endationwould best take the forin 
of a letter from the Ohairmanto the Director of the Division of 
·Workmen's Oompensation, noting the S.O.I. findings and .our 
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recommendation. The letter, which should also be "For Public 
Release" is contained in the preceding section (III. Areas for 
Administrative Attention and Medical Society Action; 2) Attorney-
Recornmended Doctors). . 

New Jersey Workmen's Compensation Study Com­
mission: 
The report of the Study Commission endorses the S.C.I. 

recommendation in this area. 

III. . AREAS FOR ADMINISTRATIVE ATTENTION 

4) Medical Society Standards and Guidelines for Treat­
ment in Compensation and Negligence Cases 

The Testimony: 
Analyses of many cases suggested that frequently high 

numbers of treatments were authorized without any re-checking of 
the need for treatment over the history of the case. 

The S.c.1. Recommendation: 
It is recommended to the Medical Society of New Jersey that 

a study be undertaken to formulate possible standards, guidelines 
and procedures to be followed by tr,e'ating doctors in compensation 
and negligence cases. This recommendation is aimed at ending such 
abusive practice as setting a high number of treatments without 
periodic re-examination and re-evaluation of the case. 

Suggested S.c.1. Proposal: 
Since this is an area in which the remedies must flow from 

Medical Society action, S.C.I. action to implement our recom­
mendation should take the form of a letter from the Chairman 
of the commission to the Executive Director of the Medical 
Society of New Jersey, noting the S.C.I. findings and urging the 
Medical Society to conduct a study aimed at formulating the 
necessary guidelines and standards to require periodic re-evalua­
tions of treatment orders in compensation and neglig'ence cases. 
The letter, which should also be "For Public Release ", reads as 
follows: 
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Dear Mr. Maressa: 

As you knew the New Jersey State Cemmissien 'Of 
Investigatien recently cempleted an investigatien 'Of the 
werkmen's cempensatien system in N'ew Jersey. During 
the ceurse 'Of the investigatien numere)1S public hearings 

. were held and extensive testimeny was taken. One 'Of the 
- "abuses revealed at the public hearings was a tendency 

ameng seme physicians in c'Ompensati'On cases t'O auth'Orize 
a high number 'Of medical treatments fer claimants with­
'Out undertaking any re-evaluatien 'Of the need fer treat­
ment over the histery 'Of the case. Because self-policing 
ameng prefessienal eccupatiens haspreved te be a 
fruitful methed 'Of contrelling this type 'Of abuse, 
accerdingly the New Jersey State Cemmissienof In-

. vestigatien recemmends and requests. that the Medical 
Seciety 'Of New ,Tersey undertake a study te fermulate 
pessible standards, guidelines, and precedures te be 
f'Ollewed by treating decters in cempensatien and negli­
gence cases. The State Cemmissien 'Of Investigatien 
believes that such a study sheuld be primarily directed._at 
ending the practice 'Of setting high numbers 'Of treatc 

ments in cempensatien cases witheut previding fer 
re-evaluatien 'Of the case. The State Cemmissien ''Of In­
vestigatien invites the response 'Of the MedicalSeciety 
'Of N ewJ erseyonthis matter, particularly with regard to 
the Medical Seciety.'sevaluatien efthe:prebleirr,and with 
respect te the manner in which the C'Ommissien may be 
able te assist the Medical Seciety in this effert, such as by 
providing infermatien which the State _ Commission 
obtained during its investigation and public hearings and 
which the Medical Society feels may be helpful. . 

Sincerely, 

Chairman, 
N. J. State Commission 'Of Investigation 

New Jersey Workmen's Compensation Study Com­
mission: 

The Report of the Study Commission endorsed. the S.O.I. 
recommendation in .this area. ' 
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[II. AREAS FOR ADMINISTRATIVE ATTENTION 

5) Doctors Duty to Report Unethical Conduct to the 
Medical Society. 

The Testimony; 
Testimony revealed instances of perfunctory treatment or 

overtreatment by doctors in compensation cases. One way to curb 
such abuses would be to encourage other doctors to report such 
possibly unethical conduct. 

The S.c.1. Recommendation: 
Physicians should be under a responsibility to report to the 

Medical Society as a possible unethical practice any instanoes they 
observe of perfunctory or overtreatment being used to build up the 
dollar value of a compensation or negligence case. 

The Background: 
Section 4 of the A.M.A.'s Principals of Medical Ethics 

provides: 

The medical profession should safeguard the public 
and itself against physicians deficient in moral character 
or professional competence, Physicians should observe 
all laws, uphold the dignity and honor of the profession 
and accept its self-imposed disciplines. They should 
expose, without hesitation, illegal or unethical conduct of 
fellow members of the profession. 

The Rule on the Exposure of Unethical Oonduct provides: 

A physician should expose, without fear or favor, 
incompetent or corrupt, dishonest or unethical conduct on 
the part of members of the profession. Question of such 
conduct should be considered, first, before proper medical 
tribunals in exeoutive sessions or by special or duly 
appointed co=ittees on ethical relations, provided, such 
a course is possible and provided, also, that the law is not 
hampered thereby. If doubt should arise ado the legality 
of the physician's conduct, the situation under investiga­
tion may be placed befor·e officers of the law, and the 
physician-investigators may take the necessary steps· to 
enlist the interest of the proper authority. 
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Suggested S.c.I. Proposal: 
The problem is clearly one of enforoement. The requirements 

urged by the S. C.I. are already included in the ethical canons of 
the A.M.A. so no further action by the S.C.I. is appropriate. 

New Jersey Workmen's Compensation Study Com­
mission: 
The Report of the Study Commission has endorsed the S.C.I. 

recommendation in this area. 

IV. ALTERNATE PROPOSALS TO REVAMP THE SYSTEM 

1) Transfer of the Workmen's Compensation Judiciary 
to the Administrative Office of the Courts. 

The Testimony: 
Much of the expert testimony given before the S.C.I. centered 

on the problems inherent in maintaining a court system within the 
executive branch of government. Judge Levine. noted that super­
visor of the Court system in workmen's compensation, the Director, 
was a political appointee, subj,ect to change every four years. In 
contrast to this situation, regular state courts in the judicial branch 
are supervised by the Director of the Administrat~ve Office of the 
State Courts, appointed by the Chief J'1lstice of the N.ew Jersey 
Supreme Court and thus subject to change much less often. 

Judge Kelly, too, recommended transfer, noting that the 
location of the workmen's compensation courts in the executive 
branch tended to politicize the courts. Jacob Balk, con(lurred, 
observing the thoroughly judicial nature of the activities of the 
Judges of Compensation. 

The S.c.I. Recommendation: 
In the course of our investigation it has been made abun­

dantly clear that the atmosphere pervading the entire Workmen's 
Compensation System in this state is less than conducive to a con­
fidence in the forum. Unethical patterns which tend to unfairly in­
crease awards or reduce rights of petitioners, sUClh as bill padding, 
excessive treatment, withholding or delaying temporary disability 
payments, payment of unauthorized medical expenses as part of 
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settlement, allegations of injuries in petitions inconsistent with the 
actual injury, attempting to increase the value of a case through 
unfounded neurolgical claims have been countenanced or at least 
tolerated through passivity and these abuses and improper prac.­
tices have thus become ingrained in the system. The COIll1llission 
is of the opinion that the system should remain adversary in nature, 
since petitioners' rights are' best protected in this manner. How­
ever, to meet abuses, improprieties, unethical conduct and obvious 
fraud squarely, the Workmen's Compensation Court and its 
supporting personnel should be placed under the Administrative 
Director of the State Courts. 

The Background 
The duties of the Director of the Administrative Office of the 

Courts are set out in N.J.S.A. 2A :12--1 through 2A :12--6. Courts 
which are subject to his supe,rvision are simply established as 
courts in specific sections of Title 2A. 

At the present time the supervision of the Workmen's com­
pensation courts is under the authority of the Director, pursuant 
to N.J.S.A. 34:1A-12. 

Suggested S.c.I. Proposal: 
The following statute should be inserted in Title 2A of the 

New Jersey Statutes Annotated: 

The judges of compensation and their supporting 
personnel in the Division of Workmen's. Compensation are 

. hereby constituted the workmen's compensation court, 
which shall be a court of record and have the right to use 
a seal. Such court shall be under the supervision of the' 
Director of the Administrative Office of the Conrts, who 
shall establish and maintain such courts of workmen's 
compensation, as may be necessary, within each of the 
workmen's compensation districts of this state. 

The workmen's compensation court shall have ex­
clnsive jurisdiction to hear and determine all cases of 
workmen's compensation which are not resolved (by the 
referees and supporting personnel) in the Division of 
Workmen's Compensation. 
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Commentary: 
The opening sentence, establishing the workmen's compensa­

tion conrt, conforms closely to the language used in statutory 
enactments of other state conrts in the jndicial article. The second 
sentence specifies that the courts are under the Administrative 
Office of t.he Courts and clearly gives the Director the controls 
which our proposals would otherwise be given to the Director of 
Workmen's Compensation. This language is inserted to avoid 
any dispute as to the distribution of authority. The jurisdiction 
of the court, defined in the third and fmal sentence, makes it clear 
that the transfer of the courts does not usurp the role of the 
Division of Workmen's Compensation as a forum of first resort 
in compensation claims. 

New Jersey Workmen's Compensation. Study Com­
mission: 
While sharing the S.C.I. goals in this ar.ea,the Report of the 

Study Commission took issue with the S.C.I. recommendation, 
believing that the Study Commission's proposal for a thorough 
overhaul of the workmen's compensation system would alleviate 
the problem. (See Report, p. 204.) Since the Study Commission 
proposals may deal with the problem adequately, the S.C.I. .holds 
in abeyanoo its proposal on transfer until it becomes clear whether 
or not the Study Commission proposals are enacted, and if enacted, 
solve the problem. If not, the S.C.I. proposal can be offered I}S an 
alte,:nl}te solution t() the problem. . 

Additional Commentary and Alternative Suggested 
Proposal: 
In the event that the N.J. Workmen's Compensation Study 

Commission's proposal for overhauling the Division is not enacted, 
the S.C.I.'s Workmen's Compensation Alternate Proposal #1 
(Transfer of the Workmen's Compensation Judiciary to the Ad­
ministrative Office ,of the Courts) merits consideration. If our 
proposal on transfer is enacted, our proposal on the Need for 
Additional Powers for the Director of ,the Division of Workmen's 
Compensation must take account of that and becomes the following: 

34:1A-12 Division of Workmen's Compensation; 

Officials and Employees in Division ; Director ; Powers 
and Duties 
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The Division of Workmen's Compensation shall 
consist of the Commissioner of Labor and industry who 
shall act as chairman, a dire(ltor who shall be appointed 
as hereinafter provided, and such referees and other em­
ployees as may, in the judgment of the commissioner, be 
necessary. Appointments of such referees and other em­
ployees shall be made in accordance with the provisions of 
Title 11 of the Revised Statutes, Civil Service. 

The Director of the Division of Workmen's Com­
pensation shall be a person qualified by training and ex­
perience to direct the work of such division. He shall be 
appointed by the Governor, with the advice and consent 
of the Senate, for a term of 7 years, and shall serve during 
good behavior and until the director's successor is ap­
pointed and has qualmed. He shall reeeive such salary as 
shall be provided by law. 

The Director of the Division of Workmen's Com­
pensation shall, subject to the supervision, direction, and 
final determination of the Commissioner of Labor and 
Industry: 

(a) Be the administrative head of the divis,ion; 
(b) Preseribe ,the organization of the divis'ion, and 

the duties of his subordinates and assistants, except as 
may otherwise be provided by law; 

(c) Dire(lt and supervise the activities of all mem­
bers of the division, with responsibility to set high stan­
dards of conduct for referees and other employees of the 
division; 

(d) Take preventive and remedial action with re­
gard to unexemplary conduct by referees and other em­
ployees of the division, including, but not limited to, the 
power to remove from office upon a showing of just cause 
in an administrative hearing. 

( e) Make an annual report ,to the Commissioner of . 
Labor and Industry of the work of the division, wmeh re­
port shall be published annually for general distribution 
at such reasonable charge, not exceeding cost, as the com­
missioner shall determine; 

. (f) Perform such other functions of the depal'tment 
as the commissioner may prescribe. 

The Dire(ltor of the Division of Workmen's Com­
pensation shall also serve as secretary of such division~ 
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IV. ALTERNATE PROPOSALS TO REVAMP THE SYSTEM 

2) The Informal Process: Role and Scope; and the 
$750 Cut-Off 

Informal Proceedings Role and Scope: 

The Testimony: 
The S.C.I. public hearings on Workmen's Compensation 

revealed an unfortunate trend to by-pass the informal process in 
favor of the formal. The testimony is recorded in the next sub­
section, The $750 Cut-Off. 

The S.c.I. Recommendation: 
A study, if not already initiated, should be undertaken by 

the Governor's StudYi Commission on Workmen's Oompensation 
to determine the feasibi1ity of steps to eliminate minor injury 
claims from the formal petition 'are'a by increasing the role and 
scope of the informal proceeding, if the present basic framework 
of the Workmen's Compensation system is to be maintained. 

Commentary: 
The Commentary in the following subsection explains the 

effect of the $750 "Cut-Off". 

New Jersey Workmen's Compensation Study Com­
mission: 
See this heading in the next subsection, The $750 Cut-Off. 

The $750 Cut-Off 

The Testimony: 
S.C.I. Public Hearings revealed that one of the most salient 

defects in the Informal Process in the workmen's compensaJiion 
system is the £act that the existing regulatory disincentive to by­
passing the Informal Process ','cuts off" at the relatively low 
recovery level of $425. The S.C.I. expert witnesses strongly 
recommended raising that level. Attorneys Parks believed a "cut­
off" level of $550 would encourage greater use of the Informal Pro­
eess. Judge Kelly, noting the aJbsence of statutory authorization for 
the Informal Process, suggested that a statute should be enacted, 
and that it should raise the so-called "cut-off" level to $1,000. In the 
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same vein, testimony at the public hearings indicated that the 
Informal Process is being increaslingly by-passed in favor of the 
F10rmal or Litigated Process, entailing additional medical and legal 
fees for petitioners. 

The S.c.I. Recommendation: 
The cut-off point for transition from automatic informal to 

formal hearings should be increased from the present $450 per 
case level to $750 per case. 

The Background: 
An explanation of the so-called" Cut-off" and how it operates 

is in order. At the present time statutory regwation of the award 
of Attorneys fee resides in N.J.S.A. 34 :15-64. It provides that 
"the official conducting any hearing under" the wOI'kmen's com­
pens·a;tion system may ·allow a reasonable. attorney fee not to 
exceed 20% of the judgment. Such fees must be approved by the 
Division of Workmen's Compensation and are deducted from the 
petlitioner's award and paid directly to the persons entitled to 
them. 

It is within .these statutory limlits that the Informal and 
Formal Processes of the Division of Workmen's Compensation 
must operate. Wj,th regard to the award of attorney fees in the 
Informal Process, the Rule,s of the Division of Workmen's Com­
pensation, Section I - Informal Hearings provide: 

The Referee conductling an <informal hearing may 
allow a counsel fee for services rendered by claimant's 
attorney based on the standard considerations of reason­
ableness. The Referee may also allow·a reasonable fee for 
neceoSsary medical examinations and x-rays ordered by 
the claimant or his attorney. Such medical and counsel 
fees may be deducied from accrued (lompensation when 
consent in writing has been obtained from the claimant on 
a form provided by the Division of Workmen's Compensa­
tion. In allowing fees at informal hearings, the officials ap­
proving such fees will regard the purpose and function 
of informal hearings and ,the policy of the Division of 
Workmen'oS Compem>ation to provide a prompt remedy 
to clalimants without undue hardship or expense. 

Thus, while nothing in this rule precludes an a;ttorney's fee 
()f 20%, the concluding sentence stipulates a Division policy of 
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construing "reasonable" attorney fees at Informal Hearings in 
light of the cost-reducing function such Hearings, serve with re­
gard to claimants. The Division thus seems to seek to hold attorney 
fees in the Informal Process significantly below the 20% level. 

By itself, such a policy would encourage attorneys to by-pass 
the Informal Process in favor of the Formal. But the Division 
provides a disincentive to such by-passing in a later rule: 

A. In all formal cases involving dis'ability to finger.s 
and toes, regardless of the amount of recovery, and all 
cases involving disability to the foot or hand which are 
settled with recovery of less than $425.00, and which cases 
had not been previously submitted to an informal hearing, 
the allowance for counsel fees in favor of the attorney 
representing the petitioner shall not exceed 5% of the 
amount of the award or settlement, regardless of whether 
there is a denial of accident in the Answer. All cases which 
fall within the above category, wherein adisconiinuance 
isi filed, the counsel fee allowed on such dis(lontinuances 
shall not exceed 5%. 

B. In this category of cases, where the question of 
the statute of limitations might, to the detriment of the 
claimant, be involved, a formal petition may be filed. After 
the filing· of the petition the claim should be handled in­
formally. Thereafter appropriate dispos.tion shall be 
made of the formal petition. Failure to follow the above 
procedure shall invoke Item 1 hereof. 

This rule is obvoiously designed to discourage attorneys from 
by-passing the Informal Process in cases of minor, uncomplicated 
injuries. Lt does so by limOting attorney fees to 5% of the recovery 
in all cases involving finger and toe injuries which by-passed the 
Informal Process, and in all cases involving hand and foot injuries 
in which the Formal Process recovery is less than $425 and in which 
the Informal Process was by-passed. ~ 

It is this provision which offers the most viable foundation 
for expanding the role and scope of the Informal Process. 

Suggested S.c.1. Proposal: 
The Rules of the Division of Workmen's Compensation 

should be amended to read as follows: 
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A. In all formal cases involving disability to fingers 
and toes, regardless of the amount of recovery, and all 
cases involving disabilities which are settled with recovery 
of less than $750.00, and which cases had not been previ­
ously submitted to an informal hearing., the allowance for 
counsel fees in favor of the attorney representing the peti­
tioner shall not Bxceed 5 % ·of the amount of the award or 
settlement, reg'ardles's of whether there is a denial of acci­
dent in the Answer. All cases which fall within the above 
category, wherein a discontinuance is filed the counsel fee 
allowed on such discontinuances shall not exceed 5 %. 

B. In this category of cases, where ,the question of 
the statute of limitations might, to the detriment of the 
claimant, be involved, a formal petition may be filed. 
After :the filing of the petition the claim should be handled 
informally. Thereafter appropr,iate disposition shall be 
made of the formal petition. FaJilure to follow the above 
procedure shall invoke Item 1 hereof. 

Additionally, the Division Rules, Section I, Informal Hear­
ings, should be amended to read: 

The Referee conducting an informal hearing may 
allow a counsel fee for s'ervices 'rendered by claimant's 
attorney based on ,the standard considerations of reason­
ableness. The Referee may also ,allow a reasonable fee 
for necessary medical examinations and x-rays ordered 
by the claimant or his attorney. Such medical and counsel 
fees may be deducted from accrued c(}mpensation when 
consent in writing has been obtained from the claimant on 
a form pl'Ovided by the Division of Workmen's Com­
pensation. In allowing fees at informal hearings, the 
officials approving such fees will regard :the purpose and 
function of informal hearings and the policy of the Divi­
sion of Workmen's Compensation t(} provide a prompt 
remedy to claimants without undue hards'hip or expense. 
In the absence of special circumstances a reasonable fee 
shall be presumed not to exceed twelve percent of the 
award. 

Commentary: 
T'his reco=endati(}n expands :the Division's . regulatory 

disincentive to by-passing the Inf(}rmal Process to cover all dis-
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a.bilities rather than just those involving the hands, feet, fingers, 
and toes. It also raises the so-called" cut-off" level to $750,. 

If statutory action is preferred, this can be done without 
drafting a statute to cover the entire Informal Process by making 
the following two insertions in 3.A: 

i) The statute would begin: "In all formal cases 
arising under this chapter involving ... 

ii) The clause mentioning submission of cases to the 
informal hearings (3.A., sentence .one) would read: "and 
which cases had not been previQusly submitted to an in­
formal hearing as provided for in the Rules of the Divi­
sion of Workmen's Compensation," 

New Jersey Workmen's Compensation. Study Com­
mission: 
The Report of the Study CQmmission noted -the parallel goals 

shared by the S.C.I. and the Study Commission in this area. The 
Study Commission plan, if enacted, thoroughly restructures the 
informal hearing process and, if successful, obviates the need for 
the S.C.I. proposal. Thus, the RC.I. propos-al should be held in 
abeyance until it can be determined whether or not the Study Com­
mission plan will be enacted and, if so, be effective. If not, the 
S.C.I. proposal offers an alternate solution to the problem. 

IV. ALTERNATE PROPOSALS TO REVAMP THE SYSTEM 

3) The Rotation of Judges of Compensation 
The Testimony: 
One of the chief sources of abuse of the system brought to 

light in testimony given during the S.C.I. hearings was the clubish 
atmosphere which pervades many of the courts of workmen's 
compensation. By nature workmen's compensation is a rather 
closed practice and the· resulting continual appearance of the same 
attorneys before -the same judges fosters 'a situation which at least 
suggests the eristence of a clique. Attorney Matthew Parks 
suggested a transfer of judges among the various workmen's com­
pensation vicinages of the state if they do not perform well. 
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The S.c.I. Recommendation: 
The body charged with the administration of the Workmen's 

Compensation Court System should study the advisability of 
judges being rotated semi-annually within the respective geo­
graphical areas of the state so as to prevent the constant appear­
ance of the same attorneys before the same judges with the same 
type of cases throughout the Court's calendar year. 

The Background: 
At the present time there is no statutory provision specifically 

governing the assignment of judges of compensation. Such trans­
fers as are made by the Director.are done under the authority 
of N.J.S.A. 34:1A-12, the current compilation of the Director's 
duties. Additionally, the administrative structure of the Division 
of Workmen's Compensation appears to be at odds with the Divi­
sion's statutory mandate, since N.J.S.A. 34:15-53 requires the 
location of compen8ation courts in eaclJ county and the Division 
maintains such courts in only 18 of the State's 21 counties. Above 
these are the district hearing offices, which will number 12 upon 
the completion of the New Brunswick office. Such districts could 
serve as the framework within which a statutorily authorized 
rotation could operate. 

South Carolina recently restructured its CoUl~ system, pur-. 
suant to the recommenations of a survey by N.Y.U.'s Institute 
of Judicial Administration. Among the changes was! a statutory 
provision for :the interchange of circuit judges between and among 
South Carolina's judicial circuits. S. Car. Statutes § 15-129 
provides: 

Assignment of circuit judges by roster.-Between 
the first and fifteenth days of December in each year the 
Chief Justice or, in his absence or inability to attend, the 
senior associate justice shall form a roster of the circuit 
judges of the several circuits in order to arrange a regular 
and continuous assignment and interchange of circuits 
among such judges and make an order assigning the 
sevBral circuit judges to hold the several circuit courts in 
all of the circuits of the State for the whole of the' suc­
ceeding year in such order as will effect a continuous 
interchange of circuits according to such numerical series. 
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Suggested S.c.1. Recommendation: 
As a basis for establishing statutory authorization for an 

efficient rotation of workmen's compensation judges the following 
statute should be adopted: 

34:15- Workmen's Compensation Districts enwmerated 
and boundaries stated 

For the purpose of adminis,tering the Division of 
Workmen's Compensation, this .state shall be divided into 
12 districts as follows, namely: 

First. The counties of Atlantic, Camden, Cape May, 
Cumberland, Gloucester, and! Salem shall constitute and 
be called the first dis:trict; 

Second. The <lounty of Ocean shall constitute and be 
called the second district; 

Third. The county of Monmouth shall constitute and 
be called the third district; 

Fourth. The counties of Burlington, Hunterdon,and 
Mercer shall constitute and be called the fourth district; 

Fifth. The county of Somerset shall constitute and 
be called the fifth district; 

Sixth. The <lounty of Middlesex shall constitute and 
be called the sixth district; 

Seventh. The county of Morris shall constitute and 
be called the seventh district; 

Eighth. The counties of Passaic and Warren shall 
constitute and be called the eighth district; 

Ninth. The counties of Bergen and Sussex shall con­
stitute and be called the ninth district; 

Tenth. The county of Union shall constitute and be 
called the tenth district; 

Eleventh. The county of Essex shall constitute and 
be called the eleventh district; 

Twelfth. The county ,of Hudson shall constitute and 
be called the tweHth district. 

Within each district the Director of Workmen's 
Compensation ,shall establish and maintain a district hear­
ing office and such (courts of workmen's compensation 
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and) other facilities as may be necessary and proper for 
administration of justice. 

Additionally, to harmonize the practice of the Division of 
Workmen's Compensation with its apparent statutory authoriza­
tion, N.J.S.A. 34:15-53 should be amended to read as follows: 

Time, place and notice of hearing; adjournment 

Within 20 days after the filing of an answer, or the 
expiration of the time for filing an answer if no answer 
is filed, the secretary of the division shall fix a time and 
place for hearing the petition, or shall send the petition 
and answer or a transcript of the petition and answer to 
the director, a deputy director or one of the referees, in 
which case such director, deputy director or referee, within 
20 days after the filing of the answer, shall fix a time and 
place for the hearing of the petition. Such time shall be 
not less than 4 weeks nor more than 6 weeks after the 
filing of the petition, provided however, that in cases 
where the e:>ctent of permanent disability, total or partial, 
is an issue, the determination of such issue shall be de­
ferred as provided in section 34 :15-16 of this Title. The 
petition shall be heard either in the county in which the 
injury occurred or in which the petitioner or respondent 
resides, or in which the respondent's place of business is 
located, or in which the respondent may be' served with 
process, or in the appropriate court or office within the 
workmen's compensation district in which any of the fore­
going counties are located. When a time and place has 
been fixed for such hearing, the direetor, deputy director 
of the referee to whom the cause has been referred shall 
give at least 10 days' notice to each pariy of the time and 
place of hearing. The director, deputy director or any 
referee to whom a cause has been referred, shall have 
power to adjourn the hearing thereof from time to time 

, in his discretion. 

The establishment of workmen's compensation districts yields 
a basis on which the basic S.C.I. recommendation will operate. 
There are two drarts of the S.C.I. proposal, the former assuming 
a transfer of the court system to the Administrative office of the 
Courts, and the latter envisioning the continuation of the miuris 
in the Division of Workmen's Compensation: 
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1) Assignment of Workmen's Compensation judges by 
roster 

Between the first and fifteenth days of July in each 
year the Chief Justice, or in his absence or inability to 
attend, the senior associate justice, either in their own 
capacity or through the Director of the Administrative 
Office of the Courts, shall form a roster of the judges of 
compensation of the workmen's compensation courts in 
order to arrange a regular and continuous assignment 
and interchange of judges of compensation among the 
several workmen's compensation districts and make an 
order assigning the several judges of compensation to 
hold workmen's compensation courts in all of the work­
men's compensation districts of the State for the whole 
of the succeeding judicial term in such order as will effect 
a reasonable and efficient interchange of judges of com­
pensation among the workmen's compensation districts of 
the State. Additional assignments and reassignments may 
be made as necessary. 

2) Assignment of Workmen's Compensation judges by 
roster 

Between the first and fifteenth days of July in each 
year the Director of the Division of Workmen's Compensa­
tion, or in his absence or inability to attend, an appro­
priate designee of the Commissioner of Labor d/; Industry, 
shall form a roster of the judges of compensation of the 
workmen's compensation courts in order to arrange a 
regular and continuous assignment and interchange of 
judges of compensation among the several workmen's 
compensation districts and make an order assigning the 
several judges of compensation to hold workmen's com­
pensation courts in all of the workmen's compensation 

. districts of the State for the whole of the succeeding 
judicial term in such order as will effect a reasonable and 
efficient interchange of judges of compensation among the 
workmen's compensation districts of the State. Additional 
assignments and reassignments may be made as necessary. 

Commentary: 
The statutory provision for workmen's compensation dis­

tricts is patterned on the provision for establishing congressional 
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districts. It provides statutory authorization for the Division of 
Workmen's Compensation to operate, as it now intends to, from 
a basis of twelve districts. Courts are currently located in 18 
counties, and the proposed statute provides for their conti:nuation 
at the discretion of the director, and even for additional courts. 
More importantly it allows the director to reduce the number of 
courts by as many as one-third since only one court is required 
within each district. The language within brackets, ("courts of 
workmen's compensation"), can be deleted if the courts are trans­
ferred to the Administrative ,office of the Courts, with the Director 
of Workmen's Compensation retaining control over the other fea­
tures of the department. 

The amendmeut to N.J.S.A. 34:~5--53 cures a statutory de­
fect which apparently required the maintenance of a compensation 
court or hearing office in every county. It does so by permitting 
the hearing to take place anywhere within the district encompass­
ing the county in which it would otherwise be heard. 

The statutory proposal for a rotation roster is in two drafts 
to accommodate the possible shift of the workmen's compensation 
courts to the Administrative ,office of the Courts, or their retention 
in Labor and Industry. Use of the phrase "reasonable 
and efficient interchange" should allow interchanges as in­
frequently as semi-annually and within aTeas of the S,tate rather 
than the State as a whole. The closing sentence on additional 
assignments, etc., prevents the use of a roster from "locking-in" 
the person in charge of the rotat~on and thus allows him the free­
dom to cope with developments which arise during the course of 
the year. 

New Jersey Workmen's Compensation Study Com­
mission: 
In this area the Report of the Study Commission took issue 

with the S.C.I. recommendation, believing the matter should rest 
with the Director's discretion. (See Report, p. 204.) There is no 
inherent conflict between the S.C.I. position and the Report of 
the Study Commission because the S.C.I. proposal for legislation 
permits the Director to alter and revise the rotation schedule" as 
necessary." Nonetheless, the Study Commission's proposals for 
structural reform of the workmen's compensation share the same 
goal and may have the same effect as the S.C.I. recommendation 
in reducing the frequency with which attorneys appear before the 
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same jUdges. Additionally, Director Dezseran has shown a willing­
ness to transfer judges in the exercise of his discretion. Thus, it 
maybe wise to hold S.C.I. legislative proposals in this area in 
aJbeyence until it can be determined whether or not the Study 
Commission's recommendations will be enacted, and if enacted, 
alleviate the problem in this area. If not, the S.C.I. proposal may 
offer a means of solving the problem without undertaking a 
thorough structural overhaul of the workmen's compensation 
system. 

IV. ALTERNATE PROPOSALS TO REVAMP THE SYSTEM 

4) Second Injury Fund 
The Testimony: 
Judges Levine and Kelly indicated that the Second Injury 

Fund, which encourages employers to hire partially disabled 
workers by exempting them from liability from any ensuing total 
disability, is being abused in cases where the ensuing total dis­
ability is age-related. 

The s.c.1. Recommendation: 
It is recommended that an in-depth study, possjlbly by the 

Governor's Study Commission on Workmen's Compensation, 00 
made, of ways to diminish the growing use of the Second Injury 
1<'und in Workmen's Compensation cases to get what amounts to 
supplemental payment to pensions and Social Security for persons 
aged 65. The Study's goal should be recommended legislation 
relative to the fund and should consider a recommendation made 
at these hearings that the fund still be available to those 65 but that 
persons of that age would have to overcome a presumption of in­
eligibility before they could receive benefits from the fund. 

• The Background: 
. The pertinent provisions of the statute governing the Second 

Injury Fund, N.J.8.A. 34 :15-95, provides: 

The sums collected under section 34 :15--94 of this 
Title shall constitute a fund out of which a sum shall be 
set aside each year by the Commissioner of Labor and 
Industry from which compensation payments in aC(lord-
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ance with the prOVISIOns of paragraph (b) of section 
34 :15-12 of this Title s'hall be made to persons totally 
disabled, as a result of experiencing a subsequent perma­
nent injury under conditions entitling such persons to com­
pensation therefor, when such persons had previously been 
permanently and partially disabled from some other 
cause; provided, however, ... that no person shall be 
eligible to receiv: payments from such fund: 

(a) If the disability resulting from the injury caused 
by his last compensable accident in itself and irrespective 
of any previous condition or disability constitutes total 
and permanent disa;bility within the meaning of this Title. 

(b) If permanent total disability results from the 
ag'gravation, activation or acceleration, by the last com­
pensable injury, of a pre-existing noncompensable disease 
or condition. 

(c) If the disease or condition existing prior to the 
last compensruble accident is not aggravated or accelerated 
but is in itself progressive and by reason of such progres­
sion subsequent to the last compensable accident renders 
him totally disabled within the meaning of this Title. 

(d) If a person who is r,endered permanently par­
tially disabled. by the last compensable injury subsequently 
becomes permanently totally disabled by reason of pro­
gressive physical deterioration or pre-existing condition 
or disease. 

Nothing in the provision of said paragraphs, a, b, c 
and d, however, s'hall be construed to deny the benefits 
provided by this section to any person who has been pre­
viously disabled by reason of total loss of, or total and 
permanent loss of use of, a hand or arm or foot or leg 
or eye, when the total'disability is due to the total loss of, 
or total and permanent loss of use of, 2 or mOre of said 
major members of the body, or to any person who in 
successive accidents has suffered compensable injuries 
in conjunction result in permanent total disability. Nor 
shall anything in paragraphs a, b, c and d, aforesaid apply 
to the case of any person who is not receiving or who has 
heretofore received payments from such fund. 
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Suggested S.c.I. Proposals: 
The pertinent provisions of N.J.S.A. 34 :15-95 should be 

amended to read as follows: 

The sums eolleeted under section 34 :15--94 of this 
Title shall constitute a fund out of which a sum shall be 
set aside each year by the Goinmissioner of Labor and 
Industry from which compensation payments in accord­
ance with the provisions of paragraph (b) of section 
34:15-12 of this Title shall be made to persons totally 
disabled, as a result of experiencing a subsequent per­
manent injury under conditions entitling such persons to 
compensation therefor, when such persons had previously 
been permanently and partially disabled from some other 
cause; provided, however, . . . that no person shall be 
elig~ble to receive payments from such fund: 

(a) If the disability resulting from the injury caused 
by his last compensable accident in itself and irrespective 
of any previous condition or disability constitutes total 
and permanent disability within the meaning of this Title. 

(b) If permanent total disability results from the 
aggravation, activation or acceleration, by the last com­
pensable injury, of a pre-existing noncompensable disease 
or condition. 

(c) If the disease or condition existing prior to the 
last compensable accident is not aggravated or accelerated 
but is in itself progressive and by reason of such progres­
sion subsequent to the last compensable accident renders 
him totally disabled within the meaning of this Title. 

(d) If a person who is rendered permanently par­
tially disabled by the last compensable injury sub­
sequently becomes permanently totally disabled by reason 
of progressive physical deterioration or pre-existing con­
ditionor disease, whether age-related or otherwise. 

(e) If a person who is rendered permanently par­
tially disabled by the last compensable injury is 65 years 
of age or older at the time he subsequently. becomes per-
11wnently totally disabled, absent a positive showing to. 
the contrary, such person shall be presumed to be ineligible 
t(!receive benefits from such fund by reason of section (d). 
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Nothing in the provision of said paragraphs, a, b, c, 
. d and e, however,shall he construed to deny the benefits 
provided by this section to any person who has been pre­
viously disabled by reason of total loss of, Or total and' 
permanent loss of use of, a ,hand or arm or foot or leg 
Or eye, when the total disability is due to the total loss of, 
or total and permanent loss of use of, 2 or more of said 
major members of the body, or to any person who in 
successive accidents has suffered compensable injuries 
in eonjunction result in permanent total disability. Nor 
shall anything in paragraphs a, b, c and d, aforesaid apply 
to the case of anyperson who is not receiving or who has 
heretofore received payments from such fund. 

Commentary: 
The amending provisions of the S.C.L's proposed N.J.S.A. 

34 :15--95 retain the basic structure of the Second Injury Fund as 
welL as the essential requirements for qualification as Fund 
beneficiary. It makes the following changes: 

1. Under section (d) the S. C.L proposal clarifies the fact 
that progressive physical deterioration, subsequent to a compen-· 
sable injury, does not qualify a person for Second Injury Fund 
benefits if it is age-related. That may already be the meaning and 
intent of section (d) but it is arguably ambiguous as it now stands. 

2. The ne,w section (e) establishes a rebuttable statutory 
presumption that persons 65years of age or older who seek bene­
fits from the. Fund have become permanently disabled because 
of age-related deterioration, and are thus ineligible. The inclusion 
of "e" in the paragraph following section (e), listing specific 
categories of persons not affected by the foregoing provisions on 
ineligibility,assures that no one 65 or older will be presumed 
ineligible if they otherwise fall into the exempted eligible categories 
outlined in the paragraph. Thus in. all other respects except those 
noted, the Second Injury Fund's structure and set-up remain 
unchanged. 

New. Jersey Workmen's Compensation Study Com­
mission: 
While endorsing'theS.C.I. goal of eliminating Second Injury 

Fund '''old age pensions"·in this area, the Study Commission 
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indicated a belief that its proposals with regard to the Second 
Injury Fund alleviate the problem outlined by the S.O.I. ESsen, 
tially the S.O.I. and Study Oommission proposals differ in. ap­
proach. The S.O.I. proposal seeks to eull superfluons old age 
pensions from the Second Injury Fund by creating a rebuttable· 
presumption of inelig~bility among those over 66 years of age. 
The Study Oommissj,on seeks to cull them by curtailing the original 
injuries which qualify for consideration as contributing total dis­
ability for Second Injury Fund purposes. Until it can be deter­
mined whether or not the Study 'Oommission proposal will be 
enaded and, if so, effective the S.O.I. proposal should be held in 
abeyance. Then, if the Study Oommission proposal is not enacted 
or is ineffective the S.O.I. proposal can be offered as an alternate 
solution to the problem. 

IV. ALTERNATE PROPOSALS TO REVAMP THE SYSTEM 

5) Court Testimony by Doctors 

The Testimony: 
The S.O.I. hearings revealed that a serious problem facing 

petitioners is the unwillingness of doctors, partieularly specialists, 
to testify in workmen's compensation cases. . 

The S.c.I. Recommendation: 
The medical profession in light of the Hippocratic Oath 

should re-evaluate its position with relation to Workmen's Oom­
pensation and refusal of physicians to appear and testify on behalf 
of their patients in both Workmen's Oompensation matters and 
negligence matters. 

The Background: 
The S.O.I. Recommendations On expanding the role and 

scope of the Informal Process (II Proposed Legislative Study 
Commissions; 1) More & Better-Paid State Doctors; and IV. 
Alternate Proposals to Revamp the System; 2) The Informal 
Process: Role and Scope; and the $750 Out-off) should alleviate 
this problem by encouraging more use of the informal process and 
especially through providing state-paid specialists at the informal 
level. Beyond that, little. mOre can be done other than to forward 
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the recommendation on such testimony to the New Jersey Medical 
Society. In any event, the S.C.I. has brought the matter to the 
attention of the public and the legislature. . 

New Jersey Workmen's Compensation Study Com­
mission: 
The Report of the Study Commission endorsed the S.C.I. 

recommendation in this area. 

Composite Letter Sent to the Division Director: 

Dear Mr. Dezseran: 

During the course of its investigation into the W ork­
men's Compensation system, the New Jersey State Com­
mission of Investigation conducted public hearings at 
which the Commissioners took extensive testimony. The 
testimony showed a growing and abusive practice on the 
part of petitioners attorneys to resort to the use of 
multiple allegations in claim petitions, said allegations 
unsupported by either facts or the eventual aware. The 
testimony also showed that this multiple alle,gation tech­
nique was being used as a wedge to attempt to attain a 
higher award and that the cost of the additional medical 
examinations involved was a factor in driving up the (lost 
of workmen's compensation insurance coverage. The 
State Commission of Investigation naturally abhors the 

, use of boilerplate petitions in this manner. 

'Do end this abuse of the system, the Commission 
recommends and requests that you promulgate an adminis­
trative directive to quash this practice. The Commission 
believes that the following rule, or one similar to it,· 
might solve this problem: 

A formal Employee's Claim Petition for 
Compensation, when filed with the Division of 
Workmen's Compensation shall be accompanied 
by supporting' examining reports from qualified 
physicians or· surgeons with respect to each 
injury alleged, whi0h shall also state the name 
and address of the person, if any, who referred 
the petitioner to the physician. With the ap­
proval of a judge of COmpensation, such claim 
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petitions may be amended up to 30 days after 
filing. 

Onr testimony also showed a growing and abnsive . 
practice on the part of petitioners' attorneys to refer 
clients for neuropsychiatric examination so that a neuro­
psychiatric allegation could be made above and beyond 
the basic injury alleged. The testimony also showed that 
the neuropsychiatric allegation was often used as a wedge 
to attempt to attain a higher award and that the cost of 
additional neuropsychiatric examinations was a factor in 
driving up the cost of workmen's compensation coverage. 

To end this abusive practice, the Co=ission recom­
mends and requests that you promulgate an appropriate 
administrative directive and indicate that the Division 
will subject such neuropsychiatric allegations to careful 
scrutiny. The Commission believes that the following 
rule, or a similar one, might solve the problem: 

No attorney, nor any other person at the 
instance of any attorney, shall refer a client in 
a Workmen's Compensation claim to any physi­
cian for a neuropsychiatric e·xamination except 
on the recommendation of the physician evaluat­
ing the basic disability, unless the injury on 
which the claim is based involves the head or an 
amputation. The report of such examining 
physician shall indicate what portion, if any, of 
any disability is neurological, and what portion, 
if any, is psychiatric. 

Additionally, the testimony at these hearings revealed 
a disconcerting pattern of reliance by certain law firms 
upon specific physicians in workmen's compensation cases. 
Because of the inherent dangers of abuse and collusion 
which are possible whenever·attorneys reco=end physi­
cians to their clients, in such cases the State Commission 
of Investigation reco=ends and requests that your office 
issue an appropriate administrative directive to the judges 
of compensation, requiring that they scrutinize closely 
those cases where payment for medical treatment is 
requested and the treating physician was reco=ended 
by the petitioners'attorney. 
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In the course of its investigation and public hearings 
the Commission also uncovered a "house doctor" practice 
among certain law firms engaged in workmen's compensa­
tion practice. The Commission believes that patterns 
indicating the repeated use of a few favored physicians 
by particular law firms manifest possible abuses and 
improprieties in the system. Therefore, the Commission 
recommends and requests that the judges of compensation 
be placed under administrative directive to quash such 
patterns vigorously whenever necessary. The Commis­
sion believes that the public interest would be greatly 
served if a clear message went forth from the Division of 
Workmen's Compensation that in these matters only the 
hig,hest ethical standards and conduct will be accepted 
from those attorneys and physicians practicing in and 
before the workmen's compensation courts. 

The testimony at these hearings indicated the need 
for an adequately enforced system of penalties, integrated 
where possible into the awarding' of costs and counsel fee, 
which would be assessed against both petitioners and 
respondents attorneys for any dilatory tactics in the 
handling of cases. The State Commission of Investigation 
notes that the Rules of the Division of Workmen's Com­
pensation contain provisions in this reg·ard. In light of 
the proposals contained in the Recommendations of the 
New Jersey State Commission of Investigation and in the 
Report of the New Jersey Workmen's -Compensation 
Study Commission, the State Commission of Investigation 
recommends and requests that the Director of the Division 
of Workmen's Compensation review the Division's provi­
sions for penalizing dilatory tactics by petitioner's and 
respondents attorneys. Such a review should evaluate 
the adequacy of sU0h provisions and examine whether or 
not they are being properly enforced. Such measures 
might include the institution of continuous trials, the 
maintenance of separate motion lists, and the pre-emptory 
lists of cases in whicJh there is a denial by the carrier. 

Sincerely, 

Chairman, 

H20 

N. J. State Commission of 
Investigation 
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CHART ONE 

AWARD DOLLARS 1962-1972 
----ALL AWARDS 

·FORMALS 
----, IN FORMALS 
------·OIRECT 

DOLLARS 
(MilLIONS ) '961 1963 '964 1965 1966 1967 tcl68 1969 1970 1971 197 

US 
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70 
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1962 1963 t%f 1965 1966 1967 1968 1969 1970 1971 1972 

SOURCE: DIVISION Of LABOR AND INDUSTRY STATI$-TlCS 
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CHART Two 

NUMBER OF COMPENSATION CLAIMS 
PROCESSED 1962 - 1972 

NUMBER OF CASES 
IN TIIOUSANDS 

1"1 1963 196+ 1966 1966 1967 1968 1%9 1970 1971 19n 

37,500 

35,000 

32,500 

30,000 
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22,500 
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5,000 
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~ / '\ --- V \ --.... 
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1961 1963 1964 1966 1966 1967 1968 1969 1970 1971 1971 

--- FORMAL CASES 

--,-,- INFORMAL CASES 

------ DIRECT PAYMENT CASES 
SOURCE: DIVISION OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY (;TAT1STICS 
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CHART THREE 

SECOND INJURY FUND 
NUII8£1 OFIIPPlIC/1/{/S PlItlD 01 FUIIO 

NUMBER OF 
APPLICANTS 

350 
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300 
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SOURCE' DIVISION OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY STATISTICS 
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CHART FOUR 

SECOND INJURY FUND 
DOLLAR VALUE 

OF ALLOTTED BENEFITS 
DOLLAR­

(MILLIONS) 

4-
3.75 

350 

325 

300 

2:75 

250 

2.2S 
200 

1:75 

1.50 

US 
1.00 
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.964 '965 1966 1967 '969 1969 1970 1971 1972 
SOURCE: DIVISION OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY STATISTICS 
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NUMBER OF OCCUPATIONAL DISEASE CASES * 
191\ 

120O '200 
1150 '" SOURCE: DIVISION OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY STATISTICS 1150 
"00 "00 
1050 105O 
1000 1000 
950 950 
900 1'172 900 
850 850 
800 800 (') 

= 750 750 :.-
I" 

~ 700 700 )oj ..., 
1972 650 650 '"'1 ... 

600 600 -< 
"' 550 1971. 

550 
500 500 
450 450 
400 400 
350 350 
300 300 
250 250 
200 200 
150 150 
100 100 

Fl:!:n: Utlh!:n" Umhl ~C'I=V C'nUI:DCCT Ilt..IInN All nTU~D f'nl'UTICC' 
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OCCUPATIONAL DISEASE ~ 
3YR .... ISTORY 

YEAR NUMBER OF o/~~:E~LL AWARD DOLLARS CA S ES 

1970 2985 5.2 8,759.384 

1971 4670 7.0 10,030,123 

1972 5062 8.7 12,431,708 
• SOURCE: DIVISION OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY STATISTICS 

O/oOFAll 

AWARD DOLLA 

9.4 

:9.0 

11.8 

RS 
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g> 
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y EAR 

~ 1910 
'" 

1971 

1972 

MUSCLE SPRAINS ~ 
3YR.I-IISTORY 

NUMBER OF %Of ALL AWARD DOLLARS CAS ES CASES 

13.193 23 14.402.733 

15,489 23 17. Q76.457 

13,531 2a 15,492,801 
.. SOURCE: DIVISION OF LABOR. AND INDUSTRY STATISTICS 
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TilE J.lOUSE DOCTOR EKIINPl£ /* 
1970 -1971 
LAW FIRM A 

~ 70,000 
65,000 
60,000 
55.000 
50.000 
45,000 
40,000 

·35,000 
30,000 
25,000 
20,000 
15,000 
10,000 
5.000 

o 

TOTAL 
PAID 

DOCTOR A 

DOCTOR B 

ALLOT~ER 

DOCTOM 
( 99 ) 

'" Source: Records subpoened by 
the Commission 

Doctor 8 received 53% of all payments 
mode bv this firm to Treoting Doctors in 
Liabi lity Cases. 

( Additionally he received 1000,{, 
of all payments made by 
Insurance Com ponies lo this 
firms Treating Doctor in 
Compensation Cases) 

Docto r A received 7 % 
of all payments. . 

Balance of all payments to 
Treating Doctors was divided 
among 99 Doctors. 

Q 
~ 
~ 
c;l 

~ 



OJ.> 
OJ.> 
>-' 

THE HOUSE DOCTOR £XANPLI2 
1970 ·1971 (Source: Records subpoened by the Commission ) 
LAWFIRM B 

TOTAL 

4230.000 I PAID I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I 
220.000 
210.000 
200.000 
190.000 
180.000 
170.000 
160.000 
150.000 
140.000 
130.000, 
120,000· 
110.000 
100.000 
90.000 
80,000 
70.000 
60.000 
SO.OOO 
40.000 
30.000 
20.000 
10.000 

~ 

DOCTORS A ·B·e·O·E 
Received 54%01 all payments 
mode by this firm to Trealing 
DOelOTS in Liability Cases. 

The boloncewos divided 
among 145 Doctors ... 

Doctor A 
pleaded 5'.hAhlendment 

(Gronted Immunity) 

Doctor B 
pleaded 5'.' Amendment 

(Glonted Immunity) 

Doctor C 
claimed NO Impropriety 
despite contrary documentotion 

Doctor 0 
was not called because he 
has been indicted for 
Tax Evasion 

Ooctor E 
pleoded 5t.h Amendment 

( Granted Immunity) 

~ 

~ 
~ 
Z 

"' 
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EARNED PREMIUMS· INCURRED LOSSES 
YEARS lQ('7 • f 971 , INCL. 

STANDARD 
WIlIT T EN EARNED 

YEAR PREMIUM PREMIUMS 
INCURRED 
LOSSES 

1967 $ 204,399,286 $ 191.6b3 , 727 sI21,70b,685 
1968 236,015,305 232,314,072 137,477, 633 
1%9 260.634.146 253.4b8 ,183 143,146,697 
1970 278,380,150 273,993.821 157.716.621 
1971 291.356,047 284,666,161 176,777,315 

$1,270,784,934 ",236,105,Q64 $ 736,824,951 
INCREASE IN RESERVES 

N.J. WORKMAN'S COM PENSATION 
INCURRED LOSSES 1967 - 1971 

PAID LOSSES (f>7 - 71) 
ADO RESERVE FOR LOSSES 12/31/71 

TOTAL 

LESS RESERVES FOR LOSSES 12/31/66 

INCURR.ED LOSSES 

$ 560, Q01, 112 
347 ,550,747 

~ 908,451,859 

171,626 ,908 

$736,824,951 

PAID 
Losses 

$ 92.557.825 
104.539.598 
109,337,722 

~~;:!!~:~~~ ~ 
e: 

$~76~.:~:~~ ~ 
$136.824.951 



CHART ELEVEN 

FORMULA FOR DEVELOPING EXPERIENCE RATE 
OF UNPAID LOSSES 

NEW JERSEY WORKMANS COMPo 1967 - 1971 

Total Paid losses 
in Year Indicated 

Reserve 12/31/ 66 
1967 92,557,825 

Reserve 12131 /67 
19&8 104,539,598 

Reserve 12131/68 
1969 109,337,722 

Reserve 12/31/69 
1970 122,020,261 

Reserve 12131/70 
1971 132,445,706 
TOTAL $ 
;;s~~s 560,901 ,112 
1967 ·IQ71 

Adual Adual 
Poid Losses Poid Losses Relating 
Current Yeor to Prior Years 

171,626,908 
1967 12,866,261 79,691,564 

200,775,768 
1968 15,687,455 88,852,143 

233,713,803 
1969 16,629,434 92.708,288 

267,522,778 
1970 17,869,231 104,151,030 

303,219,138 
1971 18,510,967 113,934,739 

AVERAGE 5 YEAR 

Loss Reserve 12/31171 $ 347,550,747 
Dividing Reserve by 241.456% 
Computed Reserve 143.266,866 

Add: 15% for ltends-
Unpaid Allowances. etc. 21.490,029 

Computed Reserve 12131/71 
Excess ReservE' 12/31 /71 
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164.756,895 
$182,793,852 

PercenlOg4 
of Reserve 

to Paid lossl 

214.2271 

225.301~ 

251.943"fc 

256.896~ 

266.152' 

241.456 



CHART TWELVE 

NewJerseyWorkmens Compensation 
Valuation of OccupationDiseaseCases 

1972 
1972 
w/c 

9.6 
10.8 

23.3 
66.6 

2.3 

CARRIER 

A 
B 

C 
o 
E 

AVERAGE 

PERCENTAGE DOLLAR. 
VALUATION VALUE 

10% $2.500 
DOUBLE CARRIER'S NOT 
DOCTOR VALUATION INDICATED 

15-17% 3300-3.740 
25% 5.500 

50% 11.000 

25.5% 5,610 

AVERAGE CASE SETTLEMENT 
N.J. W/C CASES 1972 6"10 $ 1,320 

AVERAG E 01 FFERENCE 
IN VALUATION 19.5% $ 4,290 
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CHART THIRTEEN 

N. J. Workmen's Compensation 
Nel Investment Income-Allocated toComp. Business 

GROSS 
INVESTMENT 

CARRIER" INCOME * 

A $ 53,778.473 

B 66,~50.S75 

C 1 ().(,912.359 

o 11,710.434 

E 39,O~.7S8 

F 92.805,943 

G 9,935.004 

ALLOCATED 
PERCENTAGE TO WI C 
ALLOCATED 8 U SIN ESS 

19% $16.074,140 

16 ~o 10.872.972 

5~o 5.768,340 

54~o {;,35Q.336 

34.% 13,559,902 

29% 2E"bI4.00C 

55 % 5,505,461 
Average 32 '70 

• Nalional Figures SOURCE: Insurance 
H Carriers write 4570 oJ W/C in NewJersey Company Reports -197Z 
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UNDERWRITING t.... INVESTMENT INCOME 
MAJOR WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION INSURANCE CARRIERS 

1c)71 E.... 1972 ('n Millions) 

1971 1972 PERCENTAGE OF 
CARRIER UNDERWRITING INVESTMENT UNDERWRITING INVESTMENT INVESTMENT INCOME 

ATTRIBUTED TO W/C 

STOCK CO. A $ 2.9 $ 73.1 $ 14.0 $ 53.7 29% 
STOCK CO. 8 L (35.8) 101.8 2.6 66.5 16 Ofo C"'l 

::c 
STOCK CO. C 37.5 61.1 18.1 104.9 5 <>to > 

=-..; 

'-'> STOCK CO. 0 2.5 11.6 L (4.3) 11.7 54OJo I'!j 
'-'> 

34% 
0 

'" MUTUALm. E 13.5 34.1 5.9 39.0 c:: 
=-

MUTUALCO. F 37.1 73.6 34.1 Q2.8 29io 
..; 
i'" 
i'" 

MUTUAL CO. G 27.3 10J 32.5 9.9 55% 
z 

$ 85.0 366.8 102.9 378.5 Averog.32 OJo 
TOTAL $451.8 $481.4 

PERCENT OF UNDERWRITING 
INVESTMENT INCOME 

19% TO TOTAL 8'0{0 21% 79% 

SOURCE: ANNUAL REPORTS SUBMITTEO TO N.J. DEPT. OF INSURANCE 1971 -72 
L - LOSSES 



NEW JERSEY WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION 
ALLOCATION OF EARNED STANDARD PREMIUM DOLLARS 

FOR YEARS -1967 - 1971, I NeL. 

EARNED STANDARD PREMIUM $1,236,105,964 100% 
LESS: 

C':l 

Allocation to Reserves for losses $175,923,839 14% 
=: 
:>-
~ 

", 

Payments to Petitioners Attorneys ", "'1 ..., ... 
"" and Medicol Doctors 58,092,396 5% 
.., 
"' "' z 

Insurance Company Operating 
Expenses, Profit Inel. Dividends, 
Discounts and Adjust. 499,281,013 40'70 

TOTAL 733,297, 248 59% -
Balance to Iqjured Workers 502,808,716 41 '70 



DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 

INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20224 

Dear Mr. Holleran: 

May 4, 1973 

MARTIN G. HOLLERAN 

Executive Director 
State of N ew Jersey 
Commission of Investigation 
28 West State Street 
Trenton, New Jersey 08608 

This is in reply to your lette.r, dated April 13, 1973, in which 
you request a ruling to the effect that private insurance carriers 
writing Workmen's Compensation are required to furnish Forms 
1099 when payments of $600 or more are made to a physician. 

Sootion 1.6041-1 (d) (2) of the Income Tax Regulations provides 
that fees for professional services paid to attorneys, physicians, 
and members of other professions are required to be reported in 
returns of information if paid by persons engaged in a trade or 
business and paid in the course of such trade or business. The 
insurance carriers come within this category. 

Section 1.6041-1(f) of the Regulations states that the amount 
is deemed paid for purposes of the above requirement when it is 
credited or set apart to a person without substantial limitation or 
restriction. 

Section 1.6041-3( c) of the Regulations distinguishes corpora­
tions engaged in providing medical and health care services or 
engaged in the billing and collecting of payments of these services 
from other corporations which have an exemption from the require­
ment to file information returns. 

Accordingly, insurance carriers writing Workmen's Compensa­
tion are required to furnish Forms 1099 when payments of $600 
or more are made to a physician. 

Sincerely yours, 

WILLIAM H. ROGERS, 

Chief, Administrative 
Provisions Branch 
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